
From: John Narigi
Sent: Tuesday, August A ) , zu I3 I IZSU AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi ,
Subject: Laguna Seca

[CAUTIONzThis email originated from outside of the County. Donotclick links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Dwayne,

Wanted to thank you for the your time last Monday and the in depth discussion and tour of the track. Iwas impressed
with the improvementsmade throughout the site and your insight regarding current issues and your future vision. To
be clear I am interested in continuing our conversation. ‘

In order to complete a preper evaluation and have an educated understanding of the current ownership and mgt
structure Iwas hoping that I could review some documents that would be beneficial to that end. I have reviewed the
web-site in detail and understand the various boards/commof scamp, the history, county’s ownership ect but that does
not provide the information needed for a deep dive evaluation.
If the information being requested isconfidential I would hold assuch as I have not mentioned our conversation to
anyone excluding a few that have approached mewith interest in evaluating the options regarding management of
Laguna Seca.

If possible the followingwould be helpful:

Copy of a complete YTD financial packet (2019) and year ending 2018.
Copy of current mgt contract which hopefully would spell out the requirements of the county regarding reporting,
authority and any established benchmarks regarding performance, care of the area, customer service ect.
Any inspection of the facilities, audits of operation or financial functions.
Any long term capital improvements that may be under consideration or planned.Would be interested in any involving
the various uses housedwithin Laguna Seca; ie racetrack, campsites ect.

Dwayne, if you find my request acceptable happy to pick-up. If for confidential reasons some or all would not be
available would appreciate another in depth conversation with you.
Hope Car Week was a success, first time in 25 years Iwas not involved but was always my favorite week of the year.
Thank you again for the offer of tickets, but our friends were in need of a tour guide.

I will be out of the area the week of the 26th and back on the 2“. Looking forward to continuing our conversation.

Thank you,

John V. Nariei







‐_

From: John Narigil
Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2019 3:07 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: Laguna Seca

ICAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click linksor open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Thanks Dewayne, company gone so now I can review materials sent.
Appreciated,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Tuesday, August _20_,2019 12:52 PM
To: John Narigi<1 _ _ _ _ _ , {
Subject: RE: Laguna eca

Use Permit, sothe total available event days isa combination of County Use Permit and HistoricalSCRAMP event Days.

From: John NarigiJ
Sent: Tuesday, A u g m fi , 2019 11:50AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@_co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: John Narigil _
Subject: Laguna beca

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. }
Dwayne,

Wanted to thank you for the your time last Monday and the in depth discussion and tour of the track. Iwas impressed
with the improvements made throughout the site and your insight regardingcurrent issues and your future vision. To
be clear I am interested in continuing our conversation.

In order to complete a proper evaluation and have an educated understandingof the current ownership and mgt
structure I was hoping that I could review some documents that would be beneficial to that end. I have reviewed the
web-site in detail and understand the various boards/commof scamp, the history, county's ownership ect but that does
not provide the information needed for a deep dive evaluation.
If the information being requested is confidential I would hold assuch as I have not mentioned our conversation to
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
Copyof current mgt contract which hopefully would spell out the requirements of the county regarding reporting,
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
HopeCarWeek was a success, first time in 25 years Iwas not involved butwas always my favorite week of the year.
Thank you again for the offer of tickets, but our friends were in need of a tour guide.

Iwill be out of the area the week of the 26th and back on the 2“. Looking forward to continuing our conversation.

Thank you,

John V. Narigi





From: John Narigi‘
Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2019 3:09 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: Laguna Seca

[CAUTIONz This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. ]
Appreciated, looks like I rec’d aII, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Tuesday, A u g u s t 20. 2019 12:43 PM
To: John Narigq
Subject: RE: Laguna Seca

John,

Iwill send a series of emails sothat the file size does not exceed any limits.

Dewayne

From:John Narigil
Sent: Tuesday, August , 2019 11:50
To: Woods, Dewavne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Laguna aeca

[CA-UTION:'This email originated fromoutside of the County. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
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

In order to complete a proper evaluation and have aneducated understandingof the current ownership and mgt
structure Iwas hoping that I could review some documents that would be beneficial to that end. I have reviewed the
web-site in detail and understand the various boards/commof scamp, the history, county’s ownership ect but that does
not provide the information needed for adeep dive evaluation.
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

1



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
Hope CarWeek was a success, first time in 25 years Iwas not involved but was always my favorite week of the year.
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
Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 20W3:14 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: Laguna Seca

P
Sounds good, plenty to get started on, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent:Wednesday, Au ust 21, 2019 3:13 PM
To: John Narigil
Subject: Re: Lagfiia Seca

I have more to send will do so tomorrow out of office today

Sent from my iPhone

OnAug 21, 2019, at 3:06 PM,John Narigi‘ wrote:

Thanks Dewayne, company gone sonow i can review materials sent.
Appreciated,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>
Sent: Tuesday, August 20, 2019 12:52 PM
To: John Narigfl;
Subject: RE: Laguna Seca

Use Permit, sothe total available event days isa combination of County Use Permit and Historical
SCRAMP event Days.

From: John Narigi 3
Sent: Tuesday, August 20, 2019 11:50AM
To: Woods, Dewa n odsd co.montere .ca.us>
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Laguna Seca

F
Dwayne,

Wanted to thank you for the your time last Monday and the in depth discussion and tour of the track. I
was impressed with the improvements made throughout the site and your insight regarding current
issues and your future vision. To be clear I am interested in continuing our conversation.

I



In order to complete a proper evaluation and have an educated understanding of the current ownership
and mgt structure Iwas hoping that I could review some documents that would be beneficial to that
end. I have reviewed the web-site in detail and understand the various boards/commof scamp, the
history, county's ownership ect but that does not provide the information needed for a deep dive
evaluation.
If the information being requested is confidential Iwould hold assuch as I have not mentioned our
conversation to anyone excluding a few that have approached mewith interest in evaluating the options
regarding management of Laguna Seca.

If possible the following would be helpful:

Copy of a complete YTD financial packet (2019) and year ending 2018.
Copy of current mgt contract which hopefully would spell out the requirements of the county regarding
reporting, authority and any established benchmarks regarding performance, care of the area, customer
service ect.
Any inspection of the facilities, audits of operation or financial functions.
Any longterm capital improvements that may beunder consideration or planned.Would be interested
in any involvingthe various uses housedwithin Laguna Seca; ie racetrack, campsites ect.

Dwayne, if you find my request acceptable happy to pick-up. If for confidential reasons some or all
would not be available would appreciate another in depth conversation with you.
Hope CarWeek was a success, first time in 25 years Iwas not involved butwas always my favorite week
of the year. Thank you again for the offer oftickets, but our friends were in need of a tour guide.

I will be out of the area the week of the 26th and back on the 2"". Looking forward to continuing our
conversation.

Thank you,

John V. Narigi





L ‐ l ‐ ‑
From: John Narigil
Sent: Friday, August 23, 2019 2:09 PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: LSRA financials

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe. ]

Thanks Dewayne, back in town, will get to work, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, Au ust 22 2019 1:26 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: FW: LSRA financials

Here are some financials to review.





From: John Narigil J
Sent: Thursday, Sep em er , 19 3:05 PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Laguna Seca

Dwayne,

Doyou have time after 1130on Monday to meet. Have reviewed all your info and believe time for meto ask some
critical questions and get clarification on expectations of the county regarding the track. I know you and others are
looking for a commitment and want to make sure I am clear on all the facts.

I am free Monday 1130on,

Thank you,

.lvn





L ‐ _ ‐ _
From: John Narigil
Sent: Friday, September 6, 2019 6:43 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: Laguna Seca

w
Dewayne, thanks for the reply, I have a contract job all day today. Monday can meet early am, 8 would be good. Let me
knowwhat locationwould be convenient for you.

Have agood week-end,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, September 5, 2019 4:48 PM
To: John Narigl 7 >
Subject: Re: Laguna Seca

John

I have an off site meeting at that time on Monday I can meet on Friday (tomorrow) after 1pm or Monday from 8am
through 10:30 Ijust have to leave on Monday by 10:30any if those times work?

Sent from my iPhone

OnSep 5,2019, at3:05 PM,John Narigil wrote:

Dwayne,

Doyou have time after 1130on Monday to meet. Have reviewed all your info and believe time for me to
ask some critical questions and get clarification on expectations of the county regarding the track. I
know you and others are looking for a commitment and want to make sure I am clear on all the facts.

I am free Monday 1130on,

Thank you,

Jvn
A , A





From: John Narigi |
Sent: Friday, Septem er 6, 201 11:16AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: Laguna Seca

F
See you then, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday,September 6, 2019 10:38AM
To: John Narigi‘ F
Subject: Re: Laguna Seca” _

County admin office Salinas works for me

Sent from my iPhone

OnSep 5,2019, at6:42 AM, John Narigil lwrote:

Dewayne, thanks for the reply, I have a contract job all day today. Monday can meet early am, 8 would
be good. Let me know what locationwould be convenient for you.

Have agood week-end,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, September 5, 2019 4:48 PM
To: John Narigil
Subject: Re: LagUnaSéE"

John

I have anoff site meetingat that time on Monday I can meet on Friday (tomorrow) after 1pm or
Monday from 8am through 10:30 ljust have to leaveon Monday by 10:30 any if those times work?

Sent from my iPhone

OnSep 5,2019, at3:05 PM,John Narigi| [wrotez

Dwayne,

Doyou have time after 1130on Monday to meet. Have reviewed all your info and
believe time for me to ask some critical questions and get clarification on expectations

1



of the county regarding the track. I know you and others are looking for a commitment
and want to make sure I am clear on all the facts.

I am free Monday 1130on,

Thank you,

Jvn





From: John Narigi‘
Sent: Thursday, September , 10:0?PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: Current 2019 Track Rental LOG

Dwayne,

These emails/information are very helpful and now Iamback from Calistoga, will begetting focused onall the info.
Could I get 2 tickest to this w/e races,would like to go up and watch the operation and really study the operations.

Will be in touch,

Thank you,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Monday,September 9, 2019 9:46AM
To: John Narigir
Subject: FW:Cur-refit 2019 Track R_ental LOG

From:JudyVarley <‘ud la una-seca.com>
Sent: Friday,September 6, 2019 7:16 AM
To: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Derr,Mike x4992 <derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewayne
x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Kimberly Marlar <kmarlar@laguna-seca.com>; tmcgrane@Iaguna-seca.com; Ellis
Summers <SummersE la una-seca.com>
Subject: Current 2019 Track Rental LOG‑
Good FridayMorningAll,
I wanted to send you the most recent 2019Track Rental Log. We are closing the 3rd Quarterjust below the $4million
mark
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Thank you,
Judy





From: John Narigil
Sent: Friday, September 13, 2019 :47AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: Re: Current 2019 Track Rental LOG‑
Can do today. Where should I do so?

Sent from my iPhone.
Jvn

OnSep 13, 2019, at 5:40 AM,Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

Yep do you want to pick them up today or tomorrow

Sent from my iPhone

OnSep 12, 2019, at 10:05PM,John Narigil wrote:

Dwayne,

These emails/information are very helpful and now Iamback from Calistoga, will be
getting focused on all the info. Could i get 2 tickest to this w/e races,would like to go up
and watch the operation and really study the operations.

Will be in touch,

Thank you,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Monday, September 9. 2019 9:46 AM
To: John Narigii
Subject: FW: Current 2019 Track Rental LOG

From:ludy Varley <'ud Ia una-seca.com>
Sent: Friday,September 6, 2019 7:16 AM
To: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Derr, Mike x4992
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>;
Kimberly Marlar <kmarlar@laguna-seca.com>; tmcgrane@Iaguna-seca.com; Ellis



Summers <SummersE@laguna-seca.com>
Subject: Current 2019 Track Rental LOG

Good Friday MorningAll,
I wanted to send you the most recent 2019 Track Rental Log. We are closing the 3rd
Quarterjust below the $4million mark
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Thank you,
Judy





i
L ‐ ‐ ‐ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, September 13, 2619 8:13 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: information

Dewayne,

The last time we metwe discussed allowing me to review other info, you showed me the a compensation schedule by
name/position, could you send meacopy? Also aytd P&Lwould be helpful aswell. This weekend focused only on LSasI
know the need to make adecision to submit a proposal or not.
Appreciateall the great info to date provided.Thank you for the rental information.

jvn





From: John Narigi‘
Sent: Saturday, September 14, 2019 6:13 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: information‑
Understood,can I p/u tickets Sunday at will call? Only need 2,
Thank you,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, September 13,2019 9:26 AM
To: John Narigii
Subject: Re: information

0k thought I sent the employee schedule that day, on the PLgive usa couple weeks staff in the middle of the events

Sent from my iPhone

OnSep 13, 2019, at8:12 AM, John Narigi' wrote:

Dewayne,

The last time we met we discussed allowingme to reviewother info, you showed me the a
compensation schedule byname/position, could you send meacopy? Also aytd P&Lwould be helpful
aswell. This weekend focused only on LSas I know the need to make a decision to submit a proposal or
not.
Appreciate all the great info to date provided.Thank you for the rental information.

jvn





From: John Narigi‘
Sent: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 8:48_AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: LS

[CAUTIONzThis email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content is safe.~,]
Dwayne,

Thank you for the tickets last Sunday. Spent 4 hours solo walking and studying the operation. When we talk again glad to
fill you in.Overall and enjoyable experience. Not a huge crowd but in my conversation with Scott Atherton he implied he
was happywith the ticket sales. The improvements you madewere easily noticed by myself, tremendous improvement
to the ambience.

I also want to inform you that we are staying here at our current resident.The house has not sold and we have made
that decision. Thus extremely interested in moving forward in aneffort to secure the race track contract and working
with the county. Will have additional questions and looking forward to getting the info requested earlier after the indy
race.

Rumor on the street, scamp knows they are in trouble regarding an extension and they have been voicing there opinion.
I have not gotten any calls but have p/u the info in general conversations.

I would like to go out again either Saturday or Sunday for more observing and note taking, could you be so kind to
secure a couple more tickets.

Will be back in town tomorrow late.

Hope havinga good week,

jvn





l _ _ ‐ _ _ ‑
From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 m
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: 2019 Track Rental Agreement LOG.xlsx

P
Dwayne,just saw this was out of the office. Can come up tomorrow if needed and believe coming Sunday with Phillips,,,
let me know,wide open tomorrow, jvn

From:Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodscl@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday,S e M Q7:01AM
To: John Narigi!
Subject: 2019 Track RentalAgreement LOG.xlsx

John,

Not sure if I actually sent this document, it shows the value and activity of the Track rental program. Are you available to
come out either today or Saturday to discuss more details, I will be at the track today after 12.

Dewayne





l _ _ _ _ _ _ ‐ _ _
From: John Narigi ‘
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 5:54 PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: 2019 Track Rental Agreement LOG.xlsx‑
See you Sunday and reviewed the material, jvn

From: Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday,September 20, 2019 5:46 PM
To: John Narigil
Subject: Re: 201?Track Renmgreement LOG.xlsx

lf there Sunday we can connect then

Sent from my iPhone

OnSep 20, 2019, at 5:16 PM,John Narigi‘ iwrote:

Dwayne,just saw this was out of the office. Can come up tomorrow if needed and believe coming
Sunday with Phillips,,, let me know,wide open tomorrow, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday,September 20, 2019 7:01AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: 2019 Track RentalAgreement LOG.xlsx

John,

Not sure if I actually sent this document, it shows the value and activity of the Track rental program. Are
you available to come out either today or Saturday to discuss more details, Iwill be at the track today
after 12.

Dewayne





1 ' _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: John Narigi 1
Sent: Friday, September 2 7 m
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: UNTITLED.pptx

Thank you, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2019 10:03 AM
To: John Narigi '
Subject: UNTITLED.pptx

Info on 2018 season





From: John Narigi‘
Sent: Friday, September 27, 20T9‘52'5UPM‑
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: EmployeeWages 2018 est v3.xlsx‑
Thank you, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2019 10:04AM
To: John Narigi _
Subject: EmployeeWages Z M X

Salaries





From: John Narigi 1
Sent: Friday,S e p t e m b e m
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: Copy of 2019 LSRA Event Use Codes and AFS Sales Summary‑
Thanks Dwaine, been working on this project,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <w00dsd@c0.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, September 27, 2019 8:11AM
To: John Narigi‘ H
Subject: Copy ofiOlQ LSRA Event UseCodes and AFS Sales Summary

John,

We can go over the next time we meet.





From: John Narigi‘ ’
Sent: Sunday, September 2 , :07 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: UNTlTLED.pptx‑
Dwayne, reviewed overw/e. info here IEPPisonly for the 2019 reunion. Does have 2018 numbers on attendance and
spend. Any other info available isvery helpful and educational,,,
Much to read and comprehend.
Exciting. Rec'dvm from dareas, will be calling him tomorrow,

Thank you,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2019 10:03AM
To: John Narigi _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,
Subject: UNTlTLED.pptx

Info on 2018 season



_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Friday, November 1,2019 8:30 AM
To: tmcgrane@|aguna‐seca. com (tmcgrane@laguna‐seca.com)
Cc: GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us
Subject: LSRA Proposal

Mr. McGrane,

I am confirming receipt of your submitted proposal, it is under review,we expect to communicate to all parties by the
latter part of next week the status.

Thanks for your interest in management LSRA/WeatherTech Racewayon behalfof the County of Monterey.

Regards,

DewayneWoods
County of Monterey





L‑
From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, November 1,2019 8:32 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: Girard, LeslieJ.x5365
Subject: RE: LSRA Proposal

[CAUTIONzThis emailoriginated from outside of the Connty. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content issafer]
Thank you,

John Narigi

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 1,2019 8:29 AM
To: John Narigi
Cc: Girard, Leslie J. x5365 <GirardLl@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: LSRA Proposal

Mr. Narigi,

I am confirming receipt of your submitted proposal, it is under review,we expect to communicate to all parties by the
latter part of next week the status.

Thanks for your interest in management LSRA/WeatherTech Raceway on behalf of the County of Monterey.

Regards,

DewayneWoods
County of Monterey





‐ ‐ _ ‑

From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2019 6:44 AM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca. com (tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com); Board of Governors
Cc: GirardLJ@co.monterey.ca.us
Subject: Management Proposal Submittal

Mr. McGrane,

In the process of conducting due diligence on your organizations management proposal please submit electronically
copies of the SCRAMP's audited financials for years 2017 & 2018. Given the need to move expeditiously on this matter
please submit before the end of November 8‘2019.

Thanks for your cooperation,

DewayneWoods
County of Monterey



lwr.u



From: JohnN a r i g i ‑
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2019 9:2 AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: Re: Submittal of Management Agreement

Yes.

Sent from my iPhone.
Jvn

On Nov 6, 2019, at 6:48 AM, Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

Mr. Narigi,

I would like to confirm that your organization is newly formed and that no audited financial
documentation exists to assist in our due diligence regardingyour submittal.

Thank for your cooperation,

DewayneWoods
County of Monterey





From: JohnN a r i g q
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2019 : 0 M‑
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: questions,

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. ]
Have questions but failed to remember I/wehave a 5pm commitment tonight,, you will have my questions by
93m tomorrow, my apologies,

jvn





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Saturday, November 9, 2019 7:22 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi; Hansen Reed
Subject: FW: Draft MC/LSRA Draft Management Agreement
Attachments: MCLSRA Draft.pdf

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Dwayne,
Attached is the redline review of the contract by my attorney Hansen Reed. Below are some of the concerns.
Nothingmajor excluding a few regarding clarification of insurance.
Believe easier for you to review redline copy and more efficient. Available asstated Monday, 9-2, Tuesday
and Wednesday until 4. to meet or discuss by phone. I do want to make sure myattorney is comfortable with
the agreement prior to signature.

Please see redline copy for clarification needs or requested revisions.They are listed in the following sections:
1.2 petty cash.
1.10 uses of gross revenue verbiage, should bejust revenue after definition.
1.14 Attendance, 12k is that per day or per event, please state.
1.17 asdiscussed CPI, 2.0% annual for wage increase, please state.
1.22 attendance, same question per day or per event, please state
1.27 Promotion days, define promotional with examples, please state.
1.29 Isthere a definition of daily track use?That is not limited? please state.
1.32 Add option to renew contract asdiscussed.
1.34 Historical, now understand per call. Historical use permit per scramp contract and permit, 2991.
2.1 Not in procession.
2.2 ?
2.3 What does the comment mean.
3.1 Mgt Fee,will provide position cap exhibit. Add ”provide monthly” ie payment. Please state.
3.2 See language add, no discussion if over/under? ”except county errors" Please state.
4.1”commercially reasonable efforts to manage,” please state.
5.2 45 days change to asap, please state.
5.3 change from asap to within 3 business days.
10.1 to clarify, all LSRA revenue is deposited byADNC to county account, county cuts check and pays.
ADNC prior approves all expenses? Can this language be a bot more clear?

0 10.2 Taxes and assessments due to firms business, nothing that involves LSRA activities, ownership or
revenue ect (list not inclusive) please clarify.

o 11.2 ”Cannabis advertising, sponsorships or event sanctioning per approval of BOS” please state.

Per my attorney and asI read the doc, nothing clearly states that MCis indemnifyingADNC for county actions.
Also nothing states that there is no liability for ADNCwhat so ever regardingany debt or liabilities created or
assumed by past operators or volunteers business dealings or actions.

1



Please let me know if any questions or comments. Have 2 weddings today and headingto an 8am mtg.
available all day tomorrow.

Thank you,

jvn

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Thursday,
To: John Narigi
Cc: Jeannette Russo ,'Clair Staples ‑
Subject: Draft MC/LSRADraft Management Agreement

John,

The question and answer sheets provided a lot of information.

I have made a few changes (difficult to do in a pdf but l tried).

Note that there is nothing in the agreement about MC indemnifyingyou for its actions.

Take a look and let me know if you have any questions.

I am driving to Napa tomorrow at noon, but amavailable via my phone if needed (I do have a 3 pm conference call while
driving and will not beavailable.

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,P.C.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649-1100
l'nx: i831i 649‐6805

WALKER+MED
A T T O K N E Y S a s “ L A W R C .

CONFIDENTlALlTY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, PC. This message and the
attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected by attorney-client privilege or the
attorney work product privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message and the attached documents, you
are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of this information is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this message in error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.



AGREEMENT

for the

OPERATIONANDMANAGEMENT

of the

LAGUNA SECARECREATIONAREA l/

between

CUNflBENTlAL THECOUNTYOFMONTEREY

and

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX

dated

January , 2017



OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

This Operation and Management Agreement (“Agreement”) dated January ____, 2019 is

between the COUNTY OF MONTEREY,California (the“County”) and the

m m ,aLimited Liability Corporation (“XXXXXXX”).

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, in 1974 the area now known asLaguna Seca RecreationalArea (“LSRA”)

formerly part of Fort 0rd, was transferred fi'om the UnitedStates Government to the County

pursuant to aquitclaim deed, which deed hasbeen amended twice (collectively, the “Army

Deed”); and

WHEREAS, since the County’s acquisition of LSRA in 1974 the County has operated

and managedthe race track and associated facilities locatedwithin LSRA (currentlyknown as

WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca, hereinafter “Raceway”) under aseries of concession

agreements, andmost recently under amanagement agreement dated January 31, 2017, and

which expires onDecember 31, 2019; and

WHEREAS, in addition to the Raceway, LRSA includes various campgrounds and a

rifle/pistol ranges operatedby the County and the Peace Officers Association; and

WHEREAS, in 1983,the County PlanningCommission approvedUsePermitNo. 2991

(“Use Permit”)governingthe operation and general development of LSRA; and

WHEREAS the past concessionaire historically heldcontracted events in addition to the

County approved event UsePermit; and

WHEREAS, XXXXXXX is organized for the purpose of supporting | would change
this. Narigi

activities atthe Raceway and related facilities, and other activities and events atLSRA; and Consulting was
not formed just
to operate
LSRA.



WHEREAS, the County andmm havereachedmutually acceptable terms for the

operation andmanagement of LSRA: and,

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Parties that the operation andmanagement of LSRA

shall be consistent with historical practice, and the terms of the UsePermit andArmy Deeduntil

anewmasterplan for LSRA is prepared and approved, and appropriate environmental review is

performed;

NOWTHEREFORE, the County andXXXXXXX agree asfollows:

AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS.

The following definitions and terms shall beinterpreted to have the followingmeaning

and intent.

1.1 “Agreement”means this ManagementAgreement.
Petty is a newword? What does MC mean?

x2 “Allowed Expenses”means@expenses for services and supplies related to the

appropriateManagement of the Business and theManagement of the Premises that are to be

funded by the County andpaidby the Management Firm,but does not includeManagement Fee

Expenses,most Operational Expenses or expenses related to Capital Expenditures.

l/1.3 “AllowedExpenses Fund”means the account heldbyXXXXXXX into which it shall

deposit andhold funds providedby the County for the purposeof payingAllowedExpenses, as

more fully described in Article 5.

1.4 “ArmyDeed”means that certain quite]aim deed from the UnitedStates Government

to the County dated October 31, 1974 andrecorded in Monterey CountyOfficial Records atReel

944 Page 1077,conveying LSRA to the County, asamended onAugust 6, 1986and recorded in



MontereyCounty Official RecordsatReel2012 Page235, and onJanuary 21, 2000_by

DocumentNo.2000082485,MontereyCounty OfficialRecords.

1.5 “BOS”means the County Boardof Supervisors.

1.6 “County” means the County of Monterey.

1.7 “County Representative”means the persondesignatedby the CountyAdministrative

Officer for contract management purposes asdescribed in Article 16.

1.8 “Effective Date”means January 1,2020.

1.9 “GAAP”means generally accepted accountedprinciples asdefined andpromulgated

by theAmerican Institute of CertifiedPublicAccountants.
later on just "Revenue" is used

1.10 ‘fiross Revenue”means all revenue generated, directly or indirectly, asresult of the

Management of the LSRAPremises. Gross Revenue includes,but is not limitedto, all sales,

revenue derived from the provision of services, or monetary or in‐kindreceipts from any and all

sources of income derived in whole or in part from any business transacted in, at, or from the

ManagementPremises,whether from customers or otherwise, both cashand on credit, and in

cases of sales or charges on credit, whether or not payment is actuallymade.

1.11 “ImmediateRepairs”means repair andmaintenance itemsat theManagement

Premises that require attention for health and safety reasons.

1.12 “Improvements”means the repairs and improvements pursuant to the County Capital

ImprovementPlan (CIP).

1.13 “LSRA” means the Laguna SecaRecreationArea.

1.14 “Major Spectator Events”means these events limitedanddefinedby the UsePermit

andHistorical use in general, described asamaximumof five (5) events of 4-day durationwhere
Is the 12,000 in aggregate or each day? Dowe care?

attendance exceeds 12,000persons. The general publicmay attendMajor Spectator Eventsby



ticket purchaseunder conditions established by XXXXXXX and approved by the County

Representative.

1.15 “Management” means the operation, management and maintenance of the

Management Premises for and on behalfof the County pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

1.16 “Management Fee”means the fee payable to XXXXXXX by the County for services

described in Article 3, which is equal to the Management FeeExpenses. 9

1.17 “Management FeeAdvance” meansthe-gmi-of-Two HundredSeventy-Five Tlgiusand U'

Dollars ($285,000) disbursedmonthly through the term of the contracts-“- Mil kfxx ‘gi j
1.18 “Management Fee Expenses” means XXXXXXX’s annual expenses for or relatedto

personnel, includingsalary and benefits, and insurance costs required for the performance of this

Agreement, asmore generally described in Article 3, and aslimited and specifically set forth in

Exhibit A.

1.19 “Management IncentiveFee” means the fee set forth in Section 3.2, below.

1.20 “Management Premises” means all areas of the LSRA, including,but not limitedto,

the race track, paddock, infield, and camping areas, but specifically excluding the rifleranges

and the current County MaintenanceYard and Office. A map of the ManagementPremises is

attachedhereto asExhibitB.

1.21 “Material Default” means amaterial breach of any materialprovision of this

Agreement which continues for aperiod of thirty (30) days afier writtennotice thereof is

receivedby the Party against whom the default is claimed, includingbut not limited to each

action specifically identifiedhereinasa Material Default and the bankruptcy or insolvency of a

Party.



1.22 “MediumEvents”means those events limitedanddefinedby theUsePermit in
Aggregate of the 6 days or each day? I presume each day.

general, described asamaximumof six (6)mediumevent days of 5,000 ‐ 11,999persons. The

generalpublicmay attendMediumSpectator Events by ticket purchaseunder condition

establishedby XXXXXXX and approvedby the CountyRepresentative.

1.23 “Minor Spectator Events”mean those events limitedanddefinedby the Historical

Usein general, described asamaximumof 12race event days with less than4,000 per day.

1.24 “NOI” means the annual net operating incomederived from or arisingout of

activities attheManagement Premises. Specifically determinedby calculating all gross revenue

received (60 daymodifiedaccrual)minus all operating expenses which includeManagement

Fees andAllowed Expenses.

1.25 “NOICapital” meansNO Ithat shall beexpended annually on Improvements.

1.26 “Party” means the County or XXXDQCXX singularly; “Parties” means the County and

XXXXXXXjointly.

1.27 “Promotional Days” are those definedby HistoricalUse for use of track for

promotional andpromotional testing described asamaximumof 15days annually.

1.28 “XXXXXXX”means theXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX.

1.29 “Small Spectator Events” are those events limitedand definedby the UsePermit and,
_ Is there a de

in general, described asamaximumof twenty-four (24) event days of 1,000 - 4,999persons. for daily trac
usage that is

1.30 “CIP” means theprojects included in the County Capital ImprovementProgram not “mlted?

described in Article 8.

1.31 “Term” means the term of this Agreement asset forth in Section 2.4.

1.32 “TerminationDate”means December30, 2023. [3 there an option to extend? _
It would be great to have an option
so the county does not have to go
back and start this process again.



1.33 “Use Permit”means that certainpermitnumber2991 issuedby the County Flaming

Commission onor about October 26, 1983,pursuant to Resolutionnumber 83-376.

1.34 “Historical Use”means the event days allowance for historical events whichhave

beenallowed though concessionaire agreements historically. Is there a "St of Historical Uses? if so can
we attach to thS agreement.

ARTICLE 2. OPERATIONANDMANAGEMENTAGREEMENTAND TERM.

2.1 EmerationandManagerrymt.

The County herebyhiresXXXXXXX to operate andmanage the Management

Premises for and on behalfof the County pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. XXIDiXXX

acknowledges that the Countyhas delivered the Management Premises to XXXXXXX asof the

EffectiveDate free, clear and unencumberedby any and all tenancies andparties in possession,
you are not in possession

with the exceptionof‐PQQQQQGC‐itseifand‐otherthan the rights reservedto the County asset

forth herein.

2.2 Nature of Operation andManagement Services.

This Agreement is a contract for Management services only, and is not to be

consideredor interpretedasalease for anypurpose. This Agreement confers only permission to

occupy anduse theManagementPremises for Management purposes in accordancewith the

terms and conditions of this Agreement. The expenditureby XXXXXXX of capital and/or labor

in the course of operation andmanagement of the ManagementPremises shall not confer to

XXXXXXX any interest in LSRA except asprovidedherein.

2.3 Conditions Subseguent.

The Army Deedrequires thewritten concurrence of the Secretary of the Interior,or

current authorized federal official or agency, for any concession agreement relatingto or

involving theManagementPremises. XXXXXXX acknowledges this is aservices agreement



andnot aconcession agreement; however, if the County determines theDeedrequires

concurrence of the Secretary of the Interiorthe Countywill use commercially reasonable efforts

to diligently seek suchwritten concurrence. The County cannot guarantee such concurrence or

timing in which such concurrencemaybe obtained. If suchwritten concurrence is denied, this

Agreement shall immediately terminate.

2.4 1m

TheTerm shallbefiom the EffectiveDate through and includingthe Termination

Date,unless earlier terminated asprovidedherein.

ARTICLE 3. COMPENSATION.

3.1 Management Fee.

XXXXXXX shall receive the annual Management Fee from the County for the

performance of its services pursuant to this Agreement. TheManagementFee shall be an

amount equal to the actual annual ManagementFeeExpenses. Levels of Staffing including

allowedpositions and associated salaries shall be limited to themaximumsprovided for in

Exhibit A. To insure adequate cash flovz'hfl'orXXXXXXX to performits obligations hereunder,

County shall provideXXXXXXXEll:Ili/lari’agementFeeAdvance to bepaidno later than January

10,2020, and thereafter on the last day of eachmonthduring the Term for the proceeding

months expenses. At the end of each fiscal year County andXXXXXXX shall reconcile the

Management FeeAdvance receivedby XXXXXXX to the annualManagementFeeExpenses,

andCounty shall either deduct or addthe difference thereofto the annual Management Incentive

Feeor deduct from future Management FeeAdvances at County discretion.

3.2 Management IncentiveFee.

XXXXXXX shall receiveaManagement IncentiveFee equal to twenty percent



(20%) of N01.The Management IncentiveFeeshall bepaidbasedon the County

Representative’s verification andacceptance of aprofit and loss statement generated fi'om the

CountyFinancial System andprovided to XXXXXXX whichprovidesN01for the prior fiscal

year (July-June). County shall provideXXXXXXX the profit and loss statement no later than

August 30th of each year. XXXXXXX shall have the right to review the financial

documentationutilizedby the County to verify the N01,however the information in the County
, except for County errors,

FinancialSystem shallmake the determinationof N 0 1and'shallbefinal and conclusive.

3.3 Payment of Management IncentiveFee.

TheManagement IncentiveFeewill be calculated andpaid annually within 120days

from the agreement of bothparties asto NO Iafler the close of eachfiscal year ending June 2020

through June2024.

ARTICLE 4. OPERATIONAND MAINTENANCE.

4-1 general‑

XXXXXXX shall be responsible for the management, operation andmaintenanceof

theManagementPremises and its various components and facilities to standards of operation and

performance at least equal to those generally applicable to major racetracks and similar facilities

except asspecifically set forthherein. Under the general oversight of the County Representative,

XXXXXXX shall operate, manage andmaintainthe ManagementPremises in amanner

designed tomaximizeRevenuewhile complyingwith the terms of theUsePermit andHistorical
commercially reasonable

Use. 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 ; shall use-itsbest efforts to manage, operate andmaintain the Management

Premises in a safe, healthy and first-class condition.



4.2 Limitations.

Al l operations anduses at theManagement Premisesduring the Termmust be

consistent with theUsePermit andHistoricalUse andCounty Representative approvals.

4.3 Contracting.

In perfonningits duties andobligations hereunder,XXXXXXX shall have the right

to negotiatewith third party vendors, suppliers, independent contractors, promoters and

sanctioningbodies onbehalfof the County; however, all contracts must be in the nameof the

County andreviewed andapprovedby the CountyRepresentative or CountyBoardof

Supervisors. No such third-party contract shall extendbeyond the Termwithout XXXXXXX

first obtaining the prior written consent of the CountyRepresentative.

4.4 Ackrmwledgementpflitli

XXXXXXX hereby acknowledges the fee simple title of the County in the

ManagementPremises and the improvements located thereon, and covenants and agrees never to

assail, contest or resist said title.

4.5 I_ntellectua1Property.

The County shall own all intellectual property rights relating in anyway to the

ManagementPremises including,but not limited to, logos and identifyingterms, and domain

names for internet purposes. X X X X X Hmayproposeand file for such intellectual property

rightprotection (whether copyright or trademark) but all suchapplications shall be in the name

of andapprovedby the County. XXXXXXX shall havethe right during the Term for the use of

such intellectual property.

4.6 Park Capacity Limitations.



Daily attendance levels and overnight campinguse at theManagementPremisesare

subject to capacity limitations and the County shall retain the authority to impose limitations on

attendance levels for public healthand safetypurposes.

4.7 Signage.

If XXXXXXX desires to placenew permanent signage at theManagement Premises,

XXXXXXX shall obtainprior review and concurrence in writing from the County

Representative. XXX )CX )O ( shall not construe any such review and concurrence asapproval by

the County or any other regulatory agencywithjurisdiction over permits for such signage. Al l

signage shall promote thebusiness of LSRA andnot promote or advertise in anyway

XXXXXXX.

4.8 Directional Signage.
may

XXXXXXX-shal‐l provide and installpermanent internal directional signs at the

Management Premises indicatingthe locationof facilities, parking,and general necessary

information for visitors andevent spectators. Placement of permanent signagemust be first

reviewedand approvedby the CountyRepresentative.A l l signage shall promote the business of

LSRA and not promote or advertise in any way XXXXXXX.

4.9 Permissionto Disseminate Information.

XXXXXXX shall bepermitted to submit press releases, circulate articles and

periodicalspromotingtheManagementPremises and/or release still photographs,video,motion

pictures, anduse the internet in anadvertisingmedia campaign. Al l suchdisseminated

informationshall only be for the purpose of promotingLSRAbusiness, identify the County as

the owner and operator of the ManagementPremises and such communication shall be approved

10



in advanceby the CountyRepresentative.XXXXXXX shall not use itspositionasmanagement

agency to self-promote or useCounty assets in anymannerwhich is for promotionof X X X X ) Q ( .

4.10 Useof RoadSvstem.

X X ) Q ( X X X shallberesponsible for coordinating and gaining approval for the useof

all roadsprovidingingress and egress to the ManagementPremises, includingroadsmaintained

by Federal,State, and local agencies. The County shall use commercially reasonable efforts to

assist XXPOQCXX in obtaining access to anduse of roads under the County’sjurisdiction and

will cooperate with other agencies in obtaining suchaccess anduse for XXXXXEC; however,

the County cannot guarantee or warrant that XFQCKXXX shall have access to anduse of any

roador property not within thejurisdiction of the County.

4.11 fi n a lOperationPlan.

4.11.1. XXXXXXX shall prepare andprovide to the County anAnnual Operation

Planfor reviewand approvalby February31, 2020 for the first year of the Term andby

November 1, for each subsequent year of the Term.

4.11.2. The Annual OperationPlanshall be comprehensivewhich includes an

annual budget and be linkedto the annual Improvements asandwhen approvedby the County.

4.11.3. The Annual OperationPlanshall provide for the provisionof necessary

emergency services.

4.1.1.4. XXXXXXX acknowledges that the County BOSmay, in its sole discretion,

review theAnnual OperationPlanin anopen publicmeeting. Approval of the Annual Operation

Planby the CountyRepresentativeshall be in writing, subject to mutually approvedprogram

changes by the Parties throughout the year. They CountyRepresentative in consultationwith



DOOiXXXXmaymakemodifications to the operationalplan andXXXXXXX agrees to accept

and implement all suchCountymodifications.

4.11.5. If the BOS requires apresentationof the Annual OperationPlan

XXXXXXX shall present areviewof thepast calendar year’s operations and Improvements at

the samemeeting. The BOS shallhave the right to requireXXXXXXX to appear before it and

make suchother presentationrelatingto the ManagementPremises asthe BOSmayreasonably

determine.

4.12 msterCalendar.

XXXXXXX shallmaintain amaster calendar of all activities and uses of the

ManagementPremises, includingbut not limited to uses of theRaceway,Racewaymaintenance

and repair, camp grounds, pavilion,Newmanbuilding, luxury suites, and any other facility or

Improvement currently existing or added to theManagement Premises during the Term.

4.13 Advertisementrfiylajgrjmctator Events.

Prior to March 1of each year during the Term, at County expense, XXXXXXX shall

cause anadvertisement of the schedule for Major Spectator Events to bepublished at least twice

in alocal newspaper of general circulation. The advertisement shall beno smaller than “3X5”

and shall beprinted in no smaller than 12point type face. XXXXXXX shall provide the County

Representativeacopy of the advertisement uponpublication. XXXXXXX shall similarly

publishany change in the schedule for Major Spectator Events immediatelyupon such

rescheduling.

4.14 Schedule of Fees.

XXXXXXX shall be responsible for developing anannual schedule of fees for the

use of theManagementPremises, includingthe Raceway, camping, entrance, pavilion,Newman

12



building, and any other facility or Improvement currently existingor added to theManagement

Premises during the Term. The Schedule of Fees shouldbesubmittedby November 1preceding

each year and is subject to review and final approval by the CountyRepresentative or Boardof

Supervisors.

4.15 PermanentResidence.

XXXXXXX acknowledges and agrees that the LSRA is not intendedto be a

permanent residence for anyperson andwill not allow any person to residepermanently on the

ManagementPremises. Any temporary residencemust be approvedby the County

RepresentativeandXXXXXXXmust satisfy all requirements for such temporary residences that

the County, in its discretion,may require. Suchtemporary residencesmay create apossessory

interest asdefined in California RevenueandTaxation Code section 107,and subject to taxation.

XXXXXXXmaybe responsible for thepayment of such tax or require the person(s) temporarily

residingon theManagement Premises to pay such tax, but the County shall not be liable for the

payment of any such tax.

ARTICLE 5. MANAGEMENT SERVICES FUNDING.

5.1 QenLal.

Except asspecifically provided in this Agreement, XXXXXXX shallbesolely responsible

for all expenses associatedwith the provisionof Management of the Management Premises,

includinghumanresources expenses, insurances, and indemnificationof County.

5.2 Allowed ExpensesFund. $®

County shall provide to XXXXXXXwith' - sof the EffectiveDate the

sumof $150,000 which shall be depositedby x x x x m in theAllowed ExpensesFund. Upon

the use of funds onAllowed Expenses,XXXXXXX shall provide the CountyRepresentative

13



can this be within 10 days of end of each month?
periodically atXXXXXXX’S discretion,but nolater than the end of eachmonthareceipt(s)

documenting the purpose of the expense. If the CountyRepresentativeapproves the expense as

appropriate, the County shall pay to XXXXXXX anamount equal to the expense, which shall be

deposited in the Allowed ExpensesFund. Funds in theAllowedExpenseFundshall remain the

property of the County and shall be held in trust by XXXXXXX for the sole purpose of paying

Allowed Expenses. The Allowed Expenses Fund shall be reconciledby XXXXXXXmonthly,

and acopy of suchreconciliationshall beprovided and shall besubject to acceptanceby the

County representative. The County shall have the right to audit at any time, upon24 hours’

notice, the AllowedExpenses Fund,andXXXXXXX shall immediately return to the County any

funds in the AllowedExpensesFunduponwritten demand by the County.

5.3 Expggg j nExcess o f Allowed Expenses Fund.

ShouldXXXXXXX reasonablydetermine that anecessaryAllowedExpenseexceeds the

funds thenresiding in the AllowedExpensesFund, ) O ( X X X X X shall notify the County

Representativeandprovidejustification for the expense. If approvedby the County

Representative, the County shall providenecessary funds to XXXXXXX to pay for the Allowed
Within 3 days of making the

Expense. Immediately-uponexpenditure of such funds XXXXXXX shall provide to the County

Representative areceipt documenting the expense.

ARTICLE 6. IMPROVEMENTFUNDING.

6.1 The County shall provide Capital Improvement Fundingasit deems necessary and

appropriate to maintain the facility to properly conduct business.

6.2 The County shall allocate aportionof N01asNOICapital and such funding shall

also beusedto fund Improvements.

14



ARTICLE 7. IMMEDIATEHEALTHAND SAFETYREPAIRSANDMAINTENANCE

7.1 Within eight (8)weeks after the EffectiveDate the Parties shall use their best efforts

to agree uponany ImmediateRepairs that are required to allow for business continuity.

7.2 Al l repairs that are considered “works of public improvement” are to be completedby

the County asrequiredby law.A l l general repairs not classified as“works of public

improvement” shall be completed by XIQCXXX only after approval of work andcosts by County

Representative.

7.3 Uponsatisfaction that the ImmediateRepairhasbeenperformedand its associated

invoice is accurate, the County shallpromptlypay the amount of the invoice in conformance

with the Auditor ‐ Controller’s paymentpolicies.

ARTICLE 8. SHORT TERMCAPITAL IMPROVEMENTPLAN

8.1 Within three (6)months after the EffectiveDate,XXXXXXX shall prepare and

submit to the County for its review andapproval aCIP. The CIP shall bedesigned to address

healthand safety concerns, and necessary capital additions, repairs andmaintenance at the

ManagementPremisesnot identifiedasan ImmediateRepair. The County reserves the right to

have final determinationof which CIPwill be approved and the timeline for implementationof

approvedCIP.

8.2 Al l improvements requiredby the CIP shall be ownedby the County notwithstanding

XXXXXXX’S role in the planning, development and implementationof the ClP.

8.3 A l l Improvements requiredby the CIP shall bepaid for withNO ICapital or the Track

Assignment asshall be determinedby the County Representative; however, the use of Track

Assignment andN0 1Capital shall besubject to appropriationby the County BOS.

15



ARTICLE 9.

[Reserved]

ARTICLE 10. FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

10,1 Revenue What are the mechanics? In Narigi account then transfered to MC?
Are all Narigi expenses reimburseable?

XXXXXXX shall deposit all Revenue into an account designated by the County. The County

may change from time-to-time which accounts to have revenue deposited asdeemed

necessary by the County Representative.

10.2 Taxes Fees and Assessments. Are taxes a reimburseable? Not sure how this works.

XXXXXXX shallbe responsible for the payment of all taxes, fees and assessments

associated with its performance under this Agreement. This Agreement may create apossessory

interest, asdefined in California Revenue and Taxation Code section 107,subject to taxation.

XXXXXXX shall beresponsible for the payment of such tax; and in no event shall the County

be liable for the payment of, or reimbursement to XXXXXXX for, any such tax.

10.3 Records and Reports.

IQCXXXXX shall keep or cause to bekept full, complete andproperbooks,records, and

accounts of all Revenue and expenditures associatedwith its performance of this Agreement.

All such records shall bekept for at least two (2) years after the expiration of the year to which

the recordsrelate. The County or the County Representatives shall have the right to examine

XXXXXXX’S records at reasonable times upon at least forty-eight (48)hours’ prior notice, and

from time to time throughout the Term.

10.4 Financial Systems.

XXXXXXX shall accept the County Financial System asthe primary system of

accounting for all transitions at LSRA. The County Financial System follows generally accepted

16



accountingpractices, including the ability to allocate direct and indirect costs to Major,Medium,

andSmall Spectator Events, track rentals, and all other activities at theManagementPremises to

determinewhichmake significant contributions to andwhichmaydetract fromNOI. This

system can individually track allmajor cost centers, specifically eachMajor Spectator Event and

track rentalprogram including any out‐of-pocket costs relatedto sponsorships, promotion

agreements or other activities. County staffwil l be chargedwithhandlingall financial

transactions occurringwithin the system, XXXXXX shall provide all processes related to

management of business except the actualpayment processing. The County Financial System

shallbe the systemof record and all reports shall beobtained from financial data directly from

said system.

10.5 Isiuanceof Debt.

10.5.1. XXXXXXX shall haveno right to and shall not secure any debt, loanor

other financingwith real property, or personal property ownedby the County.

10.5.2. XXXXXXX shall not enter into any unsecureddebt, beyondthat of normal

vendor terms asprovided for in this agreement.

10.6 Property Depreciation.

XXXXXXX shall haveno right to claim andshall not claim depreciationon real

property, or personalproperty or Improvementsbelonging to the County, at theManagement

Premiseswithout first obtaining the prior express written consent of the County; providedthat

XXXXXXX shall retainall rights to depreciation deductions and tax. credits arising from

XXXXXXX ownership of any personal propertybelonging to XXXXXXX.

ARTICLE 11.ADVERTISING, SPONSORSHIPS AND EVENTSANCTIONING

Subject to section4.3, above, onbehalfof the County, XXXXXXXmay negotiate

17



advertising, sponsorship and event sanctioningagreements relatingto theManagement Premises

asfollows:

11.1 All advertising, sponsorships andevent sanctioning shall be tasteful andnot be a

cause for embarrassment to the County.

11.2 There shallbeno advertisingsponsorships or event sanctioning for tobacco, gunor.
.. . . . Cannabis advertising, sponsorships or-r-nanjuana-eempanies or adult entertainment busmesses. event sanctioning shall be at the BOS'S sole

discretion.
11.3 Prior express, written County approvalmust beobtained for all sponsorships and

brands to be associatedwith any portionof theManagementPremises,or any facilities therein,

includinga namingrights agreement.

11.4 XXXXXXX shallmakeavailable to the County allmaterial advertising, sponsorship

and event sanctioningagreements throughout the negotiationand uponfinalization.

11.5 No advertising, sponsorship or event sanctioning agreement shall extendbeyondthe

Term of this agreement without the express, written approval of the County.

ARTICLE 12. COUNTY EVENTS

12.1 The County reserves the right to hold events,without charge andutilize the

ManagementPremises in its entirety or in part. A l l events are property of the County or

agreements with the County, XXXXXXX only acts asan agent of the County to holdthe events.

ARTICLE 13. INSURANCEAND INDEMNIFICATION The county is not indemnifying you at all.

13.1 XXXXXXX shall indemnify,defend, andholdharmless the County and the United

States of America their officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims,

liabilities,and losseswhatsoever (including,but not limitedto, damages to property and injuries

to or death of persons, court costs, and attorney’s fees) occurringor resultingto any and all

perSOns, films, or corporations furnishing or supplyingwork, service,materials, or supplies in
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connectionwith the performanceof this Agreement, and fromany and all claims, liabilities, and

losses occurringor resulting to anyparticipant,person, firm, or corporation for damage, injury,

or death arising out of or connectedwith XXXXXXX’S performance of this Agreement, and or

the use of the former Fort 0rd road system and traffic circulation roadswithin the LSRA,and the

publicperformance of music,unless suchclaims, liabilities or losses arise out of the sole

negligenceor willful misconduct of the County or theUnitedStates of America.

13.2 Without limitingXXXXXXX’s duty to defend and indenmify theCounty and the

UnitedStates of Americas asset forth above,m shall provide insurance coverages for

its operations at theManagement Premises asset forth in Exhibit C. The County shall be named

as an additional insured on 5111130110165, I would get insurance from every user that indemnifies you
and the county.

ARTICLE 14. AUDIT RIGHTS

14.1 The County has the right, at its sole cost and expense, to audit on an annual or adhoc

basis the operations,management andfinances of the ManagementPremises, includingfinances

of XXXXXXXrelated to theManagement of theManagementPremises. XXXXXXX

acknowledges and agrees that the County’s Auditor ‐ Controller has the independent right at any

time to audit County assets andoperations, and any such audit will be in addition to the annual

audit authorizedby this section.

14.2 The County has the right to inspect and audit XXXXXXX’S finances andoperations

relatedto the performance of this Agreement asthe County deems necessary upon twenty-four

(24)hours’ prior written notice to XXXXHX . Uponreceipt of suchnotice of intent to inspect

suchrecords and facilities, XXXXXXXwill take allnecessary actions tomake available all

records and facilities to the CountyRepresentative.
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ARTICLE 15.PUBLICACCESS . .
,dur|ng busmess hours,

15.1 The general public shall have accessat.all times to theManagement Premises subject

to reasonable and customary use or entrance fees asapprovedby the County.

15.2 NeitherXXX)Q(XX, itsmembers, officers,employees, donors to XXXXXXX, or

sponsors, vendors, advertisers or namingrights entities, shallhavespecial privileges for the use

of any facilities at theManagementPremisesunless specifically approved in writing by the

CountyRepresentative.

ARTICLE 16.COUNTY OVERSIGHT AND ACCESS

16.1 The County shall designate a representative for contract management purposes and

X X XXHX shall ensure that the designated representativehas full access to and complete

informationregardingall XXXXXXX contracts, sub-contracts, vendor

agreements/arrangements, facility access, financial records,policy discussions, sponsorship

agreements/arrangements, strategic planning, capital improvementplanningand implementation,

operational and financial access asthe County finds to benecessary to adequatelymanage this

Agreement.

16.2 In addition to the rights reservedpursuant to Articles 12and 14,the County and its

agents shall have the right to enter the Management Premisesat any time for any appropriate

purpose.

16.3 The County retains the right to haveoffices and staffassignedpermanently to the

ManagementPremises anddetermineuse of facilities to station those staff.

16.4 The CountyRepresentative is authorized to approvepromotionalpackages,which

may include tickets or passes to events, whichmayberequired for XXXXXXX to effectively
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promote,market and grow business andbusinessprospects at theManagementPremises,

includingpromotionalpackages to volunteers in order to encourage andpromote volunteer

activities for the benefit of LSRA.M X X X X shall request suchpackages in writing which

writing shall support the business purpose for suchpackages.

ARTICLE 17.TERMINATION

17.1 Termination for Convenience.

This Agreementmaybe terminatedby County for no reasonor any reasonuponone‑
180 I thought the county agreed to 180 days.

hundredand-Menty-GQO) days writtennotice.

17.2 Termination forMaterialDefault.

If aMaterialDefault occurs, the.defaultingPartyshall begiven thirty (30) days

writtennotice from the non-defaultingParty to cure the default. If theMaterialDefault is not

cured within the thirty (30) day period the non-defaultingPartymay terminate this Agreement

uponthirty (30) days priorwritten notice to the defaultingParty.

17.3 Effect of Termination.

17.3.1. Al l real property and improvements shall remainownedby the County.

17.3.2. XXXXXXX shall negotiate in good faith for County acquisitionof personal

property ownedby XXXFQCXX andusedat theManagement Premises.

ARTICLE 18.MISCELLANEOUPROVISIONS

' 18.1 CompleteAgeement.

This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement betweenthe Parties

regardingthe subject matterhereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and

understandings,whether in writing or oral, related to the subject matter of this Agreement.

18.2 Amendment.
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This Agreement maybe amended from time-to-time by mutual consent of the Parties.

Suchamendmentsmay only be in the formof awriting signedby eachof the Parties.

18.3 Successors andAssigns.

This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of XXXXXXX hereunder,maybe

assignedor delegatedby the Countywithout the prior consent of XXXXXXX, either express,

implied,written or unwritten. Any assignment or delegation permittedunder the terms of this

Agreement shall be consistent with the terms of theArmy Deed,UsePermit,any contracts then

in effect regardingtheManagementPremises, and other ordinances or resolutions of the County

then in effect. XXECXXX shall be obligated to accept such assignment without objection or

contest for aperiodof 90 days. Beginningno earlier than thirty (30) days following the effective

date of the assignment or delegationXXXXXXXmay terminate this Agreement by providing

sixty (60) days writtennotice to the assignee/delegatee.

18.4 Qispgte Resolution;

If there are disputes and/or controversies between the Parties relatingto the

interpretation, construction, performance, termination, breachof, or withdrawal from this

Agreement, the Parties shall in good faithmeet andconfer within twenty-one (21) calendar days

afterwritten notice of adispute has beensent by one Party to the other Party. If the Parties are

not able to resolve the dispute through informalnegotiation, the Parties agree to submit such

dispute to formalmediationbefore resorting to litigation. If the Parties cannot agreeupon the

identity of amediatorWithin ten (10)business days after aPartyrequestsmediation, then the

Parties shall each select amediator andthose two mediatorswill select athirdmediator to

mediate the dispute. The Parties shall share equally in the cost of themediator who ultimately

mediates the dispute, but neither Party shall beentitled to collect or bereimbursed for other
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related costs, includingbutnot limited to attorneys' fees. If mediationprovesunsuccessfiil and

litigationof any dispute occurs, the prevailingParty shallbe entitled to reasonableattorneys’

fees, costs and expenses in addition to any other reliefto which the Partymaybeentitled. If a

Partyrefuses to participate in mediationprior to commencing litigation, that Party shall be

deemed to havewaived its right to attomeys’ fees andcosts asthe prevailingParty.

18.5 Execution in Parts or Counterparts.

This Agreement maybe executed in parts or counterparts, eachpart or counterpart

beinganexact duplicate of all other parts or counterparts, and allparts or counterparts shall be

considered asconstitutingone completeoriginal andmaybe attached together when executedby

the Parties. Facsimileor electronic signatures shall bebinding.

18.6 ParaAuthorization.

The governingbodies of the Partieshaveeach authorized execution of this

Agreement, asevidencedby their respective signatures below.

18.7 NoPredeterminationor IrrevocableCommitment of Resources.

Nothinghereinshall constitute adeterminationby the County orXXXXXXX that

any action shall beundertakenor that any unconditional or irrevocable commitment of resources

shall bemadeuntil such time asthe requiredcompliancewith all local, state, or federal laws,

includingwithout limitationthe California EnvironmentalQuality Act, NationalEnvironmental

PolicyAct, or permit requirements, asapplicable, havebeencompleted.

18.8 m

Anynoticepursuant to this Agreement shall be given in writing by aPartyor its legal

representativeby (a)personal delivery, (b) reputable overnight delivery servicewith proofof

delivery, (0)UnitedStatesMail, postageprepaid, registeredor certifiedmail,return receipt
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asfollows:

For the County:

County Administrative Officer

168W. Alisal Street, 3rd Floor

Salinas, CA 92101

e-mail:

facsimile:

Copy to:

County Counsel

168W. A l i sa ] Street, 3rd Floor

Salinas,CA 92101

e-mail:

For XXXXXXX:

Copy to:
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facsimile:

18.9 Severabilig and ValidltypfAgreement.

Should any part, term or provisionof this Agreement bedecidedby acourt of law to

beillegal, in excess of aParty’s authority, in conflict with any lawof the State of California, or

otherwise renderedunenforceableor ineffectual, the validity of the remainingportions, terms or

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and eachPartyhereby agrees it would

haveentered into this Agreement upon the same remainingterms asprovidedherein.

18.10 Singular IncludesPlural.

Whenever used in this Agreement, the singular formof any term includes the plural

form and the plural form includes the singular form.

18.11 Captions.

Theheadings and titles to the paragraphs of this Agreement are not apart of this

Agreement, are for convenience of referenceonly, and shall haveno effect upon the construction

or interpretationof any part of this Agreement.

18.12 ExcusableDelay.

Any prevention,delay or stoppage due to strikes,walkouts, labor disputes, acts of

God, inability to obtain labor ormaterials, governmental restrictions, governmental regulations,

governmental controls, enemy or hostile governmental action, civil commotion, fire or other

casualty, andother causesbeyond the reasonable control of the Party obligated to perform, shall

excuse the performanceby suchParty for aperiodof time equal to any suchperiod of

prevention,delay or stoppage.

18.13 Tense Number. andGender.



Eachnumber, tense and gender used in this Agreement shall include any other tense,

number or gender where the context and references sorequire. Any pronounherein shall beread

in such gender asthe context mayrequire.

1 8. 14

[Reserved]

18.15 Survival.

The obligations of the County.andXXXXXXX under this Agreement shall survive

the expiration or other termination of the Term, to the extent applicable following such

expiration or termination, and shall remain in effect until fulfilled. This covenant specifically

includes,without limitation, each indemnity obligation set forth herein.

18.16 Exhibits Incorporated.

A l l exhibits to which reference is made in this Agreement are deemed incorporated in

this Agreement by such reference asthough fully set forthherein.

18.17 FurtherAssurances,

EachParty agrees that it wil l without further consideration execute and deliver such

other documents and take such other action, Whether prior or subsequent to the EffectiveDate, as

maybereasonably requestedby the other Partyto implementmore effectively the purposes,

intent or subject matter of this Agreement.

18.18 No Third-Party Beneficiary.

The provisions of this Agreement are andwill be for the benefit of the County and

XXXJOCXX only and are not for the benefit of any third-party. Accordingly, no third-party shall

have the right to enforce any provision of this Agreement.

18.19 Construction.



The Parties acknowledge that the Parties and their counselhave reviewedandrevised

this Agreement and that the normal ruleof construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to

beresolved against the draftingparty shall notbeemployed in the interpretationof this

Agreement or any exhibits or amendments hereto.

18.20 Calculation of Time Periods.

In computing anyperiodof time described in this Agreement, the day of the act or

event after which the designatedperiodof time begins to run is not to be included and the last

day of theperiod socomputed is to beincluded,unless such last day is aSaturday, Sunday or

legalholidayunder the laws of the State of California, in which event the period shall rununtil

the end of the next day which is neither aSaturday, Sunday or legal holiday. The final day of

any suchperiod shall bedeemed to end at 5 P.M.,California time, unless otherwise specified

herein. As used in this Agreement, the term “business day” shall mean a calendar day that is not

aSaturday, Sunday, or legal holidayunder the lawsof the State of California.

18.21 County’s PolicePower.

Nothingin this Agreement shall alter in any way the County’s rights or duties asa

governmental agencywithjurisdiction over theManagement Premises to act in the manner

otherwisepermittedor requiredunder applicable laws for the health, safety and general welfare

of the public.

18.22 Surrender at Endof Term.

At the expiration or sooner termination of the Term, XXXXXXX shall (a) subject to

(b)hereof, remove itspersonal property, filmiture, fixtures and equipment and shall surrender the

Management Premises to the County, (b) negotiate in good faithwith the County for the

acquisitionby the County at fair market value of all personal property assets ownedby



XXXXXXX andusedexclusively in connectionwithXXXXXXX’S management and operation

of theManagement Premises, (c) atCounty’s option, assign to County all advertising,

sponsorship and event sanctioningagreements ascontemplated in Section 10.5. All alterations,

additions and improvements to theManagement Premises includingIntellectualProperty and all

rights thereunder, remedies against infringements thereof, andrights to protectionof interests

therein under the lawsof all jurisdictions shall inure to the benefit of, andbeownedby, the

County.

18.23 Waivers.

Failure of either Party to complain of any act or omission on the part of the other

Party,nomatter"how longthe samemay continue, shall notbedeemed to beawaiver by said

Party of any of its rights hereunder except to the extent that passage of time constitutes an

express waiver under any other provisionof this Agreement. No waiver by either Partyat any

time, express or implied,of anybreachof any provision of this Agreement shall bedeemed a

waiver of abreachof any other provisionof this Agreement or aconsent to any subsequent

breachof the same or any other provision. If any actionby either Party shall require the consent

or approval of the other Party, the other Party’s consent to or approval of such action on any one

occasion shall not be deemed aconsent to or approval of said action on any subsequent occasion

or aconsent to or approval of any other action on the same or any subsequent occasion. Any and

all rights and remedieswhich either Partymayhaveunder this Agreement or at law or in equity

shallbe cumulative, and shall not bedeemed inconsistentwith eachother; no one of them,

whether exercised or not, shall be deemed to be anexclusion of any other, and any or all of such

rights andremediesmaybe exercised at the same time.

18.24 Time.



Time is of the essence of this Agreement andof eachand every one of the provisions

containedherein.

18.25 No Agency or Partnership.

XXXXXXX is an independent contractor of the County. The Parties do not intend to

create, andnothing in this Agreement shall beconstrued to create, anagency, partnership, trust

or other relationshipbetween the County andXXXXXXX with duties or incidents different from

those of parties to anarms-length contract.

18.26 Applicable Law.

The lawsof the State of California shall govern the validity, performance and

enforcement of this Agreement.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Partieshaveexecuted and delivered this Agreement asof

the date first abovewritten.

MONTEREYCOUNTY XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

By:
By: _ _ _ _ _ Title: ‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Title: _ ___ Date: January , 2017

Approved asto Formand Content

Charles J.McKee,County Counsel

By: ___ . _ - _ _ _ n _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Leslie J.Girard
ChiefAssistant County Counsel



EXHIBIT A

SCHEDULE OF ALLOWED MANAGEMENT FEE SALARIES AND EXPENSES



EXHIBIT B

M A P OF MANAGEMENT PRENHSES



EXHIBIT C

XXXXXXX REQUIRED INSURANCE COVERAGES





From:John Narigi
Date: November 10.2019at 11:43:22AM PST“
=i'o: MaryAdams <adamsml@co,monterey,ca.us>
Subject:Thank you

(CAUTION:Thisemail originatedfrom-"outsideof theCounty. Do'notclick links-or open
attachments unlessyou recognizethe sender and knowthe content issafe 3

Mary,

I want t o thank you for the time given last week regardingour c o n v e r s a n t ;
involvingmydesire to beawarded the contract to operate and manage Laguna
Seca RecreationalArea. I appreciated your direct quest ions and concerns anci
hopefully Iwas able to answer to your satisfaction. I understand your concern
for the volunteers but my intent isto work with the county to keep them
involved and engagedwith the events. The volunteers are a landmark at the
track and desperately neededand wanted by me.

i am also contacting other supervisors.

Fiease, if you have any other questions or concerns please don’t hesitate to give
me acaii, or send anemail.



Thank you,

Jvn

John V. Narigi





_ ‐ _ ‑

From: John Narigi
Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2019 12:13 PM
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

Submitted my and attorney’s comments on the contract Saturday am, let me know if we need to meet or have
a conversation.
Available excluding 1230-2 today, tomorrow all day,

jvn





. ‐ _ _ _ _ _
From: Woods, DewayneX5309
Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2019 2:47 PM
To: Kaur, Satinder
Subject: Draft Agreement
Attachments: Management Agreement 2020 v5.pdf

Please provide me an exhibit for insurance, much appreciated.

D



AGREEMENT

for the

OPERATIONANDMANAGEMENT

of the

LAGUNA SECARECREATIONAREA

between

THE COUNTY OFMONTEREY

and

A & D Consulting, LLC

dated

January , 2020



OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT AGREENIENT

This Operation and Management Agreement (“Agreement”) dated January _, 2020 is

between the COUNTY OF MONTEREY, California (“County”), apolitical subdivision of the

State of California, and A & D Consulting, a LimitedLiability Corporation (“Contractor”) (each

a“Party,” collectively, the “Parties”).

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, in 1974 the area n o w known asLaguna Seca RecreationalArea (“LSRA”),

formerly part of Fort 0rd, was transferred from the United States Government to County

pursuant to a quitclaim deed, which deed has been amended twice (collectively, the “Army

Deed”); and,

WHEREAS, since County’s acquisition of LSRA in 1974, County has operated and

managed'the race track and associated facilities locatedwithin LSRA (currently known as

WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca, hereinafter “Raceway”) under a series of concession

agreements, and most recentlyunder a management agreement dated January 31, 2017, and

which expires on December 31, 2019; and,

WHEREAS, in addition to the Raceway, LRSA includes various campgrounds and two

rifle/pistol ranges; and,

WHEREAS, in 1983, the County Flaming Commission approved Use PermitNo. 2991

(“Use Permit”) governing the operation and general development of LSRA; and

WHEREAS the past concessionaire historically held contracted events in addition to

events permittedpursuant to the Use Permit; and,



WHEREAS, Contractor is organized for the purpose of providing facility management

and consulting services, andhas the necessary qualifications andbackground for managing

LSRA for County; and,

WHEREAS, County and Contractor have reachedmutually acceptable terms for the

management of certainportions of LSRA; and,

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Parties that the management of LSRA shall be

consistent with historicalpractice, and the terms of the UsePermit andArmy Deed,until anew

master plan for LSRA is prepared and approved, and appropriate environmental review is

performed; and,

WHEREAS, it is the further intent of the Parties that Contractor, its officer, employees

and agents be considered independent contractors and not County employees, pursuant to the

guidelines set forth in Assembly Bil l 5 (Gonzalez, 2019); NOWTHEREFORE,

County andContractor agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS.

1.1 “Agreement” means this Operation andManagementAgreement.

1.2 “AllowedExpenses” or “AllowedExpense” means those reasonable and necessary

expenses for services and supplies related to the Management of the ManagementPremises

regularly incurredby Contractor but that are not Management FeeExpenses nor expenses related

to Improvements or the CIP. .

1.3 “AllowedExpensesFund” means a segregated account held in trust by Contractor

into which it shall deposit andhold funds providedby County solely for the purpose of paying

Allowed Expenses, asmore fully described in Article 5.



1.4 “Annual OperationPlan” means the annual plan described in Section 4.10

1.5 “Army Deed” means that certain quitclaim deed from the United States Government

to County dated October 31, 1974 and recorded in MontereyCounty Official Records at Reel

944 Page 1077, conveying LSRA to County, asamended on August 6, 1986 and recorded in

MontereyCounty Official Records atReel2012 Page235, and on January 21, 2000 by

DocumentNo. 2000082485, MontereyCounty Official Records. A copy of the Army Deed is

attachedhereto asExhibit D.

1.6 “BOS” means the MontereyCounty Boardof Supervisors.

1.7 “CIP” means the projects included in the County Capital ImprovementProgram

described in Article 8.

1.8 “Contractor” means A & D Consulting.

1.9 “County” means the County of Monterey.

1.10 “County Representative” means the person designated by the County Administrative

Officer for contract management purposes asdescribed in Article 16.

1.11 “County’s Financial System” means the system of accounting utilizedby County for

the purpose of documenting and tracking financial transactions.

1.12 “Effective Date” means January 1,2020.

1.13 “Fiscal Year” means the period July 1‐ June 30of each year.

1.14 “GAAP” means generally accepted accountedprinciples asdefined andpromulgated

by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

1.15 “Gross Revenue” means all revenue accruing to County generated, directly or

indirectly, asresult of events or activities occurring, pursuant to this Agreement, on, at or in the

Management Premises. Except asmaybespecifically agreed to in writing otherwise, Gross



Revenue includes,but is not limited to, all revenue derived from ticket, merchandise, food or

beverage sales; daily track or other facility rentals; the provisionof services; or monetary or in‑

kind receipts from any and all sources of incomederived in Whole or in part from any business

transacted on, at, or in the Management Premises,Whether from customers or otherwise, both

cash and on credit, and in cases of sales or charges on credit, whether or not payment is actually

made or received.

1.16 “Historical Use” or “Historical Practice” means those events that have been

historically held at LSRA either by County, or its concessionaire or manager.

1.17 “Immediate Repairs”means repair andmaintenance items at the Management

Premises that require immediate attention for health and safety reasons.

1.18 “Improvements” or “Improvement” means the repairs and improvements pursuant to

the CIP.

1.19 “LSRA” means the Laguna Seca RecreationArea.

1.20 “Major Spectator Events” means acombinationof those events defined in the Use

Permit as“large event days,” and those events staged aspart of HistoricalUse, in general,

consisting of amaximumof five (5) events of 4-day durationwhere attendance exceeds 12,000

persons per day.

1.21 “Management” or “Manage” means the operation, management andmaintenance of

the ManagementPremises for and on behalfof County pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

1.22 “Management Fee” means the fee payable to Contractor by County annually on a

FiscalYear basis for services described in Article 3, which is equal to the Management Fee

Expenses.



1.23 “Management FeeAdvance” means the sum disbursedmonthly through the term of

the contract beginningwith an amount of Two HundredSeventy-Five Thousand Dollars

($275,000)monthly in year 2020, Two HundredNinety ThousandDollars ($290,000)monthly in

year 2021 and Three HundredThousandDollars ($300,000) monthly in year 2022 and 2023.

1.24 “Management FeeExpenses” means Contractor’s annual FiscalYear expenses for or

related to personnel, including salary andbenefits, and insurance costs required for the

performance of this Agreement, asmore generally described in Article 3, and aslimited and

specifically set forth in Exhibit A.

1.25 “Management IncentiveFee” means the fee set forth in Section 3.2, below.

1.26 “Management Premises” means all areas of the LSRA, including, but not limited to,

the race track, paddock, infield, and camping areas, but specifically excluding the rifle/pistol

ranges and the current CountyMaintenanceYard. A map of the Management Premises is

attached hereto asExhibit B.

1.27 “Material Default” means abreach of anymaterial provision of this Agreement which

continues for aperiod of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is receivedby the Party

againstWhom the default is claimed, includingbut not limited to each action specifically

identifiedhereinasaMaterial Default and the bankruptcy or insolvencyof aParty.

1.28 “Medium Spectator Events”means acombination of those events defined in the Use

Permit as“medium event days,” and those events staged aspart of HistoricalUse, in general,

described asamaximumof six (6) event days where attendance is between 5,000 ‐ 11,999

persons per day.



1.29 “Minor Spectator Events” means a combination of those events defined in the Use

Permit as“small event days,” and those events staged aspart of HistoricalUse, in general,

described asamaximum of 36 race event days where attendance is less than 5,000 per day.

1.30 “NOI” means the fiscal year annual net operating income (orportion thereof) derived

from or arising out of activities at the Management Premises. N O I shall be determined by

calculating all Gross Revenue received on afiscal year basis (cashbasis) minus all fiscal year

operational expenses including Management Fee Expenses and Allowed Expenses (or portion

thereof).

1.31 “NOI Capital” means N O I that shall be expended armually on Improvements.

1.32 “Party” means County or Contractor singularly; “Parties” means County and

Contractor jointly.

1.33 “Promotional Days” are those days for use of the Raceway for promotional or testing

purposes asallowedby HistoricalUse, but not exceeding amaximum of 15days annually.

1.34 “Raceway” means the track currently known asWeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca.

1.35 “Term” means the term of this Agreement asset forth in Section 2.4.

1.36 “Termination Date” means December 30, 2023.

1.37 “Use Permit” means that certainpermit number 2991 issuedby the County Planning

Commission on or about October 26, 1983,pursuant to Resolutionnumber 83-376. A copy of the

User Permit is attached hereto asExhibit E.

ARTICLE2. MANAGEMENT AND TERM.

2. 1 Management.

County hereby hires Contractor to Manage the Management Premises for and on

behalfof County pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Contractor acknowledges that County



will deliver the ManagementPremises to Contractor asof the EffectiveDate free, clear and

unencumberedby any and all tenancies andparties in possession, with the exception of

Contractor itselfand other than the rights reserved to County asset forth herein.

2.2 Nature of Management Services.

This Agreement is a contract for Management services only and is not to be

considered or interpreted asa lease or concession for any purpose. This Agreement confers only

permission to occupy and use the Management Premises for Managementpurposes in

accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The expenditure by Contractor of

capital and/or labor in the course of operation andmanagement of the Management Premises

shall not confer to Contractor any interest in LSRA except asprovidedherein.

2.3 Conditions Subseguent.

The Army Deedrequires the written concurrence of the Secretary of the Interior, or

current authorized federal official or agency, for any concession agreement relating to or

involving the ManagementPremises. Contractor acknowledges this is a services agreement and

not a concession agreement; however, if County determines the Deedrequires concurrence of the

Secretary of the Interior County wil l use commercially reasonable efforts to diligently seek such

written concurrence. County cannot guarantee such concurrence or timing in which such

concurrence may be obtained. If suchwritten concurrence is denied, this Agreement shall

immediately terminate.

2.4 m

The Term shall be from the EffectiveDate through and includingthe Termination

Date,unless earlier terminated asprovidedherein.



ARTICLE 3. COMPENSATION.

3.1 Management Fee.

Contractor shall receive the annual FiscalYear Management Fee from County for the

performance of its services pursuant to this Agreement. The Management Fee shall be an

amount equal to the actual FiscalYear Management FeeExpenses. Levels of staffing by

Contractor for the performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, including allowed

positions and associated salaries, shall be limitedto themaximumsprovided for in ExhibitA. To

ensure adequate cash flow for Contractor to perform its obligations hereunder, County shall

provide Contractor on amonthly basis the Management FeeAdvance the first installment of

which is to bepaidno later than January 10,2020, and thereafter on the last day of eachmonth

during the Term for the succeedingmonth’s expenses. At the end of eachFiscalYear County

andContractor shall reconcile the total of allManagement FeeAdvances to the total annual

Management FeeExpenses, and County shall either deduct or add the difference thereof to the

annual Management IncentiveFee or deduct from future Management FeeAdvances at County

discretion. Failureby Contractor to pay anyManagement Fee owed to County at the end of a

FiscalYear asset forth herein shall be aMaterial Default.

3.2 Management IncentiveFee.

Contractor shall receive aManagement IncentiveFee equal to twenty percent (20%)

of N01. The Management Incentive Fee shall bepaidbased on the County Representative’s

verification and acceptance of aprofit and loss statement generated from County’s Financial

Systemandprovided to Contractor which calculates N01for the prior fiscal year. County shall

provideContractor the profit and loss statement no later than August 30th of each year.

Contractor shall have the right to review the financial documentation utilizedby County to



calculate the N01, however, the calculation made by the County’s Financial System, asverified

and accepted by the County Representative, except for errors, shall be final and conclusive.

3.3 Payment of Management Incentive Fee.

Except asset forth herein, the Management IncentiveFee, if any, wil l be paid

annually no later than 120 days from the end of the FiscalYear. For Fiscal Year ending 2020,

the Management Incentive Fee wil l be based on N 0 1for the period January 1, 2020, through

June 30, 2020, only. For FiscalYear ending June 30, 2024, the Management Incentive Fee will

bebased on N O I for the period July 1,2023, through December 31, 2023, County shall provide

the profit and loss statement to Contractor no later than January 31, 2024, and the Fee, if any,

shall be paid no later than 120 days from the end of the calendar year 2023.

ARTICLE 4. MANAGEMENT.

4.1 m

Contractor shall be responsible for the Management of the Management Premises and

its various components and facilities to standards of operation andperformance at least equal to

those generally applicable to major racetracks and similar facilities except asspecifically set

forth herein. Under the general oversight of the County Representative, Contractor shall Manage

the Management Premises in a manner designed to maximize Gross Revenue While complying

with the terms of the Army Deed and Use Permit and being consistent with HistoricalUse.

Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to Manage the Management Premises in a

safe, healthy and first-class condition. The general public shall be allowed to attend events at

and utilize the Management Premises on the terms and conditions established by Contractor and

approved by the County Representative.



4.2 Limitations.

The Management of the Management Premises during the Termmust be consistent

with the Army Deed,UsePermit andHistoricalUse, and subject to approval by the County

Representative.

4.3 Contracting.

In performing its duties and obligations hereunder, Contractor shall have'the right to

negotiatewith third party vendors, suppliers, other independent contractors, promoters and

sanctioning bodies on behalfof County; however, all contracts must be in the name of County,

and reviewedand approvedby the County Representative or County Board of Supervisors, as

mayberequiredby the County Code. No such third-party contract shall extend beyond the Term

without Contractor first obtaining the prior written consent of the County Representative. A

violation of this provision shall beaMaterial Default.

4.4 Acknowledgement of Title.

Contractor hereby acknowledges the fee simple title of County in the Management

Premises and the improvements locatedthereon, and covenants and agrees never to assail,

contest or resist said title.

4.5 IntellectualProperty.

County shall own all intellectualproperty rights relating in any way to LSRA and

specifically the Management Premises including, but not limited to, logos and identifying terms,

and domain names for internet purposes. Contractor maypropose and file for such intellectual

property rightprotection (Whether copyright or trademark) but all such applications shall be in

the name of and approvedby County. Contractor shall have the right during the Term to the use



of such intellectualpropertywithout charge provided suchuse is limited to the purpose of

promoting events at LSRA.

4.6 ParkCapacity Limitations.

Daily attendance levels and overnight campinguse at the Management Premises are

subject to capacity limitations andCounty shall retain the authority to impose limitations on

attendance levels for public healthand safety purposes.

4.7 Signage.

4.7.1 Directional Signage.

Contractor shall provide and install permanent internal directional signs at the

ManagementPremises indicating the locationof facilities, parking, and general necessary

information for visitors and event spectators. Contractor shall confer with the County

Representative regarding the need for and locationof such directional signage, andplacement of

permanent signagemust be approved by the County Representative. Contractor may place

temporary signage asnecessary for each event. A l l directional signage shall be limited to

providing directions only and shall not beused to promote or advertise in any way Contractor’s

business.

4.7.2 Other Signage.

Contractor may solicit and recommend to County the placement of new permanent

signage at the Management Premises, for example for sponsorship or advertisingpurposes. For

all such signage, Contractor shall obtainprior review and approval in writing from the County

Representative. A l l such signage shall be for the promotionof LSRA only and shall not promote

or advertise in any way Contractor’s business.

4.8 Permissionto Disseminate Information.



Contractor shall bepermitted to submit press releases, circulate articles and

periodicalspromoting the Management Premises, release still photographs, video, andmotion

pictures, anduse the intemet in anadvertisingmedia campaign. A l l suchdisseminated

information shall only be for the purpose of promoting LSRA and the Management Premises,

identify County asthe owner and operator of the Management Premises, and such

communication shall be approved in advance by the County Representative. In the performance

of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor is prohibited fromusingCounty assets

or facilities in anymanner that promotes itselfor its businesswithout the express written

permissionof County.

4.9 RoadSystem.

Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating and gaining approval for the use of

all roadsproviding ingress and egress to the Management Premises, including roadsmaintained

by Federal, State, and local agencies. County shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist

Contractor in obtaining access to anduse of roads not under County’s jurisdiction andwill

cooperate with other agencies in obtaining such access anduse; however, County cannot

guarantee or warrant that such access shall be granted.

4.10 Annual OperationPlan.

4.10.1. Contractor shall prepare andprovide to County anAnnual Operation Plan

for review and approval by February31, 2020 for the first year of the Term, andby November 1

of each year for the succeeding year during the Term (for example, by November 1, 2020, for the

year 2021).

4.10.2. The Annual Operation Planshall be comprehensive and include an annual

budget andbe linkedto Improvements described in the CIP asandwhen approvedby County.



4.10.3. The Annual Operation Planshall provide for the provisionof necessary

emergency services.

4.10.4. The County Representative shall either approve or disapprove the Annual

OperationPlan in writing within thirty (30) days of its receipt. If disapproved, Contractor shall

re-submit arevisedAnnual Operation Planwithin thirty (30) days of suchdisapproval. If the

County Representative disapproves such re-submittal, the County Representative shall determine

the Annual OperationPlan,whichContractor shall implement. The County Representative in

consultationwith Contractor maymakemodifications to the Annual Operation Planduring the

course of the calendar year, andContractor agrees to accept and implement all such County

modifications.

4.10.5. Contractor acknowledges that the BOSmay, in its sole discretion, review the

Annual OperationPlan in anopenpublic meetingprior to the start of each calendar year. If the

BOS requires such apresentation of the Annual OperationPlan,Contractor shall present a

review of the past calendar year’s operations at themeeting. The BOS shall have the right to

require Contractor to appear before it andmake suchother presentations relatingto the

ManagementPremises asthe BOSmay reasonably require.

4.10.6. Failure to submit the Annual OperationPlanasset forth herein shall be a

MaterialDefault.

4.11 MasterCalendar.

Contractor shall maintain amaster calendar of all activities anduses of the

ManagementPremises, includingbut not limited to uses of the Raceway (including all Major,

Medium, and Small Spectator Events, and daily track rentals), campgrounds, luxury suites, and



any other facility or Improvement currently existing or added to the Management Premises

during the Term, and scheduledRacewaymaintenance and repair.

4.12 Advertisement of Maior Spectator Events.

Prior to March 1of each year during the Term, at County expense, Contractor shall

cause anadvertisement of the schedule for Major Spectator Events to bepublishedat least twice

in a localnewspaper of general circulation. The advertisement shall be no smaller than “3X5”

and shall beprinted in no smaller than lZ-point type face. Contractor shall provide the County

Representative a copy of the advertisement uponpublication. Contractor shall similarly publish

any change in the schedule for Major Spectator Events immediately upon such rescheduling.

4.13 Schedule of Fees.

Contractor shall be responsible for developing an annual schedule of fees for the use

of the ManagementPremises, including the Raceway, campgrounds, luxury suites, and any other

facility or Improvement currently existing or added to the ManagementPremises during the

Term. The schedule of fees shall be submittedby November 1of each year for the succeeding

calendar year and is subject to review and approval by the County Representative.

4.14 Use of Facilities by Contractor.

In order to maintainContractor’s status asan independent contractor, County may

provide Contractor with temporary facilities to utilize on anas‐neededbasis for events at the

Management Premises. ShouldContractor desire more amore permanent presence at the

Management Premises in order to carry out its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, County

will provide such facilities; however,Contractor shall pay fair market rent for the use of such

facilities, which rent shall be included in Management FeeExpenses. Such facilities may

include office equipment, including computers, but Contractor shall not beprovided, nor shall



use, County electronic mail addresses, or have access to County’s intranet. Countymayprovide

automobiles for use by Contractor at no-cost (but subject to federal and state tax law) pursuant to

a sponsorship agreement betweenCounty and an automobilemanufacturer.

4.15 No Permanent Residence.

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the LSRA is not intendedto be apermanent

residence for any person andwil l not allow any person to residepermanently on the

Management Premises. Any temporary residencemust be approved by the County

Representative,-andContractor must satisfy all requirements for such temporary residences that

County, in its discretion,may require. Such temporary residences may create apossessory

interest asdefined in California Revenue andTaxationCode section 107, and subject to taxation,

andmay be subject to federal income taxation. Contractor shall be responsible for the payment

of such tax but may require the person(s) temporarily residingon the Management Premises to

pay such tax; however, in no event shall County be liable for the payment of any such tax, and

Contractor agrees to indemnify County if such tax is levied for such tax.

ARTICLE 5. ALLOWED EXPENSE FUNDING.

5.1 General.

Except asspecifically provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall be solely

responsible for all expenses associatedwith the Management of the Management Premises.

5.2 Allowed Expenses Fund.

County shall provide to Contractor within forty-five (45) days of the EffectiveDate

the sum of $150,000 which shall be depositedby Contractor in the Allowed Expenses Fund.

Funds in the Allowed ExpenseFundshall remain the property of County and shall be held in

trust by Contractor for the sole purpose of payingAllowed Expenses. No later than the tenth



(10th) day following the end of eachmonth, Contractor shall provide the County Representative

receipt(s) documenting the purpose of Allowed Expenses during the previousmonth. If the

County Representative approves the expense asappropriate, County shall pay to Contractor an

amount equal to the expense, which shall be deposited in the AllowedExpensesFund; if the

County Representative disapproves the expense, Contractor shall be responsible for such expense

out of its own funds. County shall have the right to audit at any time, upon 24 hours” notice, the

Allowed ExpensesFund, and Contractor shall immediately return to County any funds in the

Allowed Expenses Funduponwritten demand by County. Failure to provide access to County

for audit purposes shall be aMaterial Default.

5.3 Expenses in Excess of AllowedExpenses Fund.

ShouldContractor reasonably determine that anecessary AllowedExpense exceeds

the funds then residing in the AllowedExpenses Fund,Contractor shall notify the County

Representative andprovidejustification for the expense. If approved by the County

Representative, County shall provide necessary funds to pay for the Allowed Expense. Within 3

days of making the expenditure of such funds Contractor shall provide to the County

Representative a receipt documenting the expense.

ARTICLE 5. IMMEDLATEREPAIRS

5.1 Within eight (8) weeks after the EffectiveDate the Parties shall usetheir best efforts

to agree upon any ImmediateRepairs that are required to allow for business continuity.

5.2 A l l repairs that are considered “works of public improvement” are to becompleted by

County asrequiredby law.Al l general repairs not classified as“works of public improvement”

shall be completed by Contractor asanAllowed Expense only after approval of work and costs

by the County Representative.



5.3 Uponsatisfaction that the ImmediateRepairhasbeenperformed and its associated

invoice is accurate, County shall pay to Contractor the amount of the Allowed Expense as

described in Article 5, above.

ARTICLE 6. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTPROGRAM

6.1 Within six (6)months after the EffectiveDate,Contractor shall prepare and

submit to County for its review and approval aCIP. The CIP shall bedesigned to address health

and safety concerns, and necessary capital additions, repairs andmaintenance at the Management

Premises during the Term, but not Improvements identified asan ImmediateRepair. County

shall have final approval authority for any Improvement described in the CIP, and the timeline

for implementationof approvedCIP. Failure to submit the CIP asset forth herein shall be a

MaterialDefault.

6.2 A l l Improvements implemented aspart of the CIP shall be owned by County

notwithstanding Contractor’s role in the planning, development and implementationof the CIP.

6.3 A l l Improvements described in the CIP shall bepaid for with either NO ICapital or

other available funds, bothasapprovedby the BOS.

ARTICLE 7. FINANCIALOPERATIONS

7.1 Revenue

Any and all Gross Revenue collected or receivedby Contractor shall, by the close of

each day, betransmitted to the CountyRepresentativeor designee. A l l checks shall bemade out

to “County of Monterey,” and all credit and debit transactions shall be deposited into an account

designated by County. Failure to transmit Gross Revenue asset forth herein shall be aMaterial

Default.

7.2 Taxes Fees andAssessments.



Contractor shall beresponsible for the payment of all taxes, fees and assessments

associatedwith its performanceunder this Agreement. This Agreement may create apossessory

interest, asdefined in California Revenue andTaxation Code section 107, subject to taxation.

Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of such tax; and in no event shall County be

liable for the payment of, or reimbursement to Contractor for any such tax.

7.3 Records andReports.

Contractor shall keep or cause to bekept full, complete andproper books,

records, and accounts of all Gross Revenue received, andManagement FeeExpenses and

Allowed Expenses associatedwith its performance under this Agreement. A l l such records shall

bekept for at least two (2) years after the expiration of the calendar year to which the records

relate. County or the CountyRepresentatives shall have the right to examine Contractor’s

records at reasonable times uponat least twenty-four (24) hours’ prior notice, and from time to

time throughout the Term. Failure to provide such access to the County Representative shall be

aMaterialDefault.

7.4 Financial Systems.

Contractor agrees that the County’s Financial System shall be the primary system of

accounting for all financial transactions at the ManagementPremises. The County’s Financial

System follows GAAP, including the ability to allocate direct and indirect costs to Major,

Medium, and Small Spectator Events, track rentals, and all other activities at the Management

Premises. County staff shall be responsible for the functioning of the County’s Financial

System; however,Contractor shall provide County with such informationasmay be necessary to

process all Management Premises financial transactions through the system. The County’s



Financial System shall be the system of record and all reports shall beobtained from financial

data directly from said system.

7.5 De_bt.

7.5.1. Contractor shall have no right to and shall not secure any debt, loan or other

financing with real or personalproperty ownedby County. Incurrenceof such debt shall be a

Material Default.

7.5.2. Contractor shall not enter into unsecureddebt that in any way may be

ascribed to or become the debt of County. Incurrence of such debt shall be aMaterialDefault.

7.6 PropemDepreciation.

Contractor shall have no right to claim and shall not claim depreciation on real or

personal property, or Improvementsbelonging to County at the ManagementPremiseswithout

first obtaining the prior express written consent of County; provided that Contractor shall retain

all rights to depreciation deductions and tax credits arising from its ownership of any personal

property.

ARTICLE 8. ADVERTISING, SPONSORSHIPS AND EVENT SANCTIONING

Subject to all other provisionof this Agreement, on behalfof County, Contractor may

negotiate advertising, sponsorship and event sanctioning agreements relating to the Management

Premises asfollows:

8.1 A l l naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements

associatedwith the Management Premises shall be subject to prior, express County approval, and

Contractor shall confer with County regarding the negotiationof such agreements.

8.2 A l l naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements shall

be tasteful andnot be acause for embarrassment to County.



8.3 There shall beno advertising, sponsorships or event sanctioning for tobacco, gun

related companies, or adult entertainment businesses. Cannabis advertising, sponsorships or

event sanctioning shall beat the sole discretion of the BOS.

8.4 No naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreement shall

extendbeyond the Termwithout the express, written approval of County.

8.5 Entry into namingrights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements

without County approval shall be aMaterial Default.

ARTICLE 9. COUNTY EVENTS

County reserves the right to hold events andutilize the Management Premises in its

entirety or in part without charge. A l l such events are property of County, andContractor shall

act solely in its Management capacity regarding such events.

ARTICLE 10. INSURANCEAND INDEMNIFICATION

10.1 Contractor shall indemnify, defend, andholdharmless County and the UnitedStates

of America, their officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, liabilities,

and losses whatsoever (including, but not limited to, damages to property and injuries to or death

of persons, court costs, and attorney’s fees) occurring or resultingto any and all persons, firms,

or corporations furnishing or supplyingwork, service,materials, or supplies in connectionwith

the performance of this Agreement, and from any and all claims, liabilities, and losses occurring

or resulting to anyparticipant,person, firm, or corporation for damage, injury, or death arising

out of or connectedwith Contractor’s performance of this Agreement, and or the use of the

former Fort 0 rd road system and traffic circulation roadswithin the LSRA, and the public

performance of music, unless suchclaims, liabilities or losses arise out of the sole negligence or

willful misconduct of County or the UnitedStates of America.



10.2 Without limiting Contractor’s duty to defend and indemnify County and the United

States of AmeriCas asset forth above, Contractor shall provide insurance coverages for its

Management of the Management Premises asset forth in Exhibit C. County shall be namedas

anadditional insuredon all policies. Failure to maintain the requiredinsurance shall be a

Material Default.

ARTICLE 11. AUDIT RIGHTS

11.1 County has the right, at its sole cost and expense, to audit on an annual or ad hoc

basis the operations, management and finances of the Management Premises, including finances

of Contractor related to the Management of the Management Premises. Contractor

acknowledges and agrees that County’s Auditor ‐ Controller has the independent right at any

time to audit County assets and operations, and any such audit wi l l be in addition to the annual

audit authorizedby this section.

11.2 County has the right to inspect and audit Contractor’s finances and operations related

to the performance of this Agreement asCounty deems necessary upontwenty-four (24)hours’

prior written notice. Uponreceipt of suchnotice of intent to inspect such records and facilities,

Contractor shall take all necessary actions to make available all records and facilities to the

County Representative.

11.3 Failure to provide access to County for audit or inspectionpurposes shall be a

MaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 12. PUBLICACCESS

12.1 The general public shall have access at all times to the ManagementPremises subject

to reasonable and customary use or entrance fees asapproved in writing by County.



12.2 NeitherContractor, itsmembers, officers, employees, agents or donors, or sponsors,

vendors, advertisers or naming rights entities, shall have Special privileges for the use of any

facilities at the Management Premisesunless specifically approved in writing by the County

Representative.

ARTICLE 13. COUNTY OVERSIGHT AND ACCESS

13.1 County shall designate the County Representative for contract management purposes,

and Contractor shall ensure that the county Representative has full access to and complete

informationregarding all Contractor’s activities, contracts, sub-contracts, vendor

agreements/arrangements, facility access, financial records,policy discussions, sponsorship

agreements/arrangements, strategic planning, capital improvementplanning and implementation,

track rental rate setting, Major,Mediumand Small Spectator Event agreements, and all other

Management Premises operational and financial aspects asCounty determines to be necessary to

adequately oversee implementationof this Agreement. Failure to provide the County

Representativewith the access and information set forth herein shall be aMaterial Default.

13.2 Notwithstanding any other provisionof this Agreement, County and its agents shall

have the right to enter the ManagementPremises at any time for any appropriate purpose.

Denial of such access shall be aMaterialDefault.

13.3 County retains the right to have offices and staff assignedpermanently to the

Management Premises and determine which facilities shall be used to station those staff.

13.4 The County Representativemay approve promotionalpackages, including tickets or

passes to events, which maybenecessary or appropriate for Contractor to effectively promote,

market and grow business andbusinessprospects at the Management Premises. Such

promotionalpackages may include those to volunteers in order to encourage andpromote



volunteer activities for the benefit of LSRA. Contractor shall request approval of suchpackages

in writing to the County Representative,whichwriting shall support the business purpose for

suchpackages. Granting of promotionalpackages without the County Representatives approval

shall beaMaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 14. TERMINATION

14.1 Termination for Convenience.

This Agreement may be terminated by County for no reason or any reason upon one‑

hundredand twenty (120) days writtennotice.

14.2 Termination for Material Default.

If aMaterialDefault occurs, the defaulting Party shall be given thirty (30) days

written notice from the non-defaultingParty to cure the default. If the Material Default is not

curedwithin the thirty (30) day period, the non-defaultingPartymay terminate this Agreement

upon thirty (30) days priorwrittennotice to the defaulting Party.

14.3 Effect of Termination.

14.3.1. A l l real property and Improvements, andpersonal property not ownedby

Contractor, shall remainownedby County.

14.3.2. Contractor shall negotiate in good faith with County for the acquisitionby

County of personalproperty owned by Contractor andused at the Management Premises.

14.3.3. Upontermination, the Parties shall reconcile the Management FeeExpenses

andAllowed Expenses, and Contractor shall be entitled to the payment of Management Fee

Expenses and the Management IncentiveFee on apro rata basis through the effective date of the

termination, except in the case of aMaterialDefault by Contractor, in which case Contractor



shall not be entitled to any Management IncentiveFee. A l l funds remaining in the Allowable

ExpensesFundshall be paid to County.



ARTICLE 15.MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

15.1 Complete Agreement.

This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement between the Parties

regarding the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes allprior agreements and

understandings,whether in writing or oral, related to the subject matter of this Agreement.

15.2 Amendment.

This Agreement may be amended from time-to-time by mutual consent of the Parties.

Such amendments may only be in the form of awriting signedby each of the Parties.

15.3 Successors andAssigns.

This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of Contractor hereunder,maybe

assigned or delegatedby County without theprior consent of Contractor, either express, implied,

written or unwritten. Any assignment or delegationpermittedunder the terms of this Agreement

shall be consistent with the terms of the Army Deed,UsePermit, any contracts then in effect

regarding the ManagementPremises, and other ordinances or resolutions of County then in

effect. Contractor shall be obligated to accept such assignment without objection or contest for a

periodof 90days. Beginningno earlier than thirty (30) days following the effective date of the

assignment or delegation Contractor may terminate this Agreement by providing sixty (60) days

writtennotice to the assignee/delegate.

15.4 DisputeResolution.

If there are disputes and/or controversies between the Parties relating to the

interpretation, construction, performance, termination, breachof, or withdrawal from this

Agreement, the Parties shall in good faithmeet and confer within twenty-one (21) calendar days

after written notice of a dispute has been sent by one Party to the other Party. If the Parties are



not able to resolve the dispute through informal negotiation, the Parties agree to submit such

dispute to formal mediationbefore resorting to litigation. If the Parties cannot agree uponthe

identity of amediatorwithin ten (10) business days after aParty requests mediation, then the

Parties shall each select amediator and those two mediatorswil l select a thirdmediator to

mediate the dispute. The Parties shall share equally in the cost of the mediator who ultimately

mediates the dispute, but neither Party shall be entitled to collect or bereimbursed for other

related costs, includingbut not limitedto attorneys' fees. If mediationproves unsuccessful and

litigationof any dispute occurs, the prevailing Party shall beentitled to reasonable attorneys’

fees, costs and expenses in addition to any other reliefto which the Partymay beentitled. If a

Party refuses to participate in mediationprior to commencing litigation, that Party shall be

deemed to havewaived its right to attorneys’ fees and costs asthe prevailingParty.

15.5 Execution in Parts or Counterparts.

This Agreement maybe executed in parts or counterparts, eachpart or counterpart

being an exact duplicate of all other parts or counterparts, and all parts or counterparts shall be

considered asconstituting one complete original andmaybeattached together when executed by

the Parties. Facsimile or electronic signatures shall be binding.

15.6 Party Authorization.

The governing bodies of the Parties have each authorized execution of this

Agreement, asevidencedby their respective signatures below.

15.7 No Predeterminationor IrrevocableCommitment of Resources.

Nothingherein shall constitute a,determinationby County or Contractor that any

action shall beundertakenor that any unconditional or irrevocable commitment of resources

shall bemadeuntil such time asthe requiredcompliancewith all local, state, or federal laws,



including without limitation the California EnvironmentalQuality Act, National Environmental

Policy Act, or permit requirements, asapplicable, have been completed.

15.8 Notices.

Any notice pursuant to this Agreement shall be given in writing by a Party or its legal

representative by (a)personal delivery, (b) reputable overnight delivery service with proofof

delivery, (c) United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, returnreceipt

requested, (d) legible facsimile transmission, or (e) electronic mail or other electronic means sent

to the intended addressee at the address set forth below, or to such other address or to the

attention of such other person asthe addressee shall have designated by written notice sent in

accordance with this section, and shall be deemed to have been given either at the time of

personal delivery, or, in the case of expedited delivery service or mail, asof the date of first

attempted delivery at the address and in the manner provided herein, or, in the case of facsimile

transmission or electronic mail, asof the date of the facsimile or electronic transmission (or next

business day if transmitted on a day other than abusiness day). Unless changed in accordance

with the preceding sentence, the addresses for notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be

as follows:

To County: To Contractor:

County Administrative Officer JohnNarigi
168 West A l i s a ] Street, 3rd Floor 28 Mesa Del Sol
Salinas, CA 93901 Salinas, CA. 93908
(831) 757-5792 jvnarigi@outlook.com

Copy to:

County Counsel
168 West Alisal Street, 3rd Floor
Salinas, CA 93901
(831) 755-5283 (facsimile)



15.9 Severability andValidity of Agreement.

Should any part, term or provisionof this Agreement bedecided by acourt of law to

beillegal, in excess of aParty’s authority, in conflict with any law of the State of California, or

otherwise renderedunenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remainingportions, terms or

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and eachParty hereby agrees it would

have entered into this Agreement uponthe same remaining terms asprovidedherein.

15.10 Singular IncludesPlural.

Whenever used in this Agreement, the singular form of any term includes the plural

form and the plural form includes the singular form.

15.11 Captions.

The headings and titles to the paragraphs of this Agreement are not apart of this

Agreement, are for convenience of reference only, and shall have no effect upon the construction

or interpretationof anypart of this Agreement.

15.12 ExcusableDelay.

Any prevention, delay or stoppage due to strikes, walkouts, labor disputes, acts of

God, inability to obtain labor ormaterials, governmental restrictions, governmental regulations,

governmental controls, enemy or hostile governmental action, civil commotion, fire or other

casualty, and other causes beyond the reasonable control of the Party obligated to perform, shall

excuse the performanceby suchParty for aperiod of time equal to any suchperiod of

prevention, delay or stoppage.

15.13 Tense. Number andGender.



15.14 Eachnumber, tense and gender used in this Agreement shall include any other tense,

number or gender where the context and references so require. Any pronounherein shall be read

in such gender asthe context mayrequire.

15.15 Survival.

The obligations of County and Contractor under this Agreement shall survive the

expiration or other termination of the Term, to the extent applicable following such expiration or

termination, and shall remain in effect until fiilfilled. This covenant specifically includes,

Without limitation, each indemnity obligation set forth herein.

15.16 Exhibits Incorporated.

Al l exhibits to which reference is made in this Agreement are deemed incorporated in

this Agreement by such reference asthough fully set forth herein.

15.17 FurtherAssurances.

EachParty agrees that it wi l l without further consideration execute and deliver such

other documents and take such other action,whether prior or subsequent to the EffectiveDate, as

maybereasonably requestedby the other Party to implement more effectively the purposes,

intent or subject matter of this Agreement.

15.18 No Third-Party Beneficiary.

The provisions of this Agreement are andwil l be for the benefit of County and

Contractor only and are not for the benefit of any third-party. Accordingly, no third-party shall

have the right to enforce any provisionof this Agreement.

15.19 Construction.

The Parties acknowledge that the Parties and their counsel have reviewed and revised

this Agreement and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to



beresolved against the draftingparty shall not beemployed in the interpretationof this

Agreement or any exhibits or amendments hereto.

15.20 Calculation of Time Periods.

In computing any period of time described in this Agreement, the day of the act or

event after which the designated period of time begins to run is not to be included and the last

day of the period socomputed is to be included,unless such last day is aSaturday, Sunday or

legal holidayunder the laws of the State of California, in which event the period shall rununtil

the end of the next day which is neither a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. The final day of

any suchperiod shall be deemed to end at 5 P.M.,California time, unless otherwise specified

herein. As used in this Agreement, the term “business day” shall mean a calendar day that is not

aSaturday, Sunday, or legal holidayunder the laws of the State of California.

15.21 Countv’s PolicePower.

Nothing in this Agreement shall alter in any way County’s rights or duties asa

governmental agency withjurisdiction over the ManagementPremises to act in the manner

otherwise permitted or requiredunder applicable laws for the health, safety and general welfare

of the public.

15.22 Surrender at Endof Term.

At the expiration or sooner termination of the Term, Contractor shall (a) subject to (b)

hereof, remove its personalproperty, furniture, fixtures and equipment and shall surrender the

Management Premises to County, (b) negotiate in good faith with County for the acquisitionby

County at fair market value of all personal property assets ownedby Contractor andused

exclusively in connection with Contractor’s Management of the Management Premises, and (c)

at County’s option, assign to County any contracts relating to the Management Premises that are



not in the name of County. A l l alterations, additions and improvements to the Management

Premises including intellectualproperty and all rights thereunder, remedies against infringements

thereof, and rights to protection of interests therein under the laws of all jurisdictions shall inure

to the benefit of, andbe ownedby, County.

15.23 Waivers.

Failureof either Party to complain of any act or omission onthe part of the other

Party, nomatter how longthe same may continue, shall not be deemed to beawaiver by said

Party of any of its rights hereunder except to the extent that passage of time constitutes an

express waiver under any other provisionof this Agreement. No waiver by either Party at any

time, express or implied, of any breachof any provisionof this Agreement shall bedeemed a

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

all rights and remedieswhich either Partymay haveunder this Agreement or at law or in equity

shall be cumulative, and shall not be deemed inconsistentwith each other; no one of them,

whether exercised or not, shall be deemed to be anexclusion of any other, and any or all of such

rights and remediesmay be exercised at the same time.

15.24 l i n g

Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each and every one of the provisions

contained herein.

15.25 No Agency or Partnership.



Contractor is an independent contractor of County. The Parties do not intendto

create, andnothing in this Agreement shall beconstrued to create, anemployment, agency,

partnership, trust or other relationship betweenCounty andContractor, its officers or employees

with respect to duties or incidents different from those of parties to anarms-length contract.

15.26 Applicable Law.

The laws of the State of California shall govern the validity, performance and

enforcement of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Partieshave executed and delivered this Agreement asof

the date first above written.

MONTEREY COUNTY A & D CONSULTING

By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: January _, 2017 Date: January _, 2017

Approved asto Formand Content

Leslie J. Girard, County Counsel

By:
Leslie J.Girard
County Counsel



w
SCHEDULE OF ALLOWED MANAGEMENT FEE SALARIES AND EXPENSES

,
$15.91
$15.91
see.

rack Assistant ‑
rack Assistant
acilities Assistant
acilities Assistant $15.91

$38,646acilities Assistant
acilities Assistant $15.91z

$15.91
$15.91

acilities Assistant
acilities Assistant

Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum
PositionTitle ExemptStaff Annual Pay Annual Pay Annual Pay Annual Pay

Administration: _____
General Manager “ $230,000 $235,912 $244,005 $251,325

Human Resources Manager $61,818 $53,669 $65,582

Administrative Assistant - $47,382 550,27 $51,771

Receptionist ‐ $27,789 528,62 $29,47 $30,358
Souvenir Store: _____
Retail Manager -‐‐ $51.81- $63,669 $65,582
Retail Assistant _ $36,400 $37,50 $38,626 $39,770
Retail Assistant - PT ‐ $14,550 $14,539 $15,444 $15,912
Retail Assistant - PT _ $14,560 514.99 515.444 515.912

Director of CM&M $111,509 $114,a - $118,290.00 $121,345.00
Marketing Manager “ $85,010 $87,5 $90,189 $92,393

Marketing/Social Media Coordinator - $45,760 $47,13 $50,003

Business DevelopmentCoordinator - $45,760 $47,13 $50,003

Marketing/Media Coodinator - $45,760 $47,13 $50,003

Communications Manager X $67,995 $70,0 . $72,1 . $74,298

Marketing/PromotionsCoordinator $47,13 $48.54 $50,003____
X m $64,89- $66,830

Administrative Assistant - PT $17,51 $18,585

11cket& CampingSaies: __ __
Ticket Manager X m $61,818 $63,66' $65,582
Ticket Coordinator m $49,275 $52,270
Ticket/CampingAsst 533,28! $44,138 $45,448
Ticket/CampingAsst $31,2I $19.57 $41,593 $43,181
Ticket/Camping Asst m $34,273 $35,298 $36,358
Ticket/CampingAsst 531,20 l $34 278 $35,298 $36,358

Sr. FacilitiesManager $87,0- 4 $89 606 $92,310 $95,077mm _
Facilities Supervisor $33,281 $44,138

$36,421 $37,523 $38,646

rack Manager “ A;. $63,440 $67,309 $69,326

enior VPof Operations X $87 0 I $89,606 $92,310 $95,077
vent Operations Manager x $61818 $63,669 $65,58
vent OperationsAssistant 537,44! $38,563 $39,728 $40,914

Track Rental Coordinator $33,280 $42,848 $44,138 $45,448

oncessions Coordinator _ $ 3 3 , 2 8 0 _ $44,138 $45,448



EXHIBIT B

M A P OF MANAGEMENT PREMISES



EXHIBIT C

REQUIRED INSURANCE COVERAGES



EXHIBIT D

ARMY DEED



EXHIBIT E

USE PERNIIT





From: John Narigi q
Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2019 : PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: Contract for Review

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. I
Dwayne, sent off to my attorney, l am reviewing now but need to prep for a water mtgoccurring tonight at
5pm. I will get to it asit is critical.

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Tuesday, November 12,2019 1:27 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: Contract for Review

John,

Please review this contract, it has some modifications and added exhibits, still waiting for Insurance Exhibit. Reviewand
lets discuss.

Thanks,

Dewayne





From: John Narigi m
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2 : AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: sent text

Wont make 11 am, several details for me to understand and some new items. On phonewith attorney at
1030, can do 1230on.... have kept today, Friday morningand Monday open,

jvn





From: John Narlgi W
Sent: Wednesday, Novem , 2:02 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: mtg

Dwayne,

Secured a mtgwith Hansen at 10amtomorrow, once done I will head your way, would assume it will be
around 11 asscheduled, if notwill call,

jvn





‐‑
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 2:52 PM
To: tmcgrane@laguna‐seca‘ com (tmcgrane@laguna‐seca.com)
Subject: LSRA Management Proposal

Mr. McGrane,

Please be advised the County is currently in negotiations with another proposer for management services at LSRA. If
those negotiations are unsuccessfully the County may begin negotiationswith another group or groups.

Thanks you for your submittal,

DewayneWoods
County of Monterey





_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 3:04 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: Hansen Reed; John Narigi
Subject: RE: Salary Exhibit

Thanks Dwaynewill review in detail and attorney isworking on doc.Will forward to you tonight with any
additional comments. Hopefully his revisions will be the last round. Hewill also have authority tomorrow to
negotiate and revise language on my behalf.

Appreciate your cooperation and consideration to my concerns.

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent:Wednesday, November 13, 2019 2:34 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: Salary Exhibit

John,

I revised the Maximum Salary amounts and bumped them upquite a bit, in reality Iwouldn‘t believe you would fill all 40
positions, it seemsway over staffed and would really impact the N.O.|., nonetheless lets leave the possibility that you
would beable to hire all on this list. At the bottomyou will see the total amount for salary only would be$270,811
monthlywell within the $275,000 in 2020 that iswith a 40% cost added on for benefits, et. All, l can move the 2020 up
to $280,000 for a bit of a flexibility. SoI’ll go $280,000 for 2020; $295,000 for 2021and $310,000 for 2022 & 2023

PositionTitle 2020 2021 2022 2023
Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum
Annual Annual Annual Annual
Salary Salary Salary Salary

$
Human Resources Manager $83,200 $85,696 $88,267 $90,915
Administrative Assistant $47,840 $49 275 $50,753 $52,276

1 General Manager $229,840 236,735 $243,837 $251,152

633366 636376 636367 66366
_ ‐ ‐ ‑

666667I

1



RetailAssistant - PT $33,280 $34,278 $35,307

_ ‐ ‐ ‑

881878

ReunionManagement: _ ‐ _
8848111818881
Administrative Assistant- PT $45,457
Ticket & CampingSales: _ ‐ _
Ticket Manager $78,414
Ticket Coordinator $52,276

1 Ticket/Camping Asst $41,600 $45,457

$36,366

1

1

1 Ticket/CampingAsst $45,457

5451457
5451457

M _ _ _

878111
881418

Track Foreman $42,048
Track Assistant $38,639
Track Assistant $38,639
FacilitiesAssistant $38,639
FacilitiesAssistant $38,639
FacilitiesAssistant 38,639
FacilitiesAssistant $37,513 38,639

1 FacilitiesAssistant $35 360 36421 $37 513 38,639

S

Senior VPof Operations $145,600 $149 968 $154 467 159,101
Event Operations Manager $71760 $73 913 $76 130 78,414

FacilitiesAssistant $35,360 $36 421 $37 513 38,639

EventOperations Assistant $41,600 $42 848 $44 133 45,457

$ .

Track RentalCoordinator $47 840 $49 275 $50,753 52,276
Concessions Coordinator $47,840 $49 275 50,753 52,276
Annual Total for Salary m $2,390,876 $2,462,602 2,536,480

$193,436.53 $199,239.63 $205,216 82 $211,373.32



$77,374.61 $79,695.85 $82,086.73 $84,549.33
-_ $270,811.15 $278,935.48 $287,303.55 $295,922.65





From: John Narigi q
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 : PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309; Hansen Reed
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: FW: ManagementAgreement Redline
Attachments: Management Agreement 2020 v5 HPR Redlinedocx

Importance: High

[CAUTlON:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
andknow the contEnt‘is safe. ]
Dwayne,
Below at the start of this email train in chronological order are the sections where suggested revisions
were made to the agreement by me and my attorney. They are all redlined in the contract for quick review by
you and les.
I have a few additions listed below:

0 Recital- 4th paragraph, LRSA S/B LSRA.
o 1.8- 5/3 A&D Narigi Consulting LLC
0 4.14- 5/3 regardingauto promotion,WeaterhTech Raceway Laguna Seca.

The above changes and Hansen's listed below should be it for suggested revisions. Asdiscussed with both you
and Hansen, he is available and able to negotiate on my behalf tomorrow if some of our revisions are not
agreeable.
l f I am needed please feel free to call and Iwill seat myself in the room so I can excuse self to get on a call if
needed. Dwayne I want this item to make your agenda, sodon’t hesitate to call. I can send an email agreeing
to the contract and doahard sign first thing Friday morning. If another electronic way of doing let meknow, I
will make it work.

Regardingoffice space as an FYI, I had two permeant companies who had long term service agreements with
the hotel, audio visual and valet parking. The contracts specified office space and the particular equipment
that would be provided to contractor at no charge. Can my firm not be treated in the same way? Hansen did
add language regarding the requirement for me to pay rent but would be reimbursed by the county, thought
my experience at the hotel might be beneficial to the discussion.

Language also added regarding indemnifyingand liability concerns I have voiced.

Exhibit A regarding compensation, revised I will answer under separate email this evening aswell.

Thank you both for you assistance.

Hansen info, email above, p h o n e , ‑

jvn



From: Hansen Reed
Sent:Wednesda November 13, 2019 3:38 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: Management Agreement Redline
Importance: High

John,

Attached ismy redline. My comments are asfollows: (Note: I will only comment on bigger issues.)

1.2 I added Ianguage for prior written approval.

1.11 I added language regarding a POSsystem that would be anAllowed Expense, if one does not exist.

1.16 I added language that the parties will try and put together a list of Historical Uses.

1.24 I believe the intent was to be health insurance, not other liability insurance.

2.3 I added language that you get 3 months Management Fee Advance.

2.4 I added language to add a 3 year option.

3.1 I added language that allows for increase in the pay at the approval of the County Rep. Also, I tried to clarify
that you only reimburse the county if there is excess management fee advance paid (meaning the County paid you more
than you paid out)

4.3 and other section: I tried to make sure that these are preapprovedAllowed Expenses.

4.7.1 I limited it to as needed for signage.

4.10 et seq. I added language to make it more flexible. Also any expenses in the Operational Plan shall be Allowed
Expenses.

4.14 If rent is included, then the FeeAdvance needs to be increased.You cant come out of pocket for ayear then get
reimbursed. I added language that your use of a car isalways promotion of the LSRA and the Raceway.

5.2 Made $150Ik payment to be on 1/3/2020. I also added language that approval and disapproval shall be
reasonable and be based upon past approved expenses and practices.

7.1 It is impossible to get all revenue to the county that day. The next business day seems reasonable.

7.2 Has the Assessor ever deemed a possessory interest and charged taxes. You should not have to pay the taxes.

7.3 I increased to 48 hours.

7.4 I added language regarding a POSsystem.

9. I added language that County reimburses you for expenses.



10. MYCOMMENT ISWHY WOULDYOU TAKE ONMASSIVE RISKAND AGREE TO INDEMNIFYTHE COUNTY AND THE
USGOVERNMENTWHENTHE COUNTY KEEPSALL OFTHE FUNDSAND ALL YOU GET ISA RELATIVELYSMALL
MANAGEMENT FEE. THIS ISEFFECTIVELY LIKE REQUIRINGYOU ASTHE GM OFTHE PLAZA HOTEL INDEMNIFYINGTHE
ACTUAL OWNERSOFTHE HOTEL. WHY WOULD ANYONE ACTUALLY DOTHIS. NO ONE WOULD DOTHIS. I THINK IT IS
OKTO HAVEA CARVE OUT FOR GROSS NEGLIGENCE ANDWILLFUL MISCONDUCT.

10.1 I made the County indemnify you except for your gross negligence and willful misconduct.

10.2 I addedwhere you indemnify the County for your gross negligence and willful misconduct.

10.3 Cost of liability insurance should be anAllowed Expense, not a Management Fee.

10.4 I added E&O insurance and it being anAllowed Expense.

12.1 I think It is important that the language actually be asit was written. We do not want you to bedeemed to
have a possessory interest and subject to tax. Seems if the public has the right to access then you are better off.

14.1 I added 3 months management fee if terminated without cause. This is like a severance.

15.8 I added myself to the notice provisions.

15.12 I added language about the financial obligations continuing even if there isadelay or stoppage.

These are all of my comments and changes.

Feel free to add or subtract from this email or forward to the county directly.

Regards,

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,RC.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5thFloor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649-1100

WALKER+REED
A T T O R N E Y S A T 3 3 . 6 5 ? l e



AGREEMENT

for the

OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT

of the

LAGUNA SECA RECREATIONAREA

between

THE COUNTY OF MONTEREY

and

A & D M C o n s u l t i n g , LLC

dated

January _, 2020

OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

This Operation andManagement Agreement (“Agreement”) dated January _, 2020 is

between the COUNTY OFMONTEREY, California (“County”), a political subdivision of the

State of California, and A & D N;arigi_Consulting, a California ILimited1Liabi1ity

companyGerperatien (“Contractor”) (each a “Party,” collectively, the “Parties”).

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, in 1974 the area now known asLaguna Seea RecreationalArea (“LSRA”),

formerly part of Fort 0rd, was transferred from the United States Government to County



pursuant to a quitclaim deed, which deed has been amended twice (collectively, the “Army

Deed”); and,

WHEREAS, since County’s acquisitionof LSRA in 1974, County has operated and

managed the r-aee‐traeleracetrack and associated facilities locatedwithin LSRA (currently known

asWeatherTechQRaceway LagunaSeca, hereinafter “Raceway”) under aseries of concession

agreements, andmost recently under amanagement agreement dated January 31, 2017, and

which expires on December 31, 2019; and,

WHEREAS, in addition to theRaceway,LRSA includes various campgrounds and two

rifle/pistol ranges; and,

WHEREAS, in 1983, the County PlanningCommission approvedUsePermitNo. 2991

(“UsePermit”) governing the operation and general development of LSRA; and

WHEREAS the past concessionaire historically held contracted events in addition to

events permitted pursuant to theUsePermit; and, l

WHEREAS, Contractor is organized for the purpose of providing facility management

and consulting services, andhas the necessary qualifications andbackground for managing

LSRA for County; and,

WHEREAS, County andContractor have reachedmutually acceptable terms for the

management of certain portions of LSRA; and,

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Parties that the management of LSRA shall be

consistent with historicalpractice, and the terms of theUsePermit andArmy Deed,until anew

master plan for LSRA is prepared and approved, and appropriate environmental review is

performed; and,



WHEREAS, it is the further intent of the Parties that Contractor, its officer, employees

and agents be considered independent contractors andnot County employees, pursuant to the

guidelines set forth in Assembly Bil l 5 (Gonzalez, 2019);

NOW THEREFORE, County andContractor agree asfollows: * “ “ “ “_Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1.DEFINITIONS.

1.1 “Agreement” means this Operation andManagement Agreement.

1.2 “Allowed Expenses” or “AllowedExpense”means those reasonable and necessary

expenses for services and supplies related to the Management of theManagementPremises

regularly incurredby Contractor but that arenot Management FeeExpenses nor expenses related

to Improvements or the CIP. Contractor mav seek the Countx Representative’s prior written

approval of an expense, which approved expense shallfbe anAllowed Expense. If Contractor

submits an expense for prior approval. the Count» Representative shall either approve or denv

said expense. in w r i t i n g . within five t5 1business davs; the failure to approve or dem' aprior

submitted expenseWithin the five business davs shall bediemedanapproval.

1.3 “AllowedExpenses Fund”means a segregated account held in trust by Contractor into

which it shall deposit and hold funds providedby County solely for the purpose of paying

Allowed Expenses, asmore fully described in Article 5.

1.4 “Annual OperationPlan”means the annual plandescribed in Section 4.10

1.5 “Army Deed” means that certain quitclaim deed from the UnitedStates Govermnent to

County dated October 31, 1974 andrecorded in Monterey County Official Records atReel

944 Page 1077, conveying LSRA to County, asamended on August 6, 1986 and recorded in



Monterey County OfficialRecords atReel 2012 Page235, andon January 21, 2000 by

Document No. 2000082485,Monterey County Official Records. A copy of the Army Deed is

attachedhereto asExhibitD.

1.6 “BOS” means the Monterey County Boardof Supervisors.

1.7 “CIP” means the projects included in the County Capital ImprovementProgram

described in Article 8.

1.8 “Contractor” means A & D Consulting.

1.9 “County” means the County of Monterey.

1.10 “County Representative” means the person designated by the County

Administrative Officer for contract managementpurposes asdescribed in Article 16.

1.11 “County’s Financial System” means the system of accountingutilizedby County for

the purpose of documenting and tracking financial transactions. which shall includean integrated4------ i Formatted: Line spacing: Double

Point of Sale System usedbv Contractor. The costs of aPOS sx'stem shallbe anAllowed

Expense.

1.12 “Effective Date”means January 1,2020.

1.13 “Fiscal Year” means the period July 1‐ June 30 of each year.

1.14 “GAAP” means generally accepted accounted principles asdefined and

promulgatedby the American Institute of CertifiedPublic Accountants.

1.15 “Gross Revenue” means all revenue-aeeruing‐te‐Geuflty generated, directly or

indirectly, asresult of events or activities occurring, pursuant to this Agreement, on, at or in the

ManagementPremises. Except asmay be specifically agreed to in writing otherwise, Gross

Revenue includes,but is not limited to, all revenue derived from ticket,merchandise, food or

beverage sales; daily track or other facility rentals; the provision of services; or monetary or in;



kindreceipts from any and all sources of incomederived in whole or in part from any business

transacted on, at, or in theManagementPremises,whether from customers or otherwise, both

cash and on credit, and in cases of sales or charges on credit, whether or not payment is actually

madeor received. All Gross Revenueshall accrue to the Count\-.

1.16 “Historical Use” or “HistoricalPractice” means those events that have been

historically held at LSRA either by County, or its concessionaire or manager. The Parties will

usereasonableeffortsJo prepare alist offlistorical Uses andHistoricalPractices.

1.17 “Immediate Repairs” means repair andmaintenance items at the Management

Premises that require immediate attention for healthand safety reasons.

1.18 “Improvements” or “Improvement” means the repairs and improvements pursuant to the

CIP.

1.19 “LSRA” means the Laguna Seca RecreationArea.

1.20 “Major Spectator Events”means a combinationof those events defined in the Use

Permit as“large event days,” and those events staged aspart of HistoricalUse, in general,

consisting of amaximumof five (5) events of 4-day durationwhere attendance exceeds 12,000

persons per day.

1.21 “Management” or “Manage” means the operation,management andmaintenance

of the Management Premises for and on behalfof County pursuant to the terms of this

Agreement.

1.22 “Management Fee” means the fee payable to Contractor by County annually on a

FiscalYear basis for services described in Article 3, which is equal to theManagement Fee

Expenses.
1.23 “Management FeeAdvance” means the sum disbursed monthly through the term

of the contract beginningwith an amount of Two Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars



($275,000)monthly in year 2020, Two HundredNinety Thousand Dollars ($290,000)monthly in

year 2021andThree HundredThousand Dollars ($300,000)monthly in year 2022 and 2023.

1.24 “Management FeeExpenses” means Contractor’s annual FiscalYear expenses for or

related to personnel, including salary andbenefits, andhealth insurance costs required for the

performance of this Agreement, asmore generally described in Article 3, and aslimitedand

specifically set forth in Exhibit A.

1.25 “Management IncentiveFee” means the fee set forth in Section 3.2, below.

1.26 “Management Premises” means all areas of the LSRA, including, but not limited

to, the race-track, paddock, infield, and camping areas,but specifically excluding the rifle/pistol

ranges and the current County MaintenanceYard. A map of theManagementPremises is

attached hereto asExhibitB.

1.27 “Material Default” means abreachof any material provisionof this Agreement

which continues for aperiodof thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is receivedby the

Party against whom the default is claimed, includingbut not limited to each action specifically

identifiedherein asaMaterialDefault and the bankruptcy or insolvency of aParty.

1.28 “Medium Spectator Events”means a combination of those events defined in the Use

Permit as“mediumevent days,” andthose events staged aspart of HistoricalUse, in general,

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

described asamaximumof 36 race event days where attendance is less than 5,000 per day.

1.30 “NOI” means the fiscal year annual net operating income (or portion thereof)

derived from or arising out of activities at theManagement Premises. NO I shall bedetermined



on afishbaniby calculating all Gross Revenuereceivedon a fiscal year basis (Gash‐basis)

minus all fiscal year operational expenses includingManagement FeeExpenses andAllowed

Expenses-(er‐pertien‐thereefl.

1.31 “NOI Capital” means NOI that shallbe expended annually on Improvements.

1.32 “Party” means County or Contractor singularly; “Parties” means County and.

Contractorjointly.

1.33 “Promotional Days” are those days for use of the Raceway for promotional or

testing purposes asallowedby HistoricalUse,but not exceeding amaximum of 15days

annually.

1.34 “Raceway” means the track currently knownasWeatherTech® Raceway Laguna Seca.

1.35 “Term” means the term of this Agreement asset forth in Section 2.4.

1.36 “Termination Date” means December 30, 2023. unlessextendedasprovided for herein.

1.37 “Use Permit” means that certain permit number 2991 issuedby the County

PlanningCommission on or about October 26, 1983,pursuant to Resolutionnumber 83‐376. A

copy of the

UserPermit is attached hereto asExhibit E. t “ “ “ r o m a n : -0.01",H e m
.,After: 0.15 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 2.03 Ii

ARTICLE 2. MANAGEMENT AND TERM.

2.1 Management.

County hereby hires Contractor to Manage theManagementPremises for and on behalf

of County pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Contractor acknowledges that County will

deliver theManagementPremises to Contractor asof the EffectiveDate free, clear and

unencumberedby any andall tenancies and parties in possession;with‐flieexeeptiefl‐ef

Gentraeter‐itseltland other than the rights reserved to County asset forth herein. * " " " " formatted: Space After: 0.15 pt, Line spacing: Multip
2.03 Ii

2.2 Natureof Manaoement Services.



This Agreement is a contract for Management services only and is not to be considered or

interpreted asa leaseor concession for any purpose. This Agreement confers only permission to

occupy anduse the ManagementPremises for Management purposes in accordance with the

terms and conditions of this Agreement. The expenditureby Contractor of capital and/or labor in

the course of operation andmanagement of theManagement Premises shall not confer to

Contractor any interest in LSRA except asprovidedherein.

2.3 Conditions Subsequent.

The Army Deedrequires the written concurrence of the Secretary of the Interior, or

current authorized federal official or agency, for any concession agreement relatingto or

involving theManagement Premises. Contractor acknowledges this is a services agreement and

not a concession agreement; however, if County determines the Deedrequires concurrence of the

Secretary of the Interior County wil l use commercially reasonable efforts to diligently seek such

written concurrence. County cannot guarantee such concurrence or timing in which such

concurrencemay be obtained. If suchwritten concurrence is denied, this Agreement shall

immediately terminate. If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section 2.3. Contractor

shall continue to bepaid an amount equal to the monthlv Manauement FeeAdvance for aperiod

M1168(3amonths.

2.4 Term.

The Term shall be from the EffectiveDatethrough and including the Termination

Date, unless earlier terminated asprovidedherein. ‘ “ “ “ “ “ Formatted: Indent: Leftzi -0.01", Hanging: 0.01", Spac
After. 12pt

ARTICLE 3. COMPENSATION.

3.1 Management Fee.

Contractor shall receive the annual FiscalYear Management Fee from County for the

performance of its services pursuant to this Agreement. TheManagement Fee shall be an



amount equal to the actual Fiscal Year Management FeeExpenses. Levels of staffingby

Contractor for the performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, includingallowed

positions and associated salaries, shall, except asapprovedby the County Representative,be

limitedto themaximums provided for in ExhibitA. To ensure adequate cash flow for Contractor

to perform its obligations hereunder, County shall provide Contractor on amonthly basis the

Management FeeAdvance the first installment of which is to bepaidno later than January 24-0,

2020, and thereafter on the last day of eachmonth during the Term for the succeedingmonth’s

expenses. At the end of each FiscalYear County andContractor shall reconcile the total of all

Management FeeAdvances to the total annual Management FeeExpenses, and County shall

either deduct or add the difference thereof to the annualManagement IncentiveFeeor deduct

from future ManagementFeeAdvances atCounty discretion. Failureby Contractor to pay

reimburseany excess Management Fee Advance owed to County at the end of aFiscal Year as

set forth herein shallbe aMaterialDefault.

3.2 Management IncentiveFee.

Contractor shall receive aManagement IncentiveFeeequal to twenty percent (20%) of

N01. ascalculated pursuant to Section 1.30.TheManagement IncentiveFee shall bepaidbased

on the County Representative’s verification and acceptance of a profit and loss statement

generated from County’s Financial System andprovided to Contractor which calculates N01for

the prior fiscal year. County shall provideContractor the profit and loss statement no later than

August 30th of each year. Contractor shall have the right to review the financial documentation

utilizedby County to calculate theN01,however, the calculationmadeby the County’s

Financial System, asverified and acceptedby the County Representative, except for errors, shall

be final and conclusive.

3.3 Payment of Management IncentiveFee.



Except as set forthherein, the Management IncentiveFee, if any, will be paid annually no

later than 120 days from the end of the Fiscal Year. ForFiscalYear ending 2020, the

Management IncentiveFeewil l be based on N01for the period January 1,2020, through June

30, 2020, only. ForFiscalYear ending June 30, 2024, the Management IncentiveFeewill be

basedonN01for the period July 1, 2023, throughDecember 31, 2023, County shall provide the

profit and loss statement to Contractor no later than January 31, 2024, and the Fee, if any, shall

bepaidno later than 120days from the end of the calendar year 2023.

ARTICLE 4.MANAGEMENT.

4.1 ML

Contractor shall beresponsible for the Management of theManagementPremises and its

various components and facilities to standards of operation and performance at least equal to

those generally applicable to major racetracks and similar facilities except asspecifically set

forth herein. Under the general oversight of the County Representative,Contractor shall Manage

theManagement Premises in amanner designed to maximizeGross Revenuewhile complying

with the terms of the Army DeedandUsePermit andbeing consistent with Historical Use.

Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to ManagetheManagementPremises in a

safe, healthy and first‐class condition. The general public shall beallowed to attend events at

andutilize the ManagementPremises on the terms and conditions established by Contractor and

approved by the County Representative.

4.2 Limitations.

TheManagement of the ManagementPremises during the Termmust be consistent with

the Army Deed,UsePermit andHistoricalUse, and subject to approval by the County

Representative.

4.3 Contracting.



In performing its duties and obligations hereunder, Contractor shall have the right to

negotiatewith third party vendors, suppliers, other independent contractors, promoters and

sanctioningbodies on behalfof County; however, all contracts must be in the name of County,

and reviewed and approvedby the County Representativeor County Boardof Supervisors, as

may berequiredby the County Code. Anx- costs of fees required to be spent No such third-party

contract shall extendbeyond the Term without Contractor first obtaining the prior written

consent of the County Representative. A violation of this provision shall be aMaterialDefault.

4.4 Acknowledgement of Title.

Contractor hereby acknowledges the fee simple title of County in theManagement

Premises and the improvements located thereon, and covenants and agrees never to assail,

contest or resist said title.

4.5 IntellectualPropertv.

Other than sponsor owned intellectualp rope r t ) , i.e. WeatherTech® asanexample.

County shall own all intellectualproperty rights relating in any way to LSRA and specifically the

ManagementPremises including, but not limited to, logos and identifying terms, and domain

names for intemet purposes. Contractormay propose and file for such intellectual property right

protection (whether copyright or trademark) but all such applications shall be in the name of and

approvedby County. Al l Count) approved intellectual properlv applications shall beAllowed

Expenses. Contractor shall havethe right‐limited license. during the Term, to the use of such

intellectualproperty without chargeprovided such use is limitedto the purposeof promoting

events at LSRA.

4.6 Park Capacity Limitations.



Daily attendance levels and overnight campinguse at theManagementPremises are

subject to capacity limitations andCounty shall retain the authority to impose limitations on

attendance levels for public health and safety purposes.

4.7 Signage.

4.7.1 Directional Signage.

Asneeded, Contractor shall provide and install permanent internal directional signs at

the Management Premises indicating the locationof facilities, parking, and general necessary

information for visitors and event spectators. Contractor shall confer with the County

Representativeregarding the need for and location of such directional signage, andplacement of

permanent signagemust be approvedby the CountyRepresentative. Contractor may place

temporary signage asnecessary for each event. Al l directional signage shall be limited to

providing directions only and shall not be used to promote or advertise in any way Contractor’s

business. A l l directional signage apnmvedby County and installedbv Contractor shallbe an r ------ Formatted: Line spacing: Double

Allowed Expense.

4.7.2 Other Signage.

Contractor may solicit and recommend to County the placement of new permanent

signage at the Management Premises, for example for sponsorship or advertisingpurposes. For

all such signage, Contractor shall obtain prior review and approval in writing from the County

Representative. Al l such signage shall be for the promotionof LSRA only and shall not promote

or advertise in any way Contractor’s business. Al l other signage approvedby County and

installedbv Contractor or a sponsor shall be anAllowed Expense, unless paid for by a s l i m

4.8 Permissionto Disseminate Information.

Contractor shall bepermitted to submit press releases, circulate articles andperiodicals

promoting theManagementPremises, release still photographs, video, andmotionpictures, and



use the intemet in anadvertisingmedia campaign. All such disseminated information shall only

be for the purpose of promotingLSRA and theManagementPremises, identify County asthe

owner and operator of the ManagementPremises, and such communication shall be approved in

advanceby the County Representative. In the performance of its obligations pursuant to this

Agreement, Contractor is prohibited fromusingCounty assets or facilities in any manner that

promotes itselfor its business without the express written permissionof County. A_ll

dissemination of information asprovided for herein shallbe anAllowed Expense.

4.9 Ro_adSystem.

Contractor shall beresponsible for coordinating and gaining approval for the use of all

roads providing ingress and egress to theManagementPremises, includingroadsmaintainedby

Federal, State, and local agencies. County shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist

Contractor in obtaining access to anduse of roads not under County’sjurisdiction andwil l

cooperate with other agencies in obtaining such access and use; however, County cannot

guarantee or warrant that such access shall be granted. Cost associatedwithg r i m ,approval for

useof roads for ingress and egress shall be an Allowed Expense.

4.10 Annual OperationPlan.

4.10.1. Contractor shall use its best efforts andwork with the Countv Representative

Mrmareand provide to County an Annual OperationPlan for review and approval by Peder-ears,z

March31, 2020, for the first year of the Term, andby November 1of eachyear for the

succeeding year during the Term (for example, by November 1, 2020, for the year 2021).

4.10.2. The Annual Operation Plan shall be comprehensive and include anannual

budget andbe linked to Improvementsdescribed in the CIP asandwhen approvedby County. * ‐‐‐‐ Formatted;Indent: Left: ‐0.01 Hangingzr 0.01 Spac
__After: 12pt

4.10.3. The Annual OperationPlanshall provide for the provision of necessary

emergency services.



4.10.4. The County Representativeshall either approve or disapprove the Annual

OperationPlan in writing within thirty (30) days of its receipt. If disapproved, Contractor shall

re‐submit arevisedAnnual OperationPlanwithin thirty (30) days of such disapproval. If the

County Representativedisapproves such re‐submittal, the County Representativeshall determine

theAnnual OperationPlan,which Contractor shall implement. The CountyRepresentative in

consultationwith Contractor may makereflmablemodifications to the Annual OperationPlan

during the course of the calendar year, andContractor agrees to accept and implement all such

County modifications.

4.10.5. Contractor acknowledges that the BOSmay, in its sole discretion, review the

Annual Operation Plan in an openpublicmeetingprior to the start of each calendar year. If the

BOS requires such apresentation of the Annual Operation Plan,Contractor shall present a

review of the past calendar year’s operations at the meeting. The BOS shall have the right to

requireContractor to appear before it andmake such other presentations relating to the

Management Premises astheBOSmay reasonably require.

4.10.6. Failure to submit the Annual OperationPlanasset forth herein shall be a

MaterialDefault.

4.10.7. Adlexpenses included in the Annual Operation Plan shall be Allowed *‐‐‐‐‐ formatted: Line spacing: Double, Tab stops: 0.75", L
Expenses.

4.11 Master Calendar.

Contractor shall maintainamaster calendar of all activities and uses of the

ManagementPremises, includingbut not limited to uses of the Raceway (includingall Major,

Medium, and Small Spectator Events, and daily track rentals), campgrounds, luxury suites, and

any other facility or Improvement currently existing or added to theManagementPremises

during the Term, and scheduledRacewaymaintenance and repair.



4.12 Advertisement of M m a a t o rEvents.

Prior to March 1of eachyear during the Term, at County expense, Contractor shall cause

an advertisement of the schedule for Major Spectator Events to be published at least twice in a

local newspaper of general Circulation. The advertisement shall beno smaller than “3X5” and

shall be printed in no smaller than 12-point type face. Contractor shall provide the County

Representativeacopy of the advertisement uponpublication. Contractor shall similarly publish

any change in the schedule for Major Spectator Events immediately upon such rescheduling.M

approved advertising shall be an AllowedExpense.

4.13 Schedule of Fees.

Contractor shall beresponsible for developing anannual schedule of fees for the useof

theManagement Premises, includingthe Raceway, campgrounds, luxury suites, and any other

facility or Improvement currently existing or added to theManagementPremises during the

Term. The schedule of fees shall be submittedby November 1of each year for the succeeding

calendar year and is subject to review and approval by the County Representative.

4.14 Use of Facilitiesby Contractor.

In order to maintain Contractor’s status asan independent contractor, County may

provideContractor with temporary facilities to utilize on an as-needed basis for events at the

ManagementPremises. ShouldContractor desiremore amorepermanent presence at the

ManagementPremises in order to carry out its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, County

wi l l provide such facilities; however, Contractor shall pay fair market rent for the use of such

facilities, which rent shall be included in ManagementFeeExpensesandsuch amount of

monthlv rent shall b e added t o themorithhManagemen t FeeAdvance. Such facilities may

include office equipment, including computers, but Contractor shall not beprovided, nor shall

use, County electronic mail addresses, or have access to County’s intranet. Countymay provide



automobiles for useby Contractor at no-cost (but subject to federal and state tax law) pursuant to

a sponsorship agreement betweenCounty and anautomobile manufacturer. Contractor’s

Manager’sruse of aSponsored vehicle shall at all times be deemed an integral part of this

Agreement and promotion of the L§RA and the Raceway.

4.15 M n fl e n tResidence.

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the LSRA is not intendedto be apermanent

residence for any person andwill not allow any person to residepermanently on the

Management Premises. Any temporary residencemust be approvedby the County

Representative, andContractor must satisfy all requirements for such temporary residences that

County, in its discretion,may require. Such temporary residences may create apossessory

interest asdefined in CaliforniaRevenue andTaxation Code section 107,and subject to taxation,

andmay be subject to federal income taxation. Contractor shall be responsible for the payment

of such tax butmay require the person(s) temporarily residing on theManagementPremises to

pay such tax; however, in no event shall County be liable for the payment of any such tax, and

Contractor agrees to indemnify County if such tax is levied for such tax.

ARTICLE 5.ALLOWED EXPENSEFUNDING.

5.1 General.

Except asspecifically provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall be solely responsible

for all expenses associatedwith the Management of theManagementPremises.

5.2 Allowed Expenses Fund.

County shall, on Januan 3. 2020. provide to Contractor within‐ferty‐fivegsa-days-eft-he

Effeetive‐Datethe sum of $150,000 which shall bedepositedby Contractor in the Allowed

ExpensesFund. Funds in the Allowed ExpenseFund shall remain the property of County and

shall be held in trust by Contractor for the sole purpose of payingAllowed Expenses, N0 later



than the tenth (10m)day following the end of eachmonth,Contractor shall provide the County

Representativereceipt(s) documenting the purposeof Allowed Expenses during the previous

month. If the County Representativeapproves the expense asappropriate, County shall pay to

Contractor an amount equal to the expense, which shall be deposited in the Allowed Expenses

Fund; if the County Representativedisapproves the expense, Contractor shall be responsible for

such expense out of its own funds. Approval and disapproval of expenses bv the Count;

County shall have the right to audit at any time, upon 24 hours’ notice, the AllowedExpenses

Fund,and Contractor shall immediately return to County any funds in the AllowedExpenses

Funduponwritten demandby County. Failure to provide access to County for audit purposes

shall beaMaterialDefault.

5.3 Expenses in Excess of Allowed Expenses Fund.

Should Contractor reasonably determine that a necessary Allowed Expenseexceeds the

funds then residing in the Allowed Expenses Fund,Contractor shall notify the County

Representativeandprovidejustification for the expense. If approvedby the County

Representative, County shall providenecessary funds to pay for theAllowed Expense. Within 3

days of makingthe expenditure of such funds Contractor shall provide to the County

Representativeareceipt documenting the expense.

ARTICLE 5. IMMEDIATEREPAIRS

5.1 Within eight (8) weeks after the EffectiveDate the Parties shall use their best efforts to

agree upon any ImmediateRepairs that are required to allow for business continuity.

5.2 A l l repairs that are considered “works of public improvement” are to becompletedby



County asrequiredby law. A l l general repairs not classified as“works of public improvement”

shall be completedby Contractor asanAllowed Expenseonly afier approval of work and costs

by the CountyRepresentative.

5.3 Upon satisfaction that the ImmediateRepair hasbeenperformed and its associated

invoice is accurate, County shall pay to Contractor the amount of the Allowed Expenseas

described in Article 5, above.

ARTICLE 6. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTPROGRAM

6.1 Within six (6)months after the EffectiveDate, Contractor shall prepare and

submit to County for its review and approval aCIP. The CIP shall be designed to address health

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

6.2 A l l Improvements implemented aspart of the CIP shall be ownedby County

notwithstandingContractor’s role in the planning, development and implementationof the CIP.

6.3 Al l Improvements described in the CIP shall bepaid for with either NO I Capital or other

available funds, bothasapprovedby the B08.

ARTICLE 7. FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

7.1 Revenue

Any and all Gross Revenue collected or receivedby Contractor shall, by the close of each

the next business day, be transmitted to the County Representativeor designee. A l l checks shall

be madeout to “County of Monterey,” and all credit and debit transactions shall be deposited



into an account designated by County. Failure to transmit Gross Revenueasset forth herein

shall beaMaterialDefault.

7.2 TLxes1FeesrandAssessments.

Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of all it_staxes, fees and assessments

associatedwith its performanceunder this Agreement. This Agreement may create apossessory

interest, asdefined in California Revenue and Taxation Code section 107, subject to taxation.

Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of such tax; and in no event shall County be

liable for the payment of, or reimbursement to Contractor for any such tax.mas the Assessor _-»~‐‘| Formatted: Highlight

deemedprior manager ’s interest apossessorv interest and subiect to this tax?l

7.3 Records andReports.

Contractor shall keep or cause to be kept full, complete andproper books, records, and

accounts of all Gross Revenuereceived, andManagement FeeExpenses andAllowed Expenses

associated with itsperformanceunder this Agreement. A l l such records shall be kept for at least

two (2) years after the expiration of the calendar year to which the records relate. County or the

County Representatives shall have the right to examine Contractor’s records at reasonabletimes

upon at least twenty‐fearforty-eight (£24 ) hours’ prior notice, and from time to time throughout

the Term. Failure to provide such access to the County Representativeshall be aMaterial

Default.

74 Financial Systems.

Contractor agrees that the County’s Financial System shall be the primary system of

accounting for all financial transactions at the Management Premises. The County’s Financial

System follows GAAP, including the ability to allocate direct and indirect costs toMajor,

Medium, and Small Spectator Events, track rentals, and all other activities at the Management



Premises. County staffshall be responsible for the functioning of the County’s Financial

System; however, Contractor shall provide County with such information asmay benecessary to

process all Management Premises financial transactions through the system. The County’s

Financial System shall bethe system of recordand all reports shall beobtained from financial

data directly from said system. The Coun!) ’s Financial Sxstem shall include an integrated point

of sale svstem. If apoint of sale svstem does not exist. Contractor shallpurchase. with approval

from the County Representative. apoint of sale system. which shall be anAllowed Expense.

7.5 m

7.5.1. Contractor shall haveno right to and shall not secure any debt, loanor other

financing with real or personal property ownedby County. Incurrence of suchdebt shall be a

MaterialDefault.

7.5.2. Contractor shall not enter into unsecured debt that in any way may be

ascribed to or becomethe debt of County. Incurrenceof such debt shall be aMaterial Default.

7.6 PropertyDepreciation.

Contractor shall haveno right to claim and shall not claim depreciation onreal or

personalproperty, or Improvements belonging to County at the Management Premiseswithout

first obtaining the prior express written consent of County; provided that Contractor shall retain

all rights to depreciation deductions and tax credits arising from its ownership of any personal

property.

ARTICLE 8.ADVERTISING, SPONSORSHIPS AND EVENT SANCTIONING

Subject to all other provision of this Agreement, on behalfof County, Contractormay

negotiate advertising, sponsorship and event sanctioning agreements relating to theManagement

Premises asfollows:



8.1 Al l namingrights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements associated

with theManagement Premises shall be subject to prior, express County approval, and

Contractor shall confer with County regardingthe negotiation of such agreements.

8.2 A l l namingrights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements shall be

tasteful and not be a cause for embarrassment to County.

8.3 There shall beno advertising, sponsorships or event sanctioning for tobacco, gun related

companies, or adult entertainment businesses. Cannabis advertising, sponsorships or event

sanctioning shall be at the sole discretion of the B08 .

8.4 No namingrights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreement shall

extendbeyond the Termwithout the express, written approval of County.

8.5 Entry into naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements

without County approval shall be aMaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 9.COUNTY EVENTS

County reserves the right to hold events andutilize theManagement Premises in its

entirety or in part without charge. A l l such events are property of County, andContractor shall

act solely in itsManagement capacity regarding such events. Countv shall reimburse

Contractor’s costs and expenses attributable to the Count) ’s use of the Managemen t Premises.

ARTICLE 10. INSURANCEAND INDEMNIFICATION

10.1 Gentraeter‐TheCountv shall indemnify, defend, and holdharmless County

Contractor and theUnited‐States‐etlAafier-ieaiti; their officers, employees and agents from and

against any and all claims, liabilities, and losses whatsoever (including, but not limited to,

damages to property and injuries to or deathof persons, court costs, andattorney’s fees)

occurring or resulting to any and allpersons, firms, or corporations furnishing or supplyingwork,

service,materials, or supplies in connectionwith the performance of this Agreement or Count) ’_s



prior LSRAmanagement andmanauement agreement, and from any and all claims, liabilities,

and losses occurring or resulting to any participant, person, firm, or corporation for damage,

injury, or death arising out of or connectedwith Contractor’s performance of this Agreement,

and or the use of the former Fort 0rd road system and traffic circulation roads within the LSRA,

and the public performanceof music, unless suchclaims, liabilities or losses arise out of the sole

mneg l igenceor willful misconduct of GewfiuContractoreHheQnited‐States‐ofikmeriea.

_10.2 Contractor shallmdemnill. defend. andholdharmless Countv and theUnited States*------ fan‐mmspacing: Double

of America. their officersLemplovees and agents from and against any and all claims. liabilities.

and losses whatsoeverLincludina.but not limitedto. damages to propertv and iniuries toordeath

of persons court costs. and attorney’s fees; occurr ing or arisinc out of or connected with

Contractor’s performance of this Agreement resu l t ing from Contractor’s gross negligence or

Stateseffiéanerieasasset‐feft-h‐abw 10.3 Contractor shall provide insurance *- 7Formatted:Space After: 0.15 pt, Line spacing: Multi;
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coverages for itsManagement of theManagementPremises asset forth in Exhibit C. County

shall be named asanadditional insured onall policies. Failure to maintain the required

insurance shallbe aMaterial Default. The cost of the insurancepremium?for the policvries)

shown onExhibit C. shall be anAllowedExpense.

10.4 Contractor m a y obtain Errors and Omissions Insurancecoverage for itsManage r , _ _ - , _ - ' Formatted: Indent: First line: 025", Line spacing:
Double

and officers anddirectors, if any. The cost of such Errors and Omissions Insurance shall be an

AllowedEleensE

ARTICLE 11. AUDIT RIGHTS



11.1 County has the right, at its sole cost and expense, to audit on an annual or ad hoc

basis the operations, management and finances of theManagement Premises, including finances

of Contractor related to the Management of theManagementPremises. Contractor

acknowledges and agrees that County’s Auditor ‐ Controller has the independent right at any

time to audit County assets andoperations, and any such audit will be in additionto the annual

audit authorizedby this section.

11.2 County has the right to inspect and audit Contractor’s finances and operations

relatedto the performance of this Agreement asCounty deems necessary upon twenty-four (24)

hours’ prior written notice. Uponreceipt of suchnotice of intent to inspect such records and

facilities, Contractor shall take all necessary actions tomake available all records and facilities to

the County Representative.

11.3 Failure to provide access to County for audit or inspectionpurposes shall be a

MaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 12. PUBLIC ACCESS

12.1 The general public shall have access at all times to theManagementPremises

subject to reasonable and customary use or entrance fees asapproved in writingby County.

12.2 Neither Contractor, itsmembers, officers, employees, agents or donors, or

sponsors, vendors, advertisers or naming rights entities, shall havespecial privileges for the use

of any facilities at the ManagementPremises unless specifically approved in writing by the

County Representative.

ARTICLE 13. COUNTY OVERSIGHT AND ACCESS

13.1 County shall designate the County Representative for contract management

purposes, and Contractor shall ensure that the county Representativehas full access to and

complete information regardingall Contractor’s activities, contracts, sub-contracts, vendor



agreements/arrangements, facility access, financial records,policy discussions, sponsorship

agreements/arrangements, strategic planning, capital improvementplanning and implementation,

track rental rate setting,Major,Medium andSmall Spectator Event agreements, and all other

ManagementPremises operational and financial aspects asCounty determines to be necessary to

adequately oversee implementationof this Agreement. Failureto provide the County

Representativewith the access and informationset forth herein shall be aMaterialDefault.

13.2 Notwithstanding any other provisionof this Agreement, County and its agents

shall have the right to enter the Management Premises at any time for any appropriate purpose.

Denial of such access shall beaMaterialDefault.

13.3 County retains the right to have offices and staffassigned permanently to the

ManagementPremises and determine which facilities shall beused to station those staff.

13.4 The County Representativemay approve promotionalpackages, including tickets

or passes to events, whichmay be necessary or appropriate for Contractor to effectively promote,

market and grow business andbusiness prospects at theManagementPremises. Such

promotional packagesmay includethose to volunteers in order to encourage and promote

volunteer activities for the benefit of LSRA. Contractor shall request approval of suchpackages

in writing to the County Representative,which writing shall support the business purpose for

such packages. Granting of promotionalpackages without the County Representatives approval

shall beaMaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 14. TERMINATION

14.1 Termination for Convenience.

This Agreement may be terminated by County for no reasonor any reasonupon one

hundred andtwenty‐eighty (12250) days written notice. If the Agreemen t is terminated pursuant



to this Section 14.1. Contractor shall continue to be paidanamcmnt equal to themonthlv

Management FeeAdvance for a period of three (3)months.

14.2 m a t i o n for MaterialDefault.

If aMaterial Default occurs, the defaultingParty shall begiven thirty (30) days written

notice from the non-defaultingParty to cure the default. If the MaterialDefault is not cured

within the thirty (30) day period, the non-defaultingPartymay terminate this Agreement upon

thirty (30) days prior written notice to the defaulting Party.

14.3 Effect of Termination.

14.3.1. A l l realproperty and Improvements, andpersonal property not ownedby

Contractor, shall remainowned by County.

14.3.2. Contractor shall negotiate in good faith with County for the acquisitionby

County of personal property ownedby Contractor andused at theManagementPremises.

14.3.3. Upon termination, theParties shall reconcile theManagement FeeExpenses

andAllowed Expenses, and Contractor shall be entitled to the payment of Management Fee

Expenses and theManagement IncentiveFee on apro rata basis through the effective date of the

termination, except in the case of aMaterial Default by Contractor, in which case Contractor

shall not be entitled to any Management IncentiveFee. Al l funds remaining in the Allowable

ExpensesFund shall be paid to County.



ARTICLE 15. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

15.1 CompleteAgreement.

This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement betweentheParties

regarding the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and

understandings,whether in writing or oral, related to the subject matter of this Agreement.

15.2 Amendment.

This Agreement maybeamended from time-to-timeby mutual consent of theParties.

Such amendments may only be in the form of awriting signedby each of the Parties.

15.3 Successors andAssigns.

This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of Contractor hereunder,maybe assigned

or delegatedby County without the prior consent of Contractor, either express, implied,written

or unwritten. Any assignment or delegation permittedunder the terms of this Agreement shall be

consistent with the terms of the Army Deed,UsePermit, any contracts then in effect regarding

theManagement Premises,and other ordinances or resolutions of County then in effect.

Contractor shall be obligated to accept such assignment without objection or contest for a period

of 90 days. Beginning no earlier than thirty (30) days following the effective date of the

assignment or delegation Contractor may terminate this Agreement by providing sixty (60) days

written notice to the assignee/delegate.

15.4 DisputeResolution.

If there are disputes and/or controversies between theParties relating to the

interpretation, construction, performance, termination, breachof, or withdrawal from this

Agreement, the Parties shall in good faith meet and confer within twenty-one (21) calendar days

after written noticeof a dispute hasbeen sent by one Party to the other Party. If theParties are

not able to resolve the dispute through informalnegotiation, the Parties agree to submit such



dispute to formal mediationbeforeresorting to litigation. If the Parties cannot agreeupon the

identity of amediator within ten (10)business days after aParty requestsmediation, then the

Parties shall each select amediator and those two mediatorswill select athirdmediator to

mediate the dispute. The Parties shall share equally in the cost of the mediatorwho ultimately

mediates the dispute, butneither Party shall be entitled to collect or be reimbursed for other

related costs, includingbut not limited to attorneys' fees. If mediationproves unsuccessful and

litigationof any dispute occurs, the prevailingParty shall beentitled to reasonable attorneys’

fees, costs and expenses in addition to any other reliefto which the Partymay beentitled. If a

Party refuses to participate in mediationprior to commencing litigation, that Party shallbe

deemed to havewaived its right to attorneys’ fees and costs asthe prevailingParty.

15.5 Executionin Parts or Countcgparts.

This Agreement may be executed in parts or counterparts, eachpart or counterpart being

an exact duplicate of all other parts or counterparts, and all parts or counterparts shall be

considered asconstituting one complete original andmaybe attached together when executed by

the Parties. Facsimile or electronic signatures shall bebinding.

15.6 Party Authorizam

The governingbodies of the Parties have each authorized execution of this

Agreement, asevidencedby their respectivesignatures below.

15.7 No Predeterrninationor IrrevocableCommitment of Resources.

Nothing herein shall constitute a determination by County or Contractor that any action

shall beundertakenor that any unconditional or irrevocable commitment of resources shall be

madeuntil such time asthe requiredcompliancewith all local, state, or federal laws, including

without limitationthe CaliforniaEnvironmental Quality Act, NationalEnvironmentalPolicy Act,

or permit requirements, asapplicable, havebeen completed.



15.8 Notices.

Any noticepursuant to this Agreement shall be given in writing by aParty or its legal

representativeby (a)personal delivery, (b) reputableovernight delivery servicewith proofof

delivery, (0)UnitedStates Mail,postageprepaid, registered or certifiedmail, return receipt

requested, (d) legible facsimile transmission, or (e) electronic mail or other electronic means sent

to the intendedaddresseeat the address set forth below, or to such other address or to the

attention of suchother person asthe addressee shall have designated by written notice sent in

accordancewith this section, and shall be deemed to havebeen given either at the time of

personal delivery, or, in the caseof expedited delivery service or mail, asof the date of first

attempted delivery at the address and in the manner providedherein, or, in the case of facsimile

transmission or electronic mail, asof the date of the facsimile or electronic transmission (or next

business day if transmitted on aday other than abusiness day). Unless changed in accordance

with the preceding sentence, the addresses for notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be

asfollows:

To County: To Contractor:

County Administrative Officer JohnNarigi
168 West Alisal Street, 3rd Floor 28 MesaDel Sol
Salinas, CA 93901 Salinas, CA. 93908
mum-5792 ‑

Copy to: copy to:
County Counsel HansenP. Reed. Esq.
168West Alisal Street, 3rd Floor Walker & Reed. PC
Salinas, CA 93901 215 W. Franklin St 5FL
(831) 755-5283 (facsimile) g Monterev. CA 93940

‐ , , hreed-awalkerandreed.com
15.9 Severabilily andValidity of Agreement.

Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decidedby a court of law to be

illegal, in excess of aParty’s authority, in conflict with any law of the State of California, or

otherwise renderedunenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remainingportions, terms or



provisions of this Agreement shall not beaffected thereby and eachParty hereby agrees it would

have entered into this Agreement upon the same remaining terms asprovidedherein.

15.10 Singular IncludesPlural.

Whenever used in this Agreement, the singular form of any term includes the plural form

and the plural form includes the singular form.

15.11Captions.

The headings and titles to the paragraphs of this Agreement are not apart of this

Agreement, are for convenience of referenceonly, and shall haveno effect upon the construction

or interpretationof any part of this Agreement.

15.12ExcusableDelay.

Any prevention, delay or stoppage due to strikes, walkouts, labor disputes, acts of God,

inability to obtain labor ormaterials, governmental restrictions, governmental regulations,

governmental controls, enemy or hostile governmental action, civil commotion, fire or other

casualty, and other causes beyondthe reasonable control of the Party obligated to perform, shall

excuse the performanceby suchParty for aperiodof time equal to any such period of

prevention, delay or stoppage. Notwithstanding aux-thine in this Section 15.12 to the con t r a r y.

such periodfofprevention. delav or stoppage shall not affect the financial obligations of either

Partx inc lud ing. but not limited to. payment of the Managemen t FeeAdvance andAllowed

Expense!s) reimbursement.

15.13 Tense Number. andGender.

15.14Eachnumber, tense and gender used in this Agreement shall include any other tense,

number or gender where the context andreferences so require. Any pronounherein shall be read

in suchgender asthe context may require.

15.15 Survival.



The obligations of County andContractor under this Agreement shall survive the

expiration or other termination of the Term, to the extent applicable following such expiration or

termination, and shall remain in effect until fulfilled. This covenant specifically includes,

without limitation, each indemnity obligation set forth herein.

15.16Exhibits Incomorated.

A l l exhibits to which reference is made in this Agreement are deemed incorporated in this

Agreement by such reference asthough fully set forth herein.

15.17 FurtherAssurances.

EachParty agrees that it wil l without further consideration execute and deliver suchother

documents and take such other action, whether prior or subsequent to the EffectiveDate, asmay

be reasonably requestedby the other Party to implement more effectively the purposes, intent or

subjectmatter of this Agreement.

15.18 No Third‐Partv Benefic ia ry,

The provisions of this Agreement are andwill be for the benefit of County and

Contractor only and are not for the benefit of any third-party. Accordingly, no third-party shall

have the right to enforce any provision of this Agreement.

15.19 Construction.

The Parties acknowledge that theParties and their counsel have reviewed and revised this

Agreement and that the normal ruleof construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be

resolved against the drafling party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement

or any exhibits or amendments hereto.

15.20 Calculation of Time Periods.

In computing any periodof time described in this Agreement, the day of the act or event

afler which the designatedperiodof timebegins to run is not to be included and the last day of



the period socomputed is to be included, unless such last day is a Saturday, Sunday or legal

holiday under the laws of the State of California, in which event the period shall run until the end

of the next day which is neither a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. The final day of any such

period shallbedeemed to end at 5P.M.,California time, unless otherwise specified herein. As

used in this Agreement, the term “business day” shall mean acalendar day that is not aSaturday,

Sunday, or legal holidayunder the laws of the State of California.

15.21Counl\"s Police Power;

Nothing in this Agreement shall alter in any way County’s rights or duties asa

governmental agency withjurisdiction overtheManagementPremises to act in themanner

otherwise permittedor requiredunder applicable laws for the health, safety and general welfare

of the public.

15.22 Surrender atEndof Term.

At the expiration or sooner termination of the Term, Contractor shall (a) subject to (b)

hereof, remove its personalproperty, furniture, fixtures and equipment and shall surrender the

Management Premises to County, (b) negotiate in good faithwith County for the acquisition by

County at fair market value of all personal property assets ownedby Contractor and used

exclusively in connectionwith Contractor’s Management of the ManagementPremises, and (c)

at County’s option, assign to County any contracts relatingto the ManagementPremises that are

not in the name of County. All alterations, additions and improvements to theManagement

Premises including intellectual property and all rights thereunder, remedies against infi'ingements

thereof, and rights to protection of interests therein under the laws of all jurisdictions shall inure

to the benefit of, andbe owned by, County.

15.23 Waivers.

Failureof either Party to complain of any act or omission on the part of the other



Party, no matter how long the same may continue, shall notbe deemed to be awaiver by said

Party of any of its rights hereunder except to the extent that passage of time constitutes an

express waiver under any other provision of this Agreement. No waiver by either Party at any

time, express or implied, of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall bedeemed a

waiver of abreachof any other provision of this Agreement or aconsent to any subsequent

breachof the same or any other provision. If any actionby either Party shall require the consent

or approval of the other Party, the other Party’s consent to or approval of such action on any one

occasion shall not be deemed aconsent to or approval of said action on any subsequent occasion

or a consent to or approval of any other action on the same or any subsequent occasion. Any and

all rights and remedies which either Partymay haveunder this Agreement or at law or in equity

shall be cumulative, and shall not be deemed inconsistent with each other; no one of them,

whether exercised or not, shall be deemed to be anexclusion of any other, and any or all of such

rights andremediesmaybe exercised at the same time.

15.24 Inn‐e.

Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each and every one of the provisions

contained herein.

15.25 No Agencv or Partnership.

Contractor is an independent contractor of County. The Parties do not intend to create,

andnothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, anemployment, agency, partnership,

trust or other relationshipbetweenCounty and Contractor, its officers or employees with respect

to duties or incidents different from those of parties to an arms-length contract.

15.26 Applicable Law.

The laws of the State of California shall govern the validity, performance and

enforcement of this Agreement.



the date first above written.

’ MONTEREY COUNTY A & D NARIGI CONSULTING, LLC

Date: January _, 2017

Approved asto Form and Content

Leslie J.Girard, County Counsel

By:
Leslie J.Girard
County Counsel

Title:

Date: January _, 2017

EXHIBIT A

Positron Title

General Manager

Human Resources Manager

Administrative Assistant

vReceptiunist

Souvenir Store:

Retail Manager

Retail Assistant

RetailAssistant - PT
i
Retail Assistant- PT

Communications, Marketing&
Media.

Maxumum Maximum Maxurnum Mammum
Annual Pay Annual Pay Annual Pay AnnualPay

2020 2021 2072 2023

$27 789

,

560,00 $63,669 $65,552
|

514,99 $15,444 $15,912

$15,444 $15,912

Exempt Staff

$50,274. 551,77



Director ofCM&M

Marketing Manager

Business Development Coordinator

Marketing/Media Coodinator

Communications Manager

Marketing/Prumotions Coordinator

Reunion Management:

Reunion Manager

Administrative Assistant - FT

Ticket 8; Camping Sales:

Tidzet Manager

Ticket Coordinator

Ticket/Camping Asst

Ticket/Camping Asst

Ticket/Camping Asst

Ticket/Camping Asst

Facilities:

Sr. Facilities Manager

Track Manager

FacilitiesSupervisor

Track Foreman

Track Assistant

Track Assistant

Fadlities Assistant

Facilities Assistant

Facilities Assistant

Facilities Assistant

FacilitiesAssistant

FacilitiesAssistant

- ‐ - - : ‑
“m

‐ $7I 0 ; $71134‑
- $45,76- 547,13 545,54

- 517,00 518,04-‑
$43,131

$35.35.

$36,358‑

saw
56 09 $59,326



s m e ‑
$3B,563 $39 728

a

Annual Total for Salary

EXHIBIT B

M A P OF MANAGEMENT PREMISES



EXHIBIT C

REQUIREDINSURANCE COVERAGES



EXHIBIT D

ARMY DEED



EXHIBIT E

USE PERMIT



Girard, Leslie J. x5365

From: John Narigi ._
Sent: Wednesday, November 13,2019 11:11 PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi; Hansen Reed
Subject: RE: Salary Exhibit

I have reviewed and did comparison to the 4/18 schedule provided. Until I get on site and figure out who is
who and what they are actually doing regardingactual job tasks, tough to compare. All scales going forward
will be asyou presented, by position, 4/ 18 is by name.
I agree with your revised number total per year, 280k, 295k, 310k. I also agree to much staff. But prefer to
have some space. (if awarded the contract) until I can figure the organizational chart out and needed
positions. The body count is40, not including anyone I note in finance, you do have an HRmanager, nor Steve
Fields for sponsorships, although independent and finance is county those bodies are still dedicated to LSRA,
thus the count is close to 45. A lot of bodies for 18-20mill in sales to date.
I reviewed payroll OHagainst my numbers from the plaza in the key depts that resemble those of the track, on
an average 1-1it was 39.2%, your 40% for at least 2020 isgood. Not sure of all benefits offered and cost of
H&Wetc. nor employee contribution to the cost.
Donot be concerned, I am going after the NO] but I also want some freedom to properly determine the real
operating expenses required to run LSRA EFFICENTLYwhile increasing the gross revenues while improving
services provided to our clients and guests.
Please add the document showing the scales asExhibit A.

Thank you for working on this and getting an accurate doc to me.

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 2:34 PM
To: John Narigi _
Subject: Salary Exhibit

John,

I revised the Maximum Salary amounts and bumped them upquite a bit, in reality Iwouldn’t believe you would fill all 40
positions, it seemsway over staffed andwould really impact the N.0.I., nonetheless lets leave the possibility that you
would beable to hire all on this list. At the bottomyou will see the total amount for salary only would be$270,811
monthlywell within the $275,000 in 2020 that iswith a 40% cost added on for benefits, et. All, I can move the 2020 up
to $280,000 for a bit of a flexibility. SoI'llgo $280,000 for 2020; $295,000 for 2021and $310,000 for 2022 & 2023



PositionTitle 2020 2021 2022 2023
Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum
Annual Annual Annual Annual
Salary Salary Salary Salary

General Manager $229,840 $236,735 243,837
Human Resources Manager 88,267

Administrative Assistant 50,753
Receptionist 35,307

Retail Manager 76,130
RetailAssistant 44,133
RetailAssistant - PT 35,307
RetailAssistant - PT 35,307
Communications, Marketing& Media: _‐ _
Director of CM&M 118,300
MarketingManager 90,187
Marketing/Social Media Coordinator 50,753

Administration: _
$2511521

1

Business DevelopmentCoordinator 50,753
Marketing/Media Coodinator $47,840 50,753
Communications Manager 76,130
Marketing/PromotionsCoordinator 50,753
ReunionManagement: _‐ _
ReunionManager 76,130
Administrative Assistant - PT 44,133

$
Ticket & CampingSales: _‐ _
Ticket Manager $76,130
Ticket Coordinator $50,753
Ticket/CampingAsst $44,133 $45,457
Ticket/Camping Asst $44,133
Ticket/Camping Asst $44,133
Ticket/Camping Asst $44,133

5

1

1
1
1

Sr. Facilities Manager $93,600 $96,408 $99,300 102,279
Track Manager $76,130
FacilitiesSupervisor $49,650
Track Foreman $40,823
Track Assistant $37,513
Track Assistant $37,513
FacilitiesAssistant $37,513
FacilitiesAssistant $37,513
FacilitiesAssistant $37,513I

2

1

1



FacilitiesAssistant 535,360 $36,421 $37,513 $38,639_ ‐ ‐ _ _
_ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‑n ‐ s ‐ s ‐ S ‐ ‑

- _ ‐ ‐ ‐ m

-_ $193,436.53 $199,239.63 $205,216.82 $211,373.32
-_ $77,374.61 $79,695.85 $82,086.73 $84,549.33
-_ $270,811.15 $278,935.48 $287,303.55 $295,922.65





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ‑
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 8:17 AM
To: Adams, Mary L.
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Proposals
Attachments: Comparative Analysis.docx

Supervisor,

In general during a contractor selection process the 805 is not included in due diligence on comparing the submittals
from proposers, County Staff conduct this due diligence on multiple contract proposals all year long. Staff then negotiate
with the preliminary selected vendor and if able to agree on contract terms and language then it is brought forward for
Board consideration.When it is brought forward this iswhen the 805 is provided information regardingwhy this vendor
was determined bystaff to be the best choice for this particular service and the 305 makes final determination asto
enter into contract or provide additional direction.

I have attached a comparative analysiswhich will accompany the report when the contract is brought fonNard for your
review. To be specific of the three SCRAMP’s proposal was extremely non-competitive in length, financial terms and risk
assumption by the County. More closely aligned were Laguna Seca Management, LLC (Pook) and A&D Narigi Consulting,
with Pook having less favorable financial terms and extremely top heavy on executive staff, which was unclear asto
what that level of executive staff would cost.

It came down to the due diligence between Narigi and Pook asto whom had the best ability to maneuver in our local
market to run the business and some background checks revealed that Pook although heavily involved in the
MotorSports industry that engagement was not contemporary and industry feeback was not asfavorable aswe should
require.

i amavailable to meet and discuss in greater detail the informationgathered on background at your request.

Thanks,

Dewayne
From:Adams, Mary L.<AdamsML@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14,2019 8:02 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Re: LSRA Management Proposals

Dewayne, I am going to need more information for the blow back Iwill receivewhen you make this announcement.
Please tell me the process that took place that led you to makig "tis decision. Clearly it did not include BOS input.Thank
you.

Mary L.Adams,
Fifth District Supervisor
County of Monterey

On Nov 13,2019, at 2:48 PM,Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

1



Dear Board,

Please be aware Iwill be emailing Friends,SCRAMP and Laguna Seca Management, LLC (Pack) and
advising that at this point we are in negotiatingwith another proposer and if that negotiation is
unsuccessful then the County will further consider their proposal.

Thanks,

Dewayne





From: John Narigi ‑
Sent: Thursday, Novem er 4, 2019 11:33 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: Hansen Reed
Subject: Re: ManagementAgreement Redline

lvn

On Nov 14, 2019, at 11:15 AM,Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>wrote:

All,

Les isworking on edits that we are able to accept a few will need changes which Les shall provide. l am
attaching the Insurance requirement exhibit for your information.

Thanks,

Dewayne

From:John Narigi q
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2 19 : PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Hansen Reed

Cc: Jo n Narigi
Subject: FW: Management Agreement Redline
Importance: High

[CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. ']
Dwayne,
Below at the start of this email train in chronological order are the sections where suggested
revisions were made to the agreement by me and my attorney. They are all redlined in the
contract for quick review by you and les.
I have afew additions listed below:

0 Recital‐4th paragraph, LRSA S/B LSRA.
- 1.8-S/B A&D Narigi Consulting LLC
0 4.14- S/B regardingauto promotion,WeaterhTech Raceway Laguna Seca.



The above changes and Hansen’s listed below should be it for suggested revisions. As discussed
with both you and Hansen, he is available and able to negotiate on my behalf tomorrow if some
of our revisions are not agreeable.
I f I am needed please feel free to call and I will seat myself in the room so I can excuse self to
get on acall if needed. Dwayne I want this item to make your agenda, sodon’t hesitate to call. I
can send an email agreeing to the contract and do a hard sign first thing Friday morning. If
another electronic way of doing let me know, I will make it work.

Regardingoffice space asan FYI, I had two permeant companies who had longterm service
agreements with the hotel, audio visual and valet parking. The contracts specified office space
and the particular equipment that would be provided to contractor at no charge. Can myfirm
not be treated in the same way? Hansen did add language regardingthe requirement for me to
pay rent but would be reimbursed by the county, thought my experience at the hotel might be
beneficial to the discussion.

Language also added regarding indemnifying and liability concerns I have voiced.

Exhibit A regardingcompensation, revised I will answer under separate email this evening as
well.

Thank you both for you assistance.

Hansen info, email above, phone‑
jvn

Sent:Wednesday, November 13,2019 3:38 PM
To:John Narigi
Subject: Management Agreement Re me
Importance: High

John,

Attached ismy redline. My comments are asfollows: (Note: Iwill only comment on bigger issues.)

1.2 I added language for prior written approval.

1.11 I added language regarding a POSsystem that would be an Allowed Expense, if one does not
exist.

1.16 I added language that the partieswill try and put together a list of Historical Uses.

1.24 I believe the intent was to be health insurance, not other liability insurance.

2.3 I added language that you get 3 months Management FeeAdvance.

2



2.4 I added language to add a 3 year option.

3.1 I added language that allows for increase in the pay at the approval of the County Rep. Also, I
tried to clarify that you only reimburse the county if there is excess management fee advance paid
(meaning the County paid you more than you paid out)

4.3 and other section: I tried to make sure that these are preapproved Allowed Expenses.

4.7.1 l limited it to as needed for signage.

4.10 et seq. I added language to make it more flexible. Also any expenses in the Operational Plan
shall be Allowed Expenses.

4.14 If rent is included, then the FeeAdvance needs to be increased.You cant come out of pocket
for ayear then get reimbursed. I added language that your use of a car isalways promotion of the LSRA
and the Raceway.

5.2 Made$150Ik payment to beon 1/3/2020. I also added language that approval and disapproval
shall be reasonable and bebased upon past approved expenses and practices.

7.1 It is impossible to get all revenue to the county that day. The next business day seems
reasonable.

7.2 Has the Assessor ever deemed a possessory interest and charged taxes. You should not have to
pay the taxes.

7.3 I increased to 48 hours.

7.4 I added language regarding a POS system.

9. I added language that County reimburses you for expenses.

10. MYCOMMENT ISWHY WOULD YOUTAKE ONMASSIVE RISK AND AGREE TO lNDEMNIFYTHE
COUNTY AND THE USGOVERNMENTWHENTHE COUNTY KEEPS ALL OFTHE FUNDSAND ALL YOU GET IS
A RELATIVELYSMALL MANAGEMENT FEE. THIS IS EFFECTIVELY LlKE REQUIRINGYOU ASTHE GM OFTHE
PLAZA HOTEL INDEMNIFYlNGTHE ACTUAL OWNERSOFTHE HOTEL. WHYWOULD ANYONE ACTUALLY
DOTHIS. NO ONEWOULD DOTHIS. I THINK IT ISOKTO HAVEACARVE OUT FORGROSS NEGLIGENCE
ANDWlLLFUL MISCONDUCT.

10.1 I made the County indemnify you except for your gross negligence and willful misconduct.

10.2 I addedwhere you indemnify the County for your gross negligence and willful misconduct.

10.3 Cost of liability insurance should be an Allowed Expense, not a Management Fee.

10.4 I added E&O insurance and it being anAllowed Expense.

12.1 I think it is important that the language actually be as it was written. We do not want you to be
deemed to have a possessory interest and subject to tax. Seems if the public has the right to access
then you are better off.



14.1 I added 3 months management fee if terminated without cause. This is like a severance.

15.8 I added myself to the notice provisions.

15.12 I added language about the financial obligations continuing even if there is a delay or stoppage.

These are all of my comments and changes.

Feel free to add or subtract from this email or forward to the countydirectly.

Regards,

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,RC.
215 W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649‐1100
Fax: ( M l ; (“i-J») min i

<image001.jpg>

<Laguna Seca Management agreement.docx>





_ _ _ . _ _ _
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 12:08 PM
To: 100-District 3 (831) 385‐8333; 100‐District 1 (831) 647-7991; 100-District 2 (831)

755-5022; 100‐District 5 (831) 647‐7755; 100‐District 4 (831) 883‐7570; Adams, Mary L.;
Phillips, John M. x5022; Alejo, Luis; Parker, Jane; 'Lopez, Christopher M. x5729'

Cc: McKee, Charles J;GirardLJ@co.monterey.ca.us
Subject: 11-19‐19 LSRA Board Report 8LManagement Agreement
Attachments: Board Reportpdf; Attachment C- Recommended Management Agreementpdf;

Comparative Analysisdocx

Dear Board,

Please find attached a copy of the Board Report, Proposer Comparative Analysis, and Recommended Management
Agreement. The Agreement is recommended to bewith A&D Narigi Consultingwho presented the best fiscal terms and
local business experience.You are sure to get many calls/letters/inquires on this matter, this itemwill betimed and
presented on 11/19/19for your consideration.

I will be stressing that this is dealing with the management of the business and not the SCRAMP volunteers

The County embraces continued engagement of the volunteerism, includingSCRAMP

If the County had not intervened in 2017 the events would not have taken place and all the improvements to date would
not have occurred

The County seeks the best business operator which will ensure that the events continue for years to come and therefore
are in need of volunteerism

Iwill provide more elaboration on the process and how the recommendationwas developed at the meetingon
11/19/19.

If you require further information please do not hesitate to contact me.

Thanks,

Dewayne



M O n te rey C O u n ty Board of Supervisors
Chambers

168W. Alisal S t , 1st Floor
Salinas, CA 93901

Board Report
Legistar File Number: 19-0892 November 19, 2019

Introduced: 11/12/2019 Current Status: Scheduled AM
Version: 1 Matter Type: General Agenda Item

a.Receive apresentationsummarizing the proposals received for management of LagunaSeca
RecreationArea; ‑
b. Approve amanagement agreement from January 1, 2020 throughDecember 31, 2023 betweenthe
County of Monterey andA&DNarigiConsulting, LLC for management services at Laguna Seca
RecreationArea; and
c. Authorize the Chair of the Boardto execute the Agreement.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommendedthat the Boardof Supervisors:

a.Receive apresentationsummarizing the proposals received for management of Laguna Seca
RecreationArea;
b. Approve amanagement agreement from January 1, 2020 throughDecember 31, 2023 between the
County of Monterey andA&DNarigiConsulting, LLC for management services at LagunaSeca
RecreationArea; and
c. Authorize the Chair of the Boardto execute the Agreement.

SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:
On January 31, 2017, the Boardof Supervisors passedaGeneral Agenda Item,File #17-0104,
approving athree-year management agreement betweenthe County of Monterey andSports Car
RacingAssociation of the MontereyPeninsula (SCRAMP), retroactive fi'om January 1,2017, for
management services at the Laguna SecaRecreationArea (LSRA), andauthorizedthe Chair of the
Boardto execute the Agreement,No.A-13425. The current agreement was requiredto ensure
continuedoperations of events at LSRA andwas completed to allow time to determine next steps in
operating the business. The current management agreement will expire on December 31, 2019.

The County Administrative Office has beenreviewing the business operations of LSRA andhas
received four proposals to operate the business and facility. One proposalwas aresubmittal of a
concessionaire proposal from 2016 andthree were new submittals for amanagement agreement. At
this time the County was not entertaining concessionaire proposals and due diligence was conducted
on the three management proposals.Attachment A outlines the major terms sought by the three
management proposals. The most favorable and alignedwith what was sought by the County was the
proposal fromA&DNarigiConsulting, LLC. County staffhas negotiatedanagreement withA&D
Narigi Consulting, LLC, asattached, for Boardconsideration. While all firms were considered, A &D
NarigiConsulting, L LC brought aunique localbusiness/hospitality approachto the forefront and is
most closely alignedwith the timeline and businessmodel required for future success. Staffconcluded



LegistarFile Number: 19-0892

that A&DNarigi Consulting, LLCwould bethe best firm to move LSRA to the next phase. Staffand
A&DNarigi Consulting, LLC continue to becommitted to working with all volunteer groups to value
andhonor their continuedservice and spirit of volunteerism atLSRA.

OTHERAGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Office of County Counsel has reviewedandapprovedthe agreement.

FINANCING:
The funding for this agreementwill be included in each fiscal year for the term of the agreement.

BOARDOFSUPERVISORS STRATEGIC INITIATIVES:

_X_Economic Development
~X_Administration
_Hea1th & HumanServices
_Infrastructure
_Public Safety

Preparedby: Lavonne Chin, Special EventsManager, ext. 7214

Approvedby: DewayneWoods, Assistant County Administrative Officer, ext. 5309

Attachments: Attachment A - Comparative Terms in Brief;Attachment B - Proposals for Management
of Laguna SecaRecreationArea; Attachment C - RecommendedManagementAgreement
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ATTACHMENT C



AGREEMENT

for the

OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT

of the

LAGUNA SECA RECREATIONAREA

between

THE COUNTY OFMONTEREY

and

A & D Narigi Consulting, LLC

dated

January _, 2020

OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT AGREED/IENT

This Operation and Management Agreement (“Agreement”) dated January __, 2020 is

between the COUNTY OFMONTEREY, California (“County”), apolitical subdivision of the

State of California, and A & D Narigi Consulting, aCalifornia limited liability company

(“Contractor”) (each a “Party,” collectively, the “Parties”).

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, in 1974 the area now known asLaguna Seca Recreational Area (“LSRA”),

formerly part of Fort Ord, was transferred from the United States Government to County



pursuant to aquitclaim deed,which deed has been amended twice (collectively, the “Army

Deed”); and,

WHEREAS, since County’s acquisition of LSRA in 1974,County has operated and

managedthe racetrack and associated facilities locatedwithin LSRA (currentlyknown as

WeatherTech® Raceway Laguna Seca, hereinafter “Raceway”) under aseries of concession

agreements, andmost recently under a management agreement dated January 31, 2017, and

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

events permittedpursuant to the UsePermit; and,

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

master plan for LSRA is preparedand approved, and appropriate environmental review is

performed; and,



WHEREAS, it is the further intent of the Parties that Contractor, its officer, employees

and agents be considered independent contractors and not County employees, pursuant to the

guidelines set forth in Assembly Bi l l 5 (Gonzalez, 2019); NOWTHEREFORE,

County andContractor agree asfollows:

AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1.DEFINITIONS.

1.1 “Agreement” means this Operation andManagementAgreement.

1.2 “Allowed Expenses” or “Allowed Expense”means those reasonable and necessary

expenses for services and supplies related to the Management of the ManagementPremises

regularly incurredby Contractor but that are not Management FeeExpenses nor expenses related

to Improvements or the CIP. Contractor may seek the County Representative’s prior written

approval of anexpense, which approved expense shall be anAllowed Expense. If Contractor

submits anexpense for prior approval, the County Representative shall either approve or deny

said expense, in writing, within five (5)business days; the failure to approve or deny a prior

submitted expense within the five business days shall be deemed a denial.

1.3 “Allowed ExpensesFund” means a segregated account held in trust by Contractor

into which it shall deposit and hold fimds providedby County solely for the purpose of paying

Allowed Expenses, asmore fully described in Article 5.

1.4 “Annual Operation Plan” means the annual plan described in Section 4.10

1.5 “Army Deed” means that certain quitclaim deed from the United States Government

to County datedOctober 31, 1974 and recorded in Monterey County Official Records at Reel

944 Page 1077, conveying LSRA to County, asamended onAugust 6, 1986 and recorded in

MontereyCounty Official Records at Reel 2012 Page 235, and on January 21, 2000 by



DocumentNo. 2000082485, MontereyCounty Official Records. A copy of the Army Deed is

attached hereto asExhibitD.

1.6 “BOS” means the Monterey County Board of Supervisors.

1.7 “CIP” means the projects included in the County Capital ImprovementProgram

described in Article 8.

1.8 “Contractor” meansA & D Consulting.

1.9 “County” means the County of Monterey.

1.10 “County Representative” means the person designated by the County Administrative

Officer for contract management purposes asdescribed in Article 16.

1.11 “County’s Financial System” means the system of accounting utilized by County for

the purpose of documenting and tracking financial transactions, which shall include an integrated

Point of Sale Systemusedby Contractor. The costs of aPOS system shall be anAllowed

Expense.

1.12 “Effective Date” means January 1,2020.

1.13 “Fiscal Year” means the period July 1‐ June 30of each year.

1.14 “GAAP” means generally accepted accountedprinciples asdefined andpromulgated

by the American Instituteof CertifiedPublic Accountants.

1.15 “Gross Revenue”means all revenue accruing to County generated, directly or

indirectly, asresult of events or activities occurring, pursuant to this Agreement, on, at or in the

Management Premises. Except asmaybe specifically agreed to in writing otherwise, Gross

Revenue includes,but is not limited to, all revenue derived from ticket, merchandise, food or

beverage sales; daily track or other facility rentals; the provisionof services; or monetary or in‑

kindreceipts from any and all sources of incomederived in whole or in part from any business

transacted on, at, or in the Management Premises,whether from customers or otherwise, both



cash and on credit, and in cases of sales or charges on credit, whether or not payment is actually

made or received.

1.16 “Historical Use” or “Historical Practice” means those events that have been

historically held at LSRA either by County, or its concessionaire or manager. The Partieswill

use reasonable efforts to prepare a list of HistoricalUses andHistoricalPractices.

1.17 “Immediate Repairs” means repair andmaintenance items at the Management

Premises that require immediate attention for health and safety reasons.

1.18 “Improvements” or “Improvement” means the repairs and improvementspursuant to

the CIP.

1.19 “LSRA” means the Laguna SecaRecreationArea.

1.20 “Major Spectator Events” means a combination of those events defined in the Use

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

the Management Premises for and on behalfof County pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

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

year 2021 andThree HundredThousand Dollars ($300,000)monthly in year 2022 and 2023.



1.24 “Management FeeExpenses” means Contractor’s annual Fiscal Year expenses for or

relatedto personnel, including, but not limitedto, salary andbenefits, and health and worker’s

compensation insurance costs required for the performance of this Agreement, asmore generally

described in Article 3, and aslimitedand specifically set forth in ExhibitA.

1.25 “Management IncentiveFee” means the fee set forth in Section 3.2, below.

1.26 “Management Premises” means all areas of the LSRA, including, but not limitedto,

the racetrack,paddock, infield, and camping areas, but specifically excluding the rifle/pistol

ranges and the current County MaintenanceYard. A map of the Management Premises is

attached hereto asExhibit B.

1.27 “Material Default” means abreach of any material provisionof this Agreement which

continues for aperiodof thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is receivedby the Party

against whom the default is claimed, includingbut not limited to each action specifically

identifiedherein asaMaterialDefault and the bankruptcy or insolvency of aParty.

1.28 “Medium Spectator Events” means a combination of those events defined in the Use

Permit as“medium event days,” and those events staged aspart of HistoricalUse, in general,

described asamaximumof six (6) event days where attendance is between 5,000 ‐ 11,999

persons per day.

1.29 “Minor Spectator Events” means acombination of those events defined in the Use

Permit as“small event days,” and those events staged aspart of HistoricalUse, in general,

described asamaximumof 36 race event days where attendance is less than 5,000 per day.

1.30 “N01” means the fiscal year annual net operating income (orportion thereof) derived

from or arising out of activities at the Management Premises. NO I shall bedetermined on a cash

basis by calculating all Gross Revenue receivedon afiscal year basis minus all fiscal year

operational expenses includingManagement FeeExpenses andAllowed Expenses.



1.31 “N01Capital” means NO I that shall beexpended annually on Improvements.

1.32 “Party” means County or Contractor singularly; “Parties” means County and

Contractorjointly.

1.33 “Promotional Days” are those days for use of the Raceway for promotional or testing

purposes asallowedby HistoricalUse,but not exceeding amaximumof 15days annually.

1.34 “Raceway” means'the track currently knownasWeatherTech® RacewayLaguna

Seca.

1.35 “Term” means the term of this Agreement asset forth in Section 2.4.

1.36 “TerminationDate” means December 30, 2023, unless extended asprovided for
herein.

1.37 “Use Permit” means that certainpermit number 2991 issuedby the County Planning

Commission on or about October 26, 1983,pursuant to Resolutionnumber 83‐376. A copy of

the UserPermit is attachedhereto asExhibit E.

ARTICLE 2. MANAGEMENT AND TERM.

2.1 Management.

County hereby hires Contractor to Manage the Management Premises for and on behalf

of County pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Contractor acknowledges that County wil l

deliver the Management Premises to Contractor asof the EffectiveDate free, clear and

unencumberedby any and all tenancies andparties in possessionand other than the rights

reserved to County asset forth herein.

2.2 Nature of Management Services.

This Agreement is a contract for Management services only and is not to be considered or

interpretedasalease or concession for any purpose. This Agreement confers only permission to

occupy and use the Management Premises for Managementpurposes in accordance with the

terms and conditions of this Agreement. The expenditure by Contractor of capital and/or labor in



the course of operation andmanagement of the ManagementPremises shall not confer to

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

immediately terminate. If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section 2.3, Contractor

shall continue to bepaid an amount equal to the monthlyManagement FeeAdvance for aperiod

of three (3)months.

2.4 m

The Term shall be from the EffectiveDate through and including the Termination

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

amount equal to the actual FiscalYear Management FeeExpenses. Levels of staffingby

Contractor for the performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, including allowed

positions and associated salaries, shall, except asapprovedby the County Representative, be

limited to the maximumsprovided for in Exhibit A. To ensure adequate cash flow for Contractor



to perform its obligations hereunder,County shall provideContractor on amonthlybasis the

Management FeeAdvance the first installment of which is to bepaidno later than January 3,

2020, and thereafter on the last day of eachmonth during the Term for the succeedingmonth’s

expenses. At the end of each FiscalYear County andContractor shall reconcile the total of all

Management FeeAdvances to the total annual Management FeeExpenses, andCounty shall

either deduct or add the difference thereof to the annualManagement IncentiveFee or deduct

from future Management FeeAdvances atCounty discretion. Failureby Contractor to reimburse

any excess Management FeeAdvance owed to County at the end of aFiscalYear asset forth

hereinshall beaMaterialDefault.

3.2 Management IncentiveFee.

Contractor shall receive aManagement Incentive Fee equal to twenty percent (20%) of

N01, ascalculatedpursuant to Section 1.30. The Management IncentiveFee shall bepaidbased

on the County Representative’s verification and acceptance of aprofit and loss statement

generated from County’s Financial System andprovided to Contractor which calculates N01for

the prior fiscal year. County shall provide Contractor the profit and loss statement no later than

August 30th of each year. Contractor shall have the right to review the financial documentation

utilizedby County to calculate the N01,however, the calculation madeby the County’s

Financial System, asverified and acceptedby the County Representative, except for errors, shall

befinal and conclusive.

3.3 Pamient of Management IncentiveFee.

Except asset forth herein, the Management IncentiveFee, if any, will be paid annually no

later than 120days from the endof the FiscalYear. For FiscalYear ending 2020, the

Management Incentive Feewil l be basedon N 0 1for the periodJanuary 1, 2020, through June

30, 2020, only. For FiscalYear ending June 30, 2024, the Management IncentiveFeewil l be



basedonN01for the period July 1,2023, throughDecember 31, 2023, County shall provide the

profit and loss statement to Contractor no later than January 31, 2024, and the Fee, if any, shall

bepaidno later than 120days from the end of the calendar year 2023.

ARTICLE 4. MANAGEMENT.

4.1 GLeral.

Contractor shall be responsible for the Management of the Management Premises and its

various components and facilities to standards of operation andperformance at least equal to

those generally applicable to major racetracks and similar facilities except asspecifically set

forth herein. Under the general oversight of the County Representative,Contractor shall Manage

the Management Premises in amanner designed to maximizeGross Revenuewhile complying

with the terms of the Army Deed andUsePermit andbeing consistent with Historical Use.

Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to Manage the ManagementPremises in a

safe, healthy and first-class condition. The general public shall be allowed to attend events at

andutilize the ManagementPremises on the terms and conditions established by Contractor and

approvedby the County Representative.

4.2 Limitations.

The Management of the Management Premises during the Termmust be consistent with

the Army Deed,Use Permit andHistoricalUse, and subject to approval by the County

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

violation of this provision shall beaMaterialDefault.

4.4 Acknowledaement of Title.

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

Other than sponsor owned intellectual property, i.e.WeatherTech® asanexample,

County shall own all intellectualproperty rights relating in any way to LSRA and specifically the

ManagementPremises including,but not limited to, logos and identifying terms, and domain

names for intemet purposes. Contractor maypropose and file for such intellectualproperty right

protection (whether copyright or trademark) but all such applications shall be in the name of and

approvedby County. A l l County approved intellectualproperty applications shall beAllowed

Expenses. Contractor shall have a limited license, during the Term, to the use of such

intellectualproperty without charge provided suchuse is limited to the purpose of promoting

events at LSRA.

4.6 ParkCapacity Limitations.

Daily attendance levels and overnight camping use at the Management Premises are

subject to capacity limitations andCounty shall retain the authority to impose limitations on

attendance levels for public health and safety purposes.

4.7 Signage.

4.7.1 Directional Signage.



As needed,Contractorshall provide and install permanent internal directional signs at

the Management Premises indicating the location of facilities, parking, and general necessary

information for Visitors and event spectators. Contractor shall confer with the County

Representative regarding the needfor and locationof suchdirectional signage, andplacement of

permanent signage must be approvedby the County Representative. Contractor may place

temporary signage asnecessary for each event. A l l directional signage shall be limited to

providing directions only and shall not be used to promote or advertise in any way Contractor’s

business. Al l directional signage approvedby County and installedby Contractor shall be an

Allowed Expense.

4.7.2 Other Signage.

Contractor may solicit and recommendto County the placement of new permanent

signage at the Management Premises, for example for sponsorship or advertisingpurposes. For

all such signage, Contractor shall obtainprior review and approval in writing from the County

Representative. A l l such signage shall be for the promotionof LSRA only and shall not promote

or advertise in any way Contractor’s business. A l l other signage approved by County and

installedby Contractor or a sponsor shall be anAllowedExpense, unlesspaid for by a sponsor.

4.8 Permissionto Disseminate Information.

Contractor shall bepermitted to submit press releases, circulate articles andperiodicals

promoting the Management Premises, release still photographs, Video, andmotionpictures, and

use the internet in an advertisingmedia campaign. A l l such disseminated information shall only

be for the purpose of promoting LSRA and the ManagementPremises, identify County asthe

owner and operator of the Management Premises, and such communication shall be approved in

advance by the County Representative. In the performance of its obligations pursuant to this

Agreement, Contractor is prohibited fromusingCounty assets or facilities in anymanner that



promotes itselfor its businesswithout the express written permissionof County. A l l

dissemination of informationasprovided for herein shall be anAllowed Expense.

4.9 RoadSfistem.

Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating and gaining approval for the use of all

roadsproviding ingress and egress to the Management Premises, including roadsmaintainedby

Federal, State, and local agencies. County shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist

Contractor in obtaining access to and use of roads not under County’s jurisdiction and wil l

cooperate with other agencies in obtaining such access and use; however, County cannot

guarantee or warrant that such access shall be granted. Cost associatedwith gaining approval for

use of roads for ingress and egress shall be anAllowed Expense.

4.10 Annual OperationPlan.

4.10.1. Contractor shall use its best efforts andwork with the County Representative

to prepare andprovide to County anAnnual Operation Plan for review and approval by March

31, 2020, for the first year of the Term, andby November 1of each year for the succeeding year

during the Term (for example, by November 1, 2020, for the year 2021).

4.10.2. The Annual OperationPlanshall be comprehensive and include an annual

budget andbe linked to Improvements described in the CIP asandwhen approvedby County.

4.10.3. The Annual OperationPlanshall provide for the provisionof necessary

emergency services.

4.10.4. The County Representative shall either approve or disapprove the Annual

OperationPlanin writing within thirty (30) days of its receipt. If disapproved, Contractor shall

re-submit arevisedAnnual Operation Planwithin thirty (30) days of such disapproval. If the

County Representative disapproves such re-submittal, the County Representative shall determine

the Annual OperationPlan,which Contractor shall implement. The County Representative in



consultationwith Contractor maymake reasonablemodifications to the Annual Operation Plan

during the course of the calendar year, andContractor agrees to accept and implement all such

Countymodifications.

4.10.5. Contractor acknowledges that the BOSmay, in its sole discretion, review the

Annual Operation Plan in anopenpublic meetingprior to the start of each calendar year. If the

BOS requires such apresentationof the Annual Operation Plan, Contractor shall present a

review of the past calendar year’s operations at the meeting. The BOS shall have the right to

requireContractor to appear before it andmake suchother presentations relating to the

Management Premises asthe BOS may reasonably require.

4.10.6. Failure to submit the Annual OperationPlanasset forth herein shall be a

Material Default.

4.10.7. A l l expenses included in the Annual OperationPlanshall beAllowed

Expenses.

4.11 Master Calendar.

Contractor shall maintainamaster calendar of all activities anduses of the

Management Premises, includingbut not limited to uses of the Raceway (including all Major,

Medium, and Small Spectator Events, and daily track rentals), campgrounds, luxury suites, and

any other facility or Improvement currently existing or added to the Management Premises

during the Term, and scheduledRacewaymaintenance and repair.

4.12 Advertisement of Major Spectator Events.

Prior to March 1of eachyear during the Term, at County expense, Contractor shall cause

anadvertisement of the schedule for Major Spectator Events to bepublished at least twice in a

local newspaper of general circulation. The advertisement shall be no smaller than “3X5” and

shall be printed in no smaller than 12-point type face. Contractor shall provide the County



Representative acopy of the advertisement uponpublication. Contractor shall similarly publish

any change in the schedule for Major Spectator Events immediately upon such rescheduling. A l l

approved advertising shall beanAllowed Expense.

4.13 Schedule of Fees.

Contractor shall be responsible for developing anannual schedule of fees for the use of

the Management Premises, including the Raceway, campgrounds, luxury suites, and any other

facility or Improvement currently existing or added to the Management Premises during the

Term. The schedule of fees shall be submitted by November 1of each year for the succeeding

calendar year and is subject to review and approval by the County Representative.

4.14 Use of Facilities by Contractor.

In order to maintain Contractor’s status asan independent contractor, County may

provide Contractor with temporary facilities to utilize on an as-neededbasis for events at the

Management Premises. ShouldContractor desire more amore permanent presence at the

Management Premises in order to carry out its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, County

wil l providesuch facilities; however, Contractor shall pay fair market rent for the use of such

facilities, which rent shall be included in Management FeeExpenses and such amount of

monthly rent shall be added to themonthlyManagement FeeAdvance. Such facilities may

include office equipment, including computers, but Contractor shall not be provided, nor shall

use, County electronic mail addresses, or have access to County’s intranet. County mayprovide

automobiles for use by Contractor at no-cost (but subject to federal and state tax law)pursuant to

a sponsorship agreement betweenCounty and an automobile manufacturer. Contractor may

designate anofficer or employee whose use of a sponsored vehicle shall at all times be deemed

anintegralpart of this Agreement andpromotionof the LSRA and the Raceway. Contractor’s

designee shall be responsible for payment of all taxes, if any, associatedwith such use.



4.15 No PermanentResidence.

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the LSRA is not intendedto be apermanent

residence for any person andwill not allow any person to residepermanently on the

Management Premises. Any temporary residencemust be approvedby the County

Representative, and Contractor must satisfy all requirements for such temporary residences that

County, in its discretion, may require. Such temporary residencesmay create apossessory

interest asdefined in California Revenue and TaxationCode section 107, and subject to taxation,

andmaybe subject to federal income taxation. Contractor shall be responsible for the payment

of such tax butmay require the person(s) temporarily residing on the Management Premises to

pay such tax; however, in no event shall County be liable for the payment of any such tax, and

Contractor agrees to indemnify County if such tax is levied for such tax.

ARTICLE 5.ALLOWED EXPENSEFUNDING.

5.1 m

Except asspecifically provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall be solely responsible

for all expenses associatedwith the Management of the Management Premises.

5.2 Allowed Expenses Fund.

County shall, on January 3, 2020, provide to Contractor with the sum of $150,000 which

shall be deposited by Contractor in the Allowed Expenses Fund. Funds in the Allowed Expense

Fundshall remain the property of County and shall beheld in trust by Contractor for the sole

purpose of payingAllowed Expenses. No later than the tenth (10th) day following the end of

eachmonth,Contractor shall provide the County Representativereceipt(s) documenting the

purpose of Allowed Expenses during the previousmonth. If the County Representative approves

the expense asappropriate, County shall pay to Contractor an amount equal to the expense,

which shall be deposited in the Allowed Expenses Fund; if the County Representative



disapproves the expense, Contractor shall be responsible for such expense out of its own funds.

County shall have the right to audit at any time, upon24 hours’ notice, the Allowed Expenses

Fund, and Contractor shall immediately return to County any funds in the Allowed Expenses

Funduponwritten demandby County. Failure to provide access to County for audit purposes

shall be aMaterialDefault.

5.3 Expenses in Excess of Allowed Expenses Fund.

ShouldContractor reasonably determine that a necessaryAllowed Expense exceeds the

funds then residing in the Allowed Expenses Fund,Contractor shall notify the County

Representative andprovidejustification for the expense. If approvedby the County

Representative,County shall provide necessary funds to pay for the Allowed Expense. Within 3

days of making the expenditure of such funds Contractor shall provide to the County

Representative a receipt documenting the expense.

ARTICLE 5. IMMEDLATEREPAIRS

5.1 Within eight (8)weeks after the EffectiveDate the Parties shall use their best efforts to

agree upon any ImmediateRepairs that are required to allow for business continuity.

5.2 Al l repairs that are considered “works of public improvement” are to becompleted by

County asrequiredby law.Al l general repairs not classified as“works of public improvement”

shall be completed by Contractor asanAllowedExpense only after approval of work and costs

by the County Representative.

5.3 Uponsatisfaction that the ImmediateRepairhas beenperformed and its associated

invoice is accurate, County shall pay to Contractor the amount of the Allowed Expense as

described in Article 5, above.



ARTICLE 6. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

6.1 Within six (6)months after the EffectiveDate, Contractor shall prepare and

submit to County for its review and approval aCIP. The CIP shall be designed to address health

and safety concerns, and necessary capital additions, repairs andmaintenance at the Management

Premises during the Term, but not Improvements identifiedasan ImmediateRepair. County

shall have final approval authority for any Improvement described in the CIP, and the timeline

for implementationof approved CIP. Failure to submit the CIP asset forth herein shall bea

MaterialDefault.

6.2 A l l Improvements implemented aspart of the CIP shall be owned by County

notwithstandingContractor’s role in the planning, development and implementationof the CIP.

6.3 A l l Improvements described in the CIP shall bepaid for with either NO ICapital or other

available funds, both asapprovedby the B08 .

ARTICLE 7. FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

7.1 Revenue

Any and all Gross Revenue collected or receivedby Contractor shall, by the close of the

next business day, be transmitted to the County Representative or designee. A l l checks shall be

made out to “County of Monterey,” and all credit and debit transactions shall be deposited into

an account designatedby County. Failure to transmit Gross Revenue asset forth herein shall be

a"Material Default.

7.2 Taxes Fees andAssessments.

Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of all its taxes, fees and assessments

associatedwith its performance under this Agreement. This Agreement may create apossessory

interest, asdefined in California Revenue andTaxation Code section 107, subject to taxation.



Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of such tax; and in no event shall Countybe

liable for the payment of, or reimbursement to Contractor for any such tax.

7.3 Records andReports.

Contractor shall keep or cause to be kept full, complete andproper books, records, and

accounts of all Gross Revenue received, andManagement FeeExpenses andAllowed Expenses

associatedwith itsperformance under this Agreement. A l l such records shall bekept for at least

two (2) years after the expiration of the calendar year to which the records relate. County or the

County Representatives shall have the right to examine Contractor’s records at reasonable times

uponat least forty-eight (48)hours’ prior notice, and from time to time throughout the Term.

Failure to provide such access to the County Representative shall be aMaterialDefault.

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

Medium,and Small Spectator Events, track rentals, and all other activities at the Management

Premises. County staff shall beresponsible for the functioning of the County’s Financial

System; however, Contractor shall provide County with such informationasmay benecessary to

process all Management Premises financial transactions through the system. The County’s

Financial System shall be the system of recordand all reports shall be obtained from financial

data directly from said system. The County’s Financial System shall include an integratedpoint

of sale system. If apoint of sale system does not exist, Contractor shall purchase, with approval

from the County Representative, apoint of sale system, which shall be anAllowed Expense.

7.5 De_bt.

7.5.1. Contractor shall have no right to and shall not secure any debt, loanor other



financingwith real or personalproperty ownedby County. Incurrence of such debt shall be a

Material Default.

7.5.2. Contractor shall not enter into unsecured debt that in any way may be

ascribed to or become the debt of County. Incurrence of such debt shall be aMaterial Default.

7.6 Property Depreciation.

Contractor shall haveno right to claim and shall not claim depreciation on real or

personal property, or Improvementsbelonging to County at the ManagementPremiseswithout

first obtaining the prior express written consentof County; provided that Contractor shall retain

all rights to depreciation deductions and tax credits arising from its ownership of any personal

property.

ARTICLE 8. ADVERTIS1NG, SPONSORSHIPS AND EVENT SANCTIONING

Subject to all other provisionof this Agreement, on behalfof County, Contractor may

negotiate advertising, sponsorship and event sanctioning agreements relating to the Management

Premises asfollows:

8.1 A l l naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements associated

with the ManagementPremises shall be subject to prior, express County approval, and

Contractor shall confer with County regarding the negotiationof such agreements.

8.2 A l l naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements shall be

tasteful andnot be acause for embarrassment to County.

8.3 There shall beno advertising, sponsorships or event sanctioning for tobacco, gun related

companies, or adult entertainment businesses. Cannabis advertising, sponsorships or event

sanctioning shall be at the sole discretion of the BOS.

8.4 No naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreement shall

extendbeyond the Term without the express, written approval of County.



8.5 Entry into naming rights, advertising, sponsorships and event sanctioning agreements

without County approval shall be aMaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 9. COUNTY EVENTS

County reserves the right to hold events and utilize the Management Premises in its

entirety or in part without charge. A l l such events are property of County, andContractor shall

act solely in its Management capacity regarding such events. County shall reimburse

Contractor’s costs and expenses attributable to the County’s use of the ManagementPremises.

ARTICLE 10. INSURANCEAND INDEMNIFICATION

10.1 Contractor shall indemnify, defend, andholdharmless County and the United

States of America, their officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims,

liabilities, and losseswhatsoever (including, but not limited to, damages to property and injuries

to or death of persons, court costs, and attorney’s fees) occurring or resultingto any and all

persons, firms, or corporations filmishing or supplyingwork, service,materials, or supplies in

connectionwith the performance of this Agreement, and from any and all claims, liabilities, and

losses occurring or resulting to any participant, person, firm, or corporation for damage, injury,

or death arising out of or connectedwith Contractor’s performance of this Agreement, and or the

use of the former Fort 0 rd road system and traffic circulation roads within the LSRA, and the

public performance of music, excepting therefrom such claims, liabilities or losses arising out of

the gross negligence or willful misconduct of County or the UnitedStates of America.

10.2 County shall indemnify, defend, andholdharmless Contractor and the United

States of America, their officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims,

liabilities, and losses whatsoever (including, but no t limited to, damages to property and injuries

to or death of persons, court costs, and attorney’s fees) occurring or arising out of or connected

with County’s performance of this Agreement excepting therefrom such claims, liabilities of



losses arising out of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officers and

employees.

10.3 Without limitingContractor’s duty to defend and indemnify County and the

United States of Americas asset forth above, Contractor shall provide insurance coverages for its

Management of the Management Premises asset forth in Exhibit C. County shall be namedas

anadditional insuredon all policies. Failure to maintainthe required insurance shall be a

MaterialDefault. The cost of the insurancepremium for the policy(ies) shown onExhibit C,

shall be anAllowedExpense.

10.4 Contractor may obtainErrors andOmissions Insurance coverage for its Manager

and officers anddirectors, if any. The cost of such Errors andOmissions Insurance shall be an

Allowed Expense.

ARTICLE 11.AUDIT RIGHTS

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

time to audit County assets and operations, and any such audit wil l be in addition to the annual

audit authorizedby this section.

11.2 County has the right to inspect and audit Contractor’s finances and operations

related to the performance of this Agreement asCounty deems necessaryupontwenty-four (24)

hours’ prior written notice. Uponreceipt of such notice of intent to inspect such records and

facilities, Contractor shall take all necessary actions to make available all records and facilities to

the County Representative.

11.3 Failure to provide access to County for audit or inspectionpurposes shall be a



MaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 12. PUBLIC ACCESS

12.1 The general public shall have access at all times to the Management Premises

subject to reasonable and customary use or entrance fees asapproved in writing by County.

12.2 Neither Contractor, its members, officers, employees, agents or donors, or

sponsors, vendors, advertisers or namingrights entities, shall have specialprivileges for the use

of any facilities at the ManagementPremisesunless specifically approved in writing by the

County Representative.

ARTICLE 13. COUNTY OVERSIGHT AND ACCESS

13.1 County shall designate the County Representative for contract management

purposes, andContractor shall ensure that the county Representativehas full access to and

complete information regarding all Contractor’s activities, contracts, sub-contracts, vendor

agreements/arrangements, facility access, financial records,policy discussions, sponsorship

agreements/arrangements, strategic planning, capital improvementplanning and implementation,

track rental rate setting, Major, Mediumand Small Spectator Event agreements, and all other

Management Premises operational and financial aspects asCounty determines to benecessary to

adequately oversee implementationof this Agreement. Failure to provide the County

Representativewith the access and information set forth herein shall be aMaterial Default.

13.2 Notwithstandingany other provisionof this Agreement. County and its agents

shall have the right to enter the Management Premises at any time for any appropriate purpose.

Denial of such access shall beaMaterial Default.

13.3 County retains the right to have offices and staffassignedpermanently to the

Management Premises and determine which facilities shall be used to station those staff.



13.4 The County Representativemay approve promotional packages, including tickets

or passes to events, whichmay benecessary or appropriate for Contractor to effectively promote,

market and grow business andbusiness prospects at the Management Premises. Such

promotionalpackages may include those to volunteers in order to encourage andpromote

volunteer activities for the benefit of LSRA. Contractor shall request approval of suchpackages

in writing to the County Representative,whichwriting shall support the business purpose for

suchpackages. Granting of promotionalpackages without the CountyRepresentatives approval

shall be aMaterialDefault.

ARTICLE 14. TERMINATION

14.1 Termination for Convenience.

This Agreement may be terminated by County for no reasonor any reasonupon one

hundred and eighty (180) days written notice. If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to this

Section 14.1,Contractor shall continue to bepaid anamount equal to the monthlyManagement

FeeAdvance for aperiod of three (3)months.

14.2 Termination for MaterialDefault.

If aMaterialDefault occurs, the defaulting Party shall be given thirty (30) days written

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

14.3.1.A l l real property and Improvements, andpersonalproperty not owned by

Contractor, shall remainownedby County.

14.3.2. Contractor shall negotiate in good faithwith County for the acquisitionby

County of personalproperty ownedby Contractor andused at the ManagementPremises.



14.3.3.Upontermination, the Parties shall reconcile the Management FeeExpenses

andAllowed Expenses, and Contractor shall be entitled to the payment of Management Fee

Expenses and the Management IncentiveFee on apro rata basis through the effective date of the

termination, except in the case of aMaterialDefault by Contractor, in which case Contractor

shall not be entitled to anyManagement IncentiveFee. A l l funds remaining in the Allowable

Expenses Fundshall be paid to County.

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

This Agreement may be amended from tirne-to-time by mutual consent of the Parties.

Such amendments may only be in the form of awriting signedby each of the Parties.

15.3 Successors andAssigns.

This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of Contractor hereunder,may be assigned

or delegated by County without the prior consent of Contractor, either express, implied,written

or unwritten. Any assignment or delegationpermittedunder the terms of this Agreement shall be

consistent with the terms of the Army Deed,UsePermit, any contracts then in effect regarding

the Management Premises, and other ordinances or resolutions of County then in effect.

Contractor shall be obligated to accept such assignment without objection or contest for aperiod

of 90 days. Beginningno earlier than thirty (30) days following the effective date of the

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

interpretation,construction, performance, termination, breach of, or withdrawal from this

Agreement, the Parties shall in good faithmeet and confer within twenty-one (21) calendar days

after writtennotice of adispute has been sent by one Party to the other Party. If the Parties are

not able to resolve the dispute through informalnegotiation, the Parties agree to submit such

dispute to formal mediationbefore resorting to litigation. If the Parties cannotagree upon the

identity of amediatorwithin ten (10)business days after aParty requestsmediation, then the

Parties shall each select amediator and those two mediators wil l select a third mediator to

mediate the dispute. The Parties shall share equally in the cost of the mediator who ultimately

mediates the dispute, but neither Party shall be entitled to collect or be reimbursed for other

related costs, includingbut not limited to attorneys' fees. If mediationproves unsuccessful and

litigation of any dispute occurs, the prevailingParty shall beentitled to reasonable attorneys’

fees, costs and expenses in addition to any other reliefto which the Partymay be entitled. If a

Party refuses to participate in mediationprior to commencing litigation, that Party shall be

deemed to havewaived its right to attorneys’ fees and costs asthe prevailingParty.

15.5 Execution in Parts or Counterparts.

This Agreement maybe executed in parts or counterparts, eachpart or counterpart being

an exact duplicate of all other parts or counterparts, and all parts or counterparts shall be

considered asconstituting one complete original andmaybe attached together when executedby

the Parties. Facsimile or electronic signatures shall be binding.

15.6 PartyAuthorization.

The governingbodies of the Parties have each authorized execution of this

Agreement, asevidenced by their respective signatures below.



15.7 No Predetermination or Irrevocable Commitment of Resources.

Nothingherein shall constitute a determinationby County or Contractor that any action

shall beundertaken or that any unconditional or irrevocable commitment of resources shall be

made until such time asthe required compliance with all local, state, or federal laws, including

without limitationthe California Environmental Quality Act, NationalEnvironmentalPolicyAct9

or permit requirements, asapplicable, have been completed.

15.8 Notices.

Any notice pursuant to this Agreement shall be given in writing by a Party or its legal

representativeby (a)personal delivery, (b) reputable overnight delivery service with proofof

delivery, (0) United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, return receipt

requested, (d) legible facsimile transmission, or (e) electronic mail or other electronic means sent

to the intended addressee at the address set forth below, or to such other address or to the

attention of such other person asthe addressee shall have designated by written notice sent in

accordance with this section, and shall be deemed to havebeen given either at the time of

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

County Administrative Officer John Narigi
168 West Alisal Street, 3rd Floor 28 Mesa Del Sol
Salinas, CA 93901 Salinas, CA. 93908
(831) 757-5792 jvnarigi@outlook.com



Copy to: Copy to:
County Counsel HansenP. Reed,Esq.
168West Alisal Street, 3rd Floor Walker & Reed,PC
Salinas, CA 93901 215 W. FranklinSt SFL
(831) 755-5283 (facsimile) Monterey, CA 93940

hreed@walkerandreed.com

15.9 Severability andValidity of Agreement.

Should any part, term or provisionof this Agreement bedecidedby acourt of law to be

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

inability to obtain labor or materials, governmental restrictions, governmental regulations,

governmental controls, enemy or hostile governmental action, civil commotion, fire or other

casualty, and other causes beyond the reasonable control of the Partyobligated to perform, shall

excuse the performance by suchParty for aperiodof time equal to any suchperiodof

prevention, delay or stoppage. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 15.12 to the contrary,



suchperiodof prevention, delay or stoppage shall not affect the financial obligations of either

Party including,but not limited to, payment of the Management FeeAdvance andAllowed

Expense(s) reimbursement.

15.13 Tense Number andGender.

15.14 Eachnumber, tense and gender used in this Agreement shall include any other tense,

number or gender where the context and references sorequire. Any pronounherein shall be read

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

15.16 Exhibits Incomorated.

A l l exhibits to which reference is made in this Agreement are deemed incorporated in this

Agreement by such reference asthough fillly set forth herein.

15.17 FurtherAssurances.

EachParty agrees that it wi l l without further consideration execute and deliver such other

documents and take such other action, whether prior or subsequent to the EffectiveDate, asmay

bereasonably requestedby the other Party to implementmore effectively the purposes, intent or

subject matter of this Agreement.

15.18No Third-Party Beneficiary.

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

The Parties acknowledge that the Parties and their counsel have reviewedand revised this

Agreement and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be

resolved against the draftingparty shall not beemployed in the interpretationof this Agreement

or any exhibits or amendments hereto.

15.20 Calculationof Time Periods.

In computing anyperiod of time described in this Agreement, the day of the act or event

after which the designatedperiodof time begins to run is not to be included and the last day of

the period socomputed is to be included,unless such last day is aSaturday, Sunday or legal

holidayunder the laws of the State of California, in which event the period shall r u nuntil the end

of the next daywhich is neither aSaturday, Sunday or legal holiday. The final day of any such

period shall bedeemed to end at 5 P.M., California time, unless otherwise specifiedherein. As

used in this Agreement, the term “business day” shall mean a calendar day that is not a Saturday,

Sunday, or legalholiday under the laws of the State of California.

15.21County’s PolicePower.

Nothing in this Agreement shall alter in any way County’s rights or duties asa

governmental agency withjurisdiction over the Management Premises to act in the manner

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

County at fair market value of all personalproperty assets owned by Contractor andused



exclusively in connectionwith Contractor’s Management of the Management Premises,and (c)

at County’s option, assign to County any contracts relating to the ManagementPremises that are

not in the name of County. A l l alterations, additions and improvements to the Management

Premises including intellectualproperty and all rights thereunder, remedies against infringements

thereof, and rights to protection of interests therein under the laws of alljurisdictions shall inure

to the benefit of, andbe owned by, County.

15.23 Waivers.

Failure of either Party to complain of any act or omission on the part of the other

Party,nomatter how long the same may continue, shall not bedeemed to beawaiver by said

Party of any of its rights hereunder except to the extent that passage of time constitutes an

express waiver under any other provisionof this Agreement. No waiver by either Party at any

time, express or implied, of any breachof any provision of this Agreement shall bedeemed a

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

rights and remedies may be exercised at the same time.

15.24m

Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each and every one of the provisions

containedherein.



15.25No Agency or Partnership..

Contractor is an independent contractor of County. The Parties do not intend to create,

andnothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, anemployment, agency, partnership,

trust or other relationship betweenCounty andContractor, its officers or employees with respect

to duties or incidents different from those of parties to anarms-length contract.

15.26 Applicable Law.

The laws of the State of California shall govern the validity, performance and

enforcement of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and delivered this Agreement asof

the date first above written.

MONTEREYCOUNTY A & D NARIGICONSULTING LLC

By: By:

Title: Title:
Date: November_, 2019 Date: November_, 2019

Approved asto Form

Leslie J.Girard
County Counsel



EXHIBIT A
SCHEDULE OF ALLOWED MANAGEMENT FEE SALARIES AND EXPENSES

2022 2023
Maximum Maximum Maximum MaximumPosition Title

Salaries Only (Excludes Benefits) Annual Annual
Salary Salary_ _ _ ‐ ‑

R $34,278 $ 3 5 , 3 0 7 ‑_ _ _ ‐ ‑
$ 4 4 , 1 3 3 ‑
335,30

R 535,30___ _
511830
590,18

547840 $49,275 550,75
349,27 $5975
549,27 350,75

5717- ' 573,91 376,13 578,414
Marketing/Promotions Coordinator 547
Reumon Management:

549,27 550,75 552,27

$71.76
$415

icket Manager 571,76
$47,
$415
541,63
$41.6
$41.6_
593.6
$7176
546.8

573,91
542,84

578,41
545,45

1

544,13

573,91
349,27
542,84
342,84
542,84
542,84

576,13
$50,75
544,13
544,13
544,13
544,13

578,41
552,27
545,45
545,45
345,45
345,45

596,40
573,91
548,2
539,63
$36,42
536,42
536,42
536,42
536,42
536,42
536,42
536,42

$102,279
578,41
$51,140
342,
338,63
538,63
538,63
538,63
538,63
538,63
538,63
538,63

I

576,13
549,65
340,82
337,51
337,51
337,51
337,51
537,51
337,51
337,51
537,51

538,48
53536
$35.36
535,35
$35.36
$35.36
535,36
535,35
$35.36

enior VP of Operations 5145,6 5149,96 $154,46

etall Assnstant ‐ PT 533,28

5159,10
Event Operations Manager 571,76 $73,91 $76,13 $78,414
Event Operations Asswtant 541,60 $42, $44,1 3 $45,45
Track Rental Coordinator 47 84 549,27 50,753 $52.27
Concessions Coordinator 547,84
Annual Total for Salary Only (ExcludesAlI Benefits)

549,27 550,75 552,27
al .

52,321,238,I $2,390,876 $2,462,602 $2,536,‘‑



EXHIBIT B

M A P OF MANAGEMENT PREMISES
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EXHIBIT C

REQUIRED INSURANCE COVERAGES

Required Coverage. Without in any way limiting Contractor’s liability
pursuant to the “indemnification” section of this Agreement, Contractor
must maintain in force, during the full term of the Agreement, insurance
in the following amounts and coverages:

a) Commercial General Liability/Motorsport Liability insurance should include the
following minimumlimits each coverage;

CGL/Motors .or t Liabilitv Minimum Reauired Limi t
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability $ 25,000,000
Damage to rentedpremise (Fire legal) $ 300,000
MedicalExpense $ 5,000

General Aggregate None

Products- Completed Operations $ 25,000,000

Personal Advertising Injury $ 25,000,000

b) Liquor Liability Insurancewith limits no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence;

c) Participant Legal Liability Insurance with limits not less than $25,000,000 each
occurrence;

(1) Commercial Auto Liability Insurance with limits no less than $25,000,000 each occurrence,
“combined single limit” for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, including Owned, Non‑
owed, andHired auto coverage, asapplicable;

e) Worker’s Compensation, in Statutory amounts, with Employers’ Liability Limits not less
than $1,000,000 each accident, injury, or illness;

1) Crime insurance with limits of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence covering claims
involving employee dishonesty, forgery or alteration, theft, disappearance and destruction,
and computer fraud.

Additional Insured

Commercial General Liability or Motorsport Liability Insurance, Liquor Liability policies must
be endorsed to provide:

i. County of Monterey, its agents, officers. directors and employees asAdditional Insured
with respect to liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations.



Suchpolicieswill beprimarv insurance to any other insurance available to the additional
insureds,with respect to any claims arising out of this Agreement, and that insurance
applies separate to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought.

If Contractor carries or maintains anUmbrella/Excess Liabilitypolicy to provide
additional coverage or if the contract requires higher limits thanwhat the Contractor
carries in the primarypolicies, County shall beadded asadditional insuredon such
policies.

i. The policy shall provide “drop-down” coverage where underlyingprimary
insurance coverage limits are insufficient or exhausted.

Coveragemust waive subrogation asrespects to the additional insureds.

Contractor shall provide to County a certificate of insurance evidencing the required
coverages no later than thirty (30) days prior to the event. UponCounty’s request,
Contractor shall provide full copies of all applicable insurancepolicies.

The Certificate of insurance andpolicyvshould list any deductibles Contractors might be
responsible to pay or reimburse.

General liability andUmbrellaPolicies need to beplacedwith at least A- rated carrier by
A M . Best.

i. Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s primary andumbrella/excess policies
will be first policies to respond to any claim or lawsuit.

i i . Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s primary and umbrella/excess policies
shall not subrogate or seek recovery against County’s primary or excess
policies.



EXHIBIT D

ARMY DEED
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“g!“{TCLAIMDBED ;'

THE UNITEDsums on AMERICA, actnig'by and-through the Semetary of-thev
Interior, acting by and thrjough' the-Director, _Bu'reau bf UutdoorRecreation, . ,
under and pursuant Atethe peweri-md-mflmritrcmtained in- the provisions of '
_the Federal Property'aiidAdministrative-Services Act pf 1949 ' (63 Stat. ‘ 337),
as amended, ‘and part imla‘r ly ' as mended’by'PubZ‘Lic Lain-485; 91st Con'gress,- and.
regulations, and orders p’rpimlgated theremlder‘ (heminafterdesi‘gnated "Grantm-"J ,
f o r and in consideration “of the. perpetual m e b f the hereinafter described .
premiseS‘as vandl'for’public parknand‘pmzlic recreation area purposes, by the .
County, of Monterey, Califomigfflwreinafter desigiated -_"Gfantee!‘),‘ does hereby.
release and" qui tc la im' to Grantee, andto‘. i t s sutcessors and as'signs,. a l l “ ,
Grantor's mightyt i t le and interest in and to the fqilowing' descr'ibed‘property.
located. in Monterey ;County and consisting of approximately 559.016 ‘acres:

Situate 1:1-Rancho Laguna‘ASece, Rancho B1 M 5 3 1andMonterey
Ci ty Lands Tract No. l, County of Monterey, State _of California
mere particularly described as follows :' .

Beginning at a i f o m d cencretelmnlment w i t h a b ras disc .
" stamped, "Geo._C. Bestor.L.'S. 2369 Property Comer F.B. ‑
U.‘ S. _A." Said canaete’ mmmient having established g r i d
coordinates of X=1,189’,073.'4‐58,".Y,=467,100.419, of Zone 4 of
the“ Cailifomie; G r i d system; as s a i d mnument is shomi and
so designated on that “certain map' entitled,” "Licensed ‘
Surveyors Map ShoWing Establishmentof Certain Monuments on
t h e Boundary, of.Fort 0rd Military~Reservation‐=-"', fi l e d
f o r record June-15; 1953, in'Volmle 5'of Surveys at Page 2, _
records of Mentexeyfl County; California, said umwxent
replacing‘a' 4"1_'x 4" pos t nfirked 'MAF-SJF" standing at t h e
northwest corner.of_ that certain 563.19 acre t r a c t , of land
designated as "Area, No, 7; Tract No'. 1" in that ce r t a i n
Decree of Judgement Nq._ 2.2:(349-G, United States of America
575. HermitPenziere, et al', (dated Eebm'ary’ 4,31943 and
mcordedziix Volume" 791,; Official Rec'ords, at Rage 18, records
of'Mdnterey Coimty, Cal i fomia; sa i d mommient ”also standing
on the'ncttherly-bomdary- of Rmcho Laguna Secal from which
a 6":x 1_4" granite monument scribedMl4LSlO standing at the
mostnprtherlygcomer of said-Randlb Laguna Seta beaxs
N. 79° 30'357" E.',' a- distance of,;2950'.37 feet; thence from
said-place of beginning and leaving-the“ nor ther ly boim'daiy
of sa i d Randio..Lagma Seca; " ' " ' '

- 1) ;N. 14° 1-33} 21". E, ,‘ 286.85 f e e t to a 1" ircm pipe; thence
’ 2 ) 3N.< 269 ;35“ j26" , E . , l 273.06'feet to a 1," i r o n p ipe; t hence ,
'. 3) " S. _-61°v-'11'-, _31”fE. , _257‐.-78-fe‘_e_‘tj__to Ca1“ iron' pipe; thence
" 4 ) f.'S.'f_7l° 10F- 40'-_‘ E._,' 268.71 fee t to av ’ l " i r o n pipe; thence
5] bS’.; 85? 20‘ 128" _.‘E,‘166.'03,feet"to a 1 " , i r d n p i p e ; thence
-6)__- N. 80°, ZS‘-_07.'_“'E,", 259j.69 feet t e a 1'_' itcn’pipe; thence

3 7 ) N.“ 80? 1,8? 48"..‘Ef. ,- 279i‘65' feet to"a~1" irc'm pipe: thence
‘ j8)"*'.N. fan", 27" 22"3E. , 3271.89; feet. to flav1-" iron'pip'e; thence

..'-214°. 48',;'_'05";E.,-:154.63 feet"to:a. 1'? i r o n pipeiflthence , . g
-- ,, N 169‘_38v;'f58“--E..;; li3.Q6’ feetito' _a1"7'irgn.'pipe; fiien‘ce ,. '
_.'l1),_l JNJ ;,6°-'4.2¥ ‘5_7{' .E-4 ' >87.09 feet ' to :a - 1" irenPipé';"t}_1ence -‑



am -_344 ”195.1078”:
1 2 ) : N2 6° 07' Sassl w.,, 64:75 feet to a 1~‘.' .‘if0npipef;-.thence "
_13)~ N'.~19° 14‘--.26.",'E._, <'68'.;_64=:_Eeet_ to.'a~,-1‘_" i r o n pipe;-f'thehce
14) _N;,,25°-_59.' 5.7" E.,‘v;208.90.&etjto' a11“, i r o n pipe; "theme
015); .N.. 31° 07',_531." B. , 4153.17. "feet; to.--_a 1'! “ i ronpipe; thence
-"16) _'N._"-42°-_'13'f 20" E. , 55.40 f e e t to -'a. 1"-,_iron‘pipe; t'h'Ence
17): N. 53" 352 29"_‘E.; 73.1? fee t j toa . 1'-' i r o n -pipe;._the_nce f
18)‘ N.571,11':'_36".E; ," 274.52 feet t o a 1'.' iron pipe; thence "
19)."N.' 75° 03'. 15'.‘ Hui-69.70 feet- .1:_0 a 1‘" iron pipe ; “thence '
20). s: 77fi-‘3o' 744" 1,195.19 feet to 3 1 “ iron pipe; thence
21.)'-N.;60°:15' 48" E.',' 233.83‘feet to 211" i rqnp ipe ; “thence
22) 1N; 67° 40' 19".E. , 338.26 feet to‘"a 1" i ron pipe;_t]1ence
23) N. 72°» 49' -16" E.~, 333.06 f e e t as e 1"A:1,ron pipe; thence"
24)’ N._. 12?‘43! 36" 142, 488.02 fee t to a 1" iron pipe; thence
25), N.’ "28° “26'_ 41" E. , 177.25 feet to a 1" i r o n“pipe; thence
25) ‘ N . 55° ns', 49" E . , 279.81-feet to a'-1" i ron pipe; thence
27] N." 29 33'543" E . , 404.99‘feet to .a 1" iron; p ipe ; thence
28] N. 0" 39" 28." E. , 123.71 fee t to, at 1T' i r o n pipe; thence
2 9 ) ” N. 70° 58".48" E,, 767.79 f ee t to a 1 " ) i r o n pipe; said 1"

irém Pipehaving' establisheci g r i d coor '_ ‘tes of
X=1,193,‘459.685, Y=470,4Z6.916., of Zone 4-of'the
Ca'iifomia' Gr id System; thence from said“ p ipe _

30) S. ‘20‘? 36'- _54" E. , 746.20 feet to a 1" i r o n pipe; thence
31) ' S. 11° 32‘ 15" W., 1406.62 fee t to a 1" iron-pipe; thence
3 2 ) ’S. 31°“53' -44",W., 336.35~feet to a 1"- ironpipe; thence
33 ) s». 19° 31 ' 2 9 " E . , 119.45 feet to a 1" iron p ipe ; thence
34}. N. -52° 20' 5.6" E.,‐'133.33 feet to' .a I" iron pipe; thence
35} _N.- 48° 04' 03'"-E.,-230.44 f e e t to a 1" i r o n p i p e ; thence
36) .N. 78° 57’ 132" E., 775;.:39 f e e t to a.1",i_r0n p ipe; thence
37) 5 . 4 6 " 39]. 13" E.-, 326.13 fee t t o ; a 1" i ron p ipe ; thence
38) S. 64° _04".14" W.,: 247.29 feet to a l l " iron pipe; thence
3 9 ) S. 56° 15 ' j 4097?!” 99.46 f e e t t o ; 1" i r o n p ipe; thence '?
40) s. 30°=59' 9 7 " w.,,' 195.51 fee t to a 1" i ron pipe; thence ;i
41) ,'S. 54° 24' 54"'W.-, 371.44 f e e t to a 1" i r o n p i p e ; thence 5
42] S. 75° 254‘ 3 7 " W.,‘ 133.70 feet to la 1'{ i ron pipe; thence
43) S. 51° 50‘ 1 9 " W.,' 28851 feet to a 1" i r o n pipe; thence
‘443 S. 15° 25‘ 49'?-W.,A 249.42 feet to a 1" i r o n pipe; thence
45) S. -5° 45. "37" “L“, 339.06 f e e t t o . a 1" . imn ‘p ipe ; thence
46) S. 2°- 01' 43" E . , 630.64eret to a l‘firon pipe; thence
47) . S. '9" .43_' 07-" B.'; 306.35 feet tos'a 1" i m n pipe; thence
48) S. 41° 44'- 55" W.,_482.27 f e e t to a 1" i r o n pipe; thence
49) ..5. '7° 19-53" w.,‘.1297.97 feet tea-1" iron pipe; thence
50) S. 12° 301.56" E.‘,. Z38.61'feet_.to a 1 " , iron pipe; thence
51) S. 169- 11_' S7"~-E.',_105.,12 feet to'a 1”,iron pipe; thence
52) S. 86°31? 54"; W.‘,434.46 fee t to_a11';' i r on pipe; thence
53)‘ S._ “65° ,22»' 133" W., 326.78 ”feet to. a._1" i r on pipe; thence
54) 1N._ 80° 52522" :w., 144.26 feet to‘ai ' . ’ i t o n pipeyfi‘om

which a..Califomia Division of Higimays-trian'gulation '
. immanent Stamped, “Lagtma5197'2.” bears N. 88° 20' A03"AE., _
1 60.01 feet distant,- said tr iangulat ion 'mn1ment having
-'es'tab1ishec1 grid coordinates. ‘o‘f X=1,192,396.820, '
-,¥=464,7.-16.440, of 'Zone{4 -'of the Califoinia Grid .

; ». SyStem;j_'thence f romsa id l , " i r on pipe ,
‘ --'55)_N.~76-‘? rssr ‘2,5";w.-,~;993.40 feet to-a.‘ 1" iron pipe; thence
5613.8.”243'12.’ 56"-W1;._'617.85'1feet to a 21" i ron pipe; thence
57), S. 32°, 01"j24"-.W. ,,1’58‘,76 f e e t to a 1'.‘ i r o n pipe from ‑
. ~which"e"-2".bras's, disc-in annan pipe stanped’MWl
. j -.fbears'_N. 2371991310 "W. 5 42,075 feet flistant; said brass
. f , diSc'haiving established gr id coordinates of X,=1,v1_91,014.93,

_-,TY=464,2.80.132,' of-.Zone'-'4;of the Cal i fqmiaf Grid System;.. .- thencefromeaid 1" iron pipe _. ,- . _-.
58)'»:N"'849."511'_»143_".W. , '898,_21'.’feet to 3.1" i r on .pipe;’,th'enl;e_jj .
:5.9} --S 159,081. 30"5W.',"223.29-'_feet‘to a T'iron pipe; thence ‑



60) ' _..50."- car 499“ i n , 459.04-1feetsto a 1“ i r o n pifieg-thence
p i ) - .V18‘°~ ‘z7' 24" m, 594.1601feet'to a-i'fl-irompmegz thence
-.'62) J' ,. 31° '47"'21'! w.,w,395».29 feet, to a 1": ironpipefinthence
63)~~~ .; 284» 14!'-49". w..,,~,197.00 feet ‘td‘al'Li-I'onpipe}; thence
64), . S, 15°19" '47'! E. ,' 102,80f e e t to a l" 1r0n15ipey'fl1ence
65165-1595" 29; 13-53, 330.53, f e e t to-a 1". iron-pipe; thence
66) ' -S; j.73° 0,1'1 35": E'.', 366.68 fee t .to‘_a ].=" iron pipe;_' thence:‑
67) S." 81? 541. 1-3".‘E.,"212.57 feet to a,_ 1'.' imn pipe; fliencel
68) s. 61°='50‘ 07". 11,149.04 f e e t tb a l " iron p ipe ; thence
, 69) s.'.35f?-08' m a , 216.101-ffee'ttofa fmxnd 4" 'x74'_' post» ‑

"standing on the nertherly bomdary'of the r ight “of'way'
b f . the.Salinas-Monterey State Highway; thence-along" ‑
said northerly boi'mda'zy of said State‘I-[igimay ' ‘

370) Norfliwesterly m‘thefiaic of a'cur've- to'the l e f t (the f
' center of With beats S. l12° 20' 19" W” 5040.00 feet

distant ] “through a central angle of 6? M i ] 38‘.’ f o r. an
arc distanée of 593.24 feet to a 1“ i r o n pipe lset'in‘ f

,, :a_' 4" x14“ remains; thence: '. . -‑
71) N.' 84° 24' 151" W.-, 2499.18 f e e t to 3.1" i r o n pipe; f rom

which a 4'_-' x 4" post remains standing on the southerly
boundary of the Salinas-Monterey State Highway bears- _
s-. 5?--35' 41" w.,- 80.00 feet distant;~thence

72)_ westerly on the arc of a circular curve to the l e f t v
the center' of which bears'vS.‘ 5°‘-35' 41" W.,~1540.00
feet distant) thrbugh-a central angle of'13°’ 08' 42“

' f o r m are distance 0531.53.31 f-e‘e‘t‘tdthe westerly
bom'dary, of the afomfiaid"563._19 acre t r ac t of land;
fience'leaving the no'rtherly 130de of the Salinas‑

:.‐Monterey State Highway and along the westerly boundary
of the aforesaid 563.19 acre t r a c t of land

73) N. 23° 55'v 57" E . ) 5311.25 fee t (Judgement #22049‐G=N.
_21°.45' 30." E; , _5293.51 f e e t } to the poin t of begiming.

Containingan area of 559.016, acres .~
Bearings and'diStances usedhereinabove are based on, the California
CpordinatezSystem Zone 4'; Mul t ip ly Distances. by 1.0000970 to obtain
gI'OIJEid" level distanees. '
Excepting'flneiefrom: ‘ Barley Canyon Roadand'Old South- Boundary
Road; and such other roads as marked i n ,ye l low on Drawing No. . ‘
H‐'254 (Exh i b i t "E‘,']. attached to "Report o f Excess Real Property
No." SPKRE‐lSlfi‘ dated'Deceniber‘ 20, 1972 anion fi l e With t h e
Genei-al Services,_ Administration, San Francisco, California;
such ‘1‘03d5__ to be ietained by t h e Department of the Army to '
provide-‘acc'ess‘to the _retained'-areas,of the Fo r t 0rd..Military ‑
Reservatimand to fac i l i ta te fi refigh t ing . These -'roads w i l l
the available for j o i n t use‘with others subject to agreements
f o r j o i n t maintenance based on. the extent.of use by par t ies '
involved. _ ' ' ' ,_

7.subject t o : Ahigh'way easement? to-b'efgrant'ed' to- the‘Staté Of.
lifomia‘b'y. the United States of 'America,_ acting by and"through

the Segi-e'tary j'of Transportatim,“ac'ting by and through the .
Admini‘strator,j:Eedei;alHighway .Administ-ra‘tioh,.- for the futmye. .
' constfuttidn andmaintenance'of proposedstate Highway- 68-' :A_,. _
,_‐"(Calimeia.Eede1}a1-3Aid Primary.36) asugenerally shown on. that ,
“map entitled "Land Use.SFUdYfi'Jeaglila Sena RecmationArea".- '
prepaxéd by-' the Monterey;'001_nitx Parks: Depamnent,: June 1973; said"

. map' being“ anintegralVpaiftfofathe. (h‘anteefs "Pi-ogramoii Utilization"
submitted-to "the Bureau of Outdoor Recreationwith“ Grantee‘s .~
' ,,!upp11qati¢n,for-Federal: suipm; Property fair; Public:Park and .
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‘ .Recreation Purposes" "datedJuly“3,’1973;sa_id_.easement beingmore
par t rcu la r l ydescnbed as follows": - '

I _, ;.T’l1atpar of theRaneh'oLagunaSeca__inthe Comty"of Monterey, 5
, : ._'Stat.e_ol£. California,described asfollows: " ‘

Beginning 9ntheboundaryof 15m0rdMi l i ta ryReservation," A.' "distantN.‘.23°.55' 57“E'65000feet alongsa i dbdmdary '_
from a 6" x"6" concretenpmment with brass .cap stamped .A 3 ;‘- '
‘MAFfUSA"at the- intersection of said bmnrdary with the.
northerly. l ine of t h eMonterey-Saljrxas ngl'may as sa id , ,
imment andbomdaryare shownon"the mp filed in Volume
_5of Surveysatpageage ,2 records of “said Comfy; thence '. '

, - - (1) ,N. 727 1 8 ' 15" a, 73980 feet; meme(2 ) , s . 83° 34 '
07‘"E., _11525 20f ee t ; thence (3 ) , S. 31° 47' 21"W., 2.0529
" fee t ; thente (4),S,:2_8° 14' 49“ '.,W 197.00f e e t ;thence _

d :_" . ( 5 ) ,S. 15° 19.| "-47'_'-E 102 .80 feet;-.the11ce ( 6 ) , S. 39° 29“
' 13" E . , 100.00- f ee t ; theme(7 ) ,N 83° 1 8 “24"W“. 1308.03‘
__fe'e_t; thence (8), S 74° 5 9 ' 05"--W., 1108.10 feet to a po in t ‑
" 'o n .s a i d boundary d is tan t northerly along s a i dboundary ‘
150.00 f e e t from sa id monument; thence (_9)‘, "alongsaid

'- bmmdary, N. 23° 55l'- -57"- E3, 500.00 feet to the point of
beginning. : .

' Bearngsand distancesusedhereinare baSedonthe California
-CoordinateSystemZone-4.

Saidhighwayeasement is to be. granted subject to, but not limited
to , the £9110wing conditions:
1. TheMonterey.County Parks Deparment shall approve ‑
provisions f o r aucess to t h e Laguna Seca Recreation Area.
from The freeway and. for adequate accessunder the freeway
betweent h eupper park areas and the lower pondareas near
theendstiughighway . .

The Mamie):County Parks Dapartmentshal l approve final
designplans for the freeway including the appliCation of .
appropriatescenic" standards to insure tonpatibilitywith _.
the park-aunosphere of t h eLaguna Seca.RecreationArea. , '
3.“ TheMonterey county Parks Department shall have use of
the subject highway easement f o r park and recreationpurposesuntilsuchtime _as highway.construction commences. '

.Any portion of Thesubject highway easemnt subsequently”
determined to be n o t needed f o r highwaypurposessha l l be '
conveyed to the Countyof-Monterey for parkand reoreation
pin'posessubject;to the t e r n s“and conditionsapplicableto
the Laguna' _Se'ca.‘EcfiationArea.. _,

, "5 . I f .constmctionof saidStateHighh‘ay 68within subject
' - easement does n o tcommence _within 10 years from theda t e of
. ._1_:':onvey,anceof this highwayeasement,- thensaidhighway . ~
. '- easement shall" inifiediatelyterminateandbe- of- noftnfther ~-'jforceoreffect. ,~ . . . '

:.ToHavea n dto:HoldThe herembeforedescribed property, subjectto the
reservations exceptions, r e s t r i c t i o n s ,condr tmns and covenants.here in ,
expressed andsetforthmtoltheGrantee,its.successors 91151assigns, forever. 7 »1“
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The hereiilhefore-descfibed'p erty ,is'_.'granted by the Grantor~ to the Grantee .
subject" to any-and a l l “ oufi'tzgging eas'errents- f o r streets,pointy. systems, '. .
rights-"offway, rail-roads, ,pipe1ines','_andfor covenants” restrictions ; reserva‑
t ions, Conditions, and. agreementsfof recordWhidi new_:ex_jst affecting the
foregoing described prendS'esI. " <, . , ' ' >

' , The Grantor expressly] eicepts- and'résenfes a l l o i l , ; gas, and ndneral r igh ts I
and deposits-in said'land to t h e Grantor or to _,such personCs) ' asmay be
mthoxized by the Grantdr to prospect,"hd,ne,-and remove such deposits from
the hereinbeforedescrihed proper ty under applicable l aws ; ' 5
Pursuant to authori ty. ccmtained in the FederalProperty and Adrrdnistrative 4
ServicesAct‘ o f 1949, as amended, and applicable rules, regu la t iomand orders
promu1_gated‘fhere1mder,', the General-Services Administration detennz'med t he '
property, to.be surplus to the needs of the United States of America and
ishsigned the property to the Departnent of t h e In te r i o r f o r conveyance t o ,
eG'ranteer ' . i v "

~It is Agreed and Understood by andbetveen the Grantor and Grantee, and the
Grantee ‘by_ "its acceptance: of t h i s deed, does acknowledge i t s Imdei‘standing of
the agreement, and» does cone t h and agree for i t s e l f , and i t s successors and
assigns, forever, as follows: A, " .

’ l. "Ihis pmper ty shall be used and maintained f o r the pub l i c
purposes f o r which itwas conveyed in perpetuity as se t f o r t h
in the program of util ization and p l a ncontained in the
application, submitted by the:Grantee on July 3, 1973, which
program and plan may be aJnended fmmt ime to time at the
request-of either'flleGrantor or Grantee, with the written
concurrence of the'other-party, and such amendments w i l l be
added to and-become a par t of the o r i g ina l application.

2. The" Grantee agrees to construct new boundary ferming,‘
includingappropriate gates, around subject property to the
specificationsand sat is fact ion ‘of the Deparbnent of the
Army; suchbomdary fencing to become the property of the
Fo r t 0rd M i l i t a r y Reservation, “which w i l l have re5pcnsibi l i ty
f o r normal maintenance of said‘ fencing.

3. The Grantee shall , withino months of the date of the.
deed of conveyance, erect and maintain a permanent sign or
marker near ‘thegpoint of pr inc ipal “access to the“ conveyed
area‘ indicating that-the. proper ty is a park or recreation
area-and has beenacquired from the Federal Gavel-111mm: f o r
use by the general publ ic. ~

4,7 "The property shal l not be3sold, leased, assigned, or
othemise'disposed' of except-“to another e l i g i b l e governmental
agency tha t the Secretary- oflthe Interior agrees in w r i t i n g
can assure the» continued _'use and maintenance of- the pmperty
f o r public park or publ ic recreational purposes subject to
the same tears and' conditions .in-‘ the or ig ina l instrument of
mnveymc‘e; However, noth ing in this provision shall preclude
the Grantee"from-.,providing"re1ated reaeatimml-faci l i t ies and ,
services- cmnpatible _with the approvedapplication, through
concession’agreenents. entered i n t o wi th t h i r d part ies, provided
p r i o r concurrence to such agreements is-obtained in w r i t i n g
froln the;.Secreta1y_ of the» Interior. . '

5.‘ chem-fire date-of fl1is_t:onveyance,_.the Grantee, i t s -'- I
successors" and assigns , shal l submit biennial reports to the
Secretary of'_the,‘Interior,-setting' forthpthe use made of the
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propertyduringt h epreceding two‐year periodand other _
pertinentdata ostahlrshmgi t s contiamousu s e for '_the ,, .
purposes set fo r th above, fo r t e nconsecutive reports and
as fln'therdetermined by the Secretary of the In te r io r.
Uponreceipt of eachbiennialr e p o r tt h e Secretary of the
In t e r i o r s h a l l reviewt h e specia l five ‐year use p e r m i tissued
by the Grantee to the Sports Car Racing Association of the
Mmterey Peninsula, entitled"Permit f o r Use.of Laguna'Seca
Racewayby the Sport's Car Racing Association of the Monterey
Peninsula (SCRAMPT'; andwithin s i x t y( 6 0 )days a f t e r - ‑
receiving saidreport shall apprmre renewal, request-modifi‑
cations, or recommend non-renev'ralor cancellation of the use
p e rm i t . Upon remnmndationby the secretary of t he Interior,
' the Granteeshall h a v ethe r i g h t to cancel said use permit
upon one year'5 not ice to SCRAMP. ‑

“Any and a l l payments received by the Grantee fromSCRAMP
f o r use of a po r t i on of t h e srfloject property f o r vehicular

~racing in accordance with terms of the special u s epermit
.mentioned in paragraph 5 above shall be usedby the Grantee
solely f o r recreationdevelop1ne1'1t.’andoperations at the
subject property (Laguna Seca Recreation Area).

7. If at any time the Grantor shall determinethat the
premises herein conveyed, or any par t thereof are needed
for, the national defense, a l l r igh t , t i t l e and interest in
and to sa id premises, or p a r t thereof determined to be
necessary to said nat ional defense,sha1'l r eve r t to and
become the property of the Grantor. ’ Noconstruction sha l l
occur which would complicate or hinder the f u l l u t i l i za t ion
of t h i s property upon reversion to the United States of
‘America as providedin th is paragraph.

8. As p a r tof the consideration f o r t h i sDeed, the Grantee
covenants andagrees fo r i t s é1£ , i t s successors and assi
that: ( l ) the programf o r or in connection wi th Much th is
Deed is made wi l l be conductedin compliance with, and The
Grantee, i t ssuccessors and assigns, w i l l comply ‘with a l l
requirements imposed by or pursuant to the regulations of
t h e Departnent'. of the I n t e r i o r as in e f f e c t on the date of
t h i s Deed (43,C.F. R. -_Part 17) issued under the provisions
of Ti t le VI of the Civil Rights ACt of 1964; (2) t h i s
coVenant sha l lbe subjectin a l l respects to the provis ions
of said regulat ions; (3) the Grantee, i t s successors and‑
”assigns,wi l l pronptly take and continue to take such action
as may be necessary to. effectuate th i s covenant; (4) the
" United States shall have- The r i g h t to seek judicial enforce‑
ment of t h i s covenant; ( 5 ) the Grantee, i t s suctessors and
assigns, w i l l (a) obta in from each other person (any l ega l
ent i ty ) who, through contractual or other arrangements with
the Grantee: i t s successors or assigns, is authorized to
provide services“ or benefits under s a i dprogram, awr i t ten .
'agree11_1ent pmjsuzmt to which such o the rperson sha l l , w i t h
respeétto the services or benefits which he is authorized
to prov ido mde'rtake for himself t h esome obligations as
those i111pos‘edupon the.Grantee, i t ssuccessors and assigns,
: b y th i s covenant, and (b ) furnish a copy“ of such agreement
. ‘ to theSecretary of TheInterior, or h i s successor; (6) t h i s
‘ ”covenant- sha l l r unwith the land hereby conveyed, and s h a l l .
in any event, without regardto technical clasSification or

’ designation, legal or. Otherwise,be binding to the fullest ‘ ‘
extent permittedbylaw and equity for thebenefit of, and

, .



' ; REEL“ =$44ema1083 l a-‘
..infavb_1- of--th armor Bitd‘.-,enforceal_11e "by“ flle'Gi'antoI“ against“ ‑
--FfisefGréntfeé'fiitsfificcesSO-irs emsassigfiflflMd.f(7)’~flle“Glfant9T " ' “v -egcpres'sly§"resems'aiigfit'.offajccfis'sto,“andont'i'me upgng" ~". ~
‘ - fligabovo‘destiribedipmpelrty-infurdef-ito-deté'finline (impliancejf.
., with flle'teflns'of thisconVéymcé‘ .u t - - " " Z
1..9;‘;‘ iIn~-'the:-event_ that 1316116Jiga‘bi'éédi offany. of t h e , tmlditiQIIS
and. Covenants hereinmntained by-.t,hefGrante'e,-_i1;si SuCCeS'SOls '
.~a,nd assigns, iwhether caused bin-file" »_1.e‘ga1 or other.inabi l i ty -'
j of fixefirantee, itsiamoes‘sors; and assigns,- to perform said j
conditions and coyonzihtmlmr othemise, ,a11-1'_ig_11t,.-tijt,1g and.

:' intergst in land‘to =rh_é said prél'rxises shall" revert Icy-and '
' '.benzene thez-pmperty of the Grantor'at-~ its“ fioption which'in ,
-‘Addition'to-all other- i‘eniefliesffor’ sud'i'breadlfspall have»
-';Z_the‘1‘ight of entry-,11pm_ said premises, 'and_fl1eflG1-antee,- i ts
5succes'scjrs'and assigns, shell-“forfeit a l l ‘ i i g h t i f t i t le and _
5interest in-said pmfitisesand inqny and“ allzlof-the’ tene- .
j_-mexits, “hereditanbnt's' and appurtenances Theretmtp belonging,
'=pi'o_vid¢d, howeirer,‘ that the- failure of tho. Secretary‘of. the .
“Departmentjof the hmeriortto. requijre in any ”one. orimore _
“fimtarices‘conplete ‘perfomanoez of any of the" conditions or _
covenants shall not be "construed as a waiver or relinquish‑
“mam: of Such future performance; hutflxe‘ obligation of the '
-'Grant_ee, “its suctessors and assign55_witll re'spect‘ to such
-.futmé perfomnc'ezshall continue i n ' f u l l force and effect;

in WITNESS-”MOE, ;fiém@£¢f,ha§ cailfis'erl 'i'he_s'é pies-énts‘ t'o_be executed i n :
i t s name'and omits behalf"fl115',fl1e y, "3151: day of October ‘ , 1974.

' ' ' " 1mmSTATES. OFAMERiCA’ . '
Act ing by andrth'rough the
Secretary» of the ‘Interio‘r

Robert’C; Nan-Etten f : ,‘
Acting Regional Director ‘,
Pacific Southwest Region =:,~
Bureau of Outdoor Recreation,
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Before the B o ad of Supervisors in and for the._ ; - '

C o u n t ) of M a n u r e } , State of California BUAR'C‘ QFSégE-a llSSRS

‘ EACCEPT AMENDMENT TO QUITCLAIH 3 OCT N H 91“ 8
DEED-FROM UNITED STATES AND r ‘ 81 ‐Q¢\ .F. ‘aflora
AUTHORIZE BOARD CHAIRMAN TO ; , 0.58 ._. (mm b? pm t a r i
S IGN , THE AMFRDHENT............. saunasJ'iUFoRmzx

Upon mo t i o n o f S u p e r v i s o r D e l P i e r o , seconded b y

S u p e r v i s o r Sh i pnuck " 3 . and c a r r i e d b y those members presefio FEE:
t h e Boa rd he reby : ‘

1. Accepts Amendment to Qui tc la im Deed f o r Laguna Seca Recreat ion

Area wh i ch e l i m i n a t e s t h e t w o - y e a r restriction on the t e r m of t h e

SCRAHP Spec i a l Use Pe rm i t ; end.
Au tho r i zes the Board Chai rman to s i g n the. Amendxpent to ' Quitcleim
Deed} and

3 . Au t ho r i z es the County C l e r k t o r e c o r d , t h e Deed on b e h a l f

Hon t e r e y County with a l l
of

a p p l i c a b l e recordetion f e e s b e i n g

w a i v e d .

PASSED AND ADOPTED t h i s 2 6 t h day of A u g u s t

198i. b y t h e f o l l o w i n g vote td-v'it:

AYES: Smwisors De l Piero, Shipnuck, Petrovic,. Karas & S t r a s s e r Kauffman.

NOES: None}

ABSENT: bbne.

l. ERNEST K uoa:SHJA. Clerk o! the Board oi Supervisors of the Counn 01Monterey.$u1e a! California hereby certify tha__1 the
loreqomg is atrue tbpy at anorigmz' order of send Beardoi Supervisors duly madeand enleredmthe minules three! at page 01
Minnie Sock L o n _ £ ; 4 _ _ 1 2 5 9 3

|
l

! l m A u g . 2 6 , 1986
I

\

ERNEST K. MDRISHlTAe Clerk 0! the Board . f";
of SUDEfVISOfs. County of Hanlcrey. ( _ 3
State in California ’ a;

_ y Deputy é
. ‐ , ‐ ‐ ‘ _ . . _ . . - . . . . . . . . _ _ ‐ _ . . _ _ - . .... . p . » . é



- U 1. 1,0 .3.,;{P15E ”fl
P o r t i o n , Ford 0 r d M i l i t a r y
R e s e r v a t i o n ( L a g u n a S e c a )
D - C a l i f . ‐ 5 0 0 J  ( P a r c e l  1 )

E 5 w! 5 . D 3

WHEREAS t h e United S t a t e s o f Amer ica , a c t i n g by and t h r o u g h t h e
a u t h o r i z e d des ignee o f t h e S e c r e t a r y o f t h e I n t e r i o r ( G r a n t o r ) ,
conveyed t o t h e C o u n t y o f M o n t e r e y , C a l i f o r n i a ( G r a n t e e ) c e r t a i n
r e a l property l o c a t e d i n M e n t e r e y County, C a l i f o r n i a , and '
d e s c r i b e d i n that c e r t a i n Quitclaim Deed d a t e d October 3 1 , 1 9 7 4 ,
and recorded November 14, 1974 , in R e e l 944, Page 1077, O f fi c e of
t h e R e c o r d e r, Coun ty o f M o n t e r e y, S a l i n a s , C a l i f o r n i a , and ,

WHEREAS said Deed c o n t a i n e d c e r t a i n covenants, C o n d i t i o n s , and
r e s t r i c t i o n s gove rn i ng t h e use o f s a i d p r o p e r t y , i n c l u d i n g a t w o ‑
year limitation ont h e t e r m of t h e s p e c i a l use p e r m i t issued by
the Grantee t o t h e S p o r t s C a r R a c i n g A s s d c i a t i o n o f t h e M O n t e r e y
P e n i n s u l a (SCRAMP) w i t h p r o v i s i o n s f o r r e n e w a l , m o d i fi c a t i o n , o r
c a n c e l l a t i o n o f s a i d perm:t upon r e v i e w b y t h e G r a n t o r a t t h e end
o f e a c h t w o ‐y e a r p e r i o d ; and ,

WHEREAS G r a n t e e d e s i r e s t o have t h e two‐year l i m i t a t i o n o n t h e
t e r m o f s a i d s p e c i a l u s e p e r m i t t o SCRAMP removed f r o m s a i d Deed
and,

WHEREAS Grantor has determined t h a t removal o f s a i d two~year
l i m i t a t i o n o n t h e SCRAMP u s e p e r m i t w i l l n o t p r e v e n t t h e
a c c o m p l i s h m e n t o f t h e pUrpose f o r which t h e property was
t r a n s f e r r e d ;

NOW THEREFORE t h e ' U n i t e d S t a t e s o f Amer i ca , a c t i n g b y and t h r o u g h
t h e D i r e c t o r o f t h e N a t i o n a l Pa rk S e r v i c e , a s t h e d u l y a u t h o r i z e d
des ignee o f t h e S e c r e t a r y o f t h e I n t e r i o r , does hereby amend
C o n d i t i o n Number 5 o n Pages 5 and 6 o f s a i d Deed o f October 3 1 ,
1974 , b y r e m o v i n g a l l r e f e r e n c e t o t h e s a i d SCRAMP u s e p e r m i t ;
s p e c i fi c a l l y d e l e t i n g a l l _1anguage i n Condit ion 5 o n page 6 o f
s a i d Deed b e g i n n i n g w i t h "Upon r e c e i p t o f each b i e n n i a l
r e p o r t . " . fl t h r o u g h a n d c o n c l u d i n g w i t h “ n . u p o n o n e y e a r ' s
n o t i c e t o SCRAMP.“ A l l other p r o v i s i o n s o f s a i d C o n d i t i o n 5 t o
r e m a i n unchanged and in f u l l f o r c e and e f f e c t .

FURTHERMORE, b e c a u s e of i t s r e f e r e n c e to C o n d i t i o n 5, C o n d i t i o n
Number 6 o n Page 6 o f s a i d Deed o f O c t o b e r 31 , 1 9 7 4 , i s h e r e b y
r e v i s e d t o r e a d a s f o l l o w s :

"Any and a l l payments r e c e i v e d by t h e G r a n t e e f o r u s e
o f a l l o r any p o r t i o n o f t h e s u b j e c t p r o p e r t y t h r o u g h
c o n c e s s i o n o r o t h e r s i m i l a r a g r e e m e n t s w i t h t h i r d
p a r t i e s s h a l l b e used b y t h e G r a n t e e s o l e l y ' f o r
r e c r e a t i o n d e v e l o p m e n t , o p e r a t i o n s a n d m a i n t e n a n c e a t
t h e s u b j e c t p r o p e r t y ( L a g u n a S e c a R e c r e a t i o n A r e a )
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AND FL LHERMORE, in o r d e r to a v o i d p o s s i b l e misunders tand ings ‘
r e g a r d i n g t h i r d p a r t y i g r e e m e n t s , C o n d i t i o n Number 4ron P a g e 5 o f
s a i d Deed o f Oc tobe r 31, 1974, i s hereby amended b y i n s e r t i n g t h e
words “ , s p e c i a l use pe rm i t s , l i c e n s e s o r o t h e r s i m i l a r
agreements“ between the words “concession agreements“ a n d
“ e n t e r e d i n t o " in t h e second sentence of s a i d Condition 4.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused t h e s e presents to be
executed in i t s name and on i t s b e h a l f t h i s t h e “ d a y
o f A u g u s t , 19861

UNITED STATES 013“ AMERICA
Acting b y and t h r o u g h t h e
S e c r e t a r y o f t h e I n t e r i o r

The f o r e g o i n g i s he reby accep ted b y t h e G r a n t e e :

C o u n t y  o f  M o n t e r e y

B'y' ,>me/7w a?“ g u y “ )



V
- ‐ _ L _ . .

STATE or CALIFORNIA . ) SS , . . r . '
_COUNTY OF MONTEREY ) ‘ REEL 40.14JPAGE 23g

O n t h i s 2 6 t h day o f A u g u s t ___, 1 9 3 6 b e f o r e me , E r n e s t
K . M o r i s h i t a , C l e r k o f t h e Boa rd o f S u p e r v i s o r s , i n a n d f o r s a i d
C o u n t y a n d S t a t e , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d SAM P. KARAS
known to meto be t h e Chai rperson of s a i d B o a r d of S u p e r v i s o r s of t h e
C o u n t y o f M o n t e r e y , a n d known t o m e t o b e t h e p e r s o n who e xe cu t e d t h e
w i t h i n i n s t r um e n t o n b e h a l f o f said p o l i t i c a l s u b d i v i s i o n , a n d a c k n ow ‑
l e d g e d t o m e t h a t s u c h C o u n t y o f M o n t e r e y e x e c u t e d t h e same.

. ' .

ERNEST K. MORISHITA, C l e r k Of the
'Board o f Supe r v i s o r s o f Mon t e r e y
C o u n t y , S t a t e o f C a l i f o r n i a

B y :
D e p u t y C l e r k



COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO ) N 4 F f . . . P e_ s s . “ML $0.5.érAGE $0 5)
ST.- L‘E OF CALIFORNIA ) . I

On t h i s QR day o f A u g u s t , 1986, b e f o r e me, t h e subsc r i be r,
p e r s o n a l l y appeared John_D. Cherry, t o b e known and p e r s o n a l l y
known t o ' m e - t o be t h e Associate Reg iona l D i rec to r, Western
Reg ion , National. P a r k Serv ice , of_ the united S t a t e s of America,
a c t i n g b y and t h r o u g h t h e S e c r e t a r y o f t h e I n t e r i o r , a
g o v e r n m e n t a l agency o f the‘United Sta tes- o f America, a n d known t o
meto be t h e same person desc r i bed in and who e x e c u t e d t h e
f o r e g o i n g instrument as such Assoc ia te Reg iona l D i r e c t o r
a foresa id , - .a 's t h e a c t and, deed of t h e Un i t ed S t a t e s , f o r and on
b e h a l f of t h e S e c r e t a r y of t h e I n t e r i o r , and he acknowledged t h a t
he executed'the..f0regoing. ins t rument f o r and cry-behalf of t h e
U n i t e d States of America, f o r the purpdses a n d uses t h e r e i n
descr ibed ‑

n '  \
8 th  -

SAN .‘"".I.‘.‘f"! G"""'.':
My comm. mu . ‘.

~ x = k a ; w w ,  s  _  v  .

OFFICIAL SEAL
' fig, mTMAQY E MEREDITH

. . . . _ m ; : M ‘ Y m m - A I FMy CommlSSlOn e x p - L I E S = n (3: Lb .“ ‘E:'t rwl_lt'tccr~'\cn;ySSNlA .
11 12-2 T. ' 7-3. was f.( _, h. " . ' - : -._ a ' -, ~ - ¢ . 0 . , ' = - . ""“"'V"'‐‘-"':-=-‘1.L

t. '
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BEFORETHE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN AND FORTHE 06° 1 ' 85° '
COUNTYOF MONTEREY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Accept anAmendment of UseRestrictionsto )
the Laguna Seca QuitclaimDeed fromthe )
Departmentof the Interior,Authorize the Board )'
Chair to Signthe Amendment andAuthorize the)
BoardClerk to Recordthe Amendment and )
Waive any Applicable Fees ................ )

Uponmotionof Supervisor E g t t e r , secondedby Supervisor
J o h n s e n , andcarried by those memberspresent, theBoardhereby

I. Accepts anAmendment of UseRestrictionsto the LagunaSeca QuitclaimDeedfromthe
US.Departmentof the Interiorto a)modify Condition6 regardingthe use of revenues .
derived themtheuse of the property and2) eliminate Condition7 regardingthe reverter
clause in the event the property is neededfornationaldefense.

3. Authorizes the BoardClerk to recordthe amendment andwaive the applicable fees

PASSEDAND ADOPTED on this 12th day of December , 2000by the following
vote, to-wit:

AYES: S u p e r v i s o r s C a l c a g n o , J o h n s e n, P o t t e r
NOES: N o n e
ABSENT: P e n n y c o o k

I, SALLY K REED,Clerk of the Boardof Supervisors of the County of Monterey, State of. California,

SALLY R. REED,Clerk of the Boardof Supervisors,
Countyof Mopterey,State OfCalifo '

By / (A! ‘ ‘
C a r r i e W i l k i n s o n gDePUtY

cc  :  Ros ie ‐  Parks

c:\mword00\Rich\Board RepomtllIZSec Quitclaim-bds
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AMENDMENTOFUSERESTRICTIONS

WHEREAS, onOctober 31, 1974 arepresentative of the Secretary of Interior,-actingonbehalfof the United
States of America granted the County of Monterey, California aduitclaim deed to 559.016acre parcel located
within the Rancho LagunaSeca, Rancho E1Chamisal, and Monterey City' Lands Tract No. 1, County of
Monterey, State of California and recordedwithin the official records of the Cc’nmty of Monterey at Reel 944,
Pages 1076-1084;and ‑

WHEREAS, on August 6, 19863, representative of the Secretary'of Interior, acting on behalf of the United
States of America amended the terms and conditions relatedto use permits and revenues from Use permits and
other agreement contained within the aforementioned deed in a document recorded within the official deed
recordsof County of Montereyat Reel2012, Pages235‐239. '

WHEREAS, the County of Monterey has requestedanamendmentof terms andconditions containedwithin the
deed and amendment relatingto the reversion of said property for national defensepurposes (deedconditic'm 7)
and the useof revenues generatedby operations onthe described property (amendeddeedcondition6); and

WHEREAS, the National Park Service, on behalf of the Secretary of the Interior and pursuant to the Federal
Properties and Administrative Services Act [40 U.S.C. 484 (k)(4)] determines following consultation with the
Department of Army and the General Services Administration that the-release of deed condition 7, and the
following modification of deed condition 6 will not wil l not prevent the accomplishment of the purpose for
whichthe propertywas transferred and‘protec'ts the interestof theUnitedStates.

NOW THEREFORE, in accordance with Federal Property and Administrative Services Act [40 U.S.C. 484
(k)(4)] the Secretary of the Interior,actingby andthrough the Directorof theNationalPark Service,does hereby
amend and remove use restriction relating to the right of reversion for national defense purposes identified as
item7 onpage 6 of aquit claimdeed from theUnitedStates of America to the County of Monterey to a559.016
acreparcel locatedwithin the RanchoLagunaSeca,RanchoEl Chamisal,andMontereyCity'LandsTractNo. 1,

Reel 944, Pages 1076-1084, and further amends item 6 on page 6 of said quit claim deed, asamended by a
document recorded within the officialdeed records of the County of Monterey at Reel-2012,Page 235-239 as
follows; . . ‘ ‑

Any andall payments received by the Grantee for use or all or portions of the subject property-through
concession or other similar agreements with third parties shall be usedpyrite ,_Cirautee,,solely fertile,
recreation development, operations, or maintenance at'the subject prepeity‘(I-,aguna Seca' Recreation
Area) to achieve the program of utilization, and if met, then other properties used for park and
recreationpurposes. '

MontereyCounty,California (CA5001) ' Page 1of2
Laguna’SecaRecreationAreaAinendmentof UseRestrictions



lN WNESSWHEREO the Grantor has caused these presents tobeexecutifi'In its name and onits behalfon‑
thisthe 21-_ _ d a y o f 2000. _ _ _ _

Actingby and through the Secretaryof the Interior

)SS- _
(STA’I‘EQFCALIFOR-NlAi-au -)

SupportOffice,NationalPark Service,of theUnitedStates of America,actingby andthrough the Secretaryof
the Intérior,agovernmental agencyof theUnitedStates of America, andknownto meto bethe sameperson
described'mandwho executed the foregoinginstrumentassuchthePlanningandPartnershipTea'm Leader,
PacificGreatBasinSupportOfficeaforesaid, astheact anddeedof theUnitedStates, for andonbehalfof the
Secretary of the Interior,andheacknowledgedthathe executedthe foregoing instrument for andonbehalfof
theUnitedStates of America, for the purposesanduses therein described.gimessmyhandandofficiiilseal.

_NOTARYPUBLIC

MontereyCounty,Califcmia(CA5001) ' Page2 o f2
LagunaSecaRecreationAreaAmendmentof UseRestrictions ' A



CERTIFICATEOFACCEPTANCE

This is to cer t i fy tha t the Amendment of UseRestrictions conveyed
by the National Park Service in consultationwith- the Secretary of
t he Inter ior, act ingon behalfof t he UnitedStates of America is
hereby accepted by order of the Monterey Coun t y Board of
Supervisors on December 12,_2000. Such action is pursuant to
authori ty conferredby Resolutionof the Monterey County Boardof
Supervisors, adoptedon'December 12,2000. The Grantee hereby
consents to the recordation of the Amendmentof Use Restrictions
by the County Recorder.

Coun ty of Monterey
Grantee

Dated: Pb'fi/(OO By: ‘
Louis Calcagno.
Mon te rey Coun t y Boardof per-visors



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of California

County o f Mo n t e r e y

IZ‑
On 152‐24"3000 , before me, J’ M Vaughn N o t a r y P u b l i c

Nammd'litlaofOftloerteg.." Mme .Notary Plbflc')

personally appeared L o u i s R. Ca l c a no
Name(s)of Simon‘s)

El personally known to me
it proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence

to be the person(e) whose name(s) ls/are
subscribed to the Within instrument and
acknowledged to methat helehelthey executed

LMVAUG-HN the same in his/heflhei-r authorized
cmmwm¥1215341 z capacityfies), and that by his/hethelr

' signature(e) on the instrument the person(s), or
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s)
acted, executed the instrument.

Place NotarySeal Above

OPTIONAL
“roughfire fnfomraflanbelow'rs not requiredby law, It mayprove Vehable topersons relyingon the document

andcouldpreventfiaudulent removalandreatt‘achmenrof this form to anotherdocument.

Descriptionof Attached Docume
Title or Type of Document.

Document Date: 13- 12” 8000 Numberof Pages: 3

Signer(s) Other Than NamedAbove:

augment o f U s e R e s t r i c t i o n s

Capacityfies} Claimed by Signer
Signer‘s Name: Fu;hr [H |Grimm:l- l l

Individual Topofthumb Be
CorporateOfficer ‐ Tltle(s):
Partner- E l Limited D General
Attomey in Fact
Trustee
Guardian or Conservator ' .
Other: c h a i r , M o n t e r e y C o u n t y Board o f S u p e r t n s q r e

Sign'ens Representing: Mon te - r eg C o u n t - y .

9 1997NfifinfllNotaryAssociation - 9350DeSotoAve,HO.Box2402 - Gumflh .CA 91313-2402 Prod.ND.5907 Reorder:CHImi l -Fm16008766327

ENDOF DOCUMENT
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m m  G e m s s r c fi
c a m 01? m m , same or mm

W e ? no. 33-376

[ B E PM 1m. 2993;

11.49. # 113-1311‐23 and 25
. m i n t s ms rac ismu

In the rather of the appl icat ion of.

mm mm PARKS. (PC-4929)

f a r a‘ Use l i m i t in accordance with T i t l e 20 (Zoning) Chapter 20.96 (Use P e r m i t s )
o f the innt‘szey CbixhtyGoes, to‘ allow additions to exist ing park fac i l i t i es and a
regional park genera}. d e v e l q ' r e i t p l a n , located o n mulch. o f { s c a n s Secs W e .
imteref C i t y Iahds trachea-£1. 5:1 Criminal 1 m m » ramming an and northerly of
State» Kidney ca, and camon r e g u l a r l y f o r t e a r i n g befc‘ra t h e Elam'airig m a n i a c .
on Octdaer 26, 1983.7

Said Planning Occlusion, having considered the. ayplicaaim and t h e evil-Kerrie
presented re l a t i ng t h e r e t o ,

m a m a ' s ;  o r  m

1. That t h e establishmnt, m i n t e m r m , a ) : o p e r a t i m cf t h e we
or bu i l d i ng appl ied Fur w i l l m l : nnzlm‘ me circumstance off
the p a r t i c u l a r case, bedetrimental a: r e a l m , s a f e t ,, peace,
mrals,ccxnfcrt,am1 qemra-l welfare of parsons res id ing or
m r k i n g in t h e reightorhcnd of such pmposed use or be det r i ‑
mental or i n j u r i o u s to m a r c h } ; and inpmvenem‘s in t h e
mighborhapd or to the general “(3156273 of t h e Gamay.

2! That th is use p e m i t and gem-rel develome‘m: p l a n a re e o n f ‘i iStC‘flt
w i th t h e i ‘hnte’rey Oau'nty Parks m m . Five“ Year a p i t a l
quxam as app-med by the Board of Slxpewisots.

3. That the use p e n n i t a n d general demiopnent p lan is consistent
w i t h the m a u v e } .flaunt“; -+zhc.m i N i n , m n i m x l a r t y (X i jec t iw
51.3andPoLicy51.31regardingeocr-macaelfmfficicncy

4. met t h e use permi t and m e a l develhmmt p l a n are camels‑
t e n t with the Meters“! C‘nunty Parks Begum-ant m u s i c Plan
apprcved by t h e { h a n d of Supemisors Seated»: 15 1981‑

‘5. 115t- the use petfid t a n d g e m } . a m a l g a m plan are ( I n s i s ‑
t m t with t h e m u t i n y (acidity Genera]. Parks P o l i c y Statement:
as a p p - M in p r i n c i p l e by the m i n d of fiupenrisors
Eaisruary'3, 1931.

6 . fi n d ; a n e m r o m e n t e l impact r e m i t f o r che rag-ma Sec-a H a c ‑
r e a t i c n A r e a was prepared and sudsaumtiy certified hr t h e
Mamba; mtfiliSQiQh on w i t h i n , 19113.

7. t h a t the stad iums atached‘ Marsha adrift-55 and apply those
cavirmmcntal h ipac t mm caverns and mitigaticms p e r t i n e n t
m this application.‑

m’EISIm
w a s , i t is the derisicm cfi'said- Picturing admission t h a t said agi l icat icm for a
I l se Bandit- he granted as sham o’h die-attached sketch, s i b j é C t t o the follcming
cmdi t imis:

l. a s a i l s repor t : s h a l l be subuitt 'ei f o r each pnfipcsrr’! we m i t t e n : w i t h any
required bui lding or grading pannit. may: remrt shall be ammvac‘! b} t h e
Director of Building Inspection and d i rec ts : of Blaming as to c m t e x t ,
im iM ihg l i m i t a t i g n s and m a d e t i w t s , Ear f m r fl a ‘ c d m , grading, [saving
and drainage‑

2 . An emsicm control p lan be damned f o r each gn iased use prior r-‘n ob ta in ing
a“gradingar fi e l d i n g permit, subject tn t h e apprmral of t h e Direztcr cf Mix-Jim

Ton.
3 . W fl l m a fi f fl l s l a p e s m m u3 1 0 M t a I t o v e r t 1 c a D m ‐ fl a t t s r

and shall be rmreg‘aaatedprint ta winter r a i n s , added: to the w a v e } . of t h e
Director of Bui ldingInspectInspect ihn,

4 .  M tnahdng lo tdem logmntbedes igmdmnmmer thnmdruzep remum
ofedds tfihgc imparm lhyus ingdcaparm lesbxdscapst ‘ kap 'afl t i ng ln t , locating
pafl t i nq areas were the l e a s t simulated- v e g a t a t i m cedars, and l o c a t i n g t i e
p a r k i r g a r e ' a s w ‘ r e d u c e t r e m a d f fi a r q r a d i n g m l c m t i m m d l a y m t c f ‑
p a r k m g a r e a s c e a r p m v e d h y fl e m m c f P M m m g

s. t h a t a pzngram t o . eradicate a m ; thist les in t h e c e m e n t areas te'estahltabed



1,1.

12.
1.3.

131.‑

ASA»
17“.

18.
19 i

211
a.

23 r

23.a

25“.‑

267.‑

27.

2th

2.9.‑an,
31.

fl'hatbui lding'si t ihgandcoretxurtmnhoa in smhanannarastonfimmize
reliever or alfetation of oak t rees , subj e s t to“- the approval of t h e Director.
o f  P l a n n i n g
Detazyactivitiesplamed f o r k e a t i o n w fi e r o a k treeebafiesimedand ideabad
to nfihimize s o t ] . cooperation and root- disturbance
Nbadditional i r r igat ion g n u beallwed wltbin: the dr ip line's} of o a k trees
to p r a w n t fungal infection.‑
m e g a £62: t h e m 1 o f thistles ‘ m ( m o m m a areas, tender s t o r y v e g e t a t i m
in; fine oak woodland areas s h a l l be lief-l. intact waver “possible.
cuisine of the developed recreat ion and raceoriented.facilities in the w r i t ,
t r eecs tchmmate ro f tne iandscape duel}; bcmmtainedhypzotect im
{reservation and W a n t of existim M o i r a ] . areas
Thatthe locat ion, t y p e , and design at f a m e ;and quardraile visible from
flighty 68 be approveaby the alrecmrof P l a r m i n g such approva l shall
m i c e : the promoted strum-idea intact: or. carnatihili'ty M i d i t h e l e n i ‑
scape and o t t e r w e a s e l t e n e t - e s ;
That the anplcye‘e nursing w i t s n o t be located wi th in the E igh ty 68 Offic ia l
Plan hints.
Them t h e stalwart r a i s i n g units s i te ; h e int imated including l a n a i - c l e a r i n g
nterehg‘tropriate; w i t h p e r t i m fl e r r e g a r d - " m i d w i - screenmg fi r m i - I i g l m y 68,
(aisles fi d s t ’ i n g o r - airtime a u g m e n t s ) , m d o c m a r e a e o f t h e p a d c , s i b j e c t
mfi ieappmva lo f flzen i r ec t c ro fmann inq
That a detailed acoustical analysis be patter-zed by a.q u a l i fi e d consul tant
a x m i : with t h e fi r s t na jor sin-eels! event, such as an q m d o o r m e t r e

to" t i e Di rec t ) : of mvimnn-ental H e a l t h T h e Fim‘n’iitxs.of the report final},
be“ m a t t e d to the Board of Supervisors for-ministration p r i o r to the
next union“: special event.
Thatalbernateaoceesthmgh Fort Qrd b e p m v i d e d m c m j m m t i j l t h a n y ‘
l a rge m i n i s e n t .
That theoperation of wavy cons t ruc t ion quifi ’fia i f . be limited in daylight“ k n i t s ‑
“flatthePaflcsDaparmen-ntprovide or c a u s e m h e p m d d e d f o r u s e u t n a j o r
events, relocatable directional. signs to aid unthrists in determining that
direction (Sal i 'ms‘ a. z-tnterey) ( i n t o n i g h t " 511
That to cater“ c r u s t s be scheduled s o m e r s e t wttn large" special. m a s .
T1at special events ‘22‘3'3“2.5.3. in t h e p a r k on { h e stare “Lay he sciec‘h‘iifii. to
stagger. s t a r t and fi n i s h times‑
That; locatim of spec ific impaired avast-1m.- pa rk ing areas be designated.
That the Parks m p a r t n m t consider siwtt le service within the park area for.
large specia l Events
Tha t a l l Septic diapoaal fac i l i t i es be approved by thc t ‘ o ‘ n te rey Comic-y Director
o f m m ] . Health and t h a t permits f o r such f a c i l i t i e s , b e obtained p r i o r
to instailation
That any landscaping handled as:p a r t of a n y pm‘jtnct armoriced by t h i s parent
thatwill-hevieible f r m fl l g i m y 6 8 b c s u h j e c t t o t h a a p p r u v a l o f t h e n i x e c o a r
on Planning
That large grass areas be M to reduce t i r e f a n melding, subject. to. a
n a m t m m saleable to heaporoved byt h e Salutes Rural Fire District. A
wgycfauchschedx i le slmllhcpmvmedtnti‘cel‘irectorofmarming
m a n u a l s ; sha l l beestaiillsfrd around canrpgmurd arena, atdaject to the
approval o f the“ Sa l inas Rural F i re D i s t r i c t .
mat a fi r e pro tec t ion p lan t o r l a r g e special events Mail ing- but mt l i m i m
to plans for t i r e lame, access, era-site amuse-us, andwater coming. s t a l l to
am by the, Salinas Rizal. E i r e fo is tno t .
Portable. fi r e ext inguishersE m i l be providei in sue-h: locations that may be
required by the Salinas Rizal F i r e District machining t h e map stare , food:
service b l i l d i t h , auto garages, and m i e n booties, subject t o t h e
ml of the Salinas h i r e ] . F i r e diatribe.
limit 11 firdxydrante be installed mosisterr t mm Figure 2 8 in the cert ified
EIR'. 22‘s sci-adult t o r installation s h a l l ; beestabliahei and: wpprcvedby the
m m m m e i s m m m c i m m c a r m m m m s v w
E m m e t t : P l a n
t h a t passivesolar hearts; recharges be answered in a l l s tnr tu rea.
m o a n e n e r g y c m s e z v a t i o r p l a n b eM m t o zeduc‘eor weenie n igh:
l igh t ing my} m e t h o d bu i ld ing test ing;
m t sits: grading o r c l e a r i n g pr ior to. m a t u r a t i o nb e minimized i t possible,
(me t : proposed sic-natures (mph?- with ‘T‘t i e 24‘, s h e r r y conservation Stewards for
wit‐Residential benchmarks. subject to the ml of the director of building
mspectim



33.- Tied: parks historianM i x - ” i ; m ‐ s i c e research Ledeterufina wiether the
retains-of t h e residesee/ferm.90:11:1ch1. s tash} r he i r whom-her“! and protected,
ébe reocmetnxzted, or be razed. me Materiw.’5 t h i o n s h a l l be
m i t t e d t n - t h eh i s t o r i c a l Ginnissimforraeonnerflatim to theBoardof
=Supervieors for fi na l Board action.

34. If buried cultural resources are.mooverefi flux-5m,» pro-jest emetruetien
(unusual concentrations” of bones rocks, s'he11,.fire-darkemed soi l ; Elia-ts,
e t c .), a l lwork should be halted m am 20n e t ;rs of. t he find and t h e m a t e y
do'unt‘y F l am ing Deparbxex‘t, and the Resignel Office oE the“ Celifemia std-meo‑
logical s i t e Survey smul‘d be ne t i fied so the t suitable mitigatim mediates

, can be fomfla ‘ t ed and inplereneed, ‘ .
35. That a res-cumof 24 a r e l l event days (1,390 » 5,000 preteens) be allowed per

36 , That a “cerium of 6 medium everxt days (5,00fl- ~ 112,600 persons} be allowed per:
calendar, year.

37. That a m o m of_ 5 l a r g e event (33:35 {12,060 - 2&000 persons)» be allowed per.
calendary'ear;

_ appl icat ionarehereby almired‑
39; m t fl e d e a i g n o f a l l e t r wmm s b e a p pm v e d b y t h emm cmm s am n a t p u b u c

h e a r i n g
40. met a l l exterior l i t r e -mg visible o f f ‐ s i t e sha l l be mmbtmsive, hemonious’ with

theioealare‘a, e n d ems t n i c t e d o r l c c a t e d e o r h e t o n l y t h e i n t e rmd a r e a i s
il luminated "andd f f ~ s i t e g l a r e is fu l l - y c o n t r o l l e d , The Idcation, t y p e , a z fi
ve t tege of such l i q h t jm Mist he apfgrrmred by t h e Di rector of Plannhxq.

i l l . That pro jec ts . v i s i b l e f rdm Highway 68be landscaped, inclmiinq landscal'pturing
and farming were apprbpriahe‘, and t h a t a p l an Ear such firpro'irenmfi be appruve‘d
by “the Director of F laming.

42. m e t a l l required landscaped areas and/or fences shall he eent inwusly reintahed
by the applidant and a l l p lan t trot-anal sha l l he cominmus ly remained in a
l i t ter-free med‐free, h ea l t h y, growing“ confi i :1m.

43. me the Planning D i r ec to r is authorized to review and approve the , relocation of
previcmaiy amarcved fac i l i t i es w i th in t he “park,

PASSEfi AND ADOPTED. t h i s 26th day- ,or dcmberf 1983 by the fo l low ing v o t e ;

Ayes}: Hendr ick , 311:sz mi l l . Riddle, "varies
Them. None

Absent: Ca i lo t to , Calcagno, Glen, Reeves

copy of th is decision was nailed to the applicant onTweeter 4,1983.
IF ANYONE {WISHES m APHTAL THIS iii-“13.1111, All M’l‘I’AL IGRH MET Bi: (XX/Pliml N21?
5 m mTOTHE am OF THE m a m ) OFQ M I S O R S P IPESWET! THE APP'BPPIA'I'E F I L M
FEE CNOF. M rare/aah 14,1983.



h _ w , h , _ _ . 6 _ m _ m % 9 , . . , n . w w z _ z z i m‘ 5.5

x ,_20.5365.

5mm

“<Z:0<._

J.a

hzusxzma._r§5fizz?”.

,

. ATiarw|¥1.a§l!l|,..a

.,.v.|l.,:|wrmx&»lx..iviii-Phi...

,($6.31.A.....i..l/.(......

fl4.41.Mi....

\..\(xx:x

.a





LAGfiflA SEGA RECREATION fiREA
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

11
12
13
14
18

21
22
23

c o n f o r m i n g u s e p e x m i t t e é j

N a t u r e  s a n c fi u a r y
P i s t q l & : R i fl e hangs
S p e c i a l event areas
Campgrounds
Fami ly day u s e p i é n i c areas
R a n g e r residencs and m a i n t e n é n g e f A G i l i t y
Gzoup d a y nee p i é n i c a r e a s
nake.day use
Racing team garage
P a d d o g fi area
fi i g o C a r t s

fl ‐exh ib i t areas
¢ + a u t o m c b i l e f e l a t ed e v e n t s

L a g u n a SEca r a c e t r a c k
O f fi ‐R q a d ' Ve h i q l e area

i n . t h e L a g u n a seca G e n e r a l Development PLan)
Emplayee h q u s i n g
S p o r t s - a n d Range f a c i l i t i e s ( fi d d i t i o m é l déve ldpmeflfi)
campground.multi~9urgase bui ld ing
Campgrounfi_st@re
Yo u t h H b & t e l f a c i l i t y
Autd xesfififatifin garage
Piaza complex
~~exhibit~areas
-~fo@d b q o t h s (pezmafient )
h~amphitheatre
~~restaurant
A u t c museam



19
20

Paddock res t r oom
Paddoc k f o o d s e r v i c e f a c i l i t y

NOTE: The Eo l l ew i ng items a r e n o t shewn i n fl i v i d u a l l y
on t h e Gene r a l Development P l a n “ T h i s l i s t i n ‑
e l u d e s , b u t i s n o t l im i t e d to t p a r k and red r eaw
t i o n . suppo r t e l emen t s considened essen t ia l t o
t h e e x i s t i n g and preposed p r o j e c t s i d e n t i fi e d
on t h e Gene r a l Deve lbpment P l a n

Water e‐ Domes t iC , Nonfldomestic, F i r e pro tec t ion ,
E l e c t r i c a l Sys tem ‑
Te lephone
Waste Disposal + ‐ a s a l l o w e d b y l o c a l - a n d s t a t e

‘Health_requirements
Road s y s t em
P a r k i n g Area ‐‐ paved , non‐paved
Re s t r oOms ‐ ‐ p e rma n e n t , p o r t a b l e , Chemidal
Water s t o r a g e systems‑
F e n c i n g
S i g n s ~ - . d i r e c t i e n a l , inflormationalr a d v e r t i s i n g
N i g h t L i g h t i n qmn ‐ s e c u r i t y ) SpeCia l e v e n t r e l a t ed
Br idges & Walkways ‐ ‐ p e d e s t r i a n , veh icu la r
S p e c t a t o r S e a t i n g ‐ ‐ pe rmanen t , p o r t a b l e
T x a i l s ‐ ‐ fi r e , p edes t r i a n , m o t o r c y c l e , b i c y c l e
Ch i lds p l a y eQuipment
A c t i Ve s p o r t s a r e a e ‐ ' h o r s e s h o e s , vo l l eyba l l , b a s e e

b a l l , s o c c e r , e t c .
Landscape & e ros i dn cen t r a l

Rec r ea t i o n program_and even t requirements
S t a g e s
Te n t S h e l t e r s , Cancp ye
Saund Systems,
L i g h t i n g SyS tems
E t c .



LAGUNA SEGA RECREATION AREA
GENERAL DEVELGPMENT PLAN

PRDGRAM:NARRATIVE
The a r i g i n a l L a g u n a Seca Env i ronmen ta l I m p a c t R e p o r t w a s

cert ifiied-by t h e Boa ra o f ’ S u p e r v i e o r s on‘January 7 , 1 9 7 5 , F o r
three y e e r s progress was made to f u i fi i l the apgrévad development
p l a n . However, i n J u l y e f 1978 the Bearé c f S fi g e r v i s b r s accep ‑
t ed a rechmendat inn b y - t fi e F a r k s - C owm i g g i é n t o make t h e Parks
fiepar tment become self-suepcrting:and.dete:mined t h a t t he o r i g i n a l
E I R adequa te l y afldréfised se l e c t e d addit ional development at L a g u n a
S e c a , R t - t h e same t ime , t h e Board else ageepted f e u r hasie s t r a r
t e g i e s f e r a c h i e v i fi g t h i s goa i a They are a S ' f o l l o w s :

ls Prov ifi ing activitiee and ptcgrams supported by fee s
2 . Enacuragihg cemmunity involvement in Va lun tee r i sm
3 , C e n s t r u c t i n g revenue generat ing f a c i l i t i e s
4 . i n v o l v i n g p r i v a t e=enfie r p fi§e f Wfiere Qémpatible, i n

p r o v i d i n g necessary a n d r e l a t e d s e t V i c e s
Signifiieant_pregzess.has:been maae in a l l these areas and

t h e Parks DEpa r tmen t w i l l d e n t i n u e to=adhere t o theSe o b j e c t i v e s
i n t h e f u t u r e ‘ I t i s t h e e r a r tmen t ‘ S 'ma j e r ob j e c t i v e t o p r o ‑
v i de fihe peop l e ofi_Mpn te rey C o u n t y a v a r i e t y a f a s fi h e t i g , Q a t u r a l
and scen105qualit ies and at the same time regu l a t e s u c h a c t i e
v i t i e s s e t h a t “ m a j o r ‘ c o h s i fi e r a t i o n ‘ i S QiVen‘tO p r e VE fi t i n g en~
v i r onmen ta l damage, L a g u n a . S e c a is designed te-accommodate
t e a r e a fi i g n a i a c t i v i t i e s t h a t cannc t e f f é c t i v e l y bé -p l enned fOE
a t .e the r ' ex i s t i ng -Coun ty f a c i l i t i e s ‘

. f n cur e f f o r t s t a s t r i v e towafid t h e goaL Q i c cmp l e t e s e l f ‑
S u p p e r t , t h e Pa r k s .Depa r tmen t _Caused a second envirenmental im r
pacfi r e g o r t t o . b e p r e p a r e d wfiieh.w0uld aadress severaL add i t i ona l
=devaiopmeat p r e j EG t s t h a t ; w e r e n e t t h e f e d nnfie r t h e p r e v i o u s
E I R or shewazon t h e g e n e t a l developmemt p l a n , On’Mareh 3 0 , 1983 ,
t h e Planhihg 'CQmmiss ian e e r t i fi é d . t h e ascend 313 as adeqfia t e in
iden t i f y ing~geten t ia l envirenmental impacts t ha t might be g a u g e d

b y these add i t i one l f a é i l i fi i SSe
M a j e r p r e j e c t s new under censifieration tha t - fiave b e e n ad s

areSSefi in t he rmos t r e c e n t , E z R ind lude~the f o i l e w i n g f
L» .$Pfirts and R a n g e f a c i l i t y imgxqvements
2. Campground mait iwpurpose b u i l d i n g
3‘ Campground s t o r e
<4“ Yo u t h H e s t é l b u i l d i n g



‘ A u t o r e s t O r a t i o n garage
, Plaza complex
. Permanent.conceseion o p e r a t e d booths

8 . Paddock food s e r v i c e Bu i l d i ng
9. .Auto museum

l G . Paddeck restroom
l l . Employee hous ing a r e a
I t i s c lear t h a t e a c h . o f t h e s e p r o j e c t s s a t i s fi e s one o r

more o f t h e f o u r b a s i c s t r a t e g i e s mentioned a b o v e ;
L a g u n a Seca-is un ique_ ih t h e m o h t e r e y Cou n t y P a r k s system

in t h a t t h e recrea t ion a r e a had an established s p e c t a t o r o r i e n t e d
a d t i v i t y l o n g be f o r e i t became a r e g i o n a l p a r k . U p t o t h e p o i n t
o f i t s acqu is i t i on , M o n t e r e y County de ve l o ped and o p e r a t e d m o s t
.Qf t h e da y use_parks w i t h l i t t l e or no ac t i ve recreat ional p r o ‑
grams avei lab le to t h e p a r k p a t r o n s ; This-was t h e ph i l oSOphy
p r i o r t o 1978 and served the Coun t y w e l l _ u n t i l the passage o f
P r o p o s i t i o n 1 3 . F o r t u n a t e l y , M o n t e r e y County-Parks had a n edge
aga i nS t .P ropos l t i on 13 i n . t h e t t he mechanics f o r p a r k user f e e s
W e r e a l ready w e l l e s t a fi l i s h ed f o r v a r i o u s - pa r k r e l a t e d . s e r v i c e s ;

(NOW ' t fi a t ‘ t h e cu r ren t fi s c a l s i t ua t i on - i s upon u s , i t i s
e v e n more i m g o r t a n t t h a t s p e c i fi c a l l y d e s i g n a t e d a c t i v e rec rea t ion
a r ea s , such a s Laguna Seca, S a n Lorenzo a n d Lake S a n An t o n i o ,
b e developed i n t o h i g h use r e d r e a t i o n areas i n a n e f f o r t t o
f u l fi l l t h e g o a l o f s e l f e s u p p o r t a n d t h e r e b y eliminate t h e d e f
pendancy upon Co u n t y Genera l Fund monies to ope ra t e the p a r k system.

ELAfifiiNG CLASSIFICATIONS
In aCCOrdance wi th t h e a p p r o v e d County -?ark P o l i c y S t a t e m e n t ,

t h e stafif o i t h e M o n t e r e y C o u n t y ' P a r k s Department h a s u t i l i Z e d
a c lass ifi ice t iOn system at Laguna Sega afid has- iden t ifieé t w o
ma j o r p l a n n i n g c l a s s i fi c a t i o nSu

A ) _Natural Areas- ‐ Na t u r a l areas a r e areas o f o u t s t a n d i n g
n a t u r a l S i g n i fi c a fl c e where t h e m a j o r va lues a re v i s fi a l ,
eco log i ca l , and z o o l e g i c a l l ’The Q u r p o s e o f a na tu ra l
area i s p r i m a r i l y t h e p r e s e r v a t i o n o f i t s ou t s t aee i ng
na tu ra l f e a t u r e s , Development should be . fo r t he p a r ‐ f

p o s e . o f mak ing t h e - a r e a s ava i lab le f o r p u b l i c enjoyment
‘ i n . a manner c o ne i e t e n t w i t h t h e p r e s e r v a t i o n o f t h e
na t u r a l v a l u e s , U s e s f o r which developments may be
made a r e g a s s i v e r e c r e a t i o n a l a c t i v i t i e s suoh a s



I f .

c a m p i n g , p i c n i c k i n g ; S i g h t s e e i n g ; n a t u r e s t u d y , h ik in9¢
a n d r i d i n g ; S u c h d e v e l c p m e n t s h a l l i n v e l v e n o m a j o r
m o a i fi i g a t i o n s c f the.1an&, f o r e s t s , a t waters : i n t r o ~
d fi c t i o n o f - a r t i fi c i a l features t h a t a r e ppimaxi ly 'o f
urban character s h a l l nat ibe alldwefiu 11_p1anaiflq f a r
d e v e l o p m e n t s a n d usesrwhich a r e c o m p a t i b l e , t h e i n «
t a n s i t y o f - t h e use, a s cnmgared t o fi h e . a b i l i t y - o f t h e
n a t u r a l a r e a ta accommsdate peogleswi thaut , impair inq
i t a - q u a l i b y, ; 5 h a l l ' b e c a fi e f u l l y studied t a a v b i d ever‑
u s e .
Q a c r e a c l c n , A r e a s - A . recrea t ion area s h g u l d b e com~
p.arat.ive1y l a r g e a n d :may conta in f e a t u r e s f r o m .some of
a l l the-other p a r k _ u n i t a l a s s i fi q a t i o n s . These may
i n c l u d e s p e c i a i r e c r e a t i o n , fi a c i i i § i e s s a c h . a $ averw
n i g h fi camping; range f a c i l i t i e s , a u t o , b i c y c l e a n d
m c t o r c y c l e racétréckst é a n e r t s t f e s t i v a L s , anfi w a t e r ‑
Griented u s e s , These facilities-cater to spec ia l
z g ¢ r e a t 1 q n i n t é r e s t q r c u p s i o m r a r e g u l a r bas is t ‘Rec~
r e a t i o n areas tend t o b e h i g h . v i s i t a t i o n , m u l t i p l e
u s e _ a r e a s f

a...
b.
c.
a.
fi  .

f.
g.
.h.
i.

m a t u r e . 2 r e s e r v e 3 2 9 1
S p o r t s and Range f a c i l i t i e s
campgrpunds
D a y u s e areas
.Mu111‐use l a k e a fi a a
RaceWay and.pad60ck'area
O i f ‐ t o a d veh.ic1e area
Plaza a fi e a
g p e c i a l event areas

B r i e f statement of_ a? 9 5 9 : Th is a x e a is b e i n g ma in "
tainéd as a u n i q u a env1ronnental hab1ta t co-ex1st ing w i t h
a h I g h l y intens1ve recrea t ion a r e a 1 T h i s a r e a ccu1é be
prefiéxVéd and i n t e n p r e t e d fifirough-d isp lays, ghotcgraphic
v i s t a . p o i n t s ~ a fi d ; s a i f - g u i d e é nature wa1k51
Exist ing‘Devélogment:
a, water oxiented-nature a r e a



b . V e g e t a t i v e a n d w i l d l i f e h a b i t a t
c . N a t u r e t r a i l s
d . P a r k i n g areas
e h w a t e r w e l l and pumping s t a t i o n l o c a t i o n

.3. AProposed Development;
as ADevelop-photographic‘Viewpoints
b . A é d i t i o n a l s e l f ‐ g u i d e d nature t ra i l s
c , Deve lop m i n o r i n t e r p r e fi i v e program a n d displaySa

S p o r t s a n d Range F a c i l i t i e s ~
1 . B r i e f statement o f u:pose:_ T h i s - f a c i l i t y p r o v i d e s a

c o n t r o l l e d afea f o r t h e iodividual and/or oompeti t ive
shoo t ing segment o f t h e g e n e r a l p u b l i c fi A d d i t i O n a l l y ,
t h e f a c i l i t y p r o v i d e s p r o g r a m s on.firearm s a f e t y as
w e l l a s c lasses o n i n s t r u c t i o n a n d use o f fi r e a r m s ,
These fac i l i t iesacan a l s o be r e s e r v e d f o r s p e c i fi c
s h o o t i n g events.

2‘ Existins D e v e i o m e n t r
a . P u b l i c P i s t o l a n d R i fl e R a n g e

b. L a w enforoement r a n g e Cnon ‐publ ic j
c ,  M u l t i - p u r p o s e - b u i l d i n g
d . S m a l l w a t e r p b n d
e . P a r k i n g f a c i l i t i e s

3. P r o p o s e d Dewelogment:
a. 9 o t e n t i a l concession operat ion
by EXPanded s h o o t i n g pregram
c . A d d i t i o n a l S p o r t s a c t i v i t i e s i n v i c i n i t y o f r a n g e

Camggrounde
1 . B r i e f s t a t e m é n t o f ~ p u r p€ s e : A p p r d x i m a t e l y - I G Q s i t e s

available f o r eamp ing u s e p l u s overflow areas d e s i g n a t e d
on demanfl. Provides a needed recreat iona l o u t l e t f o r
l o c a l and non~resident campers .

2; E x i s t i n g Development:
a i 8 7 camping s i t e s w i t h e l e c t r i c a l hookups
h . 1&5 g e n e r a l camping s i t e s
0 . P r e ‐d e s i g n a t e d overflow c a M p i n g a r e a s
d. .Resfizooms w i t h ShOWers

3.  g;oposed,$evelogment:
a ‘ G x o u p mul t iepurpose b u i l d i n g



b i  c a m p g r o u h d ' s t o r e
c . Yo fi t h _ H o s t e l b u i l a i n g

Daz lgse.Areas
lg Deve lopmen t -o f two l a r g e

day use barbeque fi a c i l i t i e s accomquating u p . t 9 1 , 9 0 0
perSQngzeaCh on a reservat ion 'baSisw A156 p t c v i d e s
f o r fami l y day u s e p i c n i c a reas .

2» E t n.-fifivfiiof. mt
a . Two l a r g e . B B s t h e l t e r s
b j fi a r k i n g areas
c . ' Ac t i ve - tu r fed p l a y areas

‘  a ?  : R e s t r o g m s
3; Pxogdsea-Develogment:

a . Exganded a c t i v e - g l a y areas
M u l t i ‐U E Q L a k e A t e a
1; Briefi_stqtgment Of uraqse: The .1ake prav iées .a potenw

tiai far a Variéty o f r e c r e a t i q n a 1 _ u s e s asSociated v i fi h
g e n e r a l d a y use recreat ion a a ' w e l l as a d d i n g an aesthet ic
‘Value ta t h e p a r k .

2 . E x i s t i n g D e v e l o p m e n t :
a ; p a d d l e Bdafié

' ,osed,Deve10;ment ;
a . F i s h i n g p r fi g r a m
b . MDde i b o a t i n g
p a EXpanded b o a t i n g ‘ p r o g r a m

ananadfiOCK_Aré&
1, Brigf.st@t§menfifiqu uqusea ?ha r a g e w a y ‘ a n fi paddock

area sérvés as the fiucledssduring'the mafiar r a g i n g
a c t i v i t i e s a n d g r a v i fi e s f o r o n ‐ q o i n g race r e i a t e i ac ‑
t i v i t i e s . d u r i n g ncnvfac inq ' t imes, i t f u r t fi é r s e r V Q s

as a p a r k i n g area f e r s g e c i a l events an& a temgorary
t r a c k , a r e a f a r Severa l q o é c a r t - a n a a u fi a e c r o s s e Ve n t s
he ld d u r i n g the y e a r ,
E x i s t i n f ‘ a e v a l o y , x
‘afl . R a c e - t e a n g a r a g e fi a c i i i t i e s
.b¢ R a g i n g séhool
Ca Min i canéém r a c i n g c a r s
d- fiu l t i fpurgose ‘bu i ia inq fér 'Wéfi & w i l d r a é i n q ae‑

t i v i t i e s
Q » . fi i 5 9 l a y areas



3. Proposed.Development;
a ‘ Second auto r e s t a r a t i o n _ g a r a g e f a c i l i t y
ba concession f o o d S e r v i c e b u i l d i n g
c .  R e s t r o o m
d, Padfiock area improvements

Off-Roaa Vehicle A r e a
1” Brief statement o f _ ‘ u r osea~ T h i s area prOVifles f o r

BMX and o f f ‐ r o a d m o t o r c y c l e “racing- programs, 321: w i l l
a l s o be-opened to t h e genera l pub i i c d u r i n g s p e c i fi c
t imes.

2. fixistin ,DeVe1ofment:
a .  R e s t r o o m
b , .BMK t r a c k f o r c o m p e t i t i v e r a c i n g programs
o . M o t o r c y c l e t r ack f o r c o m p e t i t i v e r a c i n g p r o g r a m s
d . P u b l i c d a y use-BMX and m o t o c r o s s t r a c k s
e .Parking f a c i l i t i e s
5 . ‘Ma jo r r a c e p a r k i n g area

3 .  P r o p o s e d  D e v e l o p m e n t ;
a. Smal l r a c i n g paddock
b. Multi~purpose b u i l d i n g
e . Wate r s t o r a g e tank .

P l a z a . A r e a .
1. Brief statement of o u t p o s e ; The p l a z a complex w i l l

create a feetiVe atoosphere b y u s i n g m a j o r l a n d e c a p i n g
and arch i tec tu ra l matexials as Wel l as allowance fOK
s p e c i a l t y concesSiOn b o o t h s , S p e c t a t o r . s e a t i n g a n d
r e h a b i l i t a t i o n o f e x i s t i n g s t ruc tu rese

2 ;  B x i s t i n g _ D e v e l O D m e n t :
6 . T i m i n g and s c o r i n g b u i l d i n g
bf SCRAMP maintenance b u i l d i n g
c . S p e c t a t o r s e a t i n g
d. Pedestr ian B r i d g e

3. P r o p o s e d Development t
a . P l a ta complex
bi .Expanded S p e c t a t o r s e a t i n g areas
c t Rehab i l i t a t i on o f e x i s t i n g S t ruc tu res
a. C o n c e s s i o n b o o t h s and~display areas
e, A u t o museum



BrigfvStaiémentzqfapurposeéA”Basically; s p e C i a l event
aiéas-are s a t aside félficébmmcdate f u t u r e a c t i V i t i e s
a f a s p e c i a l even t natfire. The s i t e w i l l be re tu rned
t o i t s mOs t n a t u r a1 . s t a t e a f t e r cemp le t i on o f e v e n t ‑
Ex is t ig .Defiel0fm€fit?
a! -N0ne,>preséntly used as an dVé r fldw ‘ pa rE area_£ox

a c t i v i t i e s u t i l i z i n g e x i s t i n g devéloged p a r k f a c i l i fi
t i e s ”
‘ 9 e d = § e v e l o g e n t :

a j As requ i red tc p rov i de f e r sgec ia l event n e e d s s u c h
»as dutdbdr Cancef té and f e s t i v a l s



* Terms listed are generalizations
and represent best known intentions
of proposers as stated.

Length

Monthly Management
Advances
Annual Management
Fee
Allowed Expense
Deposit

Financial Controls
Incentive Fee

Sponsorship Sales
Ticket Surcharge

Capital Investment

Outside Agencies
Additional Fees
Additional Events
Firm Use of Facility

A & DConsulting,
LLC

3 years w/3-year
opfion

$286,000w/ 2%CPI
Monthly
$0

$150,000
Direct County

Shared
20%

Shared
N/A
N/A

County

Shared
$0

Review & Present
LSRA BusinessOnly

Laguna Seca Sports Car Racing
Management, LLC Association of Monterey

Peninsula
3years w/3-year option 20years w/5-year

assessments
$270,000w/MC CPI N/A

Monthly
$0 $5,700,000

$475,000 monthly
$150,000 $1,500,000 monthly

County Reimbursed (average)
Management Owned Management Owned

Management Management Exclusive
20% 20%

(N.0.I. calculation
excludes all County costs,

vehicles, ITD,etc.)
Shared Management Exclusive__
N/A 5%
N/A Management Exclusive

County County Paidwith
_ Management Approval

Shared County Responsible
$108,000 Exec Oversight $0

Review& Present
LSRA BusinessOnly

Management Directed
Management Directed





‐ ‐ _ _ ‑

From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 2:33 PM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Re: ManagementAgreement Redline

Hansen call me on my cell if need to discuss

Thanks

Dewayne

Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 14,2019, at 1:28 PM, Hansen Reed ‐ wrote:

Thanks. I am reviewing now andwill get back to you shortly.

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker 8: Reed,P.C.
215W. Franklin Street, 5th Floor
Mama-my, (Z. \ 9394“
Phone: (831) 6-10 H i l l )

<image001.jpg>
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm ofWalker & Reed, P.C. This
message and the attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected
by attorney-client privilege or the attorney work product privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of
this message and the attached documents, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or other use of this information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in
error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 11:45AM
To: John Narigi
Cc: Hansen Ree
Subject: RE: Management Agreement Redline



Attached for your review amarkup version, the major change is in indemnification language,where our
Risk Manager isadamant the reciprocal languagewe now include is a far asthe County can recommend,
be advised it differs from the language you your markup.

From:John Narigi *
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 1 11:33AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Hansen Reed
Subject: Re: Management Agreement Re me

E
Thanks Dwayne, plz discusswith Hansenany items not in agreement. .

Sent from my iPhone.
Jvn

On Nov 14, 2019, at 11:15AM,Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
wrote:

All,

Les isworking on edits that we are able to accept a few will need changes which Les
shall provide. I am attaching the Insurance requirement exhibit for your information.

Thanks,

Dewayne

From:JohnNa r i g i ‐7
Sent:Wednesday, November 13,2019 : PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Hansen Reed

Cc: John Narigi
Subject: FW: Management greement Redline
Importance: High

Dwayne,
Below at the start of this email train in chronological order are the sections
where suggested revisionswere made to the agreement by me and my
attorney. They are all redlined in the contract for quick review by you and Ies.
l have afew additions listed below:

0 Recital-4th paragraph, LRSA S/B LSRA.
o 1.8-5/8 A&D Narigi Consulting LLC
a 4.14- 5/8 regardingauto promotion,WeaterhTech Raceway Laguna Seca.

2



The above changes and Hansen‘s listed below should be it for suggested
revisions. As discussed with both you and Hansen, he is available and able to
negotiate on my behalf tomorrow if some of our revisions are not agreeable.
I f I am needed please feel free to call and I will seat myself in the room so I can
excuse self to get on a call if needed. Dwayne I want this item to make your
agenda, sodon‘t hesitate to call. I can send an email agreeing to the contract and
do a hard sign first thing Friday morning. If another electronic way of doing let
me know, I will make it work.

Regardingoffice space as an FYI, I had two permeant companies who had long
term service agreements with the hotel, audio visual and valet parking. The
contractsspecified office space and the particular equipment that would be
provided to contractor at no charge. Can my firm not be treated in the same
way? Hansen did add language regardingthe requirement for me to pay rent but
would be reimbursed by the county, thought my experience at the hotel might
be beneficial to the discussion.

Language also added regarding indemnifying and liability concerns I have
voiced.

Exhibit A regarding compensation, revised I will answer under separate email
this evening aswell.

Thank you both for you assistance.

Hansen info, email above, p h o n e , ‑
M.  ce l l . ‐
jvn

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 3:38 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: Management Agreement Redline
Importance: High

John,

Attached is my redline. My comments are asfollows: (Note: Iwill only comment on
bigger issues.)

1.2 I added language for prior written approval.

1.11 I added language regardinga POS system that would be an Allowed Expense, if
one does not exist.



1.16 I added language that the partieswill try and put together a list of Historical
Uses.

1.24 I believe the intent was to be health insurance, not other liability insurance.

2.3 I added language that you get 3 months Management FeeAdvance.

2.4 I added language to add a 3 year option.

3.1 I added language that allows for increase in the pay at the approval of the
County Rep. Also, I tried to clarify that you only reimburse the county if there is excess
management fee advance paid (meaning the County paid you more than you paid out)

4.3 and other section: I tried to make sure that these are preapprovedAllowed
Expenses.

4.7.1 I limited it to as needed for signage.

4.10 et seq. I added language to make it more flexible. Also any expenses in the
Operational Plan shall be Allowed Expenses.

4.14 If rent is included, then the Fee Advance needs to be increased.You cant come
out of pocket for ayear then get reimbursed. I added language that your use of a car is
always promotion of the LSRA and the Raceway.

5.2 Made $150Ik payment to beon1/3/2020. Ialso added language that approval
and disapproval shall be reasonable and be based upon past approved expenses and
practices.

7.1 It is impossible to get all revenue to the county that day. The next business day
seems reasonable.

7.2 Has the Assessor ever deemed a possessory interest and charged taxes. You
should not have to pay the taxes.

7.3 l increased to 48 hours.

7.4 I added language regarding a POSsystem.

9. I added language that County reimbursesyou for expenses.

10. MY COMMENT ISWHY WOULDYOU TAKE ON MASSIVE RISK AND AGREE TO
INDEMNIFYTHE COUNTY AND THE USGOVERNMENTWHEN THE COUNTY KEEPSALL OF
THE FUNDSAND ALLYOU GET ISA RELATIVELYSMALL MANAGEMENT FEE. THIS IS
EFFECTIVELY LIKE REQUIRINGYOU ASTHE GM OFTHE PLAZA HOTEL INDEMNIFYINGTHE
ACTUAL OWNERS OFTHE HOTEL. WHYWOULD ANYONE ACTUALLY DOTHIS. NOONE
WOULD DOTHIS. I THINK IT IS0K TO HAVEA CARVE OUT FORGROSS NEGLIGENCEAND
WILLFUL MISCONDUCT.

10.1 Imade the County indemnify you except for your gross negligence and willful
misconduct.



10.2 I addedwhere you indemnify the County for your gross negligence and willful
misconduct.

10.3 Cost of liability insurance should be anAllowed Expense, not a Management
Fee.

10.4 I added E&O insurance and it beinganAllowed Expense.

12.1 I think it is important that the language actually be asit was written. We do
not want you to be deemed to have a possessory interest and subject to tax. Seems if
the public has the right to access then you are better off.

14.1 I added 3 monthsmanagement fee if terminated without cause. This is like a
severance.

15.8 I added myself to the notice provisions.

15.12 I added language about the financial obligations continuing even if there is a
delay or stoppage.

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
Fax: (831) 649-6805

<image001.jpg>

<Laguna Seca Management agreement.docx>





From: John Narigi %
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 :
To: Hansen Reed;Girard, Leslie J.x5365
Cc: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. i]
All looks good, mtgwith Dwayne at 11 to I believe sign. Will wait for final version to print,

jvn

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 $323 AM " ‑
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLJ@co.m0nterey.ca.us>
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi _
Subject: RE: LSRA ManagementAgreement

Les,

Attached isan updated redline.

I have included language regardinga 3 year option. I also added language to a few other paragraphs the needed to be
updated if the option was to be exercised.

The option language is if the Agreement has not been terminated and Contractor is not in default, then it can be
expercised. I put a date that the option needs to be exercised by of 9/1/2023.

I should be in my office all day today if my redline needs to be discussed.

Regards,

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,P.C.
215 W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649‐1100Ffiflmms

WALKER-l‐REED
A T T O R N E Y S A T L A W R C .

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm ofWalker & Reed, P.C. This message and the
attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected by attorney-client privilege or the

1



attorney work product privilege. if you are not the intended recipient of this message and the attached documents, you
are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of this information is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this message in error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.

From:Girard, LeslieJ. x5365 <GirardLl co.montere .ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14 2019 8:27 PM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi ‑
Subject: Re: LSRA Management Agreement

Thank you Hansen. I believe your edits will be acceptable, but will confer with Dewayne in the morning. Did
you see the track changes version which had some comments? For example, there was no option included in
Article 2,which I think you intended to include.

Here is the track changes version.

Leslie J. Girard
County Counsel
County of Monterey
168W. AIisaI St.
Salinas, CA93901
(831) 755-5365

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Thursday, November 14,2019 3:17 PM
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi ‑
Subject: LSRA Management Agreement

(CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. ]
Les,

Thanks for the redline and acceptance of most of my changes.

l have reviewed and accepted almost all of the County’s changes.

i would, however, like the indemnification language to be identical if we are having identical indemnifications. l have
added that language.

Please let me know if this is acceptable. I understand that the version that was sent to John and l was the version
submitted aspart of the meeting packet.

Thanks

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker 8: Reed,P.C.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649-1100



Fax: (831) 649-6805

WALKER+REED
A T T O R N E E Y S A T L A W R C .

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, PC. This message and the
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





‐ ‐ _ _ _
From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 10:36 AM
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365
Cc: Woods, Dewayne x5309; John Narigi
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement

Importance: High

[CA'UTIONzThis email originated from outside of the County. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
andjknow the c'6ntent issafe.3]
Les,

Thanks for the catch on the Indemnification language.

The option language you added is fine from a legal perspective. The County Representativeapproving the option is a
business term that I recommendJohn agree to, which I am sure hewill.

I did not review the numbers in Exhibit A, and presume they are the numbers that Dewayne and John agreed to.

Asfar as I am concerned this version is ready to be executed.

Regards,

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,RC.
215W. FranklmStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649‐1100
Fax: i831i 649-6805

WALKER+REED
A T T O R N E Y S A T L A W R C .

1 [

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firmof Walker & Reed, PC. This message and the
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

From:Girard, LeslieJ. x5365 <GirardLl@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 15 2019 9:29 AM
To: HansenR e e d ‑
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x 309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi _
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement



Thanks Hansen. I have accepted your editswith the exception of the option language. We suggest that the County
Representative needs to approve the extension. I have enclosed suggested language in this version. I have also made
two minor edits to the indemnification language,which you will see in this version.

Iwill be out of the office most of the rest of the day, perhaps John can discuss any last minute issues directly with
Dewayne.

Leslie J. Girard
County Counsel
County of Monterey
168W. Alisal Street, 3rdFloor
Salinas, CA 93901
(831) 755-5365
(831) 755-5283 (fax)
irardl' comontere .ca.us

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 8:23 AM
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLI@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi ‑
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement

[CAUTIQNETruman emanatedfrom outside of the County Bo not click links or open attachments unlessyou recogn'lte the sender
andknowt h eédnt'en't‘is eaiefl
Les,

Attached isan updated redline.

I have included language regardinga 3 year option. I also added language to a few other paragraphs the needed to be
updated if the option was to beexercised.

The option language is if the Agreementhas not been terminated and Contractor is not in default, then it can be
expercised. I put a date that the option needs to be exercised by of 9/1/2023.

I should be in myoffice all day today if my redline needs to be discussed.

Regards,

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,P.C.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649-1100
1‘JX: (831) 649‐6805

WALKER+REED
A T T G R fi E T S I A W P J K



CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, P.C. This message and the
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

From:Girard, LeslieJ.x5365 <GirardU co.montere .ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 8:27 PM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Nar i g i ‑
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
168W. Alisal St.
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

I have reviewed and accepted almost all of the County's changes.

Iwould, however, like the indemnification language to be identical if we are having identical indemnifications. I have
added that language.

Please let me know if this is acceptable. i understand that the version that was sent to John and l was the version
submitted aspart of the meeting packet.

Thanks

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,P.C.
215 W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor



Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649‐1100
Fax: (831) 649-6805

WALKER+REED
A T T O R N E Y S A T L A W ‘ E C .

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firmof Walker & Reed, PC. This message and the
attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected by attorney-client privilege or the
attorney work product priviIege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message and the attached documents, you
are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of this information is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this message in error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 10:55 AM
To: Hansen Reed; GirardLl@co.monterey.ca.us; John Narigi
Subject: Insurance Exhibit
Attachments: 105-AIisaICpr2_20191115_115510.pdf

Please see the attached a few changes to insurance language, please advise if ok.

From: donotreply@co-monterey-ca-us.maiI.protection.outlook.com <donotreply@co-monterey-ca‑
us.mail.protection.outlook.com>
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 11:55AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Scanned image from 105‐Alisaler2

[CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize
the sender and know the content issafe. ]

Reply to: 105-AIisaler2<donotreply@co-monterey-ca-us.mail.protection.outl00k.com>
Device Name: 105-Alisaler2
Device Model: MX-M6570
Location: Not Set

File Format: PDF (Medium)
Resolution: 200dpi x 200dpi

Attached file is scanned image in PDF format.
Use Acrobat(R)Reader(R) or Adobe(R)Reader(R) of Adobe Systems Incorporated to view the document.
Adobe(R)Reader(R) can be downloaded from the following URL:
Adobe, the Adobe logo,Acrobat, the Adobe PDF logo, and Readerare registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe
Systems Incorporated in the United States and other countries.

http://www.adobe.com/



Exhibit C ‐ Insurance

Required Coverage. Without in any way limitingContractor’s liability pursuant to the
“indemnification” section of this Agreement Contractor mustmaintain in force, during the full
te1m of the Agicement, insurance ' ' in the following
amounts and coverages:

.; i

a) Commercial General Liability/Motorsport Liability insuranceMammal‐includes the
followingminimum limits each coverage;

LCGL/MotorsportLiabilih 7 7 MinimumReg1111-153LT ‑
Bodily lnimy and P1ope1’ty DamageLiability $ 25,000,000

Damage to 1ented p1emise(Fi1e legal) i 33300,000 7 _

1Medical Expense ' “ M ‐ A7” $5,000 ’ "
General Aggregate None ‑

. Products- CompletedOperations 3325,000,000 7 _____ _l

Personal Advertising Injury 3;25,000,000 ‑

b) Liquor Liability Insurancewith limits no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence;

c) Participant Legal Liability Insurancewith limits not less than $25,000,000 each
occurrence;

(1) CommercialAuto Liability Insurancewith limits no less than $25,000,000 each occurrence,
“combined single limit” for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, includingOwned, Non‑
owed, and Hiredauto coverage, asapplicable

e) Worker’s Compensation, in Statutory amounts, with Employers“ Liability Limits not less
than $1,000,000 each accident, injury, or illness;

1) Crime insurance with limits of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence covering claims
involvingemployee dishonesty, forgery or alteration, theft, disappearance and destruction,
and computer fraud.

Additional Insured

Commercial General Liability or Motorsport Liability Insurance,Liquor Liability policies must
be endorsed to provide:

1. County of Monterev. its agents. officers. directors and emplovees asAdditional Insured}
with respect to liability arisingout of ongoing and completed operations.



ii. Suchpolicies will befirst dollarandprimary insurance to any other insurance available to
the additional insureds, with respect to any claims arising out of this Agreement, and that
insurance applies separate to each insuredagainst whomclaim is made or suit is brought.

iii. If Contractor carries or maintains anUmbrella/Excess Liability policy to provide
additional coverage or if the contract requires higher limits than what the Contractor
carries in the primary policies, County shall beadded asadditional insured, on such
policies.

i. The policy shall provide “drop-down” blanket coverage where underlying
primary insurance coverage limits are insufficient or exhausted.

iv. Coverage must waive subrogation asrespects to the additional insureds.

v. Contractor shall provide to County a certificate of insurance evidencing the required
coverages no later than thirty (30) days prior to the event. UponCounty’s request,
Contractor shall provide full copies of all applicable insurancepolicies.

vi. The Certificate of insuranceand policy should list any deductibles or selt' insured
retentions Contractors might be responsible to pay or reimburse.

vii. General liability and UmbrellaPoliciesneed to beplacedwith at least £1.A‐ rated carrier
by A.M. Best.

Subcontractors

If Contractor will use any subcontractor(s) to provide Services, Contractor shall require and be
responsible for the subcontractor(s) to provide all necessary insurance and to name the County of
Monterey, its Officers, Agents, and Employees asadditional insureds.

i. Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s primary andumbrella/excess policies
will befirst dollar policies to respond to any claim or lawsuit.

ii. Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s primary andumbrella/excess policies
shall not subrogate or seek recovery against County’s primary or excess
policies.





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 12:30 PM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc: Girard, Leslie J.x5365; John Narigi
Subject: Re: Insurance Exhibit

Depends on the nature of their business

Sent from my iPhone

>On Nov 15, 2019, at 11:35 AM, Hansen Reed <hreed@wa|kerandreed.com> wrote:
>
> [CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 1
>
> Dewayne,
>
> It looks fine to me. Are subcontractors required to provide the same insurance asthe Contractor (i.e. $25millon)? This
seems excessive.
>
> Hansen
>
> Hansen P. Reed, Esq.
> Walker & Reed, P.C.
>215 W. Franklin Street, 5th Floor
> Monterey, CA93940
> Phone: (831) 649-1100
> Fax: (831) 649-6805

>
>
> CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, P.C. This message and the
attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected by attorney-client privilege or
the attorney work product privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message and the attached documents,
you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of this information isstrictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.
>

> From: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
>Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 10:55AM
> ; Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLI@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi

> Subject: Insurance Exhibit
>
> Please see the attached a few changes to insurance language, please advise if ok.
>



> From: donotreply@co-monterey-ca-us.mai|.protection.outlook.com <donotreply@co-monterey-ca‑
us.mail.protection.outlook.com>
>Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 11:55AM
>To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
>Subject: Scanned image from 105-AIisaler2
>
> [CAUTIONz This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. ]
>
> Reply to: 105-Alisaler2<donotreply@co-monterey-ca-us.mail.protection.outlook.com>
>Device Name: 105-Alisaler2
> Device Model: MX-M6570
> Location: Not Set
>
> File Format: PDF (Medium)
> Resolution: 200dpi x 200dpi
>
>Attached file isscanned image in PDF format.
> UseAcrobat(R)Reader(R) or Adobe(R)Reader(R) of Adobe Systems Incorporated to view the document.
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



From: “Woods, Dewaynex5309“ < w o o d s m a fi g r m fl w g § § w v
Date: November 15.2019 at 1:55:57 PMP?"
To: "McKee.Charles J" <McKeeCj@cg~.m@ter_evfius>, "Hardgrave. Sarah x78?~.‘
<HMEraveSflDco.monterev.ca.us>
Cc: "Adams.Marv L." <AdamsMLg®comontereyca.us>, "Moore,Susan x7664“
<Mqrgg§@co.monterev.ca.us>, "Johnson, Ebbyx5113"
<ionnsone@co.monterev.ca.us>
Subject: RE:Additional info request re: Laguna Seca

Sackground

In February 2017 antemporary agreementwas executed betweenSCRAMPand Count»;
of Monterey for management services of Laguna Seca.This agreement was entered as

.‑



a gap agreement at the time while the County continued negotiationswith Friends for
a concessionaire agreement. This agreement had a 60 no cause clause in the event a
concessionaire agreement was reached, however the termwithout cancelationwas for
three years. Since a concessionaire agreement did not occur the County chose to run
the contract through its term, and clearly had advised SCRAMP Leadership this was an
evaluation period. SCRAMP Leadership has beenwell aware of the contract end date of
December 31, 2019 and has been providedmultiple communications on areas of
concern and required areas for business improvements.SCRAMP Leadership has been
advising the County for over a year that it intended to submit a proposal for a new
contract and County at each and every point has askedwhen one would be
forthcoming. Given the contract was less than three months from termination and
SCRAMP Leadership had not presented a proposal the County issued a Press Release
on October 15,2019 advising all interested parties, including the current manager, to
submit a proposal by October 31, 2019. Since the current manager had not provided
any assurances of any specific timeline a proposalwould be provided the County had
to act quickly to insure that the businesswould have management in place after
December 31, 2019.

The County received three proposals for management agreements, one resubmittal for
a concession agreement (from 2016) and one email. The Concession and email
submittals were not responsive.The three submittals for management agreements
were reviewed and due diligence completed. A&D Narigi Consulting, LLCwas
determined to bethe best and most closely alignedwith the County vision and terms
required. Negations ensuedwhich resulted in an agreement for the 505 consideration
on11/19/19 inopen session.

Hope this helps,

Dewayne

From: McKee, CharlesJ <McKeeCJ co.montere .ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 11:26AM
To: Hardgrave,Sarah x7876 <HardgraveS@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Adams, Mary L.<AdamsML@co.monterey.ca.us>; Moore, Susan x7664
<MooreS@co.monterey.ca.us>; Johnson, Ebby x5113 <‘ohnsone co.montere .ca.us>;

2



Wood’s, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Re:Additional info request re: Laguna Seca

Hi Sarah,

Wedid not issue a formal RFP, because one was not required, RFPs are more restricted
and RFPs take substantial time. Foryour other questions, l will ask Dewayne to
respond.

CharlesJ. McKee

County Administrative Officer

MONTEREYCOUNTY

(831) 755-5115

sent via iphone

On Nov 15,2019, at 9:36 AM, Hardgrave,Sarah x7876
<Hardgrave5@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

HiCharles,

Supervisor Adams is receiving extensive correspondence about the
Laguna Seca item and we are trying to gain a better understanding of
the process. Can you send usthe RFP for the Laguna Seca Management
contract, information about how it was advertised and/or how
proposalswere solicited, aswell asthe criteria used for the selection?
That information isnot clear in the Board agenda materials.

Thanks,

Sarah Hardgrave

Policy Analyst



Office of Supervisor Mary L. Adams

County of Monterey, District 5

Phone: 831‐647-7755

Connect with Mary

. on Facebook

. via E-Newsletter

<image001.png>

Pleaseconsider theenvironment before printing this e-mail.





_ _ _ ‑

From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 1:56 PM
To: McKee, Charles J;Hardgrave, Sarah x7876
Cc: Adams, Mary L.; Moore, Susan x7664; Johnson, Ebby x5113
Subject: RE: Additional info request re: Laguna Seca

Background

in February 2017 an temporary agreement was executed between SCRAMPand County of Monterey for management
services of Laguna Seca.This agreement was entered asa gap agreement at the time while the County continued
negotiationswith Friends for aconcessionaire agreement. This agreement had a 60 no cause clause in the event a
concessionaire agreement was reached, however the term without cancelationwas for three years. Since a
concessionaire agreement did not occur the County chose to run the contract through its term, and clearly had advised
SCRAMP Leadership this was an evaluation period. SCRAMP Leadership has beenwell aware of the contract end date of
December 31, 2019 and has been provided multiple communications on areas of concern and required areas for
business improvements.SCRAMP Leadership has beenadvising the County for over a year that it intended to submit a
proposal for a new contract and County at each and every point has askedwhen one would beforthcoming. Given the
contract was less than three months from termination and SCRAMP Leadership had not presented a proposal the
County issued a Press Releaseon October 15,2019 advising all interested parties, including the current manager, to
submit a proposal by October 31, 2019. Since the current manager had not provided any assurances of any specific
timeline a proposalwould be provided the County had to act quickly to insure that the businesswould have
management in place after December 31, 2019.

The County received three proposals for management agreements, one resubmittal for a concession agreement (from
2016) and one email. The Concession and email submittals were not responsive.The three submittals for management
agreements were reviewed and due diligence completed. A&D Narigi Consulting, LLCwas determined to be the best and
most closely alignedwith the County vision and terms required. Negations ensued which resulted in an agreement for
the B05consideration on 11/19/19 in open session.

Hope this helps,

Dewayne

From: McKee, CharlesJ <McKeeCJ@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 11:26AM
To: Hardgrave,Sarah x7876 <HardgraveS@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Adams, Mary L.<AdamsML@co.monterey.ca.us>; Moore,Susan x7664 <MooreS@co.monterey.ca.us>; Johnson,
Ebby x5113 <johnsone@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Re:Additional info request re: Laguna Seca

Hi Sarah,



We did not issue a formal RFP, because one was not required, RFPs are more restricted and RFPs take substantial time.
For your other questions, I will ask Dewayne to respond.

Charles J. McKee
County Administrative Officer
MONTEREY COUNTY
(831) 755-5115
sent via iphone

On Nov 15,2019, at 9:36 AM, Hardgrave,Sarah x7876 <HardgraveS@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

Hi Charles,

Supervisor Adams is receivingextensive correspondence about the Laguna Seca item and we are trying
to gain a better understandingof the process. Can you send usthe RFP for the Laguna Seca
Management contract, information about how it was advertised and/or how proposals were solicited, as
well asthe criteria used for the selection? That information is not clear in the Board agenda materials.

Thanks,

Sarah Hardgrave
Policy Analyst
Office of Supervisor Mary L. Adams
County of Monterey, District 5
Phone: 831-647-7755

Connect with Mary
- on Facebook
- via E-Newsletter

<image001.png>
Pleaseconsider theenvironment before printingthis e-mail.





‐‑
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 2:00 PM
To: Adams, Mary L.; Phillips, John M. x5022; Alejo, Luis; Parker, Jane; ‘Lopez, Christopher M.

x5729'
Subject: Background on history and process for your information: SCRAMP

Dear Board,

Background

In February 2017 an temporary agreement was executed betweenSCRAMP and County of Monterey for management
services of Laguna Seca.This agreement was entered as a gap agreement at the time while the County continued
negotiationswith Friends for a concessionaire agreement. This agreement had a60 no cause clause in the event a
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
business improvements.SCRAMP Leadership has been advising the County for over ayear that it intended to submit a
proposal for a new contract and County at each and every point has asked when one would be forthcoming. Given the
contract was less than three months from termination and SCRAMP Leadership had not presented a proposal the
County issued a Press Release on October 15,2019 advising all interested parties, including the current manager, to
submit a proposal by October 31, 2019. Since the current manager had not provided any assurances of any specific
timeline aproposal would beprovided the County had to act quickly to insure that the businesswould have
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
the 305 consideration on 11/19/19 in open session.

Hope this helps,

Dewayne



.-.“



_ _ _ ‐ _ _ _ _
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 5:04 PM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com
Subject: LSRA Presentation

Mr. McGrane,

The County has scheduled for Board consideration a recommendationon future management,we would like to offer
your firm anallocation of 5 minutes to present.

Please advise if you are interested in presenting.

Thanks

DewayneWoods

Sent from my iPhone





L ‐ _ _
From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 5:06 PM
To: McKee, Charles J
Subject: Fwd: LSRA Presentation

Sent from my iPhone

Begin fonNarded message:

From:woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us
Date: November 15,2019 at 5:04:53 PMPST
To:
Subject: LSRA Presentation

Mr. Narigi,

The County has scheduled for Board consideration a recommendation on future management,we
would like to offer your firm an allocation of 5 minutes to present.

Pleaseadvise if you are interested in presenting.

Thanks

DewayneWoods

Sent from my iPhone

Sent from my iPhone





From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 6:12 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: LSRA Presentation

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe. ]

Dwayne,

Yes l will say a few words, do you believe a power point would be beneficial? Would think for that much time verbal
would bethe nest way to go?
Comments please,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 15,2019 5:05 PM
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
Sent: Saturday, November 16, 2019 6:58 AM
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365; Hansen Reed
Cc: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement

w
Thank you all for your time and effort to wrap this agreement up, much appreciated.

jvn

From:Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 15 2019 4:11PM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; JohnN a r i g i _
Subject: RE: LSRA ManagementAgreement

You too.

Leslie J. Girard
County Counsel
County of Monterey
168W. Alisal Street, 3rdFloor
Salinas,CA 93901
(831) 755-5365
(831)755-5283 (fax)
girardlifalcomonterev.ca.us

From: Hansen Reed *
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 4:
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <Girarle@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi _
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement

Les,

Happy to help to get this over the line.

Have a great weekend.

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker 8: Reed,RC.
215 W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940



Phone: (81.1) 649‐1100
Fax: ( M I ; m o r e ” ;

WALKER+REED
A T T O R N H Y S A T L A W F J L ' .

CONFlDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, P.C. This message and the
attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected by attorney-client privilege or the
attorney work product privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message and the attached documents, you
are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of this information is strictly prohibited. if you
have received this message in error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.

From:Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLl@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 3:59 PM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi ‑
Subject: RE: LSRAManagement Agreement

Thanks Hansen, I have been out of the office but see that John has executed the agreement.

Thanks again for your help and edits.

Les

Leslie J. Girard
County Counsel
County of Monterey
168W. Alisal Street, 3rdFloor
Salinas, CA 93901
(831) 755-5365
(831)755-5283 (fax)
irardl' co.montere .ca.us

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 10:36AM
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLJ co.montere .ca.us>
Cc:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; JohnN a r i g i _
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement
Importance: High

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. 00 not click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. 1
Les,

Thanks for the catch on the Indemnification language.

The option language you added isfine from a legal perspective. The County Representative approving the option is a
business term that l recommend John agree to, which l am sure hewill.

I did not review the numbers in Exhibit A, and presume they are the numbers that Dewayne and John agreed to.

2



Asfar as I am concerned this version is ready to be executed.

Regards,

Hansen

Hansen P. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,PC.
215 W. Franklin Street, 5th Floor
Monterey, CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649‐1100
Fax: i831! 649-6805

WALKER+REED
A T T Q R N E Y S  L A W

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, P C . This message and the
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

From: Girard, LeslieJ.x5365 <GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 9:29 AM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi _
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement

Thanks Hansen. I have accepted your edits with the exception of the option language. We suggest that the County
Representative needs to approve the extension. I have enclosed suggested language in this version. I have also made
two minor edits to the indemnification language,which you will see in this version.

I will be out of the office most of the rest of the day, perhaps John can discuss any last minute issues directly with
Dewayne.

Leslie J. Girard
County Counsel
County of Monterey
168 W. Alisal Street, 3rd Floor
Salinas, CA 93901
(831) 755‐5365
(831) 755-5283 (fax)
girardlj@co.monterey.ca.us

Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 8: 3 AM
TozGirard, Les l ie ] . x5365 <GirardU co.montere .ca.us>
Cc: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi ‑
Subject: RE: LSRA Management Agreement



[CAUTIONJThtsern‘ail originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafe.~]
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
Fax: (831) 04” 681,15

WALKER+REED
R T T O K N I ‘ . L A W P L .

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firmof Walker & Reed, PC. This message and the
attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected by attorney-client privilege or the
attorney work product privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message and the attached documents, you
are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of this informationISstrictly prohibited. If you
have received this message in error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.

From: Girard, LeslieJ.x5365 <GirardU co.montere .ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14,2019 8:27 PM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc: Woods, Dewayne x <woo s co.mon ere .ca.us>;John Narigi _
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

From: Hansen Reedm
Sent: Thursday, Novem er 14, 1 :17 P
To: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc:Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi _
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

I would, however, like the indemnification language to be identical if we are having identical indemnifications. l have
added that language.

Please let me know if this isacceptable. I understand that the version that was sent to John and I was the version
submitted aspart of the meeting packet.

Thanks

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker 8: Reed,P.C.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5thFloor.
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649‐1100
Fax: i831i 649-6805

WALKER+REED
A T T fi R N E Y S A T L A ‘ F r ' E t ‘

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firmof Walker & Reed, P.C. This message and the
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





From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sunday, November 17, 2019 6:39 PM
Adams, Mary L.
Re: LSRA Management Proposals

Supervisor,

in general during a contractor selection process the BOS is not included in due diligence
on comparing the submittals from proposers, County Staff conduct this due diligence on
multiple contract proposals all year long. Staff then negotiate with the preliminary
selected vendor and if able to agree on contract terms and language then it is brought
forward for Board consideration. When it isbrought forward this iswhen the B05 is
provided information regardingwhy this vendor was determined bystaff to bethe best
choice for this particular service and the B05makes final determination asto enter into
contract or provide additional direction.

l have attached a comparative analysis which will accompany the report when the
contract is brought fon/vard for your review.To be specific of the three SCRAMP’s
proposal was extremely non-competitive in length, financial terms and risk assumption
by the County. More closely aligned were Laguna Seca Management, LLC (Pook) and
A&D Narigi Consulting, with Pook having less favorable financial terms and extremely
top heavy on executive staff, which was unclear asto what that level of executive staff
would cost.

It came down to the due diligence between Narigi and Pook asto whom had the best
ability to maneuver in our local market to run the business and some background checks
revealed that Pook although heavily involved in the MotorSports industry that
engagement was not contemporary and industry feeback was not asfavorable aswe
should require.



I am available to meet and discuss in greater detail the information gathered on
background at your request.

Thanks,

Dewayne
From:Adams, Mary L.<AdamsML@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 8:02 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Re: LSRA Management Proposals

Dewayne, I amgoing to need more information for the blow back Iwill receive when
you make this announcement. Please tell me the process that took place that led you to
maki g ”tis decision. Clearly it did not include BOS input. Thank you.

Mary L.Adams,
Fifth District Supervisor
County of Monterey

On Nov 13,2019, at 2:48 PM,Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.m0nterey.ca.us>
wrote:

Dear Board,

Please be aware Iwill be emailing Friends,SCRAMP and Laguna Seca
Management, LLC (Pook) and advising that at this point we are in
negotiatingwith another proposer and if that negotiation is
unsuccessful then the County will further consider their proposal.

Thanks,

Dewayne
<Comparative Analysis.docx>



‐ ‐ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Carroll, Maia
Sent: Monday, November 18, 2019 4:38 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309; McKee, Charles J;Girard, Leslie J.x5365
Subject: The Herald - LSRA article
Attachments: County board to consider pact with new Laguna Seca manager ‐ Monterey Herald.pdf

FYI



11/18/2019 County board to consider pact with new Laguna Seca manager‐Monterey Herald

NEWS > LOCAL NEWS

County board to consider pact
with new Laguna Seca manager
Board to consider pact with new manager

Sunday, July 14, 2019. (Vern Fisher ‐ Monterey Herald)

By JIM JOHNSON |jjohnson@montereyherald.com | Monterey Herald
PUBLISHED: November 18, 2019 at 3:06 pm | UPDATED: November 18, 2019 at
3:13 pm



11/18/2019 County board to consider pactwith new Laguna Seca manager‐Monterey Herald

The proposed deal recommended by county staff would run from Jan. 1 to Dec.
31, 2023, with an option for a three-year extension through the end of 2026. It
would pay the newmanagement firm, led by former local hotelier John Narigi
and incorporated lastmonth, a monthly advance of $286,000 with an annual 2
percent cost of living increase, and a 20-percent incentive fee based on the
county-owned facility’s annual net operating income.

According to a staff report, Narigi’s firm emerged from a review of three
management proposals, including one submitted by longtime raceway operator
the Sports Car RacingAssociation of the Monterey Peninsula and another
submitted by a firm dubbed Laguna Seca Management and led by Southern
California auto racing veteran Chris Pook.

A fourth proposal from the Friends of Laguna Seca group was considered non‑
responsive because it envisioned a concessionaire agreement.

ADVERTISING

httpszllwww.montereyherald.coml2019/11/18/county-board-to-consider‐pact‐with-new-Iaguna-seca‐manager/ 2/7



11/18/2019 County board to consider pact with new Laguna Seca manager‐Monterey Herald

All three management proposals are slated to be presented to the county board
on Tuesday ahead of its consideration of the staff-recommended Narigi
management deal. The board is also set to consider a report on county
“achievements” at Laguna Seca, including spending $5.5 million on capital
improvements and $1.3 million on new equipment while generating about $12
million in sponsorship, vendor and hospitality revenue, as well as leading the
way on the return of both the Indy Car and Porsche Rennsport events.

Lastmonth, the county issued an open call for Laguna Seca management
proposals, avoiding the formal request for proposals process. It was pointed out
that the current three-year management contract with SCRAMPwas due to
expire at the end of the year and the organization had not yet submitted its
proposal. The county set an Oct. 31 deadline for all proposals, and received the
four responses.

A "due diligence” evaluation of the proposalswas conducted by the County
Administrative Office, according to a staff report.Assistant County
Administrative Officer DewayneWoods, who leads the county’s oversight of
Laguna Seca, said he and staff conducted the review and made the
recommendation.

Narigi’s firm stood out, according to the staff report, because it “brought a
unique local business/hospitality approach to the forefront and is most closely
alignedwith the timeline and business model required for future success.”

Narigi retired in May as Monterey Plaza Hotel and Spa vice president and
general manager after more than 25 years there, and was reportedly planning
to move to Washington. He is a founder and past chair of the Coalition of
Peninsula Businesses and past chair of the Monterey County Hospitality
Association.

.In,,a-oreoar.ed.statement,Narigisaidhe,wasj‘honoredf'.that. his,firm.i,s._,b.einqw

https:llwww.montereyherald.coml2019/11/18/county-board-to‐consider-pact-with-new-laguna-seca-manager/ 3/7



11/18/2019 County board to consider pactwith new Laguna Seca manager‐Monterey Herald

“I look foward to the opportunity to work with the Monterey County team, the
owners of the property who have been outstanding to work with during the
proposal process,” he said. “My years of management experience in the
hospitality industry have preparedme to institute sound business practices that
will ensure the financial health of this valuable asset.”

Narigi added that if his firmwins the contract his focus will be to “maximize use
of the raceway and recreational assets in partnershipwith the county and
community organizations.”

The report also compared the terms of the three management proposals. It
argued that the SCRAMP proposalwould result in higher overall costs to the
county and that it sought “exclusive rights and autonomy which suggest more of
a concessionaire-type agreementwith the county holding all financial risk and
investment riskwithout commensurate guarantee of return,” while excluding all
county costs from the facility’s net operating income.And it pointed out that the
Laguna Seca Management/Peck proposal called for an additional $108,000
annual executive oversight fee.

In its proposal, SCRAMP sought a 20-year management deal with five-year
reviews and a $475,000 monthly management fee, as well as a 20-percent
management incentive fee. Ironically, SCRAMP's proposal also included a
clause calling for the county not to solicit management proposals from other
parties for 60 days after submission of the proposed term sheet and to inform
SCRAMP inwriting if it was approachedwith any such proposal.

SCRAMP representatives led by Chief ExecutiveOfficer Tim McGrane have
expressed surprise at the sudden notice that a proposed agreement had been
struck with another management firm. They promised to continue making their
case to remain at Laguna Seca, noting the organization has been involvedwith
its operation since it was built in 1957.

Laguna Seca Management proposed a three-year management deal with an
option for a three-year extension, and a $270,000 monthly management
advancewith annual cost of living increases.

Supervisor LuisAlejo said he believed the county had “provided a fair
opportunity” for anyone to submit management proposals. ButAlejo also
acknowledged “ongoing serious concerns” about SCRAMP’s performance
including management, expenditures, debt, loss of staff and its “poor



11/18/2019 County board to consider pactwith new Laguna Seca manager‐Monterey Herald

“Let’s be clear, many of the good changes at Laguna Seca in the last two to
three years have occurred because of the county’s direction, insistence and
oversight, not because of SCRAMP’s current leadership," he said. “I look
forward to reviewing the (staff recommended) proposal and continuing to have
a strong organization of our dedicated volunteers. Some serious changes need
to be made at this time butwe are deeply committed to seeing Laguna Seca
raceway continue as aworld-renowned race track and destination.”

Supervisor Mary Adams, whose district includes Laguna Seca, said whether or
not she agrees with the outcome of Tuesday’s board vote she is concerned
about the way the county handled communication with SCRAMP and the
volunteers. She said both have a “revered position” in the community and
should have been given more consideration.

Narigi’s proposal promised to re-hirewith existing benefits all current
management and associates at the facility, though Woods said there would
simply be a “re-hiring process.” There is some questionwhether McGrane
would be re-hired, at least as CEO, because Narigi plans to serve as general
manager.

The proposal also indicated the firm intends to "work closely with the numerous
proud volunteers and service organizations” associatedwith Laguna Seca,
“continuing their highly regarded reputation of providing sen/ices for races and
other events."

“Most of all," Narigi said in a statement, “l look forward to the opportunity to
meet andwork with the volunteers, who for the last 62 years have been the
heart and soul of the race track and its operations. Iwill personally work to
rebuild relations and strengthen the bond between myfirm and every
volunteer.”

The county issued a notice last week praising SCRAMP directors and assistant
directors and other volunteers for their dedication to Laguna Seca for more than
60 years while noting that they are “welcome and encouraged to continue their
historical roles and enjoy the racing action as they have for so many years”
even if a management change occurs.

Narigi’s proposal includes no information on any auto racing, executive or
management experts, other than himself, that might be part of his firm and the
Laguna Seca management team. He did promise to appoint an advisory board

m m . . . “ "m m es...-eeN-.|ee -,._A , » A L e a » ,melee..- -.-.e_-.e;-‐,aluheliee .-,e H e ,s e e s , . - ,,~.r..-.--.:.‘.le.‐‐eee. 5 . 4 . - , ,l a eel-l,-e-li-e: a. asre 4L!-9 , 4 5 . . ‐ |.,e m . . . “ a ‑

https://www.montereyherald.com12019/11/1Blcounty-board-to‐consider‐pact‐with-new-Iaguna-seca-manager/ 5/7



11/18/2019 County board to consider pact with new Laguna Seca manager ‐ Monterey Herald

Woods said the county is simply looking for a different approach to
management of the Laguna Seca facility.

The proposal promises an extensive review of the Laguna Seca operation, as
well as business and operations plans for the facility. It sets a goal of increasing
revenue to about $20 million per year with a net operating margin of at least 7‑
10 percent through maximization of track rentals, expanding auto research and
testing use including the electric vehicle industry, and adding events including
those outside racing, among other initiatives.

The Narigi name has been associatedwith the track in the past. Most notably,
Narigi’s late sonAnthony was killed at age 21 on July 22, 2007when his
younger brother Dominick lost control and rolled his SUV on South Boundary
Road as they were leaving the Red Bull U.S.Grand Prixmotorcycle races at
Laguna Seca. Dominick Narigi pleaded no contest to vehicular manslaughter in
the death of his brother.

Care about your community?We do, too.

Sign up for our Morning Report
newsletter

Enter your email

Tags: Newsletter

Jim Johnson
Jim Johnson covers Monterey County government and water
issues for the Monterey Herald.

U FollowJim Johnson @JimJohnson_MCH



11/18/2019 County board to consider pact with new Laguna Seca manager ‐ Monterey Herald

f o r Healthcare
Organizations
By Coverys
COVERYS is!

Today’s healthcare
environment
requires a data‑
driven approach to
improve processes

httpszllwww.montereyherald.com/2019/11/18/county-board-to-consider‐pact‐with‐new-Iaguna-seca-manager/ 7/7





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Chiulos, Nick x5145
Sent: Monday, November 18, 2019 6:00 PM
To: Carroll, Maia; McKee, Charles J;Woods, Dewayne x5309; Girard, Leslie J.x5365
Subject: RE: more media before tomorrow's LSRA item

Maia...thanks, Nick

From: Carroll, Maia <carrollm@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Monday, November 18,2019 5:45 PM
To: McKee,Char les] <McKeeCJ@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Girard,
LeslieJ.x5365 <Girarle@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Chiulos, Nick x5145 <chiulosn@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: more media before tomorrow's LSRA item

This is out fromVoices of the Monterey Bay online magazine and our old friend RoyalCaulkins.
Article suggests supervisors are compromised to vote for the LSRA contract due to other issues.

htt s: voicesofmontere ba .or 2019 11 18 fast‐moves-on-the-racewa

Maia





_ _ _ _ _ _ _ ‑
From: Pablo, Joel x5841
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 8:10 AM
To: 100-BoS Everyone; Girard, Leslie J.x5365; McKee, CharlesJ
Cc: Woods, Dewaynex5309; Quezada, Rocio x6769
Subject: Correspondence: Letter from Concerned Citizens, re: Laguna Seca
Attachments: Laguna Seca Raceway; SCRAMP; Approve contract with ASLD Narigi Consulting LLP;

Squid tunes into the curious race to control the Laguna Seca racetrack. | News l
montereycountyweeklycom; Fast moves on the raceway ‐ Voices of Monterey Bay; Fwd:
County and Narigi article

Good Morning, AM‑

Please see above‐attached correspondence from Concerned Citizens, re Laguna Seca.

Joel G. Pablo
Boardof Supervisors Clerk,Deputy
Clerk of the Board
County of Monterey
168W. Alisal St, 1St Floor
Salinas, CA 93901

Phone: (831) 755-5066
Fax: (831) 755-5888



‐ _ _ _ . ‐ _ _ _ _
From: Dean Fewtrell <DeanFewtreIl@scramp.org>
Sent: Tuesday, November 19,2019 7:48 AM
To: CIerkoftheBoard
Subject: Fwd: County and Narigi article

htt s: voicesofmontere ba .or 2019 11 18 fast-moves‐on‐the-racewa

Dean Fewtrell
Chair, SCRAMP Board of Governors
831-320-3816

This communication is protected Attorney Client Privilege and/orWork Product and is Confidential.



‐ _ ‐ _ _ _ _ _
From: Dean Fewtrell <DeanFewtreII@scramp.org>
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 7:40 AM
To: ClerkoftheBoard
Subject: Fast moves on the raceway ‐ Voices of Monterey Bay‑
Please provide for today's BOS meeting

Fast moves on the raceway ‐ Voices of Monterey Bay

htt s: voicesofmontere ba .or 2019 11 18 fast-moves‐on-the-racewa



- _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Dean FewtreII <DeanFewtreII@scramp.org>
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 7:37 AM
To: CIerkoftheBoard
Subject: Squid tunes into the curious race to control the Laguna Seca racetrack. | News |

montereycountyweekly.com

F
Squid tunes into the curious race to control the Laguna Seca racetrack. I News I montereycountyweeklycom

www.montere count weekl .com blo 5 news blo s uid-tunes‐into-the-curious‐race-to-controI-the‑
lagunaZarticle 81c283d6-0a39-1lea-aldb-03dff344fde6.htm|



_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Gray Law Personal <ggray@ggray|aw.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 7:18 AM
To: ClerkoftheBoard
Subject: Approve contract with A8LD Narigi Consulting LLP

Asa former member of the Board of Education in Carmel, I know how vitally important it is for board members to rely
upon the expertise of staff in deciding complex, and often contentious, issues. Here, your professional staff has carefully
considered the competing proposals for the LSRA management contract, and haswholeheartedly recommended
selection of A&D Narigi Consulting LLPasthe very best group to move this treasured asset into its next phase. I urge the
Board of Supervisors to follow that strong recommendation. Please note, the Narigi contract envisions a continuing
marriagewith the generous, tireless volunteer groups that have contributed in the past. John's documented track record
of local business and hospitality experience and expertise aligns with the Board'sown timeline and business
model. Under his leadership, the LSRA can finally attain its full potential. I speak of John's dynamic leadership from a
personal perspective aswell, havingserved ascounsel for the hotel for which he acted asgeneral manager, and which
he personally developed into aworld class gem. Such success in the hospitality industry in Monterey County must be
taken into account.Thank you for your consideration.
Respectfully submitted,
Gary E.Gray
Citizen of Fifth District



‐ ‐ _ _ _
From: LARRY DOTSON <ma|d4@comcast.net>
Sent: Monday, November 18, 2019 5:00 PM
To: ClerkoftheBoard; Monica Nathan
Subject: SCRAMP

Dear Supervisor Adams, I am a physician volunteer for SCRAMP and have traveled for each event
from my home in Lafayette. I do this to work in the medical stations at the track and have for the past
5 years. Despite the expense and time, i have enjoyed working with the other members of all the
departments of SCRAMP and am impressedwith the work ethics and the family feeling of the
group. Please consider re-instituting the contract for this great organization. A new group will not
have the commitment to continuing the international reputation enjoyed in the world of racing. The
SCRAMP volunteers will not support or work for an outside group. I will not longer volunteer at that
point. Please do not discard this treasured history. Dr. Larry Dotson



‐‑
From: MichelleWelty <michelle.weltypicotti@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, November 18, 2019 10:52 PM
To: ClerkoftheBoard
Subject: Laguna Seca Raceway

Hello.
I am very disturbed by the upcomingvote for a change in management of Laguna Seca Raceway.
My father brought meto the Historics in the 1970's.My first husband brought meto camp at the track for races in the
early 1980'sand in the early 2000's, I took my second husband to the track because a co- worker suggested that I use my
talent to volunteer at the track. This turned into a 15year commitment from me to provide spectator first aid.
I love beingat the track. My children grew up at the track. My daughter earned the privilege to volunteer this past year.
We feel a sense of peace, and "aaahhhhh" when we come on to the grounds. This place is "home".
This feeling comes from the family we haveworked with for the past 15years. I have sacrificed hours of time away from
my children, money to pay for gas and hotels, to beat the track during my commutes from Siskiyou County (6+ hours
away) and Fresno County (3 hours away). I would do anything for, and love dearly, my “family" in medical Spectator First
Aid. I love to help our guests with a bandaid, a pain reliever, or an assessment for heart attack or appendicitis.
I truly believe that you will be doing a massive disservice to the guests of Laguna Seca and to the volunteers that make
up the heart of Laguna Seca, if you choose to eliminate SCRAMP from the management of this asset.
Youwill fail miserably. I stand in solidarity with my fellow volunteers that IWILL NOT support any other organization in
the management of Laguna Seca, other than SCRAMP. I will tip my hat to the end of an era and volunteer in my own
damn county, despite the fact that Fresno County has noworld class, world renowned motorspeedway, or that the
Monterey peninsula will always, and forever, be in my, and my family's hearts.
I feel that Monterey County ismaking a huge mistake attempting to vote SCRAMP out of the management contract for
Laguna Seca.
Please consider the future and vote in favor of continued management bySCRAMPand less for the bureaucratic BSand
input.
Thank you.

MichelleWelty- Picotti
RNAssistant Director,
Medical, Spectator First Aid





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ‐ _
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 8:36 AM
To: 112-Cierk of the Board Everyone
Subject: LSRA Management presentation 11‐19‐19.pptx
Attachments: LSRA Management presentation 11-19-19.pptx

COB,

Presentation for Item 17can you place on computer.

Thanks,

Dewayne
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_‑
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 6:28 PM
To: Carroll, Maia
Subject: Re: narigi contract

Contract is final and executed

Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 20, 2019, at 5:49 PM, Carroll, Maia <carro|lm@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

Hi Dewayne,
I had a question about the agreement with Narigi, specifically about sponsorships.
Will you be negotiating a final contract with Mr. Narigi, so more details would be forthcoming?

Maia





From: JohnN a r i g i q
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 019 :4 M
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: FW: SCRAMPAnnouncement, the future of WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafer]
Assume you saw.

Have a mtgwith steve f, Friday at 830.
Will be talking to gill today briefly.
Received email from scramp attorney Andy Schwartz who l knowwell, on a pending legal matter l will forward
. Asking to meet with myself, my attorney and Tim regarding transition. Have offered availability.

Let me know if above sounds positive?

Will be in touch today.

jvn

From: Paul
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 6:38 PM
To:
Subject: Fwd: SCRA nnouncement, the future of WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca

Sent from my iPhone

Begin fonlvarded message:

From:WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca <media la una-seca.com>
Date: November 20, 2019 at 4:44:26 PMPST
To: Bruno, Paul
Subject: SCRAMPAnnouncement, the future of WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca
Reply-To:WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca <media@laguna-seca.com>



SCRAMPAnnouncement

This is a bittersweet time for the SCRAMP organization, which has been manager
and operator of Laguna Seca Raceway since its construction in 1957. Our decades
of stewardship of the legendary track come to an end on December 31 of this year.

The new Monterey County agreement to manage the racewaywith A & D Narigi
Consulting, LLC effective January 1, 2020, will ensure the continuation of
motorsports at the facility on into the future.

SCRAMP is a dedicated volunteer organization with decades of passion for
motorsports and for the track itself, along with a 60+ year history of committed and
enthusiastic volunteerism. “We look forward to the opportunity to meet with the new
management company to discuss how SCRAMP volunteers can continue an
association with Laguna Seca,” said Dennis Farber, Chairman, SCRAMP Race and
Events Committee.

Upcoming meetings of the SCRAMP Board of Governors and the Race and Events
Committee, to be held over the coming weeks, will determine the form that SCRAMP
will take in the future.

“Over the past 18months it has been my privilege to be CEO ofWeatherTech
Raceway Laguna Seca and the SCRAMP organization. I’m proud to have led this
exceptional team as we’ve worked to turn around the raceway operations of Laguna
Seca.We will work to ensure a seamless transition to the new management
company so as to continue the legacy of Laguna Seca for all race participants and
fans,” said WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca CEO Timothy McGrane.

The County of Monterey Administrative Office will be coordinating the transition of
the management agreements forWeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca.



Copyright© *|2019|* *|WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca|*, All rights reserved.

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.





_ _ _ _ _ ‐ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 6:58 AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: Girard, Leslie J.x5365
Subject: RE: SCRAMPAnnouncement, the future of WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca

Got it,,,,

SoI guess I should get amtg set upwith all?

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 6:57 AM
To: John Narigi
Cc: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLJ@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Re:SCRAMPAnnouncement, the future of WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca

John

Any meetingwith SCRAMPon legal matters must include County specifically LesGirard and myself. Transition planning
may also necessitate the inclusion of various County staff depending on the topic.

Sent from my iPhone

O nNov 21, 2019,a t6:49 AM, John Narigi‐ w r o t e :

Assume you saw.

Have a mtgwith steve f, Friday at 830.
Will be talking to gill today briefly.
Received email from scramp attorney Andy Schwartz who I know well, on a pending legal
matter I will forward . Asking to meet with myself, my attorney and Tim regarding transition.
Have offered availability.

Let me know if above sounds positive?

Will be in touch today.

jvn



From: Paul
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 6:38 PM

Subject: Fwd: SC PAnnouncement, the future of WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca

Sent from my iPhone

Begin fonlvarded message:

From:WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca <media@laguna-seca.com>
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

The new Monterey County agreement to manage the raceway with A & D Narigi
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
enthusiastic volunteerism. “We look fonNard to the opportunity to meetwith the new
management company to discuss how SCRAMP volunteers can continue an



association with Laguna Seca," said Dennis Farber, Chairman, SCRAMP Race and
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
Raceway Laguna Seca and the SCRAMP organization. l’m proud to have led this
exceptional team as we’ve worked to turn around the raceway operations of Laguna
Seca.We will work to ensure a seamless transition to the newmanagement
company so as to continue the legacy of Laguna Seca for all race participants and
fans,” said WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca CEO Timothy McGrane.

The County of Monterey Administrative Officewill be coordinating the transition of
the management agreements for WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca.

Copyright© *|2019|* *|WeatherTech Raceway Laguna Seca|*, All rights reserved.

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or wsubscrjbe from this list.





_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 7:24 AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309; Girard, Leslie J.x5365
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: FW:

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. 1
Gentlemen,

Below is the correspondence ofthis am regarding the legal matter mentioned by Andy Schwartz and request
to discuss transition plan.
Will wait to confirm any such mtg until you direct.

See beginningof train regarding request.

jvn

From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 6:41AM
To: Hansen Reed
Cc:
Subject: RE:

Gentlemen,

Thanks Andy, yes been swamped and just getting to emails this am. Would like to meet but schedule is
difficult. Muchon the books for LSRA.
Availability:
Today- 2pm on.
Friday 10‐noon, 3-5.
Monday- no availability
Tuesday‐ am-1130.

Headingnorth 2pm that day for TGvacation. Back in town Monday, 11/30/19.

Let me know what can work,

John V Narigi
President
A&D Narigi Consulting LLC.



From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Wednesday, N
To: Andy Swartz
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Re:

Andy,

I have not spoken with John today, but if needed I am available to meet.

In the new contract MCisto indemnify John’s company for successor liability (worded differently in the contract, but
effectively the same).

l am happy to meet and discuss transition asneeded.

Hansen

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker
& Reed, LLP. This message and the attached documents may beconfidential
and may contain information that is protected by attorney-client privilege
or the attorney work product privilege.
If you have received this message in error, please immediately contact our
offices at 1831) 649-1100. Thank you.

On Nov 20, 2019, at 8:48 AM, Andy Swartz _ wrote:

John

Congratulations ...I think it would be useful for you to meet with Tim McGrane over lunch ( I
will attend if you sodesire ) to understand some of the many issues facingSCRAMP One big
issue is something called the Kim case which we won in SuperiorCourt and which was
appealed to the 6th District and the decision is due any day Knowingour liberal courts it could
reverse and order a full blown trial which would require many of the old time SCRAMP
employees to testify........County could be included in this very ugly injury case...AdditionaIly be
aware of the legal doctrine called ”successor entity liability” I suspect there are numerous
creditors(including Dorna) who will not get paid in the end who may try touse this doctrine to
hit the successor entity or the county.......Let me know if you want to meet with Tim I cleared
with Tim that hewould bewilling to meet with you and help in the transition I am copying
Hansen.

Andy





‐ ‐ _
From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 7:50 AM
To: John Narigi; Hansen Reed; Andy Swartz
Cc: GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us
Subject: Exclusion of County in LSRA Matters

SCRAMP and SCRAMP representatives,

Please beadvised that the County should beinvolved in any and all communications/contact or meetings regardingany
legal matters, Mr. LesGirard County Counsel for the County should beconsidered lead for the County. Any and all
transition planningwill necessitate the inclusion of the County and SCRAMP under current contract to act on behalf of
the County should remain constructively engaged with County on all matters of transition and ongoing operations.

Sincerely,

DewayneWoods
County of Monterey

From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 7:21AM
To: Hansen Reed Andy Swartz
Cc: John Narigi Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: RE:

Andy, Hansen,

Need to hold on my earlier email. Had a quick call with DwayneWoods and asthe county is the property
owner they want to be involvedwith any discussion regarding legal matters and transition.
I am a bit new at this somy apologies.
I have forwarded your email Andy with my response and Hansen to Les and Dwayne.Will be back in touch
with a response hopefully today,

Thank you both,

John V Narigi
President
A&D Consulting LLC

From:John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21,2g126:41AM

1



Cc:
Subject: RE:

Gentlemen,

Thanks Andy, yes been swamped and just getting to emails this am.Would like to meet but schedule is
difficult. Much on the books for LSRA.
Availability:
Today- 2pm on.
Friday 10-noon, 3-5.
Monday‐ no availability
Tuesday- am‐1130.

Headingnorth 2pm that day for TGvacation. Back in town Monday, 11/30/19.

Let me know what can work,

John V Narigi
President
A&D Narigi Consulting LLC.

From: Hansen Reed
Sent:Wednesday, November 20, 2019 10:05PM
To: Andy Swartz
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Re:

Andy,

l have not spoken with John today, but if needed I am available to meet.

In the new contract MCisto indemnify John’s company for successor liability (worded differently in the contract, but
effectively the same).

I am happy to meet and discuss transition asneeded.

Hansen

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker
& Reed, LLP. This messageand the attached documents may beconfidential
and maycontain information that is protected byattorney-client privilege
or the attorney work product privilege.
If you have received this message in error, please immediately contact our
offices at $831] 649-1100. Thank you.

On Nov 20, 2019, at 8:48 AM, Andy Swartz ‐ wrote:



John

Congratulations ...I think it would be useful for you to meet with Tim McGrane over lunch ( I
will attend if you sodesire ) to understand some of the many issues facingSCRAMP One big
issue is something called the Kim case which we won in Superior Court and which was
appealed to the 6th District and the decision is due any day Knowingour liberal courts it could
reverse and order a full blown trial which would require many of the old time SCRAMP
employees to testify........County could be included in this very ugly injury case...Additionally be
aware of the legal doctrine called “successor entity liability" I suspect there are numerous
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
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 7:2 AM
To: Hansen Reed;Andy Swartz
Cc: John Narigi;Woods, Dewaynex5309
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
Today‐ 2pm on.
Friday 10‐noon,3-5.
Monday- no availability
Tuesday‐ am-1130.

Headingnorth 2pm that day for T6 vacation. Back in town Monday, 11/30/19.

Let me knowwhat can work,

John V Narigi
President



A&D Narigi Consulting LLC.

From: Hansen Reed
Sent:Wednesday, November 20, 2019 10:05 PM
To: Andy Swartz
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Re:

Andy,

l have not spokenwith John today, but if needed I amavailable to meet.

In the new contract MCisto indemnify John's company for successor liability (worded differently in the contract, but
effectively the same).

I am happy to meet and discuss transition asneeded.

Hansen

CONFIDENTIALlTY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firmof Walker
& Reed, LLP. This message and the attached documents may beconfidential
and may contain information that is protected byattorney-client privilege
or the attorney work product privilege.
If you have received this message in error, please immediately contact our
offices at (831) 649-1100.Thank you.

On Nov 20, 2019, at 8:48 AM, Andy Swartz< ¥ > wrote:

John

Congratulations ...| think it would be useful for you to meet with Tim McGrane over lunch ( I
will attend if you sodesire ) to understand some of the many issues facingSCRAMP One big
issue is something called the Kim case which we won in Superior Court andwhich was
appealed to the 6th District and the decision is due any day Knowingour liberal courts it could
reverse and order a full blown trial which would require many ofthe old time SCRAMP
employees to testify........County could be included in this very ugly injury case...Additionally be
aware of the legal doctrine called "successor entity liability” I suspect there are numerous
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





g‑
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:43 AM
To: John Narigi; Kaur, Satinder
Cc: chinl@co.monterey.ca.us; Derr, Mike x4992
Subject: InsuranceCoverage

John,

Included in this email isSatinder Kaur, she is the goto person at the County to coordinate all things Risk/Insurance. I
think you will find that she is anawesome professional to work with, if you could connect her to your broker she can
help coordinate all of our insurance coverages.

Thanks,

Dewayne





_ ‐ _ ‑

From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:50 AM
To: Jerry Coté
Cc: Perez, MikeA x6908; Jeremy Yamaguchi; John Narigi; Derr, Mike x4992
Subject: RE: Congratulations...

Thanks Jerry.

Bycc I've includedJohn Narigi and Mike Derr (County), as they will lead further negotiated agreements, the people who
actual get things done.

Thanks,

Dewayne

From:Jerry Coté
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 3:35 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Perez, Mike A x6908 <PerezM4@co.monterey.ca.us>; JeremyY a m a g u c h i ‑
Subject: Congratulations...

[QMfili’SWFGfigifiit-edfrOm outside'oI-theCognty. Donot click linksoropenattachments unless you recognize the sender
ailiidknoflijfleeditefitissafe.']

Dear Mr.Woods,

We have been following the proposed changes to leadership at Laguna Seca Raceway closely and
want to share our excitement at the shift in executive management that was approved by your Board
of Supervisors. We, and many others who have had a longworking relationship with the previous
executive management look forward to the new energy that will surely add a breath of fresh air into
the racingoperations and management. From our perspective, Mr. Narigi is an established leader in
the Monterey area and an experienced executive with a proven'track record of success.

i believe our hopes and goals for Laguna Seca are similar to yours; moving towards a more efficient
track operation, garnering new visitors to the Monterey economic impact region and fostering a
positive customer experience while supporting the fiscal sustainability of the raceway.

Congratulations on your historic vote and we hope to be a part of the bright new future at
WeatherTech Raceway at Laguna Seca.

Best Regards,



Jerry Coté

President/CEO

PacificSatellite inc.





‐ _ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21,2019 11:55 AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: Exclusion of County in LSRA Matters

To: John Nari i Hansen Reed ‐; Andy Swartz

Cc: Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLJ@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Exclusion of County in LSRA Matters

SCRAMP and SCRAMP representatives,

Please beadvised that the County should beinvolved in any and all communications/contact or meetings regarding any
legal matters, Mr. LesGirard County Counsel for the County should be considered lead for the County. Any and all
transition planningwill necessitate the inclusionof the County and SCRAMP under current contract to act on behalf of
the County should remain constructively engaged with County on all matters of transition and ongoing operations.

Sincerely,

DewayneWoods
County of Monterey

; 00 s, Dewayne x53 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>

Andy, Hansen,

Need to hold on my earlier email. Had a quick call with DwayneWoods and asthe county is the property
owner they want to be involvedwith any discussion regarding legal matters and transition.
l am a bit new at this somy apologies.
l have forwarded your email Andy with my response and Hansen to Les and Dwayne.Will be back in touch
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
Tuesday- am-1130.

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

I have not spoken with John today, but if needed I amavailable to meet.

In the new contractMCisto indemnify John's company for successor liability (worded differently in the contract,but
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
offices at £8311649-1100.Thank you.

On Nov 20, 2019, at 8:48 AM, Andy Swartz~ _ >wrote:

John

Congratulations ...I think it would be useful for you to meet with Tim McGrane over lunch ( I
will attend if you sodesire ) t o understand some of the many issues facingSCRAMP One big
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
with Tim that hewould bewilling to meetwith you and help in the transition I am copying
Hansen.

Andy





l . ‑

From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 12:02 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: Quezada, Rocio x6769
Subject: contract

[CAUTlilO-N:This email originated from outside of the County. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
aadélé'afewtheeontent-is salies]
I assume John Phillips signed the agreement, can I p/u a copy tomorrow am, i need for my insurance broker,

Would beby shortly after 10. Pleaseconfirm.

Thanks, jvn





From: mm
T0: M u s l i m s ; KauLSaflndst
CC: M M ; MM
Subject: RE: InsuranceCoverage
Date: Thursday, November 21, 2019 12:14:39 PM

Dewayne, thank you,

Satinder, will get you his info,,,,wil| be in touch,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:43 AM
To: John Narigi Kaur, Satinder <KaurS@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chin|@co.monterey.ca.us>; Derr, Mikex4992
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: InsuranceCoverage

John,

Included in this email isSatinder Kaur, she is the goto person at the County to coordinate all things
Risk/insurance. I think you will find that she isanawesome professional to work with, if you could
connect her to your broker she can help coordinate all of our insurance coverages.

Thanks,

Dewayne





;_
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 12:15 PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309; Kaur, Satinder
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214; Derr, Mike x4992
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

Satinder, will get you his info,,,,wi|i be in touch,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:43 AM
To: John Narigi Kaur, Satinder <KaurS@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinI@co.monterey.ca.us>; Derr, Mike x4992 <derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: InsuranceCoverage

John,

Included in this email isSatinder Kaur, she isthe goto person at the County to coordinate all things Risk/Insurance. i
think you will find that she is an awesome professional to work with, if you could connect her to your broker she can
help coordinate all of our insurance coverages.

Thanks,

Dewayne





_ ‐ _ ‑

From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:58 PM
To: Lisa Saclayan
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: 2020 Pricing/Hard Cost index

Lisa,

Please add John (cc’d above) on all information going forward.

Thanks

Dewayne

From: Lisa Saclayan <lisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2019 12:35 PM
To: Steve Fields<Steve@laguna-seca.com>; Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Derr, Mike x4992
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; tmcgrane@Iaguna-seca.com; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Kimberly Marlar <kmarIar@laguna‐seca.com>; Mark Mathe<mark@laguna-seca.com>; ann@|aguna-seca.com;
Connor Barr <connor@laguna-seca.com>; Aaron Tharpe <aaron@laguna-seca.com>; Art Michalik <MichalikA@Iaguna‑
seca.com>; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC@Iaguna-seca.com>
Subject: RE: 2020 Pricing/HardCost index

I didn’t touch the hard costs on the ticketing portion; it was already filled. I only inputted or updated the prices to GA
tickets, parking, camping. Iwas leaving it until we have the group meeting to knowwhat is included and not included
with the hard costs. I have the breakout on a spreadsheet, which I have not distributed out yet until this group meeting
happens.

Thank you,

Lisa Saclayan

From:Steve Fields <Steve@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2019 12:03 PM
To: Lisa Saclayan <Iisa@laguna-seca.com>; Lavonne Chin <chinl@c0.monterey.ca.us>; Mike Derr
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; Timothy McGrane <tmcgrane@Iaguna-seca.com>; DewayneWoods
<woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Kimberly Marlar <kmarlar@Iaguna-seca.com>; Mark Mathe <mark@laguna-seca.com>; Ann Bixler <ann@|aguna‑
seca.com>; Connor Barr <connor@laguna-seca.com>; Aaron Tharpe <aaron@laguna-seca.com>; Art Michalik
<MichalikA@laguna-seca.com>; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Subject: Re: 2020 Pricing/Hard Cost index

Thanks Lisa ‑

Why such a significant increase in HCacross the board? Did your vendor raise prices that much? How do you go from
$.04/ea. to $.24/ea. in one year?



Iwould like to see the breakout of the $.24/ea. for tickets.

Steve Fields
SVP, Sales
831.277.5798} | Mobile
WeatherTechRacewayxom

This transmission is intended solely forthe person or organization to whom it is addressed and it may contain privileged and confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient
you should not copy, distribute or take any action in reliance on it. If you believe you received this transmission in error please notify the sender.

From: Lisa Saclayan <Iisa la una-seca.com>
Date: Friday, November 8, 2019 at 11:45AM
To: Steve Fields<Steve@laguna-seca.com>, Lavonne Chin <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>, Mike Derr
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>, Timothy McGrane <tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com>, DewayneWoods
<woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Kimberly Marlar <kmarlar@laguna-seca.com>, Mark Mathe <mark@laguna-seca.com>, Ann Bixler
<ann@laguna-seca.com>, Connor Barr <connor@Iaguna-seca.com>, Aaron Tharpe <aaron la una-seca.com>,
Art Michalik <MichalikA@laguna-seca.com>, Cindy McGrane <McGraneC la una-seca.com>
Subject: RE: 2020 Pricing/Hard Cost index

Attached isthe updatedTicketing portion, however the hospitality tickets, are not confirmed yet.

Thank you,

Lisa Saclayan

From: Steve Fields <Steve@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2019 8:55 AM
To: LavonneChin <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Mike Derr <derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; Timothy McGrane
<tmcgrane@Iaguna-seca.com>; DewayneWoods <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Steve Fields <Steve@laguna‑
seca.com>
Cc: Kimberly Marlar<kmarlar@laguna-seca.com>; Steve Fields<Steve@laguna-seca.com>; Lisa Saclayan<Iisa@laguna‑
seca.com>; Mark Mathe<mark@laguna-seca.com>; Ann Bixler <ann@laguna-seca.com>; Connor Barr <connor@laguna‑
seca.com>; Aaron Tharpe <aaron@laguna-seca.com>; Art Michalik <MichaIikA@laguna-seca.com>; Cindy McGrane
<McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Subject: 2020 Pricing/Hard Cost index

Laguna Team,

Please find attached the updated 2020 Pricingand Hard Cost valuation sheet. I have combined the three major events
into one page for ease of comparison.
There are still a number of items in REDthat need input from Ticketing and Operations for updates.

@Markcan you pleasework with Connor on spec’ing out the HCfor Food vendors for us. Need to know costs for
permits, ABC Licenses, etc. that go to the food vendors.
@Lisa can you please confirm all 2020 ticket pricingwe have listed. Per our discussion we are holding on '19 HCfor
tickets until further group discussion.



@Mark please review the IndyCar HCdeck l shared to confirm I have included everything. A few of the hospitalities need
to beupdated asI mistakenly included ”Structure" + ”Canopy"... not either/or.

I know there was a limited group discussion regarding hard cost allocations a few weeks ago and I'm happy to bringa
larger team together to discuss, but for now,we are using ’18/’19data on a few areas just to get things moving. Happy
to meet and discuss.

Please provide any and all feedback, comments, opinions by end of next week. Thank you.

Steve Fields
SVP, Sales
831.277.5798: | Mobile
WeatherTechRaceway.com

This transmission is intendedsolely forthe person or organization to whom it is addressed and it may contain privileged and confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient
you should not copy, distribute or take any action in reliance on it. if you believe you received this transmission in error please notify the sender.





_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:04 PM
To: chinl@co.monterey.ca.us
Cc: Zeeb, Mary Ext.5474; John Narigi
Subject: RE: Starting Questions for Laguna Seca

Lavonne,

Can you spearhead this project, the Treasurer-Tax Collector has offered to assist us in developing policies and this
firm/individual isagreat way to begin. I have also cc'd John ashewill becharged onour behalf to implement whatever
policy/procedures are deemed appropriate.

Thanks,

Dewayne
From:Zeeb, Mary Ext.5474<zeebm@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Tuesday, November 12,2019 4:45 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: FW: StartingQuestions for Laguna Seca

Asdiscussed here is the 1St round of questions. Can you please forward to whomever is best suited to provide the
answers?

Thanks,

MaryA. Zeeb
Treasurer-Tax Collector - County of Monterey
168West Alisa] St, First Floor
Salinas, CA93901

From: kurrasch@globalpayments.com <kurrasch@globalp_ayments.com>

Hi Mary and Susanne:

Asagreed during our phone call this past Wednesday, l'm attaching a first round of questions for Laguna Seca financial
management to determine what processes are currently in place and give ussome context for the development of
Policies.

Thanks,



Dave





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:09 PM
To: Hansen Reed;Girard, Leslie J.x5365; John Narigi
Subject: RE: LSRA Meeting 11/22/2019

Confirmed.

Dewayne

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:08 PM
To: Woods, Dewa nex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>; John
Narigi
Subject: LSRA Meeting 11/22/2019

I am just sending this email out to confirm the meeting is at the County offices on West Alisal, Salinas, at 3:30 pm.

I am free all day and can rearrange my day if the meeting needs to be earlier.

Regards,

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,P.C.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649-1100
Fax: (831) 649‐6805

WALKER-I-REED
A T T O R N E Y S a f t “ L A W P J Z :

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
Sent: Thursday, November 21,2019 12:10 PM
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
Thanks, adding to my list. Rocio sent me the email items to complete, will get to today later,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:50 AM

< erezM4@co.monterey.ca.us>; JeremyY a m a g u c h i _ ;John Narigi
err, Mike x4992 <derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>

Bycc l’ve includedJohn Narigi and Mike Derr (County), as they will lead further negotiated agreements, the people who
actual get things done.

Thanks,

Dewayne

From: Jerry Coté H
Sent: Wednesday, ovemberZ , 193:35 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Perez, Mike A x6908 <PerezM4@co.monterey.ca.us>; Jeremy Yamaguchi ‑
Subject: Congratulations...

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. 1

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
the Monterey area and an experienced executive with a proven track record of success.



I believe our hopes and goals for Laguna Seca are similar to yours; moving towards a more efficient
track operation, garneringnew visitors to the Monterey economic impact region and fostering a
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

PacificSatellite lnc.





From: John Narigi ”a
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 201 : M
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: 2020 IMSA Annual Credential Process

I agree, jvn

From: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21 2019 9:46 AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: FW: 2020 IMSAAnnual Credential Process

Credential for IMSA

i’d suggest the following

John Narigi
Dewayne Woods
Steve Fields (AFS)
Marketing Manager (A&D)
Operations Manager (A&D)

Your thoughts?

From: Nash, Emily <enash@imsa.com>
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 6:12 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: RE: 2020 lMSA Annual Credential Process

F
Good morning,

Next week is fine.

Saw the latest news yesterday ‐ best of luck in the coming weeks.
We’re here to support and looking fonrvard to the future.

Thanks,
Emily

B _______s___uw__._

Emily Nash | Senior Manager, Track Marketing and Promotions | IMSA
Office: +1386.310.6598 | Mobile: + 1386.453.3660] www.imsa.com
enash@imsa.com



From: Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 6:25 PM
To: Nash, Emily <enash@imsa.com>
Subject: RE: 2020 IMSAAnnual Credential Process

Emily,

Thanks, and Iwill get this info to you next week if that isok.

Dewayne

From: Nash, Emily<enash@imsa.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 7:51AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: 2020 lMSAAnnual Credential Process

townie“:ThisemaiI-oriéin'ated from outside of the County.Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
amlthemntent seize.)
Good morning Dewayne,

Pleasefind below the link for the 2020 Corporate MemberAnnual CredentialRosterfor you to submit names
and email addresses for each individual who will need a 2020 IMSAAnnual Credential.
Note that we have gone entirely paperless for 2020 and all waivers can now be signed online except for minors
ages 16-18 years old.

Five (5) IMSAAnnual Credentials permitted per Track Promoter
Only one (1) Corporate Representative should submit the Roster
YOU need to include yourself on the Roster if you would like an Annual Credential
The five (5) Names / E-mails on the Rosterwill receive an e-mail communication that begins each
individual’s credential process

In 2019, IMSAAnnual Credentials were issued to:
Steve Fields
Ann Bixler
Gill Campbell
Tim McGrane

2020 Corporate Member Annual Credential Roster
For questions regarding the online portal process please email: Registration@IMSA.com Or, give me a call!

Thanks,
Emily



3
Emily Nash | SeniorManager, Track Marketing and Promotions | IMSA
One Daytona Boulevard l Daytona Beach, FL 32114
Office: +1 386.310.6598 | Mobile: +1 386.453.3660 | www.lmsa.com
enash@imsa.com

This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are
not the intended recipient, any review, dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited.
In addition, please immediately contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message. E-mail
transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost,
destroyed, arrive late or incomplete or contain viruses. The sender therefore does not accept liability for any errors or
omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of e-mail transmission. Any views or opinions presented
in this e-mail are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of IMSA. lMSAwill not accept any
liability as a result of such communication(s). No employee or agent is authorized to conclude any binding agreement on
behalf of IMSAwith another party by e-mail. All agreements must be contained in a separate writing executed with an
original non-electronic signature.





From M a r i m ‑
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 12:22 M
To: Matt Little Sr.; Kaur, Satinder
Cc: John Narigi;Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: A8LD Narigi Consulting LLC

[CAU'FlONz This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sendizr
and know thexo’h-teétis safe-{1}
Matt,

Let me introduce you to Satinder, of the county of Monterey. She isable to assist us in any insurance
questions or needswe may have per DewayneWoods, please feel free to reach out as needed.

Satinder, Matt is owner of Carmel insurance, he ismy broker. Hecurrently has the info required per the
contact and will be handling H&B,workers comp ect. Believe what we need now is an census on the
employees and their current coverage. Per my proposal, Iwill honorwhat their current benefits are. Obviously
will review all bids.
I appreciate your help. I will also look forward to meetingyou in person after the 1“.

Matt, please keep me in the loop, see you Friday am,

John V Narigi
President
A&D Narigi Consulting LLC





_ _ ‐ _ _ _ _
From: John Narigl
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:09 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: 2020 IMSAAnnual Credential Process

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unleSS you recognize the sender
and knowthe content lssafe: ~]
Yes, jvn

From:Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:07 PM

Subject: Re: 2020 IMSAAnnua Credential Process

Don’t knowwhom will beyour marketingmanager or operations manager want to place Jeanne for now asmarketing
now and operations?You can lean on Mike Deer for a short period he loves that stuff but let me know I’ll fonivard the
name uponyour direction

Sent from my iPhone

O nNov 21, 2019,a t12:12 PM,John Narigi_ w r o t e :
[CAUll‘leglz This email originated fromoutside ofthe County. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
reco‘éa’igelthesender andsknow-the cocfiafitzis satej]
I agree, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:46 AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: FW: 2020 IMSAAnnual Credential Process

Credential for IMSA

I'dsuggest the following

John Narigi
DewayneWoods
Steve Fields (AFS)
Marketing Manager (A&D)
Operations Manager (A&D)

Your thoughts?

From: Nash, Emily <enash@imsa.com>
Sent: Friday, November 15,2019 6:12 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: RE: 2020 IMSAAnnual Credential Process

1



“
Good morning,

Next week is fine.

Saw the latest news yesterday ‐ best of luck in the coming weeks.
We’re here to support and looking fonivard to the future.

Emily Nash | Senior Manager, Track Marketing and Promotions | lMSA
Office: +1 386.310.6598 | Mobile: + 1386.453.3660 1www.imsa.com
enash@imsa.com

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 14,2019 6:25 PM
To: Nash, Emily<enash@imsa.com>
Subject: RE: 2020 lMSA Annual Credential Process

Emily,

Thanks, and Iwill get this info to you next week if that is ok.

Dewayne

From: Nash, Emily <enash imsa.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 13,2019 7:51AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: 2020 lMSAAnnual Credential Processr
Good morning Dewayne,

Please find below the link for the 2020 Corporate MemberAnnual CredentialRosterfor you to
submit names and email addresses for each individual who will need a 2020 lMSAAnnual
Credential.
Note that we have gone entirely paperless for 2020 and all waivers can now be signed online
except for minors ages 16-18 years old.

. Five (5) lMSAAnnual Credentials permitted per Track Promoter
0 Only one (1) Corporate Representative should submit the Roster

2



0 YOU need to include yourself on the Roster if you would like an Annual Credential
. The five (5) Names / E-mails on the Rosterwill receive an e-mail communication that

begins each individual’s credential process

In 2019, IMSAAnnual Credentials were issued to:
Steve Fields
Ann Bixler
Gill Campbell
Tim McGrane

2020 Corporate MemberAnnual Credential Roster
For questions regarding the online portal process please email: Registration@lMSA.com Or,
give mea call!

Thanks,
Emily

Emily Nash | Senior Manager,Track Marketing and Promotions | IMSA
One Daytona Boulevard | Daytona Beach, FL 32114
Office: +1386.310.6598 | Mobile: +1386.453.3660l www.imsa.com
enash@imsa.com

This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the use of the person(s) named
above. If you are not the intended recipient, any review, dissemination, distribution or duplication of this
communication is strictly prohibited. In addition, please immediately contact the sender by reply e-mail
and destroy all copies of the original message. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or
error-free as information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete or
contain viruses. The sender therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents
of this message,which arise as a result of e-mail transmission. Any views or opinions presented in this e‑
mail are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of lMSA. lMSAwill not accept
any liability as a result of such communication(s). No employee or agent is authorized to conclude any
binding agreement on behalf of IMSAwith another party by e-mail. All agreements must be contained in a
separate writing executed with an original non-electronic signature.





‐ ‐ _ _ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 5:48 PM
To: steve@lagunaseca.com
Cc: John Narigi;Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: meeting 11/22/19830am.

Lookingforward to a productive discussion tomorrow. Please come prepared with the following info:

0 Sponsorships secure for 2020 year. Please have by each, name, value, contract length. Want to see
from most valuable to least.
Pendingsponsorships workingwith contract in progress.
Your target list, meaningwhat other companies or other businesses you are working on to secure.
All other venders currently secured.
Copy of your contract with county.
Brief history on yourself and co.
Misc. thoughts/ideas on future.

I have a 10amwith the county which originally was not scheduled, if you can make it by Sam, let me know as I
can easily make it earlier.
Have not had time to pick a car, will have tomorrow am for you,

Thank you,

jvn
John V Narigi
President
A&D Narigi Consulting LLC





Yes, we are on at 330 with Ies and Hansen. Good talk with Dennis tonight will fill you in at mtg. Have a mtg
with mike and Lavorn tomorrow at 10,

, jvn

From: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 5:55 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: Re: meeting 11/22/198 am.

John

Ours is 3:30 with Les are you referringto a meetingwith another County person just don't want to have wrong time on
my calendar

Sent from my iPhone

O nNov 21, 2019, a t5:48 PM,John N a r i g i ‐wrote:

Steve,

Lookingforward to a productive discussion tomorrow. Please come prepared with the following
info:

- Sponsorships secure for 2020 year. Please have by each, name, value, contract length.
Want to see from most valuable to least.
Pendingsponsorships working with contract in progress.
Your target list, meaningwhat other companies or other businesses you are working on
to secure.
All other venders currently secured.
Copy of your contract with county.

0 Brief history on yourself and co.
0 Misc. thoughts/ideas on future.

I have a 10am with the county which originally was not scheduled, if you can make it by Sam,
let me know asI can easily make it earlier.
Have not had time to pick a car, will have tomorrow am for you,

1



Thank you,

jvn
John V Narigi
President
A&D Narigi Consulting LLC





From: JohnN a r i g i m
Sent: Thursday, November , 019 :‘l PM
To: Lisa Saclayan;Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: steve@lagunaseca.com
Subject: RE: 2020 Pricing/Hard Cost index

Steve, please provide mewith your initial attachment. Also keep meposted on ”group" meetingwill want to
be involved,

Thank you,

jvn

From: Lisa Saclayan <lisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 3:03 PM
To: Woods, Dewa ne x5309 <woodsd co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: 2020 Pricing/HardCost index

Will do.

Thanks, Dewayne!

Lisa Saclayan

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:58PM
To: Lisa Saclayan <lisa la una-seca.com>
Cc: John Narigi *
Subject: RE:2020 Pricmg ar ost index

Lisa,

Please addJohn (cc’d above) on all information going forward.

Thanks

Dewayne

From: Lisa Saclayan <lisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2019 12:35 PM
To: Steve Fields <Steve@laguna-seca.com>; Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Derr, Mike x4992
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>

1



Cc: Kimberly Marlar <kmarlar@laguna-seca.com>; Mark Mathe <mark@laguna-seca.com>; ann la una - seca . com '
Connor Barr <connor@Iaguna-seca.com>; Aaron Tharpe <aaron@laguna-seca.com>; Art Michalik <MichalikA@laguna‑
seca.com>; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC Ia una-seca.com>
Subject: RE: 2020 Pricing/HardCost index

[ M d - M I'l.“..'-.'f';"-: ' " " "7"'"'-' W e h M M h W M M M M M W r M Mt h e m
Id i n ’ t tocuh the had costs on the ticketing portion; it was already filled. I only inputted or updated the prices to GA
tickets, parking, camping. Iwas leaving it until we have the group meeting to know what is included and not included
with the hard costs. l have the breakout on a spreadsheet, which I have not distributed out yet until this group meeting
happens.

Thank you,

Lisa Saclayan

From: Steve Fields <Steve la una-seca.com>
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2019 12:03 PM
To: Lisa Saclayan <Iisa@laguna~seca.com>; Lavonne Chin <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Mike Derr
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; Timothy McGrane<tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com>; DewayneWoods
<woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Kimberly Marlar<kmar|ar@laguna-seca.com>; Mark Mathe<mark@laguna-seca.com>; Ann Bixler <ann@laguna‑
seca.com>; Connor Barr <connor@laguna‐seca.com>; Aaron Tharpe <aaron@laguna-seca.com>; Art Michalik
<MichalikA@laguna-seca.com>; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Subject: Re: 2020 Pricing/HardCost index

Thanks Lisa ‑

Why such a significant increase in HCacross the board? Did your vendor raise prices that much? How do you go from
$.04/ea. to 5.24/ea. in one year?
i would like to see the breakout of the $.24/ea. for tickets.

Steve Fields
SVP, Sales
831.277.5798: | Mobile
WeatherTechRacewa1.com

This transmission is intended solely for the person or organization to whom it isaddressed and it may contain privileged and confidential information. if you are not the intended recipient
you should not copy, distribute or take any action in reliance on it. If you believe you received this transmission in error please notify the sender,

From: Lisa Saclayan <lisa@laguna-seca.com>
Date: Friday, November 8, 2019 at 11:45AM
To: Steve Fields <Steve@laguna-seca.com>, Lavonne Chin <chin|@co.monterey.ca.us>, Mike Derr
<derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>, Timothy McGrane <tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com>, DewayneWoods
<woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Kimberly Marlar <kmarlar@laguna-seca.com>, Mark Mathe <mark@laguna‐seca.com>, Ann Bixler
<ann@|aguna-seca.com>, Connor Barr <connor@Iaguna-seca.com>, Aaron Tharpe <aaron Ia una-seca.com>,



Art Michalik <MichalikA@laguna-seca.com>, Cindy McGrane <McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Subject: RE: 2020 Pricing/Hard Cost index

Attached isthe updatedTicketing portion, however the hospitality tickets, are not confirmed yet.

Thank you,

Lisa Saclayan

From:Steve Fields<Steve@laguna~seca.com>
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2019 8:55 AM
To: Lavonne Chin <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Mike Derr <derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; Timothy McGrane
<tmcgrane@laguna‐seca.com>; DewayneWoods <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Steve Fields<Steve@laguna‑
seca.com>
Cc: Kimberly Marlar <kmarlar@laguna-seca.com>; Steve Fields<Steve@laguna-seca.com>; Lisa Saclayan <Iisa@_laguna‑
seca.com>; Mark Mathe <mark@laguna-seca.com>; Ann Bixler <ann@laguna-seca.com>; Connor Barr <connor@laguna‑
seca.com>; Aaron Tharpe <aaron@laguna-seca.com>; Art Michalik <MichalikA@Iaguna-seca.com>; Cindy McGrane
<McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Subject: 2020 Pricing/HardCost index

Laguna Team,

Pleasefind attached the updated 2020 Pricingand HardCost valuation sheet. I have combined the three major events
into one page for ease of comparison.
There are still a number of items in REDthat need input from Ticketing and Operations for updates.

@Markcan you pleasework with Connor on spec'ing out the HCfor Food vendors for us. Need to know costs for
permits,ABC Licenses, etc. that go to the food vendors.
@Lisa can you please confirm all 2020 ticket pricingwe have listed. Per our discussion we are holding on ’19 HCfor
tickets until further group discussion.
@Mark please review the lndyCar HCdeck l shared to confirm l have included everything. A few of the hospitalities need
to be updated asl mistakenly included ”Structure" + ”Canopy"... not either/or.

I know there was a limited group discussion regarding hard cost allocations a few weeks ago and I'm happy to bringa
larger team together to discuss, but for now,we are using ‘18/’19 data on a few areas just to get things moving.Happy
to meet and discuss.

Please provide any and all feedback, comments, opinions by end of next week. Thank you.

Steve Fields
SVP, Sales
831.277.5798: | Mobile
WeatherTechRacewaxsom

This transmission is intended solely for the person or organization to whom it is addressed and it may contain privileged and confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient
you should not copy, distribute or take any action in reliance on it. if you believe you received this transmission in error please notify the sender.





From: John Narigi m
Sent: Thursday, Novem er :
To: Chin, Lavonne x7214; Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: Zeeb, Mary Ext.5474
Subject: RE: Starting Questions for Laguna Seca

[CAiUTiOtLiwtlorlgnatedfrom outside of‘the County.Donot click linksoropen attachments unless yourecognize the sender
fa‘d-kn'owfi'efibfltentissafe“._]
Lavonne,fill me in tomorrow am,

jvn

From:Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:23 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Zeeb, Mary Ext.5474<zeebm@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi ‑
Subject: Re: StartingQuestions for Laguna Seca

Yes, of course.

Get Outlook for iOS

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:04:16 PM
To: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chin|@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Zeeb, Mary Ext.5474<zeebm@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi _
Subject: RE: StartingQuestions for Laguna Seca

Lavonne,

Can you spearhead this project, the Treasurer‐Tax Collector has offered to assist us in developing policies and this
firm/individual isagreat way to begin. I have also cc'd John ashewill becharged onour behalf to implement whatever
policy/procedures are deemed appropriate.

Thanks,

Dewayne
From: Zeeb, Mary Ext.5474<zeebm@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Tuesday, November 12,2019 4:45 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: FW:Starting Questions for Laguna Seca

Asdiscussed here is the 1St round of questions. Can you please forward to whomever is best suited to provide the
answers?

Thanks,



Mary A. Zeeb
Treasurer-Tax Collector - County of Monterey
168West Alisal St, First Floor

From: kurrasch@globa|payments.com <kurrasch@globalpayments.com>
Sent: Friday, November 08, 2019 11:32AM
To: Zeeb, Mary Ext.5474<zeebm@co.monterey.ca.us>; King,Susanne <King51@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: StartingQuestions for Laguna Seca‑
Hi Mary and Susanne:

Asagreed during our phone call this past Wednesday, I’mattaching afirst round of questions for Laguna Seca financial
management to determine what processes are currently in place and give ussome context for the development of
Policies.

Thanks,

Dave





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ ‑
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:17 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: lndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

[CAUTIONzThis email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Thanks, do we have the expense side? Weren’t sanctioning fees steep?

jvn

From:Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 1 201 :5 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: FW: lndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

FYI I know you love data

From: Lisa Saclayan <lisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Saturday, September 21, 2019 5:06 PM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>
Subject: IndyCarSales asof September 21, 2019

[CAUTiON:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Please see attached.

To lessen the confusion of this report, the total that is$1,098,407.00 is the current actual ticket sales amount. The
amount that isat $1,111,885.00 isthe total that includes miscellaneous fees such asFed Exand return fees. Please
remember this total does not include gate or outlet sales.

Have agreat evening!

Lisa Saclayan
Ticket Coordinator
831-242-8200 | lisanaguna;seca.co_rn
www.weathertechracewaymom





_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:21 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: October 28, 2019 Non‐Premier Camping Revenue Report‑
Will review doc,,, will have questions, want to determine ADR per site and occ for year,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:58 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: FW:October 28, 2019 Non-Premier Camping Revenue Report

FYI Informationoverload

From: Lisa Saclayan <lisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Monday,October 28, 2019 9:32 AM
To: X-Staff <X-staff‐scramg@Iaguna-seca.com>
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Derr,
Mike x4992 <derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: October 28, 2019 Non-Premier Camping Revenue Report‑
Please see attached.

Thank you,

Lisa Saclayan
Ticket Coordinator
831-242-8200 | IisaQIaguna-seca.com
www.weathertechraceway.com





From: John Narigi ‑
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:2 PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: 2019 IMSAWRLS Debrief Notes

Thanks, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:55 PM

John NewPCc: Derr,Mike x49 <derrm@co.monterey.ca.us>; Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: FW: 2019 iMSAWRLS Debrief Notes

From: Nash, Emily <enash@imsa.com>
Sent:Wednesday, November 6, 2019 11:30AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com; '|eanie@laguna-seca.com;
ann@laguna-seca.com; Steve Fields<Steve@laguna-seca.com>
Subject: 2019 IMSAWRLS Debrief Notes

fl
Good afternoonWRLS,

lt was great"to see some of you this week for the 2019 Promoter Partner meeting! I hope this note finds you well and your
travels home from Vegas were uneventful.

l'm sharing the 2019 IMSAdebrief notes from our eventweekend.
We will use these notes as a tool for next year, to recollect and improve ‐ always making adjustments but also
emphasizingwhat is already done really well.

Please share with your team as necessary and feel free to send me notes back with your comments and questions.

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
in this e-mail are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of lMSA. IMSAwill not accept any
liability as a result of such communication(s). No employee or agent is authorized to conclude any binding agreement on
behalf of IMSAwith another party by e-mail. All agreements must be contained in a separate writing executed with an
original non-electronic signature.





_ _ _ _ _ _ _ “
From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 6:55 AM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca. com (tmcgrane@laguna‐seca.com)
Cc: 'Kimberly Marlar'; chinl@co.monterey.ca.us; John Narigi
Subject: 2019 Event P&L

Importance: High

Mr. McGrane,

Please provide all on this email the Profit & Loss statements for the following 2019 events;

Ferrari Challenge
SVRA/Trans AM
World SuperBike
Pre Reunion
Reunion
lMA
lndyCar

Sincerely,

DewayneWoods





‐ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ‑
From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 6:46 AM
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
and know the content issafe..]
Big nuts,,, sponsorship and other revenue from rec area in 2020 and 2021is critical, do we have results for
2019 yet???
scramp isto busy spreading smack about me/pacs and contribution5,,,Kion on a roll last night and this am, all
BS.

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 22 2019 6:22 AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: RE: lndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

lndy Sanctioning Fees
2019 $1.2 m
2020 $1.5 m
2021$1.5 m

Yes, we see these a steep, strategy to get race was fee agreement, after this term need to consider tough negotiations
on costs, I have other thoughts also to minimize financial risk

IMSA

2020 $495 K last year needs renegotiation

ReunionOwned

All others pay us

From:JohnN a r i g i m
Sent: Thursday, November , : PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: RE: lndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

[CAUTlON:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Thanks, do we have the expense side?Weren’t sanctioning fees steep?



jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:59PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: FW: lndyCar Saesas 0 ep ember 21, 2019

FYI I know you love data

From: Lisa Saclayan <Iisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Saturday, September 21, 2019 5:06 PM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com; Cindy McGrane<McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>
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
amount that isat $1,111,885.00 is the total that includes miscellaneous fees such asFed Exand return fees. Please
remember this total does not include gate or outlet sales.

Have a great evening!

Lisa Saclayan
Ticket Coordinator
831-242-8200 | lisanaguna‐seca.com
www.weathertechraceway.com





From: John Narigi *
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2 148 AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Subject: RE: IndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019‑
Maybewe need the “all others” fees increased, sponsorship on indy is key, jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 6:22 AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: RE: IndyCarSaesasof September 21, 2019

IndySanctioning Fees
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

2020 $495 Klast year needs renegotiation

ReunionOwned

All others pay us

From:John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:17 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <wood‘sd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: RE: IndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

Thanks, do we have the expense side?Weren’t sanctioning fees steep?

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21 2019 1:59 PM
To: John Narigi *
Subject: FW: IndyCarSales as0 ep ember 21, 2019



FYI I knowyou love data

From: Lisa Saclayan<Iisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Saturday, September 21, 2019 5:06 PM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: IndyCarSales asof September 21, 2019‑
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
831-242-8200 | IisaQIaguna‐seca.com
www.weathertechraceway.com





_ _ _ ‐ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 6:49 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: IndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

L s t get e 0 1 9 indy soon, jvn

From:Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday,November 22 2019 6:48 AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: RE: IndyCarSales as of September 21, 2019

Preliminary info, yes

It's an absolute shame that they are so unprofessional and slanderous

Big nuts,,, sponsorship and other revenue from rec area in 2020 and 2021 is critical, do we have results for
2019 yet???
scramp isto busy spreadingsmack about me/pacs and contributions,,,Kion on a roll last night and this am, all
BS.

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 6:22 AM

Subject: RE: lndyCar Sales asof Septem er 21, 2019

IndySanctioning Fees
2019 $1.2 m
2020 $1.5 m
202151.5 m

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

From:John Narigi H
Sent: Thursday, Novem er 21, 2019 9:1 M
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: RE: IndyCarSales asof September 21, 2019‑
Thanks, do we have the expense side?Weren’t sanctioning fees steep?

jvn

From:Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:59 PM

Subject: FW: lndyCar Sales aso eptem er 21, 2019

FYI I know you love data

From: Lisa Saclayan <lisa@laguna-seca.com>
Sent: Saturday, September 21, 2019 5:06 PM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC Ia una-seca.com>
Cc: Chin, Lavonne x7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: IndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019‑
Please see attached.

To lessen the confusion of this report, the total that is $1,098,407.00 is the current actual ticket sales amount. The
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
831-242-8200 I lisa@laguna-seca.com
www.weathertechraceway.com





_ _ _ _ _ _ _ ‐ _ _
From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 7:10 AM
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
It will run properly with 2 main goals, great service to guest and clients equals good profit,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday, November 22 2019 6:50AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: RE: lndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

Firestone isthrough term of Indy contract that’s a realwin, many other opportunities, this is a business that ran properly
will really shine

From:John Narigi
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 6:48 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>
Subject: RE: lndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. ]
Maybewe need the "all others” fees increased, sponsorship on indy is key, jvn

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

lMSA

2020 $495 Klast year needs renegotiation



ReunionOwned

All others pay us

From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:17 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: RE: IndyCarSales asof September 21, 2019

[CAUTlON:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click linksor open attachments unless you recognize the sender
andknow the content issafer]
Thanks, do we have the expense side?Weren’t sanctioning fees steep?

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:59 PM
To: John Narigi
Subject: FW: IndyCarSales asof September 21, 2019

FYI I know you love data

From: Lisa Saclayan <Iisa@laguna‐seca.com>
Sent: Saturday, September 21, 2019 5:06 PM
To: tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com; Cindy McGrane <McGraneC@laguna-seca.com>
Cc: Chin, Lavonnex7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>
Subject: IndyCar Sales asof September 21, 2019

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
remember this total does not includegate or outlet sales.

Have agreat evening!

Lisa Saclayan
Ticket Coordinator
831-242-8200 | lisanaguna-seca.com
www.weathertechraceway.com





‐‑
From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 12:42 PM
To: Quezada, Rocio x6769
Cc: Hansen Reed; John Narigi; Girard, LeslieJ.x5365
Subject: RE: LSRA Meeting 11/22/2019

Rocio,

Can you scan agreement and send anelectronic copy to those on this email.

Thanks,

Dewayne

Dewayne,

Thanks,

Can I get a copy of the final signed Agreement with all attachments for my records?

Thanks

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker 8: Reed,P.C.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 649‐1100
Fax: (831) 649-6805

WALKER+REED
A T T O R N E Y S A T L A W R C H

CONFIDENTlALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm ofWalker & Reed, PC . This message and the
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
To: Hansen Reed Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi

Subject: RE: LSRA eeting 11/22/2019

Confirmed.

Dewayne

From. HansenR e a m
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 1 2:
To: Woodsi Dewayne x5309 swoodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <Gira rdLJ@co.monterey.ca.us>; John
Narigi
Subject: LSRA Meeting 11 22 019

Dewayne, Les and John,

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
A T T O R N E Y S L A W P C .

CONFIDENTlALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firmof Walker & Reed, P.C. This message and the
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





From: John Narigim
Sent: Friday, Novem er 22, 2019 1:
To: Hansen Reed
Cc: Woods, Dewaynex5309; Girard, LeslieJ.x5365
Subject: Re: LSRA Meeting 11/22/2019

Jvn

OnNov 22, 2019, at 9:48 AM, Hansen Reed<hreed@wa|kerandreed.com> wrote:

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

<image002.jpg>

CONFIDENTIALlTY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, PC. This
message and the attached documents may be confidential and may contain information that is protected
by attorney-client privilege or the attorney work product privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of
this message and the attached documents, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or other use of this information is strictly prohibited. if you have received this message in
error, please immediately contact our offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:09 PM
To: Hansen Reed_ Girard, Leslie J.x5365 <GirardLl@co.monterey.ca.us>;



John Narigi
Subject: RE: LSRA Meeting 11/22/2019

Confirmed.

Dewayne

From: Hansen Reed ‑
Sent: Thursday, Novem er 21, 2019 2:08 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; Girard, Leslie J.x5365
<GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi
Subject: LSRA Meeting 11/22/2019

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. I
Dewayne, Les and John,

l am just sending this email out to confirm the meeting is at the County offices on West Alisal, Salinas, at
3:30 pm.

l am free all day and can rearrange my day if the meeting needs to be earlier.

Regards,

Hansen

HansenP. Reed,Esq.
Walker & Reed,RC.
215W. FranklinStreet, 5th Floor
Monterey,CA 93940
Phone: (831) 6494100
Fax: (831) 649-6805

<image003.jpg>

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This is a transmission from the Law Firm of Walker & Reed, PC . This
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





‐ _ _ _ ‐ _ _ _
From: Girard, Leslie J.x5365
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 2:51 PM
To: Andy Swartz; Woods, Dewayne x5309; John Narigi; Hansen Reed
Cc: Whilden, Michael x5364; tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com
Subject: RE: Exclusion of County in LSRA Matters

HiAndy, l apologize for the tardy reply on this. We think a letter is fine but there needs to be clarity about accounts and
contracts. All contracts should have been in the name of the County, and those accounts or contracts should not be
closed unless the County concurs. For any contracts that were not put in the County's name but should have been,we
need to review them to determine if they should beassigned to us.

Perhapsjust indicate that SCRAMP and the County will be reviewing the status of contracts and accounts, and the
vendors will be informed about that in the near future.

Les

Leslie J.Girard
County Counsel
County of Monterey
168W. Alisal Street, 3rdFloor
Salinas, CA 93901
(831) 755-5365
(831) 755-5283 (fax)
girardlj@co.monterey.ca.us

From:Andy Swartz 7 7
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 1:39PM"
To: Girard Leslie J.x5365 <GirardU@co.monterey.ca.us>; Woods, Dewaynex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John
Narigi ‐ R e e d q
Cc:Whilden, Michael x5364 <WhildenM@co.monterey.ca.us>; tmcgrane aguna-seca.com
Subject: RE: Exclusion of County in LSRA Matters

[CAUTION‘z This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the contentis “safej-l

Les

SCRAMP would like to send a letter to all the suppliers and vendors that have serviced SCRAMP over the
years (some of whm have in recent times had direct contracts with the County) The purpose is three fold

1. To advise them that SCRAMP's agreement has come to and as of dec 31 and to thank them for their
years of support
2. To advise that the Countyof Monterey or your designee asowners of the property will be handling all
future new accounts for services, suppliers etc
3. Most importantly that SCRAMP's financial obligation to the track ends asof Dec 31 and that any and all
accounts in the name of SCRAMP must be closed by that date.....



Let me know of any issue ....Mr McGrane and I want to follow all protocols going forward during the brief
remaining time

Andy

From: Girard, LeslieJ. x5365 <GirardLJ co.montere .ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21 2019 8:53 AM

; Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi

Cc: Whilden, MIC ae x5364 <WhildenM@co.monterey.ca.us>; tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com
Subject: RE: Exclusion of County in LSRA Matters

HiAndy, I look fonNard to working with everyone on a smooth transition. Just a reminder that section 10.3 of the
agreement requires SCRAMP to maintain financial records for two years following the year to which the records
relate. County will of course want custody of those records.

Les

Leslie J. Girard
County Counsel
County of Monterey
168 W. Alisa] Street, 3rd Floor
Salinas, CA 93901
(831) 755-5365
(831) 755-5283 (fax)
girardli«fi-comonterey.ca.us

Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 8:51 M
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>; John Narigi_; Hansen Reed

Cc: Girard, Leslie J.x!!65 <GirardLJ@co.monterey.ca.us>; Whilden, Michael x5364 <WhildenM co.montere .ca.us>;
tmcgrane@laguna-seca.com
Subject: RE: Exclusionof County in LSRA Matters

[CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the County. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. 1
Dear Mr Woods Thank you for your email and will of course comply There are several litigation matters
pending .....The Kim case in which the court of appeal may issue a ruling shortly Michael Whildon of County
Counsel has been involved in that one from its inception We have insurance counsel (Jan Chilton one of the
top appellate lawyers in the state handlingthe appeal-retained by the carrier) as lead and l am co
counsel (paid by SCRAMP)

Otherwise some potential contractual issues includingone with Gill Campbell Severance Agreement and one
involving PUKKA software I am sure there are some unpaid vendors and an issue with DORNA in which I have
not been involved (Gill and Tim are aware of that issue No litigation over those matters I am sure County
folks are aware of those matters aswell... Some potential matters involve wrongful death of Richard Rein that
occurred on 10/14/18(l am unaware of any lawsuit) and a claim which never materialized by two



Photographers named Don Bloom and Jenna Meyer (no action filed of which I am aware and we have not
heard from them for months

Andy

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, November 21 2019 7:50 AM
To: John Nari i Hansen Reed ‐ Andy Swartz

c: i r a r , . <Girar Ll@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Exclusion of County in LSRA Matters

SCRAMP and SCRAMP representatives,

Please beadvised that the County should be involved in any and all communications/contact or meetings regarding any
legal matters, Mr. Les Girard County Counsel for the County should beconsidered lead for the County. Any and all
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
To: Hansen Reed 'Andy Swartz
Cc: John Narigi ;W00 5,Dewaynex53 <woo s co.montere .ca.us>
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
i am a bit new at this somy apologies.
l have forwarded your email Andy with my response and Hansen to Les and Dwayne.Will be back in touch
with a response hopefully today,

Thank you both,

John V Narigi
President
A&D Consultini LLC



From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, November 21 2019 6:41AM

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

Heading north 2pm that day for TGvacation. Back in town Monday, 11/30/19.

Let me knowwhat can work,

John V Narigi
President
A&D Narigi Consulting LLC.

From: Hansen Reed
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 10:05 PM
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
offices at (831) 649-1100. Thank you.



OnNov 20, 2019,at8:48 AM, AndySwartz‐Nrote:
John

Congratulations ...I think it would be useful for you to meet with Tim McGrane over lunch ( i
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
with Tim that hewould bewilling to meet with you and help in the transition i am copying
Hansen.

Andy





SCRAMP
Sp a m s634,17HAG/[VGAssam!fla / v
OF THEMa/vrz- ‘nz- ‘yPENINSULA

November 22, 2019

DearValued Vendor,

Followinga decision by the Monterey County Board of Supervisors on Tuesday, November 19, the agreement for
the Sports Car RacingAssociation of the Monterey Peninsula (SCRAMP) to manageWeatherTech Raceway Laguna
Seca will end on December 31, 2019.

For 62 years, the SCRAMPorganization has operated this famed Raceway facility, and we would like to thank all
the companies that have supported usthroughout this time. Duringgood times, and also some challenging ones,
we have valued the relationships and friendships that have been created, and we'd like to express our sincere
THANK YOU for your support over the years.

Laguna Seca Raceway isn’t going anywhere, just SCRAMPwill no longer be involved asthe management
organization, effective January 1, 2020.

The Laguna Seca Raceway isowned by Monterey County, and will be operated by a new management company.
For vendors and suppliers of goods and services not already a registered Monterey County supplier, you will need
to get officially registeredwith Monterey County. Goto the County's online Vendor SelfService (VSS) to register:

htt s: vendor-center.co.montere .ca.us weba VSSPROD01 AltSeIfService

0 Pleaseconsider this formal notification that any account underthe SCRAMPor the Sports Car Racing
Association of the Monterey Peninsula nameshould be closed by December31, 2019.

0 Pleasedo NOTtransfer any SCRAMP accounts unless an official signed SCRAMP assignment and
assumption letter,with County PurchasingOfficer reassignment details, is received in advance.

0 After December 31, 2019,SCRAMP has nofinancial obligations associatedwith the Laguna Seca
Racewayor any of its event or activities.

Should you have any current pending invoices for approved goods or services previously provided to the Raceway
through SCRAMP, please have them submitted to; AP@Laguna-Seca.com no later than November 30, 2019.
Please include purchase order number and any supporting order or delivery paperwork. If you have any
questions, please call the Finance Dept at 831.242.8243

The entire SCRAMP organizationwould like to thank you for your valued support over the years and we wish you
every success in your future business endeavors.

Kind regards

T’P. McGrane
Timothy P. McGrane

CEO, SCRAMP

S A o f 8 0 s 3 4



From: John Narigil
Sent: Sunday, OctoberWUTB, 12:09 PM" '
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: narigi LSproposal

Dewayne,

I have beenworking on adraft proposal for your review. Not certain howmuch info you desire I am attempting to hit on
key points at this time. Mythought, once you reviewwe can discuss and definewhat additional informationwould be
required and then Iwould formalize.
My goal isto send it to you tomorrow, Monday by the end of the day.
Please let me know if this is acceptable.

jvn





From: John Narigi
Sent: Monday, Octo M A M
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: DRAFT proposal for Laguna Seca RaceArea andWeathertech Raceway Laguna Seca.
Attachments: LSpropsal .docx

Dwayne,

Attached ismy Draft proposal for your review and comments. Iwill provide afinal once we discuss and I am clear with
all components required. Have left out some simple particulars regardingmyself and the consulting businesses.Should l
beworking off an RFPoutline?
Iwill be heading north tonight for two days of contract work then back in town. Doyou want to meet early Thursday or
Friday am?Also always available by phone based on ascheduled time.
Really excited about this opportunity and I know Iwill make a difference.

FYI Tim isout on the street hitting up all businesses organization for support, distributing a 3 page document.When do
you think I can hit the road?
Had a great meetingwith Darius, believe hewas going to give you a call.

Looking forward to your honest feedback and any additional points you want covered. Concerns regarding the existing
contract noted alongwith questions.

Thank you and appreciate your support.

jvn



Draft Proposal to secure the ”Management Contract for Weather Tech Raceway Laguna Seca”.

Submitted by A&D Narigi Consulting, LLC.

Date:October 5th, 2019.

ExecutiveSummary:

The contract for Laguna Seca Raceway Area and Weather Tech Raceway Laguna Seca would be between
the county of Monterey and A&D NarigiConsulting LLC. John V. Narigi being the principle and solely
responsible for daily oversite and management of the real estate and all operations. Responsibilities as
outlined in the agreement will be properly executedwhile working closely with the county board of
supervisors and county representative.

John has over 40 years' experience in the hospitality industry covering all disciplines of the profession.
Most recently hewas the Vice President and General Manager of the Monterey Plaza Hotel & Spa for
the past twenty-five years. Directingmajor renovations, operational and brand refreshes,while annually
exceeding industry benchmarks relating to financial performance. Throughout his career he has been
successful in directing two hotelswhich earned the Forbes4-star standard of excellence accreditation.
He is known and respected for his entrepreneurial management style with a foundation based on years
of experience in the hospitality industry and a sound business sense. His ability to attract and retain
team memberswith expertise in the needed disciplines required for leadership positions is also highly
regarded. John’s tenure during his professional career has taken him to Portland,Ore., Oakland Ca.,
Kirkland,Wa., and the Monterey Peninsula.

John has served since arriving on the peninsula on numerous boards throughout the county supporting
hospitality and charitable organizations.Volunteers and those who continually serve these organizations
within our county John truly respects and appreciates. Individual’s passion as it relates to community
interests or non-profit organizations is critical and needed in our county. Several of the organizations in
which he served selected him for a leadership role.

John is passionate about racing and what Laguna Seca Raceway Area andWeather Tech Raceway could
become.Given his successful career in assuming struggling hotel operations that required
implementation of sound businesses practices and standards alongwith his involvement in the local
community, A&D Narigi Consulting iswell equipped to be considered for the management contract for
Laguna Seca RacewayArea. A successful LSRA that maximizes its real estate is a critical partner in the
overall success of Monterey County. TOT and sales tax revenue generated from the events is substantial
not to mention the positive public relations messaginggenerated worldwide from key events.

Operational Plan:

Based on limited knowledge and local conversationswithin the community it appearsWTRLS continues
to suffer as it relates to a sound business operation. Given the beautiful real estate and world renown
racingvenue i believe A&D Narigi Consulting has the expertise to manageWTRLS at the expectations
required by the board of supervisors and in accordancewith the contract.



If awarded all current management and associateswould be re-hired,with existing benefits under A&D
NarigiConsulting. The firmwould be responsible for personnel administration relating to; hiring,
training, benefits, compensation and insurance pertaining to personnel and employees' activities. The
fee structure per the agreement will be addressed under ”fee".

Within the first 60days a complete business audit will be completed to include; financial review,
systems, accounting practices, standard operating procedures and personnel policies. Historical financial
information asit relates to revenue producingactivities, event data and supporting reports. Any
independent studies, audits or research completed in 2018-2019 will also be reviewed. Recapwith
findings will be documented. Corrective action to betaken will be noted in the 2020-2021business plan
that will becreated.

Will develop a mission statement, core values and goals for 2020 based on findings determined in the
business audit with the team to promote asense of pride and ownership focused on improving the
business culture and overall performance.

Review of organizational structure and all leadership positions relating to established job descriptions
will be implemented. Develop a clear understanding through discussion with all current personnel
regarding their key tasks and responsibilities.Structured weekly communications meetingswith follow‑
upwill be implemented.

Evaluate 2019 business from all revenue producing sectors within the scope of the contract. Complete a
deep dive into revenues and expenses to evaluate potential areas for improvement relating to
incremental revenue, key events, races, rv park and expense controls with the goal of improving
operational margins and N0! results.

Meet immediately with all critical directors to review upcoming events and current businesses/races on
the books for 2020. Review status of major and minor sponsorship activity and determine path needed.
Educate self on the upcoming businessworking closely with the team to determine within 30 dayswhat
needs to occur to ensure asuccessful 2020 raceand business season.

Meetwith Scramp volunteer directors and event comm. Solidify the relationshipwith clear discussion
regardingthe roles of each organization, (Scramp,A&D Narigi Consulting, County) promoting the need
to work together asa team in an effort to provide outstanding service to our guests and clientswith a
proper return to our owners. The intent isto retain the services of Scramp volunteers, with potential
standards developed as it relates to guest services and current tasks performedwhile developing
efficient operational systems that will directly impact the volunteers in a positive manner.

Determine the path needed to resolve the need for an integrated accounting/software system for all
operations associatedwith Laguna Seca Raceway Area. To include county input and support.

Effectively work closely with the county in developing a 3-5-year capital improvement plan including bid
pricingon approved projects for financial planning purposes.

Financial:

Goal is to increase gross revenues to 18.5-20.0annually given the current business model at LSRA.The
yearly race schedule and numbers regarding key events would have a direct impact on the financial
results. With financial controls and integrated software, NOI should improve to margins of min, 5-10%



based on the current businessmodel. The above is not a guarantee but an objective that will be a
priority of the team if selected. Increasing revenues over time will be a priority including improving the
NOI margin. Annual business plan and budget will bedeveloped.

Review all service contracts from afinancial aspect by evaluating the service currently contracted
relating to the expense and/or generated revenue. Researchother independent firms to provide
additional services relating to event management, personnel responsibilities, etc.. that would benefit
the operation in relationship to efficiencies, guest/client services while reducingoverhead expenses or
generating additional incremental revenue.

A quarterly reportwill be provided to the county representative for review based on specific topics of
interest.Outline of reportwill be developed in cooperation with the county representative prior to
finalizing contract.

Insurance, Compensation, Liability,Area:

Currently understand the responsibility of insurance coverage that A&D Narigi Consulting is required to
carry asstated in the agreement, per Exhibit C.Other liability/insurance sections relatingto the firm vs
the counties responsibilities are confusing.Will be requesting a clean contract that within one section
spells out clearly.Would suggest a basic management contract that would easily define the roles and
liabilities of the county and A&D Narigi Consulting.

Monthly compensation; (SEVERALQUESTIONS FOR DISCUSSION) requesting 286k, (2.0% increase per
year based on the 270k asof 1/1/2017) for labor and personnel benefits expense. Given the position
vacancies and the elimination of a key position in 2019 difficult to verify if the 270k per month isan
accurate figure or not for annual planning. Also, until a personnel audit iscomplete, difficult to
determine what positions are needed and at what price.Allowed expense fund of 150k per month I
assume that is acceptable based on the needsof the operation. Understand the controls and what is
allowed asanexpense per the contract. Incentive fee of 20% at the end of each year based on NOI.
Agreed, still need clarification on the note ”Scramp balance due for unallowable expenses" on the
12/31/18P&Land on the event P&Ls, "general/non-event allocation” Dwayne I knowwe discussed both
but want to be clear in my understanding of.

Liability; remains a concern with the Dorna liability on the Scramp books, north of 2m. Given the
volunteer organization will remain under the name Scramp and associated with myfirm in a working
relationship asthe operator, in myestimation that is too close for comfort.Would expect to be
indemnified bythe county and Scramp of the Dorna liability. Aswe both know, anyone can get sued.

Area; responsible to manage the LSRA excluding the maintenance yard and rifle range per the contract.

Advisory Board:

Individuals selected by A&D Narigi Consultingwith expertise in specific areas. Purpose to advise and
assist the operator on critical tasks such as, long term planning, financial oversite etc.. Expertise in the
following fields required, strategic planning, finance, budget, hospitality, Contract oversite, legal,
construction and racetrack operations. (1) representative off Scramp's volunteer board, (1) elected
official from the county and (1) elected from the peninsula.Total board advisory, 9 to 11 members.

Future Thoughts:



Expand track rentals to achieve a65-70% occ level on usage.

Maintain the number of race events at the same caliber of 2019. Look for filler businesses that is
profitable with limited expense.

Research expanding the go-kart component at the track to interest the young kids/adults in the racing
experience. Potential classes, school/recreational teams to compete.

Utilize the venue during races and promote family activities outside of racing that would interest the
females and children. Need to present avenue that isfamily fun with select activities.

Research various technological applications available that allow racing to beviewed in real time and the
user isallowed the ability to interact with the driver and activity of actual racing.

Once stabilized, begin planning strategically an effort to attract the EV-car industry to LSRA ie. select car
manufactures and Silicon Valley businesses currently developing the EV-racing car. LSRA is the perfect
location to develop a long-term relationship that would allow for research and testing on site. The
current world renown brand of WRLSwould allow for capital investments by interested partieswhile
supporting a new revenue stream for LSRA.

Prior to expanding business opportunities at LSRA, a proper businesses pro‐forma and analysis will be
completed for review. Any new endeavorswill also be reviewed as it relates to the current county
permit.





i
From: John Narigi |
Sent: Monday, October 7, 2019 9:32 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: DRAFT proposal for Laguna Seca RaceArea andWeathertech Raceway Laguna Seca.

(CAUTION:This email originated from outside of thngun ty. Do,not click linksor open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Dwayne,one thought for clarification as it relates to the proposal. It is structured how I have and currently do in going
into troubled operations. Confirm the issues, develop a plan to implement corrective measure and establish benchmarks
to measure success.
Not a lot of fluff or PRtalk. Hopeyou appreciate this strategy. The rest can be added in the final doc.

jvn

From: John Narigi
Sent: Monday,October 7, 2019 9:22 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Ccl
Subject: DRAFT proposalfor Laguna Seca RaceArea and Weathertech Raceway Laguna Seca.

Dwayne,

Attached is my Draft proposal for your review and comments. I will provide a final once we discuss and I am clear with
all components required. Have left out some simple particulars regardingmyself and the consulting businesses. Should i
beworking off an RFPoutline?
I will be heading north tonight for two days of contract work then back in town. Doyou want to meet early Thursday or
Friday am?Also always available by phone based on ascheduled time.
Really excited about this opportunity and I know Iwill make a difference.

FYITim isout on the street hitting up all businesses organization for support, distributing a 3 page document. When do
you think I can hit the road?
Had a great meetingwith Darius, believe hewas going to give you a call.

Looking fon/vard to your honest feedback and any additional points you want covered. Concerns regarding the existing
contract noted alongwith questions.

Thank you and appreciate your support.

jvn





m

From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 4:15 PM
To: Chin, Lavonne x7214
Subject: Re: 2 things

Thanks, this isobviously not correct as I have and don not express personal personal opinions

Thanks

Dewayne

Sent from my iPhone

OnOct 17, 2019, at 3:14 PM,Chin, Lavonnex7214 <chinl@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

Dewayne,

Jeanie said that Steve isworking on his presentation for SEMA. If he hasn't already shared with you, is
that something you wish to see in advance?

Second, John Narigi allegedly told Jeanie that Ann will not be included in his proposal because you don't
like Ann (Jeanie repeated this to Kim.) I’msure you never said anything like that asyou have told me
what you said. My concern is if it isactually being translated that way m that hewould even say such
a thing. Just wanted to share.

Lavonne





m
From: John Narigil
Sent: Sunday, October m
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: LSlist of questions for contract and role clarifcation
Attachments: LSlist of questionsdocx

Dwayne,

Attached isthe list of questions asf/u to our meeting last Monday. Believe self-explanatory and hopefully info can be
provided. Had agood and productive meetingwith Gill on Saturday, conversation was regarding her firm and what they
can offer. Interestingand learned a great deal regardingwhat they can provide.Yes Gill had to give her opinion on the
current issues at the track. I was overly cautious on what I said and stayed away from personnel, Gill however had a lot
to say. Was clear that you and her have agood and respected relationship.
I look forward to securing the management contract for LSRA.

Jvn



1. Would assume that the term concession agreement would be removed from the new
document. My understanding isthat this will be an agreement between Monterey County, (MC)
and A&D Narigi consulting, (firm) for management services.
My understanding is that the LCRA is under the county parks dept yet the contract is clearly
written asthe oversite body being the county representative and board.What role does the
county parks division play and if any can you please bespecificwith their role/responsibilities as
it relates to the firm.
The Historical practices ismentionedwithin the agreement. Pleaseexplain what that means and
any specifics if not defined in a general explanation.
Mention ismade of a "new master plan” isthere asperate document that explains intent and
any projects planned.We have talked about the new bridge but that isall I remember.
Can I get a copy of the army deeds? My attorney would like to review. lwilI also provide him a
copy of the use permit.
Contract speaks to following GAAP accounting practices, per our conversations my
understanding is that the county will be handling all such documents which would require GAAP
practices to be followed. All procedures required for purposes of processingwould be the
responsibility of the firm. Believe it would be helpful to meet soon with the CFO or person
employed by the county to havea conversation on this topic. What will be required of the firm
per this topic?
Monthly management fee would bethe reimbursement of all itemsaslisted in exhibit Aof the
current agreement based on new estimates that will be provided by my firm soon.
Exhibit C,insurance requirements, is this charged against the gross revenues of the track and
thus paid by the revenues? Paid through the county or reimbursed to firm.
Term that will be requested isa 3-year initial term with 3-year option. Termination clause now
states 60days, would expecta 6-month termination clause.
Incentive fee expected would be the 20% on the NOI prior to capital, healthand safety, short‑
term maintenance or capital improvements. Believe that is the current intent of the agreement?
Formal term sheet will be provided soon.
Regardingpresentations to the board, dependingon topic for discussion that a closed session
could be requested byfirm if material to bediscussed was deemed confidential by the firm vs
public meeting.
Can I receive the list of 2019 scheduled fees?
Excluding payroll and overhead asspecified in ExhibitA all other expenses are paid out of gross
revenue per an approved annual budget by MC representative. Payroll and its overhead is paid
bythe firm and reimbursed bythe monthly management fee, correct?
Improvement funding, it states that MCwill supply funds over and above the NOI for capital
improvements, in our conversations I did not detect that intent. Pleaseverify what the planwill
be.



Are there any immediate health and safety requirements or short-term improvements? Both
have a time limit on completing.
Taxes, fees, assessments, all paid from gross revenue.Are any a liability and responsibility of the
firm? If so, please explain.
Property depreciation, asthe county owns the land and believe it was stated owns all personal
and real property, any depreciation would not be the concern of the firm. Correct?
I note the exclusion of certain sponsorships and advertisements, one Iwould question would be
the Cannibus industry given the current position of the county. I would also see great potential
for newfound revenue if this were to beallowed. Tastefully done it could become a new
revenue stream through sponsorships and advertising.
For purposes of contract what is the correct title of the area? LSRA?
Could I receive a copy of the most updated 2019 YTD P&L?
Could I receive a copy of the INDYevent P&L?
Could l receive a copy of the agency currently handling the employee benefits and the payroll
processingfirm?
When do you see usmeetingwith a 1-2 key directors for the scramp volunteers, how doyou
want to handle?
Can you provide a list by position ofwho is employed by the county and will continue to be but
dedicated strictly for LSRAwork with the new contract? Current compensation loadedwould be
helpful for financial and payroll planning, all position please include. I understand it ischarged
to LSRA P&L. Does the expense fall under direct expenses or payroll and overhead?
Are there any current key individuals working for the county for LSRA that I could begin to meet
with?





From: John Narigi
Sent: Monday,October 21, 2019 8:32 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: LSlist of questions

[CAUTI.0N:This email originated from outside of the County. Do_not click links or openattachments unlessyou recognize the sender
andknow the content issafe. ]
Dwayne,

Thank you, appreciate the quick turn on the questions and clear answers, majority I am now clear, balancewe can talk
live. Could I meet with CFO, Lavonne and Mike, either this Thursday or next Monday?Thursday available 11‐3pmand
Monday anytime up to 3pm. Happy to contact directly if good with you.

I am trying to complete at least one of my consulting accounts the others require additional work to achieve completion
per the contracts.

I am however very focused on securing the LSRA mgt contract.

Appreciate you help.

Jvn
From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Monday,October 21, 2019 12:50 PM
To: John Narigi|
Subject: LSlist of questions

Here you go.





H

From: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2019 9:49 AM
To: Gill Campbell
Subject: Re: Just checking in

Yes planningon attending andworking on all processes moving fonNard still on trackjust lots of bases to cover

Hopeall iswell on you front

Thanks

Dewayne

Sent from my iPhone

OnOct 22, 2019, at 9:46 AM, Gill Campbell wrote:

Are you able to go to Vegas for the RRICmeeting? It looks like I might be there after all representing
Michelinwho will be giving a presentation hopefully.

Also just an FYI, asthe VPof the organization, I am attending the Vintage MotorsportsCouncill meeting
this weekend, if there is anything of note, Iwill report back to you nextweek.

In the meantime, hope all isgoing according to plan.

I metwith John Narigi on Saturday and had, I believe a very productive meeting.

I remain concerned about timing, so please let me know i f I can be of any help during the process.

Gillian Campbell
AERO MarketingGroup
omva . BUSINESS.FORWARD
AEROmkg.com

Monterey





From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2019 5:55 AlVl'
To: John Narigi;Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: RE: LSlist of questions

[CAUTIONzThis email originated from outside of the Caunty. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. ]
Had computer issues, now resolved, draft term sheet to you by end of day. My attorney is out until Monday,

jvn

From:John Narigil
Sent: Monday,October 21, 2019 8:32 PM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: LSlist of questions

Dwayne,

Thank you, appreciate the quick turn on the questions and clear answers, majority I am now clear, balance we can talk
live. Could I meetwith CFO, Lavonne and Mike, either this Thursday or next Monday?Thursday available 11-3pm and
Monday anytime up to 3pm. Happy to contact directly if good with you.

i am trying to complete at least one of my consulting accounts the others require additional work to achieve completion
per the contracts.

I am however very focused on securing the LSRA mgt contract.

Appreciate you help.

jvn
From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Monday,Qctober 21, 2019 12:50PM
To: John Narigil
Subject: LSlist of “ W " ‑

Here you go.





From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, October 25, 2019 6:58 AM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: darft term sheet LSnumber one
Attachments: darlt term sheet LSnumber one.docx

Dewayne,

Draft term sheet asmy attorney is out of town but will be back next week. Please review and we should
schedule ameeting for next week to review final proposal and term sheet if desired. Final proposal completed
by early next week. Nomajor changes based on draft submitted.
Thoughts?

jvn



DRAFTTERM SHEET LSRA

10/24/19
Terms: A&D Narigi Consulting LLC (firm)

Laguna Seca RecreationsArea (LSRA)

Monterey County (MC)

Office Area and Equipment: Office space for John Narigi and employees of firm will be provided, and all
expenseswill be the responsibility of MCat the LSRA site. All structures and equipment will be
considered the property of MC.

Office equipment currently in use at the LSRA site and asneeded replacement will be provided byMC
utilizing MCapproved process asdefined.

Firm responsible for; the employment and daily management of employees asnoted on the position
page to be submitted by the firm. Direct payroll and overhead expense to bethe responsibility of the
firm asnoted in exhibit Aof existing contract. Expenses reimbursed by county monthly based on agreed
amount.

MCwill provide acounty employee for the position of CFO with experience in the required disciplines of
accounting to properly handle all specified duties associatedwith the accounting functions of LSRA
businesseswhile adhering to all MC required reportingguidelines asspecified in the management
agreement. Additional accounting personnel required TBD. ITpersonal and support also included.At this
time the understanding isthat the mentioned positions in this section will be charged back against the
monthly gross revenue of LSRA. Annual salary and total expense of each position to be provided to firm
during annual budget process for review and agreement betweenfirm and MC.

Accounting system to be used will be provided by MC. Revised operational and accounting systems and
procedures to be created by firm in cooperation with MCand CFO. All controls and reporting systems to
follow approved accounting practices as noted in the contract.

Director of Sponsorship, to be a county employee hired in cooperationwith the firm and managed by
the firm in cooperation with MC. Monthly expense charged back against gross revenue of LSRA.

Liability Insurance provided by firm asspecified in Exhibit C,paid bygross revenue of LSRA.

Length of contract to be 3 years with a 3-year option for renewal.

Termination clause to be three months’ notice for either party with cause.

Startup deposit of 150k to be deposited into the "allowed expense account” by the firm for operational
expenses. MCto review the expense based on proper documentation for approval and then will
reimburse the firm for the expense.

Monthly fee of 286k to be paid to the firm to cover all payroll and payroll overhead expense. Annually
the fee will be increased by 2.0% for annual cost of living increases. Based on potential unanticipated



increases to benefits andworkers comp, this figure to be reviewed annually by firm and MC for potential
adjustments. Any reduction of fee expense the balancewill be split 50/50 between MCand firm.

Incentive fee of 20% basedon NOI to be paid at the end of each fiscal year prior to any capital, short‐ or
long-term expenses, or capital expenditures asrequired for safety and health regulations.Clear
definition of the NOI amount to bedefined in contact.

Vehicle provided by a sponsoring organization for business and personal usewith all expenses covered.

All expenses associated with the annual operation of LSRAwill be paid by gross revenues earned at LSRA
through the accounting services provided by MCunless otherwise specified in this term sheet.

A percentage of any future major sponsorship where firm played an active role to secure, a percentage
of the sponsorship amount will be paid to the firm. Procedure to becreated by firm and approved by
MC. Percentage to bedetermined.

Firm to be held harmless by MCfrom any loss not caused by gross negligence.

Firm to be held harmless byMCfor any financial liabilities associated with the LSRA or past operator’s
business practices.



*
From: John Narigi!
Sent: Friday,October 25, 2019 7:40 AW
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: Re: darft term sheet LSnumber one

F
Dwayne failed to mention term sheet is obviously for discussion between you and I. Some new items. Let me know.

Sent from my iPhone.
Jvn

OnOct 25, 2019, at 6:59 AM, John Narigi ' wrote:

Dewayne,

Draft term sheet asmy attorney is out of town but will be back next week. Please review and
we should schedule ameetingfor next week to review final proposal and term sheet if desired.
Final proposal completed byearly next week. Nomajor changes based on draft submitted.
Thoughts?

jvn
<darft term sheet LSnumber one.docx>





_  m
From: John Narigi
Sent: Friday, October 25, 2019 9:52 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: Re: darft term sheet LSnumber one

F
Suppose to head to aptos fir contract work. What time? After 11?

Sent from my iPhone.
Jvn

On Oct 25, 2019, at 8:48 AM, Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:

Any chance you can come by today?

From:John Narigi
Sent: Friday, October 25, 2019 6:58 AM
To: Woods, Dewamex5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: John Narigi“
Subject: darft term sheet m r fi b e r one

F
Dewayne,

Draft term sheet asmy attorney isout of town but will be back next week. Please review and
we should schedule a meetingfor next week to review final proposal and term sheet if desired.
Final proposal completed by early next week. No major changes based on draft submitted.
Thoughts?

jvn





_
From: John Narigi 1
Sent: Friday, 0 & 0 m e ‑
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: RE: darft term sheet LSnumber one‑
Just left vm on cell phone, have been in water mtg since 730.Will wait at home until 11am if mtg needed
today. Then will head to aptos, but available by phone all day.
If mtg doesn’t happen today, can do anytime Monday excluding noon-230. May be best to put a standing
weekly time slot on calendars for any needs that may come up to discuss,

jvn

From:Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd@co.monterey.ca.us>
Sent: Friday,October 25, 2019 8:49 AM
To: John Narigi
Subject: RE: darft term sheet LS_number one

Any chance you can come by today?

From:John Narigi‘
Sent: Friday,October 25, 2019 6:58 AM
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309 <woodsd co.montere .ca.us>
Cc: John Narigi 77
Subject: darft term sheet LSnumbéfi'fie_
Dewayne,

Draft term sheet asmy attorney isout of town but will be back next week. Please review and we should
schedule ameeting for next week to review final proposal and term sheet if desired. Final proposal completed
byearly next week. Nomajor changes based on draft submitted.
Thoughts?

jvn





From: John Narigi .
Sent: Tuesday, October 29, 2019 azdb PM
To: Woods, Dewaynex5309
Cc: John Narigi
Subject: Proposal

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafeé]
Dwayne,

I plan on havingmy final proposal and term sheet to you by end of day Thursday or first thing Friday am. My
attorney is now back in town and he is reviewingall. My LLC legal items are complete an dfiled with the state. i
look forward to a conversation and beingawarded the contract.
If you need or desire any further documents from measyou determine your decision, please do not hesitate
to ask.

John V Narigi
A&DNM@
Strategic Consulting LLC.





a
From: John Narigi
Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2019 1:2TP'M '
To: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Subject: proposal‑
Proposal is completed. Have a 130conf call and then will be dropping off at office,

jvn
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From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 6:20 PM
To: Alejo, Luis
Subject: Re: Laguna doc

The Deed? We have never had an agreement, the deed has limitations on leasing of the property that why we had a
concession agreement in the past, we would have sought approval on a concession agreement.

However since 2017 we have operated under a management agreement with SCRAMP and the new agreement is
basically the same management agreement with a few better terms for the County.

The deed is attached to exhibit Con COB agenda 11/19/19 I'II forward the link to you

Sent from my iPhone

> On Nov 21, 2019, at 6:09 PM, Alejo, Luis <AlejoL@co.monterey.ca.us> wrote:
>
> Can you send me a copy of the old agreement over Laguna w the Dept of the Interior. I want to prove a reporter wrong
on a point.
>
>
>
> LUIS A. ALEJO,
> Monterey County Supen/isor, l s t District
> 1
> Sent from my iPhone





m

From: Gomez, Javier x5328
Sent: Monday, November 18,2019 11:30AM
To: Alejo, Luis; Gonzalez, Linda x5869
Subject: FW: Roger Penske and Mario Andretti support Laguna Seca SCRAMP | DrivingtheNation

I'm forwarding you this email from Jeff Canepa requesting a 15minute meeting in regards to SCRAMP.

Javi

From: Jeff Canepa <_ _ 7
Sent: Monday, November 18, 2019 10:50AM
To: Gomez, Javier x5328 <GomezJ@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Roger Penske and Mario Andretti support Laguna Seca SCRAMP I DrivingtheNation

[CAUTIONz This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe. ]

Good morningJavier.

Please forward this email to Supervisor Alejo and ask his ’scheduling’ secretary if he has any room on his ’dance’ card
today?

I’ll be in Salinas in the early PMand would appreciate 15 minutes of his time.

Jeff Canepa

https://www.drivingthenation.com/roger‐penske-and‐mario-andretti‐support-Iaguna-seca-scramp/

Sent from my iPhone





i ‐ m
From: Gonzalez, Linda x5869
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 12:36 PM
To: Alejo, Luis
Subject: FW: Correspondence from Tony Lombardo
Attachments: L-BOS re Narigi.11.12.19.pdf

FYI will print and place on desk

Unda

From:Angela Love <Angela@alombardo|aw.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2019 3:49 PM
To: Gonzalez, Linda x5869 <GonzaIezL3@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Correspondence from Tony Lombardo

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe. ]
DearUnda,

Kindly forward the attached letter from Mr. Lombardo dated today (November 1211)
regardingJohn Narigi's proposalto management at Laguna Seca Raceway to Supervisor
Alejo for his review.

Thank you.

Best regards,

Angela M. Love
Legal Assistant to Anthony L. Lombardo
ANTHONY LOMBARDO & ASSOCIATES
A Professional Corporation
144W. Gabilan St.
Salinas, CA 93901
Phone (831) 751-2330
Fax (831) 751-2331
Email: angela@alombardo|aw.com

PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL -- A1TORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGE -- ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT
The information contained in this electronic transmission islegally privileged and confidential, a n d it isintended
for the sole use of the individual or entity to whom it isaddressed. If you are not the intended recipient, please
take notice that any form of dissemination, distribution or photocopying of this electronic transmission isstrictly
prohibited. If you have received this electronic transmission in error, please immediately contact Angela Love
at (831) 751‐2330 or angela@alombardolaw.com and immediately delete the electronic transmission.



ANTHONY LOMBARDO & ASSOCIATES
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

ANTHONY L. LOMBARDO
KELLY MCCARTHY SUTHERLAND
JOSEPH M. F'ENECH
CODY J. J?an..1.rps

1 4 4W. GABxiANSTREET
SALINAS, CA 9 3 9 0 1

( 8 3 1 ) 7 5 1 - 2 3 30
F A X ( 8 3 1 ) 7 5 1 ‐ 2 3 3 1

November 12,2019

JohnPhillips,Chair
Monterey County Boardof Supervisors
168W. Alisal Street
Salinas, CA 93901

Re: JohnNarigiproposal to management of Laguna SecaRaceway

Dear Chair Phillips andMembers of the Board:

I understand thatyouare considering proposals to manage Laguna SecaRaceway. I believe that
JohnNarigihas submitted aproposal to you for your consideration.

It appears based on the publicly available information that LagunaSeca Raceway is
underutilizedand in needof anew vision. for itsmanagement and operationwhichwill
undoubtedly require County involvementbroadening the uses of the property beyond simply a
racetrack and campground.

It appears basedonMr.Narigi’s experience in the hospitality industry that his expertisewould be
valuable in providing anewvision for the Laguna Secaproperty.

I hope youwill give his proposal all due consideration.

Respectfully submitted,

Anthony L. Lom ard
ALL / a ]





“
From: Alejo, Luis
Sent: Tuesday, November 5, 2019 8:37 PM
To: Gonzalez, Linda x5869
Subject: Fwd: mtg with narigi regarding Laguna Seca proposal

John Narigi wants to meet in Laguna Seca

LUIS A. ALEJO,
Monterey County Supervisor, l s t District
Cell: (831) 726-6032
Sent from my iPhone

Begin fonivarded message:

From:John Narigi <
Date: November 5, 2019 at 8:08:46 PMPST
To: "Alejo, Luis" <AIejoL@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: John Narigi <
Subject: mtgwith narigi regarding Laguna Seca proposal

[CAUTIONz This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. ]
Supervisor, what day time good for you. Wed 10/6 in Aptos on a contract job. In town Thursday
and Fridaywith some commitments. Would think next week is good aswell,
You give me some options and will makework.
Thank you,

jvn
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From: Woods, Dewayne x5309
Sent: Tuesday, September 17, 2019 7:25 AM
To: 100-District 3 (831) 385-8333; loo-District 1 (831) 647‐7991; 100-District 5 (831)

647-7755; loo‐District 4 (831) 883‐7570; 100-District 2 (831) 755-5022; Alejo, Luis;
Adams, Mary L.; Parker, Jane; Phillips, John M. x5022; Lopez, Christopher M.x3535

Subject: Laguna Seca Media Contact

Board Members,

Yesterday I received two separate media inquiries as follows;

Weekly

Asaf Shalev from the Weekly contacted regarding IndyCar aswell asquestions pertaining to SCRAMP continuance at the
track. According to Asaf Mr. McGrane had advised him the County was trying to ”push SCRAMP out”. My response was
the County isfocused on insuring that LSRA is ran in the best business method possible to insure long-term stability and
was not in the business of ”pushing out” SCRAMP. I made adistinction between the dual roles at LSRAone of
Volunteeringwhich the County isextremely supportive and values and one of actual day‐to-day operations which are
two very distinct functions. I also advised that SCRAMP had indicated some months ago that they would present the
County with a proposal to continuing managing the business, however the County has not received such proposal. l
additionally made it clear that the County has the best interest of the facility, regional economy and care of public assets
in mind in our decision making processes.

Mr. Shalev also requested a copy of the performance audit of SCRAMPwhich was done some months ago, I forwarded
the request to County Counsel for review and advisement asto our disclosure requirements.

Monterey Heald

Jim Johnson had schedule a tour to LSRA to review the improvements and seek information regarding IndyCar return. In
addition to the tour and question on IndyCar, Mr.Johnson also asked questions regarding SCRAMP’s future at the Track.
Again I advised of the value of the volunteers and the difference in volunteering and day-to‐day conduct of business.
Additionally advised that SCRAMP had indicated they wished to present a proposal somemonths ago however County
had not received one to-date. Mr.Johnson was interested in how much longer the ”turnaround" would take, which I
replied the County has not set an arbitrary date and was committed to stay the course to insure long term stability of
LSRA for the regional economy and protecting on the public asset LSRA.





l ‐ h
From: loo‐District 1 (831) 647-7991
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2017 5:36 PM
To: Alejo, Luis
Cc: Gonzalez, Linda x5869; Gomez, Javier x5328; Mckeithen, Shane x5127
Subject: FW: SCRAMP contract for the operation of Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca

Constituent From Public Account
-Shane

From: ginger mutoza [mailto:onefastred@threeina911.com]
Sent: Monday,July 24, 2017 2:24 PM
To: loo-District 1 (831) 647-7991<districtl@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo-District 2 (831) 755-5022
<district2@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo-District 3 (831) 385-8333 <district3@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo-District 4 (831) 883‑
7570 <district4@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo-District 5 (831) 647-7755 <districtS@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: SCRAMP contract for the operation of Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca

Dear Supervisors - I am writing to you as a Monterey County resident and a 30 year dedicated SCRAMP volunteer. From
parking cars for a local non-profit to becoming a SCRAMP Director, former Corporate Secretary and nowwith the Race &
Event Committee. I have managed the Admissions Committee function for the last 20 years. My non-volunteer life is a
full-time job with the corporate Legal team of a $100+ billion dollar cap technology company.

While the relationship between the Monterey County management team and SCRAMP has had it's ups and downs over
my tenure with SCRAMP, l have never seen that relationship better than it has developed to in the past 7 months. The
SCRAMP volunteers are excited to see this relationship continue to grow and Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca be brought
up to the event venue that it should be.

Few race tracks (or even businesses) are fortunate enough to have the years of expertise that the SCRAMP organization
has. It is due to this expertise, depth of commitment and leadership expertise that has continued to enable SCRAMP to
operate with so little for so long. Not many businesses can continue to operate when kept on a month-to-month contract,
or which continues to have the threat of being put of out business on short notice. This is a testament to the relationships
SCRAMP has built over the years with businesses and sponsors.

The concept that you are considering to replace SCRAMP just as the relationship between the County and SCRAMP and
the betterment of Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca is beginning is extremely questionable and disturbing from a business
perspective. To consider replacing SCRAMPwith an unproven organization with no one at the helm who has had full
responsible for the day-to-day operations of a raceway or even an event facility for any length of time (Ms. Eberhart's
short tenure with Charlotte Motor Speedway - Linkedln profile) is without logic. Significant changes have occurred in the
racing, event venue management and sponsorship world, especially since the 2008 market crash. Through the
experience of the entire SCRAMP organization, we have continued to produce racing events to benefit our local
communities, their businesses and residents.

SCRAMP is half-way thru a successful 2017 race season. We still have 4 events to go in 2017. For 2018 we have a full
slate of events planned, plus a few new ones. Our communities need the SCRAMP organized events to continue. These
events generate millions of dollars in occupancy and sales tax revenue, dollars which Monterey County needs. Business
which Monterey County businesses need. Jobs which Monterey County residents and voters need.

Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca is a valuable public facility, owned by the residents of Monterey County. SCRAMP built
this facility and has grown it to be a destination on the global map. In my 30 year tenure, SCRAMP has spent millions of
dollars on improvements, replacement facilities and infrastructure improvements - just to list a few:

0 Turn 4 grandstands (and replaced them 25 years later)
0 Installed a new scoring trylon



Built pit row suites and garages
Built a new hospitality pavilion
Made track safety improvements for car and motorcycle racers
Extended the pit lane to accommodate Indy car racing
Built new maintenance and concession buildings
Built new racer medical facility
Developed additional camping areas for race events generating thousands of dollars of additional revenue
Moved and enlarged the SCRAMP business office

Retaining SCRAMP's expertise and local knowledge is the best decision for Monterey County. Monterey County wins, the
hospitality and tourism businesses win, the residents continue in their jobs, and our out-of‐town visitors continue to enjoy
all that Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca and Monterey County businesses have to offer.

Thank you for making the right decision.

Virginia (Ginger) Mutoza
Monterey county resident
SCRAMP Race & Event Committee - Admissions





‐ ‐ ‑

From: loo-District 1 (831) 647‐7991
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2017 4:02 PM
To: Gomez, Javier x5328
Subject: FW: Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca

From:Gregory Johnson [mailtozdrgregpjohnson@gmai|.c0m]
Sent: Wednesday, April 5, 2017 4:50 PM
To: loo-District 1 (831) 647-7991<districtl@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Mazda Raceway Laguna Seca

April 5,2017

Dear Supervisor Alejo,

I amwriting to you asI ammost earnest to haveyou consider the issues at
handregarding the management of the Laguna Seca Raceway. I have been
following the process and evaluationyour boardhas taken in considering
management of the recreational facilities at the Laguna Seca complex. As
anaside I must also tell you that I have beena customer, fan, and
participant in events at the Laguna Seca Raceway (racing, camping and
the shooting range) and the area aroundMonterey andCarmel for the last
35 years. As you can appreciate I have seen agreat many changes both in
the Laguna Seca Raceway facility aswell asthe events that have grownup
around the Monterey Peninsula over the last three decades. I amanavid
fan of Laguna Seca asI really consider it my ‘home” race track. So
naturally I havebeenvery concerned about the process of who assumes
management and continues the history and success of that facility. The
SCRAMP organization andmanagement have dedicated five decades of
care, nurturing, and dedication to makingLaguna Seca the preeminent
dedicated racetrack in the UnitedStates. There is not one racing fan that

1



does not know of the famous “corkscrew” andLaguna Seca reputation.
That profoundandwidespread reputationwas achieved through the work
of countless volunteers under the direction of dedicatedmanagement.

Over the years I have seen the changes in management go from director to
director andhave observedGil l Campbell’s efforts to steer the Laguna
Seca “ship” in the right direction. I’vemet few people in racing that have
the dedication and commitment that Gil l exudes for the SCRAMP
organization and for the Laguna Seca RecreationArea. I would encourage
you to leanhardon her experience and insight regarding the problems and
challenges which face the Laguna Seca facility andhow to promote its
continued success. I do not think that there is anybody in abetter position
to offer the type of counsel and guidance that Gil l Campbell can provide.
Certainly no one has the wealth of experience she possesses havingbeen
in the “middle of the action” for 15years.

With your newmanagement selection combining the expertise, experience
and on‐site, hands-onmanagement by the SCRAMP organization and the
profound experience andbacking of the International Speedway
Corporation, I believe you found the ultimatewinning combination. I trust
that your intent of a three-year contract with themwill quickly resolve into
a long-termmulti-decade relationship and commitment. I would also like
to voice my concern and discouragement from adopting any other
management option. It is my understanding that the “Friends of Laguna
Seca” has again approached the board for consideration in managing the
Laguna Seca RecreationArea. While I understandthat the “Friends of
Laguna Seca” group offers anumber of entrepreneurial, well-meaning and
well‐positioned local car enthusiasts, I don’t think that background
translates into the expertise andmanagement of a complex facility such as
Laguna Seca demands. I would earnestly encourage you to proceedwith
the SCRAMP/International Speedway Corporation group.

2



Every time I come to the Laguna Seca Raceway for an event I amanxious
to see what new ideas and facility improvements have beenaccomplished.
It wasn’t always that way. For 20years the Raceway infrastructurewas
always “business asusual.” It was comforting to round the corner into the
paddock and see a “good old friend” but the “lady” was beginning to look
worn and tattered. Under the SCRAMPmanagement andGil l Campbell’s
guidance the last 10years have shown significant improvements in
infrastructure. I would encourage the Boardof Supervisors to give Gill
and the SRAMP organization asmuchbudget and license for
improvement aspossible for continued improvements. More importantly
the enthusiasmand energy givenby the SCRAMP personnel and
volunteers has givenme events and experiences to cherish and to
remember. That kind of personnel/staff enthusiasm and effort comes from
the direction andnurturingof the management organization. The facilities
are great and improvingbut it is the “people of Laguna Seca” that make
the whole Laguna Seca RecreationalArea experience the best.

Now is the time to support and encourage your new SCRAMP
management team at Laguna Seca. The racing season is uponus and there
is too muchto do to offer further distraction to the successful management
experience at Laguna Seca.

Sincerely,

Dr. Gregory P. Johnson





From: Gonzalez, Linda x5869
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 4:56 PM
To: Alejo, Luis; Gomez, Javier x5328
Subject: FW: Support Letter for SCRAMP
Attachments: SCRAMP support letter 100319.pdf

FYI from Norm.

Unda

From: Norm Groot <norm@montereycfb.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 3, 2019 2:53 PM
To: loo-District 1 (831) 647-7991<district1@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo‐District 2 (831) 755-5022
<district2@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo-District 3 (831) 385‐8333 <district3@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo-District 4 (831) 883‑
7570 <district4@co.monterey.ca.us>; loo-District 5 (831) 647-7755 <district5@co.monterey.ca.us>
Cc: Stratton, Josh Q. x5022 <StrattonJQ@co.monterey.ca.us>; Markey, KristiA. x7576 <MarkeyKA@co.monterey.ca.us>;
Gonzalez, Linda x5869 <GonzaIezL3@co.monterey.ca.us>; Barba, Priscilla x3019 <BarbaP@co.monterey.ca.us>;
Anderson, Yuri <AndersonY@co.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Support Letter for SCRAMP

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content issafe. ]
Attached please find our letter of support for a long-termmanagement contract with SCRAMP at Laguna Seca.

NormGroot
ExecutiveDirector,
MontereyCounty FarmBureau
1140Abbott St., Ste. C,Salinas CA 93901
Mail: PO . Box 1440, Salinas CA 93902‐1440
Office: 831‐751‐3100
normgcbmontereycflacom
www.montereycfb.com



FARMBUREAU mo Abbott Street, Suite c, Salinas, CA 93901 ,. so BOX 1449,Salinas,CA 93902

MONTEREY office (831) 751-3100 - wwwmontereyclbcom

October 3, 2019

Monterey County Boardof Supervisors
Supervisor john Phillips,Chair
Supervisor LuisAlejo
Supervisor Christopher Lopez
Supervisor lane Parker
SuperviSor MaryAdams

VIA: E‐mail

RE: Long‐termManagementAgreement wi th SCRAMP

Honorable Supervisors:

On behalfof the Boardof Directors of Monterey County Farm Bureau, this letter requests support for engaging a new
long-termmanagementagreement with the Sports Car RacingAssociation of Monterey Peninsula (SCRAMP).

Since the deeding of the raceway to the County in 1974, the County has designated the overall management of the
raceway to Monterey County Parks Department. At that time, the federal government requested that all revenues be
utilized for the purposes of recreational development and operations, aswell asproperty maintenance.

SCRAMP has been a valued partner tothe County and is now seekinga long-term agreementfor management of the
facility (the Laguna Seca RecreationArea). A long‐term agreement will allow SCRAMP to make valued and. diligent
decisions on how to move forward with future improvements and management of the track and associated facilities.

Laguna Seca is a valuable asset of the County and shouidbe allowed to develop solid plans for the future operations of
events that will enhance our hospitality economy, building upon the great reputation that the current events enjoy.
SCRAMP management in the past 18 months has been able to increase revenues by 18947, demonstrating their
commitment to enhancing the facilities’ stature.

Pleasesupport a long-termmanagement agreement with SCAMP.
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“
From: 100‐District1 (831) 647-7991
To: Alejo, Luis; Gonzalez, Linda x5869
Subject: FW: Letter from Mario Andretti
Attachments: SCRAMP Monterey Board of Supervisors 10_10_19.pdf

From:Amy Hollowbush <amy@marioandretti.com>
Sent: Friday,October 11,2019 7:23 AM
To: 100-District 1 (831) 647-7991<districtl@c0.monterey.ca.us>
Subject: Letter from Mario Andretti

[CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the County. Donot click links or open attachments unlessyou recognize the sender
andknow the content issafe. ]
Dear Supervisor Alejo,

Please see the attached letter from Mario Andretti. Anoriginal will follow in the mail.

Thank you,
Amy

Amy Hollowbush
Office of Mario Andretti
457 Rose Inn Avenue
Nazareth, PA18064 USA
+1 (610) 759‐5118 office
+1 (610) 390-3615 mobile
amy@marioandrgtti.com
www.marioandretti.com



October W, 2019

To theMonterey County Boardof Supervisors,
I raced for decades at LagunaSeca and I havebeento events at racetracks all over the world. I
think I can speak with some authority ontrack managementand operations. I’veseen it all.
SCRAMP hasmademeaningfulprogress since January 2017 when theMonterey County Board
of Supervisors awarded themwith a3-year agreement. The LagunaSeca facility was brought
back hornastate of disrepair to one that is reSpectable andsuited to host the events it is now
hosting, includinglndyCar, IMSA and Trans AM. Butyou haveonly met theminimum
requirements in terms of improvements to the facility that will allow it to keepthese major
disciplines and attractmore events. There is muchmorework to bedone before LagunaSeca is
amodernmotorsports venue and,because ofthat, I strongly recommendthat you stay the course
with SCRAMP.
Laguna Seca is avaluable Monterey County asset. The County’s engagement is needed in the
success of the transformation of LagunaSeca ‐ and sois SCRAMP. The two partners needto
stick together. I say without hesitationthat SCRAMP shouldbesecured long-term. Laguna
Secaneeds to continue to evolve in order to maximize the potential of the facility and tomatch
other world-classmotorsports circuits.
I urge you not to get caught up in dialogue aboutwhomightbe able to do it better. You’ve got
the best. SCRAMP is the most qualified to dowhat you needdone. And they cando it witha
tong-termagreement that is structuredto allow them to doWhat needs to bedone. The transition
to amodernmotorsports venue is showing; you shouldcontinue it.

I would no t endorse anything asa favor. I endorse only what I believe. Andwhat I believe is to
undermine or challenge SCRAMP’S position is to derail what is in motion.
Respectfiilly,

\

MarioAndretti

Copies to: LuisAlejo, District 1;John Phillips,District2; Chris Lopez,District 3; Jane
Parker,District 4; Mary Adams, District 5; Timothy McGrane, LagunaSeca
(viaemail andUS.mail)

457 Rose Inn Avenue ,. Nazareth,Pennsylvania 18064 - USA
Tel (610) 759-5118 I Fax (610) 759‐8889


